From: Heron, Rache (OASG)

Subject: FW: Nationa Cimate Task Force

To: Good ander, Margaret V. (OAG)

Sent: February 19, 2021 7:30 PM (UTC-05:00)
Attached: TEMPLATE [{(9XE))

From: Colangelo, Matthew (OASG) [{JX(S)]
Sent: Wednesday, February 10, 2021 4:31 PM
To: Williams, Jean (ENRD) <JWilliams@ENRD.USDOJ.GOV>; Gelber, Bruce (ENRD) <BGelber@ENRD.USDOJ.GOV>;

Heron, Rachel (OASG)({s)X{S)] Sooknanan, Sparkle (OASG) (s} K())

Subject: RE: National Climate Task Force

To follow up below is the agenda | just received, along with the attached template document. You will see from the
below that each agency representative will be asked to “say a few words about priority projects that they are looking
forward to launching --or already may have launched - to take on the climate crisis.” If you could give me any
thoughts just one paragraph, there will be a lot of people speaking on the update you would like me to give re:
“priority projects” you are “looking forward to launching,” that would be very helpful. Many thanks Matthew

Gina McCarthy is looking forward to your participation in the first meeting of the National Climate Task Force on
Thursday, February 11th from noon to 2:00 pm.

The meeting on Thursday will provide an initial opportunity to discuss the Task Force’s key role in mobilizing the
administration’s whole-of-government attention on the climate crisis, and the fast start that already is underway on
climate. In Thursday’s meeting, each agency and EOP Task Force member will be invited to say a few words about
priority projects that they are looking forward to launching --or already may have launched -- to take on the climate

We will be sending an agenda and short read-ahead for the meeting on Wednesday. Please call or email Roque
Sanchez({s)N(6) i(b) (6) ) with any questions.

EOP Manifest:

Climate Policy Office: Gina McCarthy, Ali Zaidi

Council on Environmental Quality: Matt Lee-Ashley, Cecilia Martinez
Domestic Policy Council: Susan Rice

NEC: Brian Deese

NSC: Jake Sullivan, Liz Sherwood-Randall

Office of Management and Budget: Nicole Budzinski, Candace Vahlsing
Office of Science and Technology Policy: Kei Koizumi

Agency Manifest:

® Treasury
Department of Defense
Department of Justice
Department of the Interior
Department of Agriculture
Department of Commerce

1049-001865



mailto:BGelber@ENRD.USDOJ.GOV
mailto:JWilliams@ENRD.USDOJ.GOV

Department of Education

Department of Labor

Department of Health and Human Services
Department Housing and Urban Development
Department of Transportation

Department of Energy

Department of Homeland Security

GSA

Environmental Protection Agency

From: Colangelo, Matthew (OASG)

Sent: Wednesday, February 10, 2021 4:15 PM

To: Williams, Jean (ENRD) <JWilliams@ENRD.USDOJ.GOV>; Gelber, Bruce (ENRD) <BGelber @ENRD.USDOJ.GOV>;
Heron, Rachel (OASG) (()N(®)) Sooknanan, Sparkle (OASG) () X(&);

Subject: National Climate Task Force

Importance: High

Jean EO 14008 establishes a National Climate Task Force (Sec. 203); it sounds like the first Principals meeting of the
Task Force will be tomorrow, and the Acting AG may be unable to attend (in which case | would attend as his designee).
With apologies for the short notice, can ENRD send me in the morning your most up-to-date summary of steps you
have taken so far or currently plan to take to implement EO 14008, along with any other info you think | should be
aware of? And although the Task Force is established by EO 14008, it would probably help to have your latest EO
13990 update as well (including a summary of the stuff we’ve already talked about, like the guidance documents
withdrawn last week, just so | haveitin one place). | have not seen an agenda yet for the Task Force meeting but will
pass it along if | get something. The meeting is at 12pm tomorrow.

Thank you,
Matthew
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From: Home and Security Committee
Subject: Home and Security, Transportation & Infrastructure Leaders Write White House Nationa Security Advisor
Su ivan on Coonia Pipeine Ransomware Attack

To:
Sent: May 11, 2021 8:21 PM (UTC-04:00)

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Homeland Security, Transportation & Infrastructure Leaders Write
White House National Security Advisor Sullivan on Colonial Pipeline
Ransomware Attack

Document ID: 0.7.12479.7591 1049-001943



May 11, 2021 (WASHINGTON) — Today, leaders of the Homeland Security Committee and the
Transportation & Infrastructure Committee sent a letter to White House National Security
Advisor Jake Sullivan on the national security and economic security implications of the
Colonial Pipeline Company ransomware attack, which could lead to rising fuel costs and fuel
shortages. In the letter, the Members ask for a formal briefing as soon as possible from the
interagency task force the White House established in response to the attack.

“We are deeply concerned about the security of our nation’s critical infrastructure and the
industrial control systems (ICS) that underpin many national critical functions,” the Members
wrote. “As we have repeatedly stressed, cybersecurity is no longer just an ‘IT issue’ but
instead an economic and national security challenge that can have real-world impacts to our
security. It is imperative that the federal response is rapid, clear, and consistent.”

The letter is signed by Committee on Homeland Security Chairman Bennie G. Thompson (D-
MS) and Ranking Member John Katko (R-NY), Committee on Transportation and
Infrastructure Chairman Peter DeFazio (D-OR) and Ranking Member Sam Graves (R-MO),
Homeland Security Cybersecurity, Infrastructure Protection, & Innovation Subcommittee
Chairwoman Yvette D. Clarke (D-NY) and Ranking Member Andrew Garbarino (R-NY),
Railroads, Pipelines, & Hazardous Materials Subcommittee Chairman Donald Payne (D-NJ)
and Ranking Member Rick Crawford (R-AR), Transportation & Maritime Security
Subcommittee Chairwoman Bonnie Watson Coleman (D-NJ) and Ranking Member Carlos
Gimenez (R-FL), Intelligence & Counterterrorism Subcommittee Chairwoman Elissa Slotkin (D-
MI) and Ranking Member August Pfluger (R-TX).

“In addition to a more detailed understanding of the cyber forensics of the incident response
and more formal adversary attribution, we want to make sure there is interagency clarity in
roles and responsibilities between the National Security Council, CISA, Sector Risk
Management Agencies, and the Federal Bureau of Investigation,” the Members added. “Now
is a time to focus on critical infrastructure resilience, not relitigate federal turf battles.”

Link to Letter
#HH

Media contact:

Adam Comis (Homeland Majority): 202-225-9978
Lesley Byers (Homeland Minority): 202-834-5230
Kerry Arndt (T&I Majority): 202-225-4472

Justin Harclerode (T&I Minority): 202-225-9446
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From: Home and Security Committee

Subject: Home and Security Committee Announces Hearing with Co onia Pipe ine CEO After Ransomware Cyber
Attack

To:

Sent: May 20, 2021 4:06 PM (UTC-04:00)

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Homeland Security Committee Announces Hearing with Colonial Pipeline
CEO After Ransomware Cyber Attack

May 20, 2021 (WASHINGTON) — Today, Rep. Bennie G. Thompson (D-MS), Chairman of the House
Committee on Homeland Security, announced that the Committee will hold a full Committee
hearing on June 9 with the CEO of the Colonial Pipeline as part of its ongoing oversight of the
cybersecurity of our critical infrastructure after the ransomware attack on the company’s networks
last week.

Full Committee Virtual Hearing: Cyber Threats in the Pipeline: Using Lessons from the Colonial
Ransomware Attack to Defend Critical Infrastructure

Date: June 9, 2021 at 12pm EDT

Witness: Colonial Pipeline CEO Joseph Blount

Latest info, witness list, and livestream available here.

Additional Homeland Security Committee oversight actions on this attack:

e On Tuesday, May 11, Committee leaders, along with Transportation and Infrastructure
Committee leaders, sent a bipartisan letter to White House National Security Advisor Jake
Sullivan requesting an interagency briefing on the Federal response to the attack.

e On Monday, May 17, the Committee, along with the Oversight and Reform Committee, held a
staff level briefing with Colonial Pipeline.

e On Tuesday, May 18, the Committee held a classified threats briefing for Full and
Subcommittee Chairs and Ranking Members with DHS, FBI, and ODNI that focused on the
Colonial Pipeline attack.

e On Wednesday, May 19, the Committee, along with the Transportation and Infrastructure
Committee, held a joint interagency Member briefing with CISA, TSA, and FBI that was
requested on May 11.

e On Thursday, May 20, the Committee met with officials from the Colonial Pipeline Company to
discuss the ransomware attack in advance of the June 9, 2021 hearing.
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“The Colonial Pipeline ransomware attack and the related fuel shortages laid bare three urgent
challenges facing the nation: cybersecurity vulnerabilities in critical infrastructure, the need to
build resilience into our networks, and the profitability of ransomware. To address these urgent
challenges, Congress must have a complete understanding of what happened on Colonial
Pipeline’s networks, how it made decisions related to network operations and ransom payments,
and how it leveraged support from the Federal government and private sector.

“As we do our work to investigate what happened at Colonial Pipeline, we must not make the
mistake of taking a siloed approach to addressing cybersecurity vulnerabilities in critical
infrastructure. The reality is cyber attacks against critical infrastructure will have cross-sector
impacts. Federal policy should be rooted in that reality, as it has been since September 11, 2001.
Moving forward, we will work to build a stronger understanding of cybersecurity vulnerabilities to
critical infrastructure and the interdependencies among sectors to inform policies that will
encourage mitigation and build resilience.”

###

Media contact: Adam Comis at (202) 225-9978

L
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From: Coey, Anthony D. (PAO)

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Fox: "Jake Su ivan's wife, AG Gar and counse, is not connected to Durham investigation,
senior DOJ officia says"

To: Kapper, Matthew B. (OAG); Good ander, Margaret V. (OAG)

Sent: November 12, 2021 6:15 PM (UTC-05:00)

From: Do) Real Time News Clips ()] (®))]

Sent: Friday, November 12, 2021 4:03 PM
To: Coley, Anthony D. (PAO) (()X(®))
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fox: "Jake Sullivan's wife, AG Garland counsel, is not connected to Durham investigation, senior
DOJ official says"

Fox: "Jake Sullivan's wife, AG Garland counsel, is not connected to Durham investigation, senior DOJ official says," Jake
Gibson and Kelly Laco, November 12 2021

connected do

A senior Justice Department official told Fox News on Friday that National Security Adviser Jake Sullivan's wife, who
currently serves as counsel to Attorney General Merrick Garland, is not connected to the Durham investigation into the
origins of the Russia investigation.

Fox News reported Tuesday that Sullivan is the "foreign policy advisor" referenced in the indictment of former Hillary
Clinton presidential campaign lawyer Michael Sussmann, according to two well-placed sources. This is the closest
Durham's probe into the origins of the Russia investigation has come to anyone directly associated with the Biden White
House.

However, there is no indication that Sullivan is a target of Durham’s investigation, only that he received information
from a campaign lawyer. Durham’s indictments have since revealed that the information Sullivan received about an
alleged link between the Trump presidential campaign and a Russian bank, which was fed to the FBI, was false.

The senior DOJ official told Fox News that while Sullivan’s wife, Maggie Goodlander, is currently a counsel to Garland,
she has no connection to the Durham investigation, adding that among her portfolio are issues such as antitrust and
international matters.

In light of Sullivan's newly confirmed connection to a Clinton campaign lawyer, watchdog groups are saying Biden's
national security adviser's family ties to the Biden administration are troubling.

Goodlander previously clerked for Garland when he was a D.C. Circuit judge. In addition, Sullivan's brother, Tom,
serves as deputy chief of staff for policy at the State Department. Tom's wife, Rose Sullivan, holds a top position as the
acting assistant secretary for legislation in the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS).

"The fact that he has relatives in the agency responsible for overseeing the investigation is very troubling from an
oversight and a watchdog perspective and is something that we would recommend and potentially will recommend
Congress keep a close eye on and investigate," nonprofit watchdog America Accountability Foundation founder
Matthew Buckham told Fox News. "This is something we always flag, and we don't want any undue influence from
family members in an ongoing investigation."

In addition, the 44-year-old security adviser is facing bipartisan criticism for the Biden administration's handling of the
Afghanistan withdrawal, which left hundreds of Americans and Afghan allies stranded in a country that was taken over

by the Taliban.

"Jake Sullivan led the interagency process that resulted in the disastrous withdrawal from Afghanistan. Now more than
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ever, our nation needs leaders who are competent and trustworthy," Senate Homeland Security and Governmental
Affairs member Josh Hawley, R-Mo., told Fox News on Friday. "Sullivan has shown himself to be neither and that’s why
I’'ve been calling for his resignation for months now."

Brett Bruen, a former director of global engagement under the Obama White House, also called for his dismissal in a
USA Today op-ed in August.

"President Biden needs to fire his national security adviser and several other senior leaders who oversaw the botched
execution of our withdrawal from Afghanistan," Bruen wrote.

END
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From: Coey, Anthony D. (PAO)

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Press inquiry on Margaret Good ander's invo vement in Durham probe
To: Kapper, Matthew B. (OAG); Good ander, Margaret V. (OAG)

Cc: Iverson, Dena (PAO)

Sent: December 9, 2021 3:42 PM (UTC-05:00)

Shall we deploy? ()N
From: Chuck Ross [()N(®)]

Sent: Thursday, December 9, 2021 3:33 PM

To: Coley, Anthony D. (PAO) (S} >

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Press inquiry on Margaret Goodlander's involvement in Durham probe

Mr. Coley,
How are you? I'm reaching out for a story we're writing about Margaret Goodlander.

A House Republican and a watchdog group we have talked to are questioning whether Ms. Goodlander has had any
involvement or input regarding the Durham probe. They're raising these questions because her husband, Jake Sullivan,
has been referenced in one indictment so far (that of Michael Sussmann). There is also a strong likelihood he would be
discussed in any report issued by Durham given his role on the Clinton campaign. They're saying this is an issue because
AG Garland has ultimate say over Durham's investment, the approval of his budget and the release of his eventual
report.

| was hoping to find out whether the Department may have already addressed this issue internally. Is Ms. Goodlander
recused from having any involvement in the Durham matter? Has she advised AG Garland or the Department on the
investigation? If she has not officially recused, what would the rationale be for her not being made to do so?

Thank you for any help,
Chuck Ross

Senior Investigative Reporter
The Washington Free Beacon

(b) (6)
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From: U.S. Department of State

Subject: Department Press Briefing — March 9, 2021
To: Good ander, Margaret V. (OAG)
Sent: March 9, 2021 7:08 PM (UTC-05:00)

You are subscribed to Press Releases for U.S. Department of State. This information has recently
been updated, and is now available.

Department Press Briefing — March 9, 2021
03/09/2021 06:56 PM EST

Ned Price, Department Spokesperson

Washington, D.C.

2:17 p.m. EST

MR PRICE: Good afternoon. A few things at the top.

First, today marks 14 years since beloved husband, father, grandfather, and former FBI agent Robert
“Bob” Levinson was abducted in Iran. Since that time, Bob has missed graduations, marriages, and
the birth of all but one of his grandchildren.

Yesterday, Secretary Blinken spoke with the Levinson family and promised to press the Iranian
Government to provide credible answers to what happened to Bob Levinson.

We call on Iran to immediately and safely release all U.S. citizens who are unjustly held captive in Iran.
The abhorrent act of unjust detentions for political gain must cease immediately — whether it’s in Iran
or anywhere else around the world.

Next, yesterday, the Department of the Treasury, in consultation with the Department of State,
revoked a license issued to Specially Designated National Dan Gertler, which was issued on January
15 of 2021.

The license previously granted to Mr. Gertler is inconsistent with America’s strong foreign policy
interest in combatting corruption around the world, and it undermined the integrity and effectiveness of
the Global Magnitsky sanctions program.

Mr. Gertler engaged in extensive public corruption in connection with the Democratic Republic of the
Congo. Yesterday’s action further demonstrates our strong support for efforts to counter corruption
and to promote stability in the DRC. Under our Privileged Partnership for Peace and Prosperity, the
United States stands firmly with the people of the DRC in their efforts to advance democracy, bolster
public institutions, and promote accountability for corrupt actors who seek to undermine them.

The United States will continue to confront corruption around the world, to uphold international norms,
and impose in — tangible costs on those who seek to upend them.

And finally, looking ahead —
QUESTION: Wait. Impose —

MR PRICE: Tangible. Tangible costs.

Document ID: 0.7.12479.6450 1049-000001



QUESTION: Tangible. Not intangible costs.
MR PRICE: Tangible costs.

Later today, Secretary of Homeland Security Alejandro Mayorkas will announce Venezuela’s
designation for Temporary Protected Status, also known as TPS. This designation demonstrates the
continuing support of the United States for the people of Venezuela.

To date, nearly 5.5 million Venezuelans have fled their homeland, while another seven million remain in
chronic need of humanitarian aid. Nicolas Maduro’s repression, his corruption, and economic
mismanagement have victimized these Venezuelans and produced this political and humanitarian crisis.
Maduro’s willful neglect of his people, in a bid to remain in power, has created one of the hemisphere’s
worst refugee and migration crises.

With this designation, we proudly join Colombia in their recent announcement to provide a similar
status for vulnerable Venezuelans. The United States continues our leadership in the international
effort to alleviate the suffering of the Venezuelan people. We provided nearly $529 million in regional
humanitarian assistance in Fiscal Year 2020 in crisis response, and we welcome Spain’'s recent
financial commitment for the same. We encourage others to contribute.

We are proud to stand with these partners in both our commitment to democracy and the rule of law in
Venezuela, as well as concrete action to help Venezuelans in need.

With that, Matt.
QUESTION: Great. Okay. All right. No travel to announce or anything?
MR PRICE: No travel to announce.

QUESTION: Okay. All right. Well, then barring that, and that was what | was going to start with, but
since we don't have that, just on the Levinson thing, on the anniversary — he was taken during the Bush
administration. And every Secretary of State since Condoleezza Rice has been demanding that the
Iranians release him or provide information about what — what exactly is new or different about your
approach with the Iranians? Because the Obama administration, right — we had the nuclear deal. We
had people released; he was not one of them. The Trump administration tried a harder approach, lots
of sanctions. Why exactly do you think that your approach — well, first of all, what is your approach?
And then secondly, why do you think that that approach is going to work any better than the previous
three administrations have on this case?

MR PRICE: Well, let me start by reiterating what | said a moment ago, and yesterday the Secretary
did have an opportunity to speak to the Levinson family. Last year, of course, the family shared with
the world their belief that Bob is deceased. In December of 2020, late last year, the United States
designated two Iranian ministry of internal security officials for their role in Bob’s abduction,
disappearance, and probable death. We also, Matt, | would remind you, have a Rewards for Justice
out for $20 million for information leading to the location, recovery, and return of Robert Levinson.

As we said in the topper, the Secretary committed to the Levinson family that finding answers — long
overdue answers, as you alluded to — will be an absolute priority for us. We will press the Iranian
Government for those answers, as we have said, in the context of Americans who are being unjustly
detained in Iran today. We have made no bones about the fact that we have no higher priority than the
safe return of Americans who are being unjustly detained in Iran. We have made that clear to the
Iranians. National Security Adviser Sullivan made note of that a couple weeks ago now.
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When it comes to Mr. Levinson’s case and the fact that he has now been missing for 14 years,
separated from his family for all of that time, we will absolutely continue to press the Iranian
Government for these answers that | said before are long, long overdue.

QUESTION: Yeah, but they haven't given you any answers, and they haven't given any answers for
14 years. And | just wrote down a list of the — just off the top of my head, starting a long time —
anyway, I’'m just curious as to what — what is this administration going to do differently, if anything,
than the previous three administrations have done to try and find out what happened to him or get him
back?

MR PRICE: Well, | think it goes without saying that our approach to Iran differs in pretty profound
ways, and we’ve talked about that broadly when it comes to Iran’s nuclear program. We've always
made the point that unless you have a strategy that is accompanied by diplomacy, that is
accompanied by an ability to exchange ideas, to exchange proposals, to exchange initiatives, any —
just about any effort to contain Iran in the nuclear arena will be fruitless and feckless.

Now, the fact that we intend or at least seek to have lines of communication with Tehran allows us, of
course, to press the Iranians for information about cases of missing or detained Americans. We
absolutely plan to leverage those channels. | would — | don't need to remind you, Matt; you were there
— but | believe it was January 20th of 2016 when several Americans were released and were reunited
with their families, and that was the result of concerted engagement with the Iranian Government. So
we are going to absolutely make it a priority. We are going to make it a priority to secure the release
of Americans. We are going to make it a priority to find answers, long overdue answers about Bob
Levinson.

QUESTION: You're right, there were Americans released back then, but it — but not Levinson. And the
Iranians have consistently said that they don't have any information about it. Now, whether they’re
telling the truth or not, | don’t know.

MR PRICE: Well, that's exactly the point. That’s exactly the point. We are going to press the Iranians
for answers. We are going to press them for what they have to say. We will continue to use every tool
in our disposal, every tool in our toolkit to find out all we can about what happened to Mr. Levinson
and to try and provide those answers to the family.

QUESTION: Okay. But the critics of all this — and | have to do — the Obama administration had
opened up a big line of communication with Iran and got nothing in terms of Levinson. Nothing. The
Trump administration took a hard line; they got nothing in terms of Levinson. The Bush administration
prior to the Obama administration got nothing in terms of Levinson. And when you talk about the
release in 2016, critics will say that they were released because you paid the Iranians.

MR PRICE: That’s what critics might say, Matt.
QUESTION: That’s what they say, but —

MR PRICE: | assume you're not saying that because you know that is absolutely not true. | don’'t need
to go into that. You presumably know just how false that is.

QUESTION: | know — well, but I'm just saying that that’s what they’re going to say. So what — | just
don’t understand what it is that you think that you can do differently that the previous three
administrations haven't in this case. That’s all.

MR PRICE: Matt, you are not wrong that the last two administrations have not been able to provide
satisfactory answers either to the family, to the broader American public, about what happened to Bob
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Levinson. | can speak to the Obama administration; it wasn't for a lack of trying. This case was
absolutely a priority back then. Obviously, wouldn't want to characterize the Trump administration’s
approach beyond what we’ve all seen and what you, in fact, alluded to.

And so, again, our approach to Iran is one that recognizes the necessity of diplomacy. And diplomacy
in this case requires that we have channels for communication. We will use every single one of those
channels as appropriate to press the case for those Americans who are unjustly detained in Iran today
and for answers when it comes to Bob Levinson.

Now, those channels of communication are one important tool. We also have other tools and means at
our disposal to try and find those answers. We will use every single one of them.

QUESTION: Thanks.
QUESTION: Staying on Iran?
MR PRICE: Sure, staying on Iran.

QUESTION: One hundred forty members of Congress have sent a letter to the Secretary saying that
as it tries to re-engage with Tehran on the nuclear deal, that they should go bigger, deal with other
security issues, deal with foreign policy issues, deal with Tehran’s regional influence. What has been
the Secretary’s reaction to this bipartisan letter, and does this building read the letter as a kind of a
leeway to go big and to be willing to negotiate everything, and perhaps offer things that otherwise
might not get political support on the Hill?

MR PRICE: I'm sorry, do we read it as a — what was the word?
QUESTION: As a way — a sort of leeway.

MR PRICE: Oh, leeway, leeway.

QUESTION: Yeah, yeah.

MR PRICE: Look, so this letter and the ideas put forward in the letter are in important ways very
consistent with the approach that we have laid out. And let me just remind you of that approach. At its
core, the first step is what we have short-termed — or what we have shorthanded “compliance for
compliance,” the idea that if Iran resumes its full compliance with the JCPOA, resumes its
commitments with the JCPOA, the United States would do the same. We would seek to lengthen and
strengthen the deal.

And the important point we have made that is consistent with the point that is made in that letter is that
the JCPOA and compliance for compliance — it is necessary, but it's not sufficient. And we say it’s not
sufficient because we have also spoken to the need to: number one, lengthen and strengthen the
terms of that deal; but two, importantly, to use the JCPOA as a platform to negotiate follow-on
agreements, agreements that would cover other areas of concern — concern for the United States,
concern for our allies, concern for our partners in the region. Two of those concerns certainly are
ballistic missiles and Iran’s support for terrorism, two issues that | believe were mentioned in that very
letter.

So it sure sounds like we are on the same page in broad terms. That is precisely the work that we
have set out for ourselves. It's precisely the work that we are engaging in. And these are still early
days. We have started the process of engaging with allies, with partners, with members of Congress
as well. And we will continue to engage with members of Congress. Of course, Secretary Blinken will
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be up on the Hill tomorrow before the House Foreign Affairs Committee.

And so we will continue that in an effort in the first instance to arrive at that arrangement for
compliance for compliance, but then also recognize and operationalize the fact that it is necessary but
not sufficient, and not sufficient for the reasons | set out.

QUESTION: Should the JCPOA be converted from an agreement to an actual treaty? That was a
criticism that some in Congress lobbed at the measure back in 2015.

MR PRICE: Well, as you know, the deal was enshrined in the 2015 INARA legislation. Of course, we
intend to follow the law. INARA remains the law of the land.

Yes.
QUESTION: First of all, this is a different topic.
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Honduras. Federal prosecutors today implicated President Hernandez in alleged drug
trafficking. Does the United States have any read of this, any implications in terms of policy? Can the
United States still deal with the president in the same way?

MR PRICE: WEell, as in other countries, Shaun, we strongly support the rule of law and the fight
against impunity. That is true in Honduras. It is true at all levels in Honduras. We are working with
Honduran Government officials, civil society, and private sector to build a better future for the
Honduran people. That’s our goal; that’s what we seek to do. It's also what we spoke to yesterday
when a similar question was raised.

QUESTION: Sure, but can we — can you actually deal with the president the same way as,
considering there might be some sort of a — some criminal liability allegedly in this?

MR PRICE: Well, when it comes to criminal liability, | would say that we are working across all
branches of the Honduran Government, we’re working with civil society, we are working with the
private sector — again, to build a better future for the people of Honduras.

In many ways, we have a shared future, and what happens in Honduras is not consequence-free for
the United States. It’s one of the many reasons why we have spoken about the need to partner with
the Honduran people, with civil society, with elements of the Honduran Government. We are
committed to that partnership, we are committed to fighting corruption in Honduras, and we will
support and work with leaders who are committed to fighting corruption. Any leader, | think it is fair to
say, not prepared to combat the corruption won’t be in a position to enjoy a close partnership with the
United States.

QUESTION: So you're saying what happens in Honduras doesn’t stay in Honduras? Was that what
you were trying to —

MR PRICE: What | am saying is that, of course, corruption, poverty, impunity, lack of rule of law — all
of those have profound implications for the people of Honduras, of course, but they are also important
drivers of irregular migration and migratory patterns in the Western Hemisphere that ultimately do
redound on the United States. And so if we are to address the challenge of irregular migration within
our own hemisphere, we have to take these on, these challenges on. We have to partner with and
invest in the region. It’s one of the many reasons why President Biden’s plan includes significant
funding for partnership with the Northern Triangle. And it is one of the many reasons why President
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Biden has made clear that we will partner with the region to address these underlying causes. Until
and unless we address these underlying causes, the challenge of irregular migration for us will remain
acute.

QUESTION: Maybe | missed — maybe | missed some of the administration-wide nomenclature
change. When did it become irregular migration? Was that something that happened on the 20th of
January?

MR PRICE: | don’'t know when that came into being. It's a term that I've long been familiar with. |
couldn't say.

QUESTION: All right, okay. Fine.

QUESTION: Could | ask you something else in Latin America? | wondered if you want to weigh in on
Brazil, the overturning of the sentence against Lula. Do you have anything to say about this? Do you
agree with his contention that this is politically motivated to begin with?

MR PRICE: Well, we're, of course, aware of recent news regarding the Brazilian court decision
annulling former President Lula’s conviction. For details, for reaction, we’d refer you to the
Government of Brazil as well as for information about the court’s decision. What is fair to say — and
this is consistent with what | was saying about a — in a very different context in our own hemisphere —
we note our support for Brazil's, in this case, its democratic institutions. And we continue to underline
and underscore that support.

Yes.

QUESTION: On China. The South China Morning Post has a report saying there’s a discussion about
a meeting possibly in Anchorage involving Secretary Blinken. Is that something you're able to confirm?
And the reporting says this is a bid to reset the relationship with China, so | wonder if you — are you
seeking a reset in your talks with China?

MR PRICE: Well, to your first question, we don't have any future travel or meetings to announce at
this time. When we think about our relationship with China, | would go back to what Secretary Blinken
said just under a week ago now. As you recall, he outlined eight priorities in his address to the
American people outlining a foreign policy for the American people, and China, of course, was one of
those priorities. And he said at the time that our relationship with China, it will have aspects are — that
are competitive. It will be competitive when it should be, it will be collaborative when it can be, and it
will be adversarial when it must be.

The common denominator in all of this and what we have consistently talked about when we note our
approach vis-a-vis China is that we will engage China from a position of strength. And we have spoken
to any number of those strengths. And to do so, it requires us to work with allies and partners. Again,
our system of alliances and partnerships around the world are a core source of strength. That’s
precisely why they are the envy of competitors and adversaries the world over.

It requires that we engage in diplomacy and in international organizations, leveraging them and
recognizing them as a core source of strength, knowing that when the United States has pulled back
over the course of history, including recent history, China has filled in that vacuum. And it requires
standing up for our values. And we have talked about our values as a core source of strength, whether
that is when it comes to human rights abuses in Xinjiang or the way in which Beijing is trampling
democracy in Hong Kong, because if we don't do this — and if we don't do it in concert and in tandem
with our allies and partners around the world — China will act with even greater impunity.
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And then we've also talked about our domestic strength and the strengths that we bring to the table as
a country and the prudent investments we need to make in American workers, companies,
technologies, insisting on that level playing field. Because when we are competing on a level playing
field, the United States can out-compete anyone, including the Chinese. So that is a long-winded way
of saying we don’t have any meetings to announce at this time, but we know what we have to do to
engage China. We know what we will do to engage China. And we’ve started some of that important
work.

QUESTION: Is this kind of meeting something that the administration would like to set up?

MR PRICE: Look, we would like and we will engage China from a position of strength. We have
already laid some of that important groundwork, and you can go through those priorities | listed and
you can look at concrete actions on many, if not all of those. But I'm not going to characterize any
forthcoming efforts, meetings, travel. We know what we will do, and that is precisely what we have
set about preparing for since day one.

Yes.
QUESTION: Can we stay in the region?
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Yes. So how much adversary relationship between U.S. and China are going to be
discussed in Friday’s virtual — President Biden’s virtual meeting with the Quad?

And separately, if | may, would you like to comment on reports like South Korea may be considering
rejoining the Quad in an effort to weigh in North Korea policy? Is there such discussion? Thank you.

MR PRICE: Well, as the White House | believe — | hope — announced today, on Friday President
Biden will meet virtually with his fellow heads of state in the Quad. Of course, that’s Prime Minister
Suga of Japan, Prime Minister Modi of India, and Prime Minister Morrison of Australia. The Quad
grouping was essentially established — | believe it was in 2007 in the first iteration — to showcase what
democracies can deliver together for both our own populations and also the broader international
public. Quad members are uniquely positioned to help lead the world out of the deep crises that we've
spoken about recently — and, of course, that includes COVID-19 — and towards the more positive
vision that we all seek. And it’s a vision that we in large part share with our fellow Quad counterparts.

And so the summit meeting — the leader-level summit meeting — will be the first of its kind, the first
leader-level summit of the Quad. It will showcase the Quad’s ability to pool our capabilities and build
habits of cooperation to address some of those urgent challenges we face.

Now, at the same time, | would just note that the Quad is not about any single challenge. It’'s not about
any single competitor. This is an entity forged and formed because we share common interests.
They’re — maritime security is, of course, an important one, but our shared interests go well beyond
that. And | think you will see reflected in the agenda the breadth of those shared interests in the
aftermath of the Quad meeting.

QUESTION: Could you please give us update on the North Korea policy review? Do you envision a
summit between President Biden and North Korea leader Kim, or should we expect a return to the Six-
Party Talk, or a whole new format? Thank you.

MR PRICE: Well, when it comes to North Korea broadly, what | would say is that — and we have
spoken about this before — is that we will adopt a new approach, an approach that fundamentally
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seeks to keep the American people and our allies safe. And that begins, as you mentioned, with a
thorough review of the state of play with North Korea — the state of play of affairs in North Korea, |
should say — in close coordination with our treaty allies — the ROK and Japan and other allies and
partners — on ongoing pressure options and the future for potential diplomacy. We will focus in the first
instance on reducing the threat to the United States and our allies, as well, of course, on improving the
lives of citizens both in North Korea and in South Korea on the peninsula. All the while, we’ll remain
committed to the objective of denuclearization.

When it comes to the issue of a summit — and President Biden and his team made this clear, | believe,
even before President Biden was inaugurated into this current high office — that our approach will
probably look very different. Our approach will be principled. Our approach will be clear-eyed. Our
approach will be conducted in close coordination with our treaty allies, including the Japanese and the
South Koreans. And | would expect that it will be led by individuals who are deeply steeped in the
subject, people who are experienced with the challenges — the unique challenges — we face when it
comes to North Korea.

So I’'m not going to announce or, on the other hand, rule out any sort of meetings or any specific
diplomatic efforts, but | think those will be the principles that guide our approach to North Korea going
forward.

QUESTION: Can | — Ned, I'm sorry, just — this goes back to my questions about Levinson and Iran.
What do you mean, a fundamentally new approach to North Korea? Just for me personally, right — so |
started covering North Korea diplomacy in the Clinton administration. That would be Bill Clinton
administration, right? Clinton, Bush, Obama, Trump, Biden — every single one of them has said exactly
the same thing as you just did: We’re going — we want to help the North Korean people; we want to —
we want them to — to have a better life; we want to preserve our U.S. security and the security of our
allies, North Korea, Japan. What exactly does — what exactly is different?

MR PRICE: Matt, | would say | think what | just outlined, it is at least self-evident to me and | imagine
it's self-evident to you that there are key differences from what we witnessed in the last
administration. Now —

QUESTION: Ned, this goes back well before just the last administration, okay?
MR PRICE: The other point —

QUESTION: Are you saying that, like — are you taking about, oh, we're going to have new people in
there?

MR PRICE: The other point is that 2021 is not 2016. It's not 2009. It's not 1994. There are changed
circumstances and conditions and changed leadership, of course, not only in this country but in North
Korea, with our treaty allies. This is a challenge that has evolved over time. The circumstances that we
face today are very different from what the last Democratic administration faced.

QUESTION: Are you suggesting that somehow previous administrations, the people that they had as
point people on this, were not —

MR PRICE: Of course not.
QUESTION: — were not competent?

MR PRICE: Matt, no such words came out of my mouth.
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QUESTION: | mean, one of them is still — one of them is your acting assistant secretary for East Asia
and the Pacific right now.

MR PRICE: Of — Matt, | — that’s why | didn't say that, so okay.
Yes, please.

QUESTION: Yes. | have a follow-up question on South Korea’s participation in Quad. And so South
Korea — so, according to some South Korean officials, South Korea has never been officially invited to
join the Quad, and it is sort of weird because South Korea is a treaty ally of the U.S. in the region and
it also has deep ties with the United States, not only diplomatically but also militarily. And so do you
think the United States will eventually invite South Korea to Quad, whether it will be a Quad plus or
quintet? And more broadly, do you think South Korea should invest more for peace and security and
for the entire Indo-Pacific region, rather than focusing only on the Korean Peninsula?

MR PRICE: Well, let me leave aside the question of the Quad for a moment. | don’t have any
projections or any announcements, certainly. But of course, the South Koreans — the ROK — they are
an important treaty ally, an indispensable treaty ally. We share any number of interests, including the
challenge of North Korea that we have talked about, including a free and open Indo-Pacific. And we
have underlined and underscored our commitment to the region.

We spoke yesterday, | believe it was, to an agreement in principle on the Special Measures
Agreement when it comes to the ROK, something that had been negotiated and negotiated carefully
and — at least in principle — successfully at this point. So | think you will see, just as you did in the first
trilateral meeting between the acting assistant secretary and our South Korean and Japanese allies,
that we will engage with the South Koreans bilaterally, we will engage with them multilaterally, we will
engage with them as the treaty ally that they are and the important friend to the United States that
they are.

QUESTION: Actually, | have one more question about the Special Measures Agreement, because, of
course, the two countries announced the agreement in principle, and | think it is unprecedented
because for the last two previous negotiations completed in 2019 and 2014 — so basically at that time
two countries announced the conclusion of a negotiation and provided details about the proposed text.
And so this is the first time I've ever seen that two countries just announced agreement in principle
without giving any details. And | — but probably it is related to the like flexibility concept of the DOD,
because current — recently, I've seen the commander of INDOPACOM Phil Davidson, he — last week
he said something about the shift of historic focus from the Northeast Asia and Guam to the broader
region. And also Dr. Colin Kahl, the nominee for under secretary for defense —

MR PRICE: Under secretary of defense for policy.

QUESTION: He just said that the United — the alliance between the United States and South Korea is
not committed to the matching number of forces. So it just indicates the possible change or reduction
of troops in South Korea and logical issue just related to the Special Measures Agreement, which will
cover until 2025. So is that the reason why you just cannot provide the details?

MR PRICE: No. And in fact, | would urge you just to be patient. You don’t have to be patient for too
much longer. As you mentioned, this is an agreement in principle. | certainly expect we’ll be in a
position to speak to additional details of the Special Measures Agreement before too long.

When it comes to global force posture review, the administration did announce that Secretary Austin
at the Pentagon would be undertaking a global force posture review. I'd refer you there for questions
about specific deployments around the world. But when it comes to our alliance with South Korea, it's
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rock solid. You'll be hearing additional details on the special measure agreement consistent with what
you have heard when it comes to previous negotiations in the past.

Joel.

QUESTION: Hi. Thanks. | have questions on China and Iran, so maybe I'll stay in the region and
decide if you — how you want to follow up.

MR PRICE: Sure. Sure.

QUESTION: Just on China and the Uyghurs, this was discussed a little bit yesterday, but Secretary
Pompeo, before leaving office, in his genocide declaration said that, quote, “this genocide is ongoing.”
And Secretary Blinken, then Secretary-designate at the Foreign Relations Committee replied —
affirmed — “that would be my judgment as well” was his language in the hearing.

You've seen since used this language that genocide was committed. So | want to just — sort of a
process question. What's at stake in terms of U.S. policy in the difference between the statement “this
genocide is ongoing” and “genocide was committed”? Are there —

MR PRICE: No, there’'s —
QUESTION: Are there different authorities or obligations related to that?

MR PRICE: No, and I'm glad you — no, thank you for asking, because | think it's an important point.
There’s no difference. The question that was asked yesterday was about Secretary Blinken’s
statement in his confirmation hearings. | was referring to that.

What | can say is that we have seen — we are unaware of — we are unaware that these atrocities
have ceased. So of course, Secretary Blinken noted his judgment on January 19th of this year, |
believe it was. He has since repeated that. And from the vantage point of the State Department, we'’re
unaware that the atrocities that we have spoken to have ceased. And we have spoken to crimes
against humanity, the department has, has reached that judgment. And as you noted, both Secretary
Pompeo and his successor Secretary Blinken have arrived at the judgment that genocide has taken
place in Xinjiang. We absolutely stand by that. In fact, there have been additional reports even today
detailing allegations that — of what has transpired in Xinjiang.

QUESTION: If — my — admittedly, not an expert on this. But if — my understanding is that the genocide
piece of this question in particular depends on — legally on the reports about suppressed birth rates
and forced sterilization. If you were to learn that maybe that specific component of the abuse
underway in Xinjiang were no longer ongoing, would that change the U.S. — would that alter the set of
tools available to the U.S. response?

MR PRICE: Well, it wouldn’'t change Secretary Blinken’s determination that genocide has occurred in
Xinjiang. That is what is important in this case. It is — it underscores what’s at stake. It underscores
what’s at stake as we seek to galvanize the international community, our likeminded partners and
allies around the world, to make clear to Beijing that there will be consequences for these atrocities,
for this genocide, for these intolerable actions. And that is precisely the activity we’ve been engaged in
as we consult closely with these partners and allies, and making clear to Beijing that its actions,
including in Xinjiang, will have consequences.

QUESTION: Ned, I'm sorry. Can you — it seems to me there’s a very simple way to answer this
question. If you think —
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MR PRICE: Do you want to come up here?

QUESTION: Well, no. | want to ask — it seem — | mean, you seem to be kind of convoluting the whole
thing. When you say that we are unaware that atrocities have ceased and then you keep — but then
you keep saying that genocide has taken place in Xinjiang — so the question that | asked you
yesterday about the tense | think is still relevant, because | don't think you really answered your own
question. Is — does the administration believe that a genocide is ongoing, is continuing in Xinjiang right
now? You're just — yes or no.

MR PRICE: Matt, Secretary Blinken has made clear that in his judgment, genocide occurred in
Xinjiang. The department —

QUESTION: Yeah, “occurred.” I'm looking for something in the present tense, okay? Or not if you
don’t think that it’s still ongoing. | mean, | don't really have an —

MR PRICE: Matt, it — but | don’t think I'm the one complicating this. As | said just a moment ago, we
are not aware that these atrocities have ceased.

QUESTION: Yeah, okay. So is genocide ongoing right now in Xinjiang?

MR PRICE: Matt, we have seen nothing that would change our assessment. | am not — look, it is — it
is —

QUESTION: Can | just ask if — then on a different — on a different subject?

MR PRICE: But let’'s — but let’'s — before we come back to you, let's make sure we have equity.
QUESTION: | just want to get a —

MR PRICE: Let’'s make sure we have equity in the room. So —

QUESTION: All right. | just want to make sure we get a Myanmar question in before —

MR PRICE: Please, go ahead.

QUESTION: It doesn’t have to be me, could be anyone.

QUESTION: Me?

MR PRICE: Please.

QUESTION: Thank you. | have a follow-up question on Quad. As was mentioned earlier, it has been in
the making for about a decade now. And what was the hurry for having this Quad first summit in the
first — 50th day of the administration?

MR PRICE: Well, | think the fact that we are — that the White House will be taking part in this summit,
the fact that Secretary Blinken met at the ministerial level with his Quad counterparts, it was important
for us to underline in the early days of this administration our commitment to the Indo-Pacific. As we
have said from this podium, it’s a region that holds tremendous promise for the United States, also
tremendous challenge. We see ourselves as a Pacific nation. We see ourselves as engaged in this
region. We want to deepen that engagement, and this is an important forum with important partners
with whom we share a good deal of interest, so it was important for us to demonstrate that early on.

QUESTION: And secondly, what is Secretary’s vision of a Quad? Is it heading towards military kind of
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a dimension or economic or political? What kind of vision?

MR PRICE: No. As | mentioned before, the Quad is a grouping with important friends and allies of the
United States, and it's a grouping that is predicated on shared interests. There are any number of
shared interests. Some of them involve maritime security, global health, climate. So | would hesitate to
point to one animating challenge that the Quad is set to address today. We are engaging with the
Quad to take on those collective shared interests that will be relevant in that setting.

QUESTION: Staying in the region, China had recently announced increase in its defense budget. How
do you say, given the context that China has been bullying its neighborhood, approaching their
territories?

MR PRICE: Well, when it comes to China’s defense budget, | understand Admiral Davidson was on
the Hill today, in fact, testifying. So I'd refer you to his testimony and to DOD for details of that.

QUESTION: One quick one on China. What is this administration’s position on the issue of Dalai
Lama’s reincarnation? The previous administration had taken a stand on it.

MR PRICE: Well, we believe that the Chinese Government should have no role in the succession
process of the Dalai Lama. Beijing’s interference in the succession of the Panchen Lama more than 25
years ago, including by, quote/un-quote, “disappearing” the Panchen Lama as a child and attempting
to replace him with a PRC Government-chosen successor, it remains an outrageous abuse of religious
freedom.

QUESTION: | have one more on Afghanistan, if | can. Do you have any update on Ambassador
Khalilzad’s travel or meetings in the region? Where is he now? Is he coming back?

MR PRICE: So today, he is in Doha meeting with negotiating parties to encourage progress in the
Afghan peace negotiations. As we spoke about at some length yesterday, we’re working closely with
Afghan parties to encourage progress on a political settlement and a comprehensive ceasefire. We're
also working diplomatically to mobilize regional and international support for peace.

And the broader point | would make, and to underscore what | said yesterday, is that Ambassador
Khalilzad’s trip, it’s really a continuation of American diplomacy in the region. There is a broad and
longstanding consensus that there is no military solution to this conflict, and that the political solution
and the political solution that Ambassador Khalilzad is there to support, it must, of course, be Afghan-
led and Afghan-owned. We know this will be a difficult road, but that’s precisely why we're there, to
support this Afghan-led, Afghan-owned process.

QUESTION: As Ambassador Khalilzad continues with his peace talks, is Secretary Blinken okay with
Mullah — Taliban leaders like Mullah Baradar or other senior leaders being in the government as part
of the peace deal?

MR PRICE: Well, | would point you precisely to what | just said. Any agreement, any outcome that is
to be durable has to be Afghan-led and Afghan-owned. It's not for us to dictate the deals. It’s not for
us to preordain outcomes. It has to be an Afghan-led, Afghan-owned process.

Abbie.
QUESTION: Thank you.

QUESTION: | just wanted to follow up on that and some questions asked yesterday. You keep saying
“negotiating parties,” but has Ambassador Khalilzad met with any representatives of the Taliban in the
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course of his trip to the region?

MR PRICE: That's why he’s in Doha, in part to meet with Taliban negotiators. | would expect we'll
have additional details of those engagements in the coming days.

QUESTION: Can | please follow up? Did Secretary Blinken recently have a phone call with — 54
minutes talk with Pakistan army chief, General Bajwa? And did the U.S. play any role in the recent
Kashmir ceasefire that was jointly announced by Pakistan and India? The reason | ask is because it
was aired in the major TV network in that region that such phone call took place, very specifically 54
minutes.

MR PRICE: Well, as we have said, we continue to support direct dialogue between India and Kashmir
— between India and Pakistan, excuse me, on Kashmir and other issues of concern. We've read out
the Secretary’s key calls with his counterparts in the region, so | don’'t have any details to share
beyond that.

Yes.

QUESTION: Quick question. | wanted to ask about the two IRGC officials blacklisted today for human
rights violations. | believe this is a first for the administration, so what message are you trying to send
with these designations, and should we expect further actions like this targeting Iran over violations
unrelated to its nuclear program?

MR PRICE: Well, | think the message we're trying to send is clear. The United States is committed to
promoting accountability for those responsible for human rights violations and abuses. That includes in
Iran, as well as any other country around the world. It’s precisely why today Secretary Blinken
announced the public designation of these two Iranians under Section 7031(c) of the Department of
State Foreign Operations and Related Programs Appropriation Act. And it's an act that allows us to
take these actions in response to gross violations of human rights.

The broader point we have made is showcased by today’s example. We can pursue what is in our
interests, and an Iran that is permanently and verifiably barred from ever obtaining a nuclear weapon
is in our interests, just as we uphold and act in accordance with our values. And it is consistent with
our values to make clear that there will be consequences for the sort of gross violations of human
rights that these individuals engaged in. We can absolutely do both, and that’s what we did today.

QUESTION: Back on Iran?

MR PRICE: Did you have a — sorry, quick —
QUESTION: Sorry, just a quick follow-up.
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Can you clarify Jake Sullivan’'s comments last month that the U.S. has begun to
communicate with the Iranians on the hostage issue which you mentioned today? Is that
communication being conducted via the Swiss embassy or a third party, and are you seeing any
progress on that front?

MR PRICE: Well, | wouldn’'t want to extrapolate. | think the underlying point is important, though.
Number one, the cases of Americans who are unjustly detained, unjustly held in Iran are an absolute
priority to us. As | mentioned previously in this briefing, we have — there is no higher priority than the
safe return of Americans unjustly detained overseas, including in Iran.
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Number two, we have made this known to the Iranians. There should be no doubt in their minds about
the priority we attach to these cases. But of course, we're not going to detail any specific channels.

QUESTION: Thanks. Just a look back at the — some of the news out of the IAEA last week. The —
Director General Grossi told the Board of Governors on March 1st, | think it was, in his appearance
there, he said that they had come across clear indications of nuclear material at a particular
undeclared site. And he also mentioned that there were three other undeclared sites that they — that
Iran was not providing information about. So bearing in mind that the implementation of the JCPOA,
the implementation phase included this final assessment from the IAEA, do the Iranians need to
provide full — declare those sites and answer all of the IAEA’s questions in order for the Iranians to be
considered back in compliance as part of your compliance-for-compliance rubric to — or for us
rehabilitating this deal?

MR PRICE: Well, fortunately, we have full faith and full confidence in the IAEA, in this director general,
Director Grossi, in his efforts to ensure full implementation of IAEA verification in Iran. We can't
comment on a report, the details of which haven’t been released. But as we have said before, we
know that Iran continues to take steps in excess of the JCPOA. Iran also recently has taken steps
towards reducing cooperation with the IAEA, including under the Additional Protocol. This all
undergirds our concern that Iran is moving in the wrong direction.

It's important to us that we, once again, have those permanent and verifiable limits on Iran’s nuclear
program, and verifiable in the sense that the IAEA is able to ensure that verification and monitoring

regime is working and fully operational. So it’s precisely why we put this offer on the table, to meet

with the Iranians in the context of the P5+1, to try and get back to that point of joint full compliance

with the JCPOA.

QUESTION: | should be more clear. The statement from the director general that I'm referring to,
that’s on his website. That’s not a report that hasn't been released. And so that — that’s the predicate
then for a process question. In order to be — not about the — what their competencies — and I’'m sure
there were — but in order to be considered in compliance on their side of the table, do they have to
provide transparency about these four undeclared sites and answer those questions?

MR PRICE: We are fortunate to have a global nuclear watchdog in the form of the IAEA. Compliance
is up to the IAEA to decide. Of course, we’ll be working closely with the IAEA, closely with our
partners and allies, but the — what the JCPOA afforded us was this robust — the most robust
verification and monitoring regime ever peacefully implemented. And so the IAEA will be the judge as
to whether Iran is or is not in full compliance. And — yep.

QUESTION: Very briefly, just on Burma. Do you have anything — is there anything new to say about
your position as — in terms of what the situation there is today as opposed to yesterday? And if there
isn't, | mean, if it's just the same, then that'’s fine.

And then secondly, you mentioned that the Secretary is going to be on the Hill tomorrow. He’s going to
be asked by Republicans in particular about Nord Stream 2. Is he — and sanctions and why the
administration has not imposed additional sanctions. Is he going to be prepared to answer those
questions, and if so, what’s he going to say?

MR PRICE: Well, let me just say a word on Burma, Matt, because | think it's obviously important. And
we are repulsed by the military regime’s continued use of lethal force against the people of Burma.
We strongly condemn the use of violence by Burmese security forces against the Burmese people,
including peaceful protesters, journalists, and other elements of civil society. We urge — and we
continue to urge — the Burmese military to exercise maximum restraint. The latest escalations that
we've seen in recent days of violence, it’s just another indication of the military’s complete disregard
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for the people of Burma. It's unacceptable. The United States will continue to hold to account those
responsible. Many of our partners and allies around the world have enacted measures of their own.

We continue to work with partners and allies to speak with one voice and to act consistently with one
another. Tens of thousands of people have taken to the streets to show the strength of their will and
the power of their collective voice. And again, we call on security forces to respond peacefully with
respect for human rights, including the freedom of expression and peaceful assembly.

QUESTION: And on Nord Stream 2 tomorrow? | mean, he’s going to get hammered on this, as you

are probably aware, so is he going to able to give a further explanation beyond the report that was
sent last month?

MR PRICE: Well, Matt, as you know, the report that we submitted last month is a regular status
report to the Hill. The next status report is due to the Hill in May.

QUESTION: They want it — they want something — you've seen the letters, right, and public
statements.

MR PRICE: So | would say —
QUESTION: They want it before May.

MR PRICE: | would say as a general matter, we don't comment on communications with the Hill. What
we can say is that the administration’s focus and our efforts remain the same, and that is preventing
the completion of Nord Stream 2 pipeline. President Biden has, of course, called it a bad deal, a bad
deal that divides Europe. The Secretary has had and I'm sure will have an opportunity to continue
discussions with members on the Hill tomorrow. He appreciates the insight and communication from
them on this and every other issue we confront.

Thank you very much, everyone.

(The briefing was concluded at 3:12 p.m.)
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You are subscribed to Press Releases for U.S. Department of State. This information has recently
been updated, and is now available.

Secretary Blinken and NSA Sullivan’s Meeting with PRC Counterparts
03/10/2021 12:38 PM EST

Ned Price, Department Spokesperson

Secretary of State Antony J. Blinken and National Security Advisor Jake Sullivan will meet on March
18 in Anchorage, Alaska with People’'s Republic of China (PRC) Director of the Office of the Central
Commission for Foreign Affairs Yang Jiechi and State Councilor Wang Yi. The meeting will take place
following Secretary Blinken's meetings with two of our closest regional allies in Tokyo and Seoul.
Secretary Blinken and NSA Sullivan will discuss a range of issues with the PRC.

Secretary Blinken will return to Washington, D.C. on March 19.

Stay connected with the State Department:

External links found in this content or on Department of State websites that go to other non-
Department websites should not be construed as an endorsement of the views or privacy policies
contained therein.

Update your subscriptions, modify your password or email address, or stop subscriptions at any time
on your Subscriber Preferences Page. You will need to use your email address to log in. If you have
guestions or problems with the subscription service, please contact subscriberhelp.govdelivery.com.
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From: U.S. Department of State

Subject: Department Press Briefing — March 11, 2021
To: Good ander, Margaret V. (OAG)
Sent: March 11, 2021 6:23 PM (UTC-05:00)

You are subscribed to Press Releases for U.S. Department of State. This information has recently
been updated, and is now available.

Department Press Briefing — March 11, 2021
03/11/2021 06:07 PM EST

Ned Price, Department Spokesperson
Washington, D.C.

1:48 p.m. EST

MR PRICE: Good afternoon.
QUESTION: Do you need all that today?
MR PRICE: Absolutely.

QUESTION: Yeah.

MR PRICE: A few things at the top.

Secretary of State Blinken will travel to Tokyo, Japan, and Seoul, Republic of Korea, March 15th to
the 18th to reaffirm the United States’ commitment to strengthening our alliances and to highlight
cooperation that promotes peace, security, and prosperity in the Indo-Pacific region and around the
world.

On March 16th through the 18th in Tokyo, Secretary Blinken and Secretary of Defense Lloyd J. Austin
will attend the U.S.-Japan Security Consultative Committee, or 2+2 meeting, hosted by Japan’s
Minister for Foreign Affairs Toshimitsu Motegi and Minister of Defense Nobuo Kishi. Secretary Blinken
will meet with Minister Motegi and other senior officials to discuss a range of bilateral and global
issues.

Secretary Blinken will also meet virtually with business leaders to highlight the importance of U.S.-
Japan economic ties and shared priorities, addressing climate change, securing supply chains,
promoting and protecting emerging technologies, fostering digital trade, and recovering from COVID-
19. He will have a discussion with women entrepreneurs on the challenges women face in building
successful businesses. Secretary Blinken will also host a virtual roundtable with emerging Japanese
journalists to discuss the future of the U.S.-Japan alliance, the role of a free press in promoting good
governance and defending democracy, and the widespread benefits from advancing gender equity and
opportunities for women worldwide.

On March 17th through the 18th in Seoul, Secretary Blinken will attend — Secretary Blinken and
Secretary Austin will attend a U.S.-ROK Foreign and Defense Ministerial, or 2+2 again, hosted by the
ROK'’s Foreign Minister Chung Eui-yong and Foreign — and Minister of Defense Suh Wook. Secretary
Blinken will meet with Foreign Minister Chung and other senior officials to discuss issues of bilateral
and global importance. Secretary Blinken will also meet virtually with Korean youth leaders and host a
virtual roundtable of emerging Korean journalists to discuss the importance of the U.S.-ROK alliance in
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promoting peace, security, and prosperity in the Indo-Pacific region and around the globe.

Next, as we announced yesterday, the State Department has taken decisive action against violent
extremism by designating ISIS-Democratic Republic of the Congo and ISIS-Mozambique as Foreign
Terrorist Organizations and Specially Designated Global Terrorists, or SDGDTSs for short.

Seka Musa Baluku, leader of ISIS-DRC, and Abu Yasir Hassan, leader of 1SIS-Mozambique, have
also been designated as SDGTs under Executive Order 13224.

ISIS-DRC is responsible for many of the terrorist attacks across North Kivu and Ituri provinces in
eastern DRC, and it's notorious in the region for its brutal violence against Congolese citizens, as well
as against DRC miilitary forces and U.S. peacekeeping personnel. Attacks attributed to ISIS-DRC
have killed more than 840 civilians in 2020 alone.

ISIS-Mozambique’s violent extremist insurgency has wreaked havoc in the country’s Cabo Delgado
province and has killed more than 1,300 civilians. ISIS-Mozambique’s continued attacks have caused
the displacement of nearly 670,000 persons within Mozambique.

This designation is an important step in the global fight to defeat ISIS. The United States will continue
to expose and isolate terrorists, disrupt their support networks, deny them access to the U.S. financial
system, and do everything in our power to preserve the security of the United States.

We remain decisively engaged with our partners to address security challenges and to advance peace
and security in Africa.

And finally, as you saw yesterday with Ambassador Jacobson’'s remarks at the White House press
briefing and our media note, we are taking concrete steps to implement our comprehensive regional
migration management strategy.

The latest step involves reopening the Central American Minors, or CAM, program, which reunites
qualified children from El Salvador, Guatemala, and Honduras with their parents or parent who are
lawfully present in the United States.

As directed by President Biden, we have initiated the first phase of reinstituting this program,
reopening applications that were suspended when the program was terminated in 2017.

In doing so, we will provide a safe, legal, and orderly alternative to dangerous irregular migration.
During the life of the program, the United States has reunited nearly 5,000 children safely and securely
with their families.

The U.S. southern border, of course, remains closed to irregular migration and we reiterate that we
strongly discourage people from attempting this dangerous journey to the United States.

The steps we are taking reflect our values as a nation and represent our continued commitment to
ensure that we treat people with dignity and respect, and that we protect the most vulnerable people,
especially children.

So with that, Matt.

QUESTION: Thanks, Ned. | got two brief ones just on the — to follow up on stuff that came up at the
hearing the Secretary had yesterday.

Just on the first one — and | think this is going to be dispatched with kind of quickly — he was asked a
couple times about Hong Kong, the situation there, and the last time he — the second time he was
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asked about it, he was asked specifically about this new election law that was going in and it hadn’t
happened yet, so he didn't give a very — he didn’t give a big answer about it.

MR PRICE: Right. Right.

QUESTION: So I'm just wondering, can you — do you have concerns about this latest move by the
NPC to take away the ability of Hong Kong citizens to vote for —

MR PRICE: We absolutely do, and Matt, to your question, | expect you will be hearing from the
Secretary — at least in the Secretary’s voice — on this later today. In the meantime, let me just say that
we condemn the PRC’s continuing assault on democratic institutions in Hong Kong. The changes
approved by the National People’s Congress today, on March 11th, are a direct attack on Hong
Kong’s autonomy, its freedoms and democratic processes, limiting political participation, reducing
democratic representation, and stifling political debate in order to defy the clear will in Hong Kong and
deny their voice in their own governance.

QUESTION: | got one other, but it's on a different subject if someone wants to — but it’s still from
yesterday. Go ahead.

QUESTION: Okay. On China — so this is going to be — next week is going to be the first time Biden
administration in person will meet with Chinese officials. It's safe to say that your bilateral relationship
is at its worst in decades. What would success look like?

MR PRICE: Well, before we talk about next week in Anchorage, | think it's worth underscoring for a
moment the predicate of what you will see in Anchorage on March 18th. The predicate speaks —

QUESTION: Snow.
MR PRICE: — | think — excuse me?
QUESTION: Snow.

MR PRICE: Snow. You will see snow. It may be colder, certainly colder than it is here today. But |
think the predicate speaks to the ways in which we plan to engage Beijing from a position of strength.
Across every one of our sources of strength — and we’ve talked about these in recent days — you've
seen us take concrete steps to revitalize them, in many ways to build them back better, to coin a
phrase. And it’s no accident that we've taken these steps before we engage Beijing at a more senior
level, as will happen in the coming days.

Let’s start with our alliances and partnerships, a core source of strength. Calls to our treaty allies in
the Indo-Pacific were some of the first that the Secretary made upon his confirmation. He spoke to
Foreign Minister Motegi, he spoke to then-Foreign Minister Kang, spoke to Foreign Minister Payne,
Foreign Minister Mahuta, followed those by others in the Indo-Pacific. Those were some of the very
first calls he made as Secretary. Of course, he attended the Quad ministerial on February 18th. We've
seen a trilateral engagement with the Japanese and the ROK. We've had now, | believe, two sessions
with the E3 that the Secretary has taken part in. The Secretary was invited to address the EU's
Foreign Affairs Council, or the FAC. And, of course, as | mentioned just a moment ago, we’ll be
traveling to the region as our first physical trip next week when we visit Japan and South Korea, our
two treaty allies.

In the same breath, | would mention our re-engagement in multilateral institutions: the WHO — we have
re-engaged with the WHO in a constructive and we think productive fashion; we have re-engaged the
Paris climate agreement and other institutions.
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Third, our values, which we also consider a key source of strength. We have consistently and
oftentimes in harmony with our allies and partners spoken up in defense of our allies and to condemn
the PRC’s affronts to many of these shared and even universal values, whether that’s in Xinjiang,
whether that’s in Hong Kong — as a moment ago — whether that’s in Taiwan. Anywhere around the
world, we have spoken up, and we have taken in many cases concrete action.

And fourth, our domestic strength. The administration has taken steps to strengthen our own house,
recognizing that our strength on the world stage is directly tied to our strength at home, our supply
chains. The White House, of course, on February 24th rolled out an executive order to create more
resilient and secure supply chains for critical and essential goods. And of course, we now have the
American Rescue Act, which will be a key driver of American strength and vitality going forward.

So with all that said, we will engage — as we announced yesterday; Secretary Blinken and National
Security Advisor Jake Sullivan — their Chinese counterparts, doing that from this position of strength
that the predicate to all of this has allowed us to amass. It will be a — there will be some difficult
conversations, | would expect. We will certainly not pull any punches in discussing our areas of
disagreement.

But as Secretary Blinken has said, our relationship with Beijing is a multifaceted one: It is
fundamentally competitive; it is adversarial in some ways; and there also are potential areas for
collaboration. And so | suspect all of those elements will come up during these discussions on March
18th.

Yes.

QUESTION: The Secretary said yesterday that any follow-up engagement with the Chinese officials
after Anchorage have to be based on the proposition that we’re seeing tangible progress and tangible
outcomes on the issues of concern. Can you describe a little bit what you're expecting after this first
meeting and what would make you say, okay, we can have further meetings and engagement?

And also to follow up on Hong Kong, you've been condemning and taking actions and sanctions for
months, and yet China feels strong enough to change the Hong Kong electoral law, so isn't this the
proof that you have very little leverage to make pressure on them with pressure?

MR PRICE: Well, when it comes to next week, when it comes to this bilateral engagement, what we
expect is for Beijing to demonstrate seriousness, to demonstrate seriousness regarding its own oft
stated desire to change the tone of our bilateral relationship. As I've said before, this will be a difficult
conversation. We’'ll be frank in explaining how Beijing’s actions and behavior challenge the security, the
prosperity, the values of not only the United States but also our partners and allies.

Now, on the flip side of that coin, we also will explore avenues that — for cooperation that are in our
interest. When Secretary Blinken first spoke with Director Yang, when President Biden first spoke with
President Xi, they made very clear that there will be areas for collaboration, or at least there will be
the potential for areas of collaboration. But there has to be one common denominator — when it is in
our national interest.

Of course, climate change | think is one of those that we can tangibly point to as undeniably in our own
national interest for the world’s largest and the world’s second-largest emitters to be able to work
productively and constructively together when it comes to climate change.

But the point remains that we're not looking to engage in talks for the sake of talks. We are looking for
Beijing, again, to demonstrate that seriousness of purpose, to demonstrate that it seeks to live up to
its own oft stated desire to change the tone of the bilateral relationship. And Humeyra made a point
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about the tone of that relationship not only in recent weeks and months but for years.
QUESTION: Change of topic?

MR PRICE: Other China?

QUESTION: Yes. How would you characterize the current status of the U.S.-China relationship?

MR PRICE: Well, | would characterize it precisely how Secretary Blinken did. It is multifaceted. It is
primarily and fundamentally a relationship that is predicated on competition. Our goal when it comes to
our relationship with Beijing, our approach to Beijing, is to compete and ultimately to out-compete with
Beijing in the areas that are competitive. And we’ve talked about them. The economic realms, the
security realms are primarily competitive. There are, of course, areas in this relationship that are
adversarial. And there are, as | was mentioning a moment ago, areas for potential collaboration. So |
wouldn’t want to attach one label to it, because it truly is multifaceted.

We are going to discuss those more difficult areas with the Chinese. | have every expectation that
when it comes to those more difficult issues — Hong Kong, Xinjiang, Tibet, pressure on Taiwan,
broader human rights abuses, the South China Sea, the Mekong, economic pressure, arbitrary
detentions, the origins of COVID-19, other issues — | have every expectation they will come up. But
that doesn't mean that these talks have to be purely adversarial or have to be purely predicated on
issues of profound disagreement. | expect there will also be opportunities to raise potential areas for
cooperation, again, when that criterion is met: when it is in our national interest.

QUESTION: That was a pretty long list. What are you going to — what do you have to agree on?
Rainbows? | mean, that list that you just gave to Kylie is pretty long.

MR PRICE: It is a long list. And it is a long list because there are — it is a long litany of disagreements
we have with the People’s Republic of China. The point is that it is not just a litany that we have. The
predicate that | was referring to earlier —

QUESTION: They're going to have a litany with you, too.

MR PRICE: Well, I'm sure they might. But my point was, Matt, that it is not just our litany. It is not just
our list. We have spent much of the past six or seven weeks, certainly the time that Secretary Blinken
has been on the job, conferring with those partners and allies, comparing notes, setting those
priorities, ensuring that our approach with our closest partners and allies around the world, including in
the Indo-Pacific but also in Europe for that matter, that we have a calibrated, coordinated approach to
the Chinese, allowing us to approach these talks from fundamentally that position of strength.

Other questions on this? Yes.

QUESTION: This isn't on China. It's on Egypt.

MR PRICE: Okay, let’s finish up China. And | know we’re — we have a tight timeframe today. So yes.
QUESTION: One more on China?

MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: It’s not been too long since the Quad came back together in earnest in 2017, and it
seems like a big deal to have this leadership level meeting so early on in the administration that you've
having tomorrow. How central will the Quad be to your strategy on China, and what is the message
that China should be taking from tomorrow’s Quad summit?

Document ID: 0.7.12479.6486 1049-000022



MR PRICE: | missed the last part.
QUESTION: Oh. And what's the message that China should be taking from tomorrow’s summit?

MR PRICE: Ah, got it. Well, the Quad, as it's known — the United States, Australia, and India and
Japan — it was established not to counter one single threat or to focus on one single issue, but it was
really established, and certainly how we seek to use it, is to showcase, to showcase what
democracies can deliver together both for our own populations and for the broader world. We
recognize that Quad members are uniquely positioned to help lead the region out of crises and to help
move the region towards the more positive vision we all seek, both to address these crises and to
seize these opportunities that are presented to all of us collectively.

So | would hasten to — | would dissuade you from the idea that the Quad is focused, again, on any
single issue, to include China. It's not. Of course, maritime security is a key focus of the Quad, but it is
a grouping that is predicated on shared interests, and we certainly have shared interests with these
three other partners and allies. We have shared interests in standing up for universal values and rights.
We have shared economic interests. We have shared security interests. We have deep people-to-
people ties with all of these countries. And that’s what the Quad is about. It's about more than any one
particular challenge.

QUESTION: Afghanistan?

MR PRICE: Afghanistan. Anything else on China? Let's — we'll take one more China question before
we move on. Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you. Can you elaborate a little bit more about why he — | mean, the Secretary
chose Japan and South Korea as his first overseas trip destination? And what is the meaning of having
a high-level meeting with China right after his trip? And one more. And how would Biden
administration’s approach to Japan and other allies in Asia be different from the previous
administration, especially in terms of dealing with China? Thank you.

MR PRICE: Sorry. The last question was how will our approach be different in dealing with partners
and allies?

QUESTION: Yeah, especially in terms of dealing with China.

MR PRICE: Dealing with China. Sure. Well, the Secretary is traveling to the Indo-Pacific to meet in
person with our treaty allies, the Japanese and the South Koreans, primarily because we know that
our global system of alliances and partnerships is, again, a core source of strength. The military might
call our partnerships and alliances force multipliers. We call them necessary. We call them imperative
to achieve not only our interest to stand up not only for our values but to achieve common interests
and to stand up for universal values and universal rights.

Now, it is undeniable that over the course of recent years these partnerships and alliances in some
cases have atrophied. In some cases, they have frayed. So Secretary Blinken, President Biden,
Secretary Austin, they have all made a commitment to show both — and to demonstrate, both in word
and in deed, that our partnerships and our alliances are — that we attach the value to them we say we
actually do. And | think that is what this first physical trip demonstrates. Again, we have many common
interests. We share many common values with these two partners.

You mentioned China. And of course, a coordinated approach to China is one of the elements that will
be on the agenda in both countries. China, at the same time, is not going to dominate the agenda. We
have a lot of business, we have a lot challenges, we have a lot of opportunities to address with these
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close treaty allies. And it’s precisely why Secretary Blinken is traveling there so early in the
administration to begin those discussions.

Yes.

QUESTION: Yeah, on the Gulf. Any comment on the Russian foreign minister tour in the Gulf and his
talks in Saudi Arabia about acquiring S-400 missiles?

MR PRICE: | don’t have any specific comment on that. We have — when it comes to other contexts,
we’ve made our position on the S-400 very clear, especially in the context of NATO. But | wouldn't
want to comment on Foreign Minister Lavrov's —

QUESTION: (Off-mike.)

QUESTION: One more on —

MR PRICE: Okay.

QUESTION: Can we go to (inaudible)?
QUESTION: One more on Iraqg?

MR PRICE: On Iran?

QUESTION: Yeah.

MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: Iraq.

MR PRICE: Iraq.

QUESTION: Militia group called International Resistance claimed responsibility for an IED attack on
U.S.-led coalition logistic convoy in Anbar province. Are you aware of that, and do you have any
reaction to that?

MR PRICE: | don't have any particular reaction to that right now. The Department of Defense may
have something for you.

QUESTION: Egypt.
MR PRICE: On Egypt? Okay.

QUESTION: Okay. You've previously said that selling weapons to Egypt doesn't interfere with your
commitment to human rights. Do you not see the contradiction in saying that selling weapons to a
dictatorship that openly oppresses its own people and that tortures its own people has got nothing to
do with your commitment to human rights?

And on that, we've actually just returned back from Egypt. And whilst we were there, we documented
a number of human rights abuses. We spoke to people who gave us accounts of how their family
members and loved ones have been disappeared, detained, or arrested by the government because
they posed some sort of threat to the Egyptian administration.

We also have the list — a list of at least 22 names of individuals who are either American citizens or
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people who have green cards or those who are related to American citizens that have been arrested
by the Egyptian state or have been released and are currently facing politically motivated charges. On
top of that, you already know that human rights organizations describe Egypt as one of the most
oppressive regimes — Sisi’'s Egypt as one of the most oppressive regimes in the country’s history.

Given all that information, and the fact that President Joe Biden back in July 2020 tweeted that there
would be “no more blank checks” for, quote, “Trump’s favorite dictator,” Sisi, can you confirm that you
will be freezing the $1.3 billion of funding that is given to Egypt in military aid every year?

MR PRICE: It is absolutely true that there will be no blank checks for any country — a close security
partner, a competitor, an adversary. That is absolutely true. The United States will not check our
values, will not check our principles, at the door in any relationship. Candidate Biden made that very
clear; President Biden has made that very clear; Secretary Blinken has made that very clear.

When it comes to Egypt, it is true that Egypt plays an important role in promoting some of our key
interests in the region: regional security and stability through the guardianship of the Suez Canal,
counterterrorism cooperation; and its leadership in promoting Middle East peace. Secretary Blinken
has had an opportunity to discuss some of these issues with his counterpart, Foreign Minister
Shoukry, just as we raise human rights, just as we raise our values. These two things, they’re not
separate. They’re inextricably linked. If we don't stick up for our values, if we don't stick up for human
rights, we’re not sticking up for our interests. We recognize that, and we can do both.

We have deep concerns, as we have said, about the human rights situation in Egypt, including undue
restrictions on civil society, undue restrictions on freedom of expression, some of the detentions you
have mentioned. There is repression of civil society and human rights abuses. They undercut Egypt’s
own dynamism and stability as a partner of ours. We will consistently raise these issues. We will not
shy away from them. We’'ll do that both publicly, as we have, and we’ll do it privately, too. We'll also
work and seek to find a partner in Congress to champion these same issues.

Look, when it comes to weapons sales and transfers, that’s precisely why this administration has put
those back in regular order. There is now a process that involves the interagency to review especially
sensitive proposed weapon sales and transfers to make sure not only that they’re consistent with our
interests but also that they’re consistent with our values. Those two things will always go hand-in-hand
for us. We can pursue our interests and we can stick up for our values. It’s precisely what we’re going
to do in Egypt. It's precisely what we’re going to do in every other context.

Yes.

QUESTION: (Off-mike.)

QUESTION: Will you freeze that going forward? Will you freeze that — sorry, just to follow up. Will you
freeze the military aid that —

MR PRICE: | don't have any announcement when it comes to —
QUESTION: (Off-mike.)

MR PRICE: — when it comes to aid. As | said before, Egypt has been an important leader in
promoting Middle East peace, but | don't have any announcements.

QUESTION: Middle East?
QUESTION: Same thing.
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QUESTION: (Off-mike.)
MR PRICE: Please.

QUESTION: Thank you. So with the median age of below 20 in Africa, and knowing that about 60
percent of Africans are not yet 25, actually in the next decade you will have about 320 million of
population in Africa. When do you expect to have an assistant secretary of state for the Bureau of
African Affairs to demonstrate that Biden is serious in nurturing relationships Africans beyond what
past administrations have done from Reagan on? Such as joblessness in South Africa is at an all-time
high. I'll tell you that in Zimbabwe in the last three and a half years, more than 2,714 arrests of human
rights activists, journalists, political opposition, women, and even students. You say that you will speak
out in defense of countries anywhere. Will Biden do more in defense of small, fragile states like
Zimbabwe beyond the Executive Order 132887 And anything more on maybe foreign direct investment
for South Africans?

MR PRICE: This administration is committed to not only sustaining but also deepening the partnerships
we have across the continent of Africa, all parts of the continent. We are committed to ensuring that
we have an expert who will take the helm of the bureau of — the appropriate bureau of — the Africa
Bureau. As you may know, the — all of these nominations for assistant secretary positions across all of
our regional and functional bureaus, they are nominees put forward by the President of the United
States. So there is a process that these all go through. We do not, as you know, yet have a nominee
for the bureau, but neither do we have a nominee just yet for any other regional bureau.

Given the process involved here, we’re working very quickly — | know the White House is too — to see
to it that some of these nominees are put forward in short order. But | expect when you see names
attached not only to this bureau, but to our regional and functional bureaus across the board, you will
see an elevation of expertise of professionals, of people with deep experience. And when it comes to
Africa, you will see that commitment reflected in the assistant secretary that’s put forward and in the
policies that this administration will put forward as well.

Yes.

QUESTION: Can | ask a China follow-up question?
QUESTION: (Off-mike.)

QUESTION: Yes, thank you. Middle East.
QUESTION: Can | ask a China follow-up question?
QUESTION: Me — Middle East.

MR PRICE: Please, go ahead, please.
QUESTION: Middle East.

MR PRICE: Okay.

QUESTION: But thank you to our colleague. We don't hear much about Africa here, so thank you for
that question. On the Middle East, yesterday Secretary Blinken was asked about the Abraham
Accords and his willingness to profound those or make those deeper. And he said yes, it was a full-
throated yes, that we're really going to work on it. But then today, we saw Netanyahu was going to go
to UAE, that was cancelled. So there seem to be a lot of issues still.
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My question is: What concretely are you guys doing to expand the Abraham Accords? Are you talking
to Saudi Arabia, for example, about them recognizing Israel? Could you tell us a little bit about what
concretely you're doing? Thank you.

MR PRICE: Absolutely. Well, when it comes to Prime Minister Netanyahu's travel, we’'d refer you to
the Government of Israel regarding his travel. As we have said, as the Secretary said yesterday, we
welcome, we support the normalization agreements between Israel and countries in the Arab — in —
and the broader Muslim world. It is something that we will seek to build on. It is something that we
have welcomed from the previous administration and something, again, we will seek to build on going
forward. We have discussed it in the bilateral context with some of our partners in the Arab and
Muslim world. It is something that we have discussed with the Israelis. | wouldn't want to get ahead of
where — of private conversations at this point, but | expect before too long, you will — we’'ll be in a
position to say more and you'll be in a position to see more about how we are going to build on that.

QUESTION: From the Saudis?

MR PRICE: | wouldn't want to get ahead of that.
QUESTION: (Off-mike.)

MR PRICE: Okay.

QUESTION: Can you — thank you. Can you give us an update about special envoy trip to — Special
Envoy Zalmay Khalilzad trip to Doha? Any readouts about his latest meetings there? How long does
he plan to stay there? And on a related note, on the announcement by Russia that it will host a
conference next week, would the U.S. Government consider participating in that conference? And
also, | have another question about Yemen. Yesterday, the Secretary said that he stands strongly
with the fact to deal with the Houthis, and in this regard, is there any update about Special Envoy
Lenderking’s trip to the region? And can you confirm whether he is still in the Arabian Gulf or whether
he returned to Washington? Thank you.

MR PRICE: Okay, lots of questions there. Let me start with the — with the last one. Secretary —
excuse me, Special Envoy Lenderking has returned from his trip. | expect we’'ll be in a position to
share additional details of that trip later today. As we said, earlier in the week, Secretary — excuse
me, Special Envoy Lenderking did have an opportunity to engage with all of the GCC countries during
his time in the region. He visited all of them with the exception of Bahrain on the way over there. On
the way over to the region, he did have a phone conversation with his Bahraini counterpart. He also
visited Jordan, and | believe it was Jordan from which he traveled back to the United States and is
now back in Washington, D.C., and | expect we’ll have additional details to share of that travel after
the briefing.

When it comes to Afghanistan, you mentioned the Russian proposal. It is fair to say that we recognize
Russia as well as other countries in the region — we recognize that they have an important stake in a
secure and stable Afghanistan. We have met in the past with Russia in support of the Afghanistan
peace process, but we don’t have anything to announce at this time when it comes to any meetings.

But this also gets to the point that we have been talking about, and that is the point that Afghanistan’s
neighbors, other countries in the region have a role to play. They certainly have an interest in a
peaceful, in a stable Afghanistan, and that is precisely what we are and Special Representative
Khalilzad is in the region now, in Doha, seeking to bring about. He’s focused on bringing and achieving
progress on a political settlement and a comprehensive ceasefire towards that end. He’s looking at
ways to move the diplomacy forward, and as we have said, he has shared ideas with Afghans on both
sides, with both negotiating parties.

Document ID: 0.7.12479.6486 1049-000027



Any proposal that the United States would endorse, that we would get behind, has one requirement:
that it be Afghan-led and Afghan-owned at its core. We believe that is an essential component to a
just and durable peace. We recognize that for any peace to be durable, it must be just, and for any
peace to be just, in many ways, it must be durable. So that’s why we’ve never sought to be
prescriptive. That is why you see the SRAR in the region offering ideas, seeking to support the
dialogue, the intra-Afghan negotiations that is taking place. That’s precisely what he’s been doing in
Doha. | don’'t have an estimate as to how much longer he’ll be there, but as long as it’s productive for
him to be there, to be engaged in that, he will.

Yes.

QUESTION: Just a quick question on Egypt. Have you made a determination yet about whether the
former prime minister, Hazem el-Beblawi, has diplomatic immunity in the lawsuit that has been filed by
Mohamed Soltan, Mohamed Soltan being the American Egyptian citizen who says that Mr. Beblawi
oversaw his torture when he was imprisoned in Egypt?

The former administration, the Trump administration, determined that Hazem el-Beblawi was — did
have diplomatic immunity, | think as you know, but that was put on hold by the Biden administration,
and you set a February 26th deadline for determining whether he was immune from prosecution. Have
you made a determination?

MR PRICE: | don't have any update for you there, but if we have anything to share, we will. When it
comes to Mohamed Soltan, of course, we spoke out against the outrageous detention of his relatives.
| understand his cousins have been released from Egyptian custody. Obviously, that's something that
we welcome, but | don’t have any update for you when it comes to the former foreign minister at this
moment.

Rich.

QUESTION: Hey, Ned. On Cuba, the White House says a policy shift with Cuba is not a top priority
for President Biden. Does that mean that the administration finds value in the current policy, or is it
quite literally just not a top priority and something that you imagine you'll get to later?

MR PRICE: It is a policy that we are reviewing. Secretary Blinken spoke to this yesterday. He spoke
to the core principles that animate that review.

First, support for democracy and human rights will be at the core of our efforts, because we believe it
is the means to empower the Cuban people to determine their own future; and second, as we've said
before, we also know that Americans, especially Cuban Americans, are in most cases the best
ambassadors for freedom and prosperity in Cuba. We are committed to both of these principles. Our
review is being animated by both of those principles. We have also committed — and you heard this
from Secretary Blinken up on the Hill yesterday — to consult closely with members of Congress as we
undertake this review. So it is not that — it is not that this is in any way on the back burner. It is
something we're looking at very closely, and as that review progresses, we’ll consult with members of
Congress. And when we have something to share, we'll let you know.

QUESTION: On Syria —
QUESTION: Do you guys have a timeline at all?
MR PRICE: | wouldn't want to put a timeline on it.

Yes, in the back.
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QUESTION: On Syria. Thank you so much. As we come up on 10 years of war in Syria, can you
provide any insight into what this administration’s approach will be to the ongoing hostilities? Do you
believe diplomats have a role on the ground there? And do you still believe Assad must go?

MR PRICE: Well, we continue to promote a political settlement to end the conflict in Syria. We're
doing that in close consultation with our allies, with our partners, with the UN special envoy. A political
settlement, we believe, must address the factors that drive the violence, that drive the instability in
Syria. We’'ll use a variety of tools at our disposal to push for a sustainable end to the Syrian people’s
suffering. We’'ll continue to support the UN roles — the UN's role in negotiating a political settlement in
line with the relevant UN resolutions, including UNSCR 2254.

We also seek to restore American leadership when it comes to humanitarian aid. As we know, Syria is
a humanitarian catastrophe. The Syrian people have suffered for far too long. They have suffered
under the brutal rule of Bashar al-Assad. We must do more, we know, to aid vulnerable Syrians,
including many displaced within Syria as well as the refugees who have had to flee their homes.

When it comes to Bashar al-Assad, he of course remains in power despite 10 years of civil war. If
there is to be a sustainable end to this conflict, we recognize that the Syrian Government must change
its behavior. We are in the process now of reviewing what we might do to advance the prospects for
that political settlement, and we’'ll consult, as | said before, closely with the UN, closely with our allies
and partners in doing so.

QUESTION: That doesn't sound like you're —
QUESTION: But changed behavior, not leader.
QUESTION: Yeah, that doesn’t sound like you're calling for his —

MR PRICE: | think it is fair to say that certainly, Bashar al-Assad has not done anything that would
restore his legitimacy. He has been at the center of the suffering of the Syrian people, the
humanitarian disaster | referred to before. We believe, we continue to believe, that we need to find a
durable political settlement. That’s precisely what we are invested in.

QUESTION: Yeah, but you're no longer saying, as we heard, that Assad’s days are numbered. |
remember —

(Cell phone rings.)

QUESTION: That wasn’'t me. That may have been a celebration of Georgetown beating Villanova just
now, which is why | made that little outburst earlier.

But Assad’s days are no longer numbered?
MR PRICE: Matt, as | said before, Bashar al-Assad has done absolutely nothing to —
QUESTION: You've been saying that (inaudible).

MR PRICE: He has done absolutely nothing to regain the legitimacy that he has lost through the brutal
treatment of his own people. There is no question of the U.S. normalizing relations with his government
anytime soon. There is no question that we will stand, that we will seek to support the humanitarian
plight of the Syrian people as we seek a political settlement that would end their suffering.

QUESTION: Mozambique?
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MR PRICE: Mozambique.

QUESTION: Yes. Beyond the designation yesterday of Abu Yasir Hassan, do you plan to do
something about what Amnesty International has called patterns of abuse by Mozambique’s security
forces who have been — had torture, ill treatment, and extrajudicial killings, and some of these serious
abuses by private military companies that have ties to Zimbabwe and Russia? And in these meetings
with the Quad, will Africa play a role since many countries in Africa are taking the “Look East”
approach and increasing their relationships with China and Russia, where some might point a finger to
the United States and say that you are lagging behind? Thanks.

MR PRICE: Well, we will continue to engage Mozambican authorities on the importance of respecting
human rights and fundamental freedoms. We will urge the Mozambican Government to investigate
allegations of human rights violations and abuses, and we will urge them to hold the perpetrators of
any such abuses accountable. Any such allegations threaten the government’s ability to combat violent
extremism. In this sense, it is not only consistent with our values but also consistent with our interests
that Mozambique do everything it can to investigate and to ensure accountability for human rights
violations.

I've said this in the context of this briefing already, but respect for human rights remains at the
forefront of our cooperation with countries around the world. That includes the government in
Mozambique. We will — of course, there is the Leahy Law. It’s the law of the land here. And we
provide assistance to foreign security force units, only those that are fully vetted and where there is no
credible information that the unit has committed a gross violation of human rights.

QUESTION: Ethiopia?
QUESTION: Ned —
MR PRICE: Ethiopia? Sure.

QUESTION: Yeah. When the Secretary mentioned yesterday the acts of ethnic cleansing committed
in western Tigray, was that a formal determination by the State Department? And if yes, how was it
reached and by whom do you believe the — they were committed, and what does that require as — in
term of action and sanctions or response?

MR PRICE: Well, the Secretary did speak to this yesterday. He spoke to our grave concern about the
reported atrocities and the overall deteriorating situation in the Tigray region of Ethiopia. We strongly
condemn the killings, the forced removals, the sexual assaults, the other human rights abuses by
several parties that multiple organizations have reported in Tigray.

Yes.
QUESTION: Yeah, but he mentioned ethnic cleansing. Was that a determination? Was that just —

MR PRICE: What the Secretary said is that acts of ethnic cleansing took place in western Tigray. He
made clear it's unacceptable.

QUESTION: Ned, on Lebanon, the French foreign minister has said today that time was running out to
prevent Lebanon collapsing and that he could see no sign that the country’s politicians were doing
what they could to save it, and he added, “l would be tempted to qualify Lebanese politicians as guilty
of not helping a country in danger.”

Do you share his concerns?
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MR PRICE: We are concerned by developments in Lebanon and the apparent inaction of Lebanese
leaders in the face of multiple, multiple ongoing crises. The Lebanese people, we believe they deserve
a government that will urgently implement the necessary reforms to rescue the country’s deteriorating
economy. We know that the Lebanese economy is in a state of crisis because of decades of
corruption and mismanagement. Lebanon’s political leaders need to put aside their partisan
brinksmanship. They need to change course. They need to work for the common good, the common
interests of the Lebanese people.

As the International Support Group reiterated in its statement today, quote, Lebanon’s leaders must
no longer delay “the formation of a fully empowered government capable of meeting the country’s
urgent needs and implementing critical reforms.” The international community has been very clear that
concrete actions remain absolutely critical to unlocking longer-term structural support to Lebanon.

QUESTION: Are you planning to put any pressure on them to do so?

MR PRICE: Well, we have demonstrated a long-term commitment to the people of Lebanon over
decades, and we will continue to stand with them. We would not want to do anything that would in the
first instance add to the plight of the Lebanese people.

QUESTION: Just one more on Iran?
MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: And also related to oil, is the United States aware that Iran has been quietly moving
around record amounts of crude oil to top client China? And also, India’s refiners are adding Iranian oil
to their annual import plans, all in the anticipation that you will — that the U.S. sanctions will soon ease.
The previous administration was enforcing these sanctions super strictly, going after shipping industry,
calling captains of tankers, and all that.

So first, are you aware of this rise in the oil shipments? Are you worried about this? And is this, like,
your way of giving Tehran the breather that it wants ahead of these talks without actually removing the
sanctions?

MR PRICE: | don’t have a full accounting in front of me of the movement of oil in the region. | think the
broader point, however, is one that is worth stressing, and the Secretary actually noted this
yesterday. We will not offer any unilateral gestures or incentives to induce the Iranians to come to the
table. If the Iranians are under the impression that absent any movement on their part to resume full
compliance with the JCPOA that we will offer favors or unilateral gestures, well, that’s a
misimpression. If and only if Tehran comes to the negotiating table would we be in a position, would
we be prepared to discuss proposals that could help push both sides back on that path of mutual
compliance to the deal. Ultimately, that is where we seek to go: compliance for compliance.

If Iran returns to its full compliance with the JCPOA, the United States would do the same. As | have
said before, that would be a necessary but insufficient development, insufficient because we would
then seek to lengthen and strengthen the terms of that deal, using it as a platform to negotiate follow-
on arrangements to address these other areas of profound concern with Iran’s behavior in the region.

Thank you very much.

QUESTION: Wait, wait, wait. Wait, wait, wait. They had a couple here. (Laughter.) Yeah, I'm sorry,
did someone ask about Burma?

QUESTION: No, we didn't.
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QUESTION: Because | missed it if we didn't.

MR PRICE: We did not.

QUESTION: But there’s still a problem in Burma, right?

MR PRICE: There is.

QUESTION: Something that you would like — might like to address from the podium?
MR PRICE: Well —

QUESTION: | don't know —

MR PRICE: | am happy to address it. It's important to address.

QUESTION: I'm just wondering if you have any comment on the latest developments —
MR PRICE: Well —

QUESTION: — if there’s anything we can expect coming down the pike since you guys are going to
be going on an Asia tour, where presumably it will be among the things discussed, and the President
is meeting with or having his virtual meeting tomorrow with Asian leaders.

MR PRICE: It absolutely will be on the agenda next week. And | would reiterate that we are appalled
by the horrific violence perpetrated against the people of Burma in response to their peaceful calls to —
for the military to respect their rights and to restore the civilian government that they themselves
elected last November.

We condemn the security forces’ brutal killing of unarmed people, their attacks on journalists and
activists, these ongoing unjust detentions that we have talked about in recent days. We condemn the
attempted media blackout and efforts to silence the voices of the people by revoking the licenses of
several local media organizations. We're deeply concerned about the increasing attacks on the
freedom of expression, including for members of the press.

We call for the release of journalists and for all others who have been unjustly detained. The people of
Burma have clearly demonstrated that they want the release of those unjustly detained, and at their
core, a return to democracy, a return to the civilian government they themselves elected, that the
military junta overthrew in an anti-democratic coup on February 1st. The military cannot protect itself
from the consequences of these actions if it continues down this path.

And when we talk about the various actions, you will note that the United States — we have
announced, just yesterday in fact, additional measures of accountability for the military, sanctions
against both individuals and entities affiliated with the military junta. Together with our partners and
allies, we will continue to do that, and we will continue to find ways to hold the junta accountable for its
actions.

QUESTION: Secondly, on Honduras, are you aware of any attempt by the administration to clarify
comments that you and others have made suggesting that President Hernandez is not exactly an ally in
the fight against corruption?

MR PRICE: | am not aware —

QUESTION: There are some reports that there was an apology made to the Government of Honduras
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because of some comments that were made.

MR PRICE: What | spoke to remains the policy of the United States Government. We know that
corruption, that lack of respect for the rule of law, that endemic lawlessness in some cases — that it is
ultimately not only not in the interests of the people of the region but it has reverberations for the
United States. Again, as | spoke to the other day, these factors are key to the desire of some to flee
their homelands, including Honduras, and to seek a better life elsewhere.

It's precisely why we seek a partnership with the people of the Northern Triangle, including in
Honduras; why we seek a partnership with civil society elements in the Northern Triangle, including in
Honduras; why we seek a partnership with governments in the Northern Triangle, including in
Honduras, as we seek to address these underlying challenges and ultimately to address the patterns
of irregular migration that have posed a challenge not only for the region, not only for our neighbor in
Mexico, but also for the United States.

QUESTION: Okay. And then lastly, yesterday in the hearing on the Hill — and then | presume — | don’t
know because it was closed — but there was a Senate hearing that the Secretary was in. But
yesterday, at yesterday’s public hearing, the issue of Nord Stream 2 came up several times. And the
Secretary said several times that you guys were still looking into what other sanctions could be
applied under the PEESA and PEESCA laws. And | am just curious if there has been any further
determinations made on that since your report that came out, considering the fact that the Danish
Maritime Authority has actually identified at least three other ships that are working on the pipeline,
which would be sanctioned — they should be sanctioned — under U.S. law. | mean, they publicly
identified them, and so | guess I'm — my question is: Why haven't these other ships been sanctioned?
And because they haven't, | mean, is this something that’s in the works?

MR PRICE: Matt, I'll read you what Secretary Blinken —
QUESTION: You don’t need to read — repeat what he said at the hearing yesterday.

MR PRICE: | — but | think it's important. He made the point — and he said — “I've been on the job, |
think, five weeks. The pipeline is 95 percent complete. It started construction in 2018, so | wish we
didn’t find ourselves in this situation with a pipeline that’s virtually complete.”

All that notwithstanding, the President of the United States, Secretary Blinken, others in this
government have made this administration’s view unavowedly — unambiguously clear that Nord Stream
2 is a bad idea. It goes against the own — Europe’s own stated energy interests. It goes against our
interests in the region as well. That’s precisely why in the report that we submitted to Congress under
the legislation that was passed and consistent with the legislation that was passed, we noted our
sanctions on KVT-RUS and the Fortuna. As you know, Matt, these reports are due to Congress every
90 days. During that 90-day period, we will continue to evaluate the pipelaying activity that is ongoing
in the region. If this activity meets the threshold for sanctions, | have no doubt — you should have no
doubt — that this administration will follow the law. And if the law states that entities should be
sanctioned for their pipelaying activity, | suspect you'll be hearing more about that from us.

QUESTION: | will have no doubt. Thank you.
MR PRICE: Thank you very much. Appreciate it.
(The briefing was concluded at 2:43 p.m.)
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MS PORTER: Good afternoon, everyone, and thank you for joining today’s press call. A few things at
the top, and then we’'ll get into your questions.

Today, Mathias Cormann of Australia was selected as the next secretary general of the Organization
for Economic Cooperation and Development, the OECD. As a former finance minister and elected
official, Cormann brings a wealth of leadership and problem-solving experience to the role. And, as the
first secretary general from the Asia-Pacific region to lead the OECD in its 60-year history, we're
confident he also brings a fresh perspective.

Cormann will lead the OECD as it navigates pressing international economic issues including
addressing climate change, modernizing international taxation, tackling corruption, and strengthening
labor rights.

The United States admires the OECD for its role in enhancing cooperation in the global economy and
values it as a unique forum where the United States can work with likeminded, market-driven
democracies in developing a shared approach to challenging issues and building a green and inclusive
future together.

We also look forward to working with Cormann on the OECD’s 60th anniversary Ministerial Council
Meeting, which the United States will be chairing this year.

We want to thank UK Ambassador to the OECD and Dean of Ambassadors Chris Sharrock for leading
a well-organized, fair, and transparent selection process, one that resulted in consensus among 37
OECD member-states on the next secretary general: Mathias Cormann.

Congratulations, Mathias. We look forward to working with you.

Ten years ago, the Syrian people peacefully took to the streets calling for basic human rights and an
end to government corruption. On this anniversary, we honor the many brave Syrians who spoke out a
decade ago against oppression and who continue to act today — documenting atrocities, providing
humanitarian aid and medical services, and demanding freedom and dignity for all Syrians.

The United States stands with the Syrian people. Under the Assad regime, they have suffered
innumerable atrocities, and we will continue to work with the international community to promote
accountability and call for the release of those arbitrarily detained, information on whereabouts of the
missing, and unhindered humanitarian assistance to the Syrian people.
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We will also continue to promote a political settlement to end the conflict in Syria in close consultation
with our allies, partners, and the United Nations. A political settlement is the only way to sustainably
end the conflict, prevent greater suffering, and provide the peace and stability the Syrian people
deserve.

This weekend also marked another new low, as Burmese security forces brutally attacked their own
people, killing dozens throughout the country. The military junta’s violence against the people of Burma
is immoral and indefensible.

The junta has responded to calls for the restoration of democracy in Burma with bullets.

These tactics are a reminder that Burma'’s military conducted this coup for their own selfish gains and
not to represent the will of the people.

The United States continues to call on all countries to take concrete actions to oppose the coup and its
escalating violence.

The United States is following with concern developments surrounding the Bolivian Government’s
recent arrests of former officials. We urge our friends and neighbors in Bolivia to uphold all civil rights
and due process guarantees of the American Convention on Human Rights and the principles of the
Inter-American Democratic Charter.

Our concern joins those expressed by civic, political, and religious leaders in Bolivia as well as by
those in the international community, including the UN secretary general, the Inter-American
Commission on Human Rights, the Office of High Commissioner for Human Rights in Bolivia, and the
European Union. Many countries in our hemisphere, including the United States, have realized that at
one time or another that democratic rule of, by, and for the people is a gift that must be respectfully
handled.

And with that, we will go to our questions. Let’s go to the line of Nike Ching of VOA.

QUESTION: Hi, good afternoon. Jalina, thanks so much for the briefing. On North Korea, | take note
that White House spokesperson has confirmed the Biden administration has reached out to North
Korea but has not received a response. As Secretary Blinken and National Security Advisor Jake
Sullivan are meeting with senior Chinese officials later this week, what does the U.S. ask from China
regarding North Korea denuclearization? Is this something the U.S. envisioned it could cooperate with
China? And separately, is there discussion to appoint a human rights envoy for North Korea? Thank
youl.

MS PORTER: Thanks for your question, Nike. I'll get to your question on North Korea.

So the Biden administration is conducting a thorough interagency review of U.S. policy toward North
Korea, and that includes evaluating all options to address the increased threats that are posed by
North Korea to its neighbors as well as the broader international community. We're continuing to lead
a structured and detailed policy process that has integrated a diverse set of voices from throughout
the government and incorporates input from think tanks as well as outside experts.

We've also consulted with many former government officials, including in North Korea policy, and
several from the previous administration. And throughout this review process, we will have and we will
continue to engage with our Japanese and South Korean allies to solicit input as well as explore fresh
approaches. We've listened carefully to their ideas, including through trilateral consultation.

Next, we will go to the line of Simon Lewis, Reuters.
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QUESTION: Hi. Hi, can you hear me?
MS PORTER: Hi. Yes, we can hear you.

QUESTION: Hi, yes. So | wanted to ask the — on Thursday this week, there is a Afghan peace
conference in Moscow, and we wanted to know whether Special Envoy Khalilzad is planning to attend
that. And if the U.S. going to attend this conference under Russian auspices, then what does that
mean for the peace process in Afghanistan?

MS PORTER: Well, to answer your question on the peace process in Afghanistan as well as Special
Representative Khalilzad, as of last week the Secretary said we are engaging in the region and
international partners to try to accelerate progress towards a political settlement, and as a part of our
ongoing efforts to encourage this important peace process, Ambassador Khalilzad does plan to attend
the meeting in Moscow. This meeting will complement all other international efforts to support the
Afghanistan peace process and also reflects the international community’s concerns about the
progress to date.

Next we will go to the line of Erin Ji, Radio Free Asia.
QUESTION: Hello, can you hear me?
MS PORTER: Hi, yes, | can hear you.

QUESTION: Okay. Great. Thank you. Thank you for doing this. My question is on North Korea as
well. Would you — would you be able to elaborate on why the U.S. Government reached out to North
Korea behind the scenes at this particular time? And how does diplomatic outreach fit into the ongoing
policy review on North Korea? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for the question. Again, I'll just repeat what we said before that the Biden
administration is conducting a thorough interagency review of U.S. — the U.S. policy towards North
Korea. And we’ve continued to consult with many former government officials involved in North Korea
policy as well as several from the previous administration. And again, through this review process we
have and will continue to engage with our allies in the area.

Thank you. We’'ll go to the line of Jiha Ham of VOA. Hello?

QUESTION: Hi, can you hear me? Hi. Yeah, | have a similar question actually. | have a question on
North Korea. So we learned that the U.S. has not received any response from Pyongyang. So a non-
responsive North Korea, how would this affect to the ongoing policy review on North Korea? | mean,
does it matter in how you shape the policy that they have shown no response? And would it change
any directions of the policy towards North Korea?

And if | may, | have one more question. It seems like the U.S. has several channels that can reach out
to North Korea. So would sending a direct letter to Kim Jong-un be one of the channels? We know the
previous administration regularly exchanged letters with Kim Jong-un. So has President Biden written
or will he try to maybe write a similar letter to Kim Jong-un? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Well, thank you. To answer both of your questions, to reduce the risk of escalation,
we've reached out to the North Korean Government through several channels starting in mid-February,
including in New York. And to date, we have not received any response from Pyongyang. This follows
over a year without active dialogue with North Korea despite several attempts by the U.S. to engage.

We can now go to the line of Nadia Bilbassy.
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QUESTION: Jalina, this is Nadia Bilbassy with Al Arabiya Television. As you have seen today, the
Houthi militias has launched another rocket towards Khamis Mushait in Saudi Arabia, targeting
civilians. I’'m wondering if you can update us on Mr. Lenderking (inaudible) an effort of trying to get the
Houthis back to the negotiation table.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question. Well, I'll start off by saying that we strongly condemn all
egregious Houthi drone and missile attacks in Saudi Arabia. And these attacks are unacceptable.
They're dangerous. They put the lives of civilians at risk. And we remain deeply concerned by the
frequency of these attacks, including on Saudi Arabia. We strongly call on all parties to seriously
commit to a ceasefire and engage in negotiations under UN auspices in conjunction with UN Special —
U.S. Special Envoy Tim Lenderking. And this is a time for, again, the Houthis to come to the table and
to commit to peace and diplomacy in the region. Again, the Houthis’ attacks on Saudi Arabia — again,
we'll just repeat — are unacceptable and this — these are not actions of a group who say that they
want peace.

We will go to the line of Laura Kelly from The Hill.
QUESTION: Hi, thank you for taking my question. | hope you can hear me.
MS PORTER: Yes, | can hear you.

QUESTION: That’'s wonderful. House Democrats sent a letter today to Secretary of State Antony
Blinken calling for the State Department to pressure Israel to provide more vaccines and a vaccination
campaign for the Palestinians. Have you received the letter? Do you have any comment on it? And if |
may just ask a second question. Does the State Department have comment on the UK — the police in
London breaking up the peaceful vigils for Sarah Everard over the weekend? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Hi, thank you for your questions. To the first question, | haven’t seen the report so I'm
unable to comment on that. And when it comes to your second question about the vigil in London, we
also don't have any specific comment on that, but if we do, we'll be sure to let you know.

Now let’s go to the line of Hiba Nasr.

QUESTION: Thanks for doing this. | would ask about Sudan. Earlier today, Sudanese Prime Minister
Abdalla Hamdok called for a U.S. mediation to solve the issue of the Nahda dam. Do you have any
comment on that? Are you willing to engage?

MS PORTER: So we've seen the breaking report, and we continue to support collaborative and
constructive efforts to resolve the disagreement on the GERD. We understand the GERD is a major
issue for the parties, and we certainly encourage the resumption of a productive dialogue.

We go to the line of Simon Lewis — oh no, we already went and got him. Right. Simon, are you back
on the line or is that — he’s back? Okay. The line of Simon Lewis.

QUESTION: Question if you don't mind. Just you mentioned the violence in Myanmar over the
weekend, in Myanmar, Burma over the weekend. Specifically, a lot of the kilings happened in the
Hlaing Thar Yar neighborhood of Yangon on Sunday. And that seems to be connected to these
Chinese diamond factories that were set on fire.

And the Chinese Government has responded by — well, calling for the security forces in Myanmar to
handle the situation and protect the Chinese businesses there, and state media in China is sort of
warning of more drastic action to protect its interests in the country.
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Given the talks that are about to happen with the Secretary and Chinese counterparts, | wonder if the
U.S. had some warning or comment to make about China’s seeming involvement in backing the
security forces in this case, and any concern that outside foreign actors are getting involved in this
situation in Myanmar.

MS PORTER: So I'll just start off by saying that, again, we are deeply concerned and saddened by
the reports and strongly condemn the use of violence in Burma security forces against their people.
When it comes to your question about China and the Chinese-owned factories in Burma, we certainly
have to refer you to the Chinese ministry of foreign affairs for more information on that, but we again
certainly don’'t condone any use of violence in Burma. And again, we’'ll continue to call on all countries,
including neighbors of Burma, to take concrete actions to oppose the coup and urge a return to civilian
governance and stability.

Can we go to the line of Jennifer Hansler on CNN?

QUESTION: Hi, thanks for doing this, Jalina. | have two questions. One, it appears that Ambassador
Khalilzad is back in Afghanistan meeting with Afghan Government officials. I'm wondering if you have
any more information on that stop.

And then separately, there are reports in Hong Kong that two employees of the consulate there tested
positive for COVID but refused to be quarantined, citing diplomatic immunity. | was wondering if you
could confirm that or if you have any comment. Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you, Jennifer. Going back to Ambassador Khalilzad, he departed Doha today
after several days of meetings with negotiating parties and other stakeholders to encourage progress
on political settlement and a comprehensive ceasefire as well as immediate reduction of violence. And
I'll repeat what we said earlier about his participation in Moscow, which he plans to attend.

Is she still on the line? What was your second question, Jennifer? Are you still there?
QUESTION: Hi, can you hear me?
MS PORTER: Yes, | can hear you.

QUESTION: Okay. On the second one, there were reports that two Hong Kong consulate workers
tested positive for COVID but wouldn't quarantine and they cited diplomatic immunity. | was wondering
if you could confirm that or if you have any comment.

MS PORTER: Yes, so we've been informed that two consulate general employees have tested
positive for COVID-19, but due to privacy concerns, we’re not able to share additional information.
When it comes to disinformation about these two not complying to quarantine, that is absolutely false.

Can we go to the line of Michel Ghandour?
QUESTION: (Inaudible) for doing the call. | have two questions, one on Libya and one on Lebanon.

On Lebanon, do you have any comment on the visit that the Hizballah delegation has made to Russia
and the reception that the foreign minister made for them, Sergey Lavrov?

And second, on Libya, do you have any comment on the new government that swore in today? And
how do you view the future of Khalifa Haftar?

MS PORTER: So on Lebanon, generally speaking, we're concerned about the developments in
Lebanon and the apparent inaction of the country’s leadership in the face of multiple ongoing crises.

Document ID: 0.7.12479.6519 1049-000039



Lebanon’s political leaders need to put aside their partisan brinkmanship and form a government that
will quickly — quickly implement critical and long-needed reforms, restore investor confidence, and
rescue the country’s economy.

As far as Libya, we don't have a comment right now. If we do, we’'ll be certainly forward those to you
as soon as possible.

All right. So we will take one final question from Hadil.

QUESTION: My question is about Yemen. Do you think you have any plans to convince the Houthis to
stop their escalation against Saudi Arabia and to assess a political resolution?

Also | have a question about Syria. Are you considering lifting the sanctions applied on Assad regime,
especially Caesar Act? And do you think the sanctions have been viable to pressure Assad's regime to
accept the political resolution? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Hi, thank you. To address your first question on Syria, President Biden has made it one
of his first foreign policy priorities to end the war in Yemen, and by doing so, appointing a high-level
envoy dedicated to that purpose, U.S. Special Envoy Lenderking, who has also been engaged with UN
Special Envoy Martin Griffiths on this effort. We now have a sound, fair plan for a nationwide ceasefire
with elements that would immediately address Yemen's dire humanitarian situation. And that plan has
been before Houthi leadership for days. Again, the United States is building on a UN framework and
amplifying it through our own diplomatic engagement and expanded regional support. And again, we
will routinely call on the Houthis to seize this moment and come to the table to diplomacy.

To your second question on Syria, | believe, we'll just say generally speaking that we believe that
stability in Syria and the greater region can only be achieved through a political process that
represents the will of all Syrians. And we're committed to working with allies, partners, as well as the
UN to ensure that a durable political solution remains within reach.

All right. That ends our call for today. Thank you for coming and we'll be back here at this same time
tomorrow.

(The briefing was concluded at 2:36 p.m.)
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Office of the Spokesperson
VIA TELECONFERENCE
MODERATOR: Hi, everyone. Good evening.

Our call today is going to be attributed to senior administration officials. Our speakers today are and
. Again, on background, to SAOs, and the contents of this call are embargoed until its conclusion.

With that, | will turn it over to to open us up.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: Well, thanks so much, , and thanks to all of you for
joining us on the line this evening. | want to start off by situating the Anchorage meeting in the context
of our broader Indo-Pacific Strategy, which many of you have seen that we’ve been rolling out on quite
rapidly.

But starting on our approach to China as part of that broader Indo-Pacific Strategy, we’ve been clear
from the beginning that there are three main pieces to our approach to China. The first is
strengthening ourselves at home, and we see the — addressing the economic recovery, pandemic
response, enhancing our competitiveness as absolutely critical and key to that. We've now seen in the
50-odd days under our belts here the American Recovery Act passed. We've seen vaccine
distribution accelerated on a pretty significant scale. We’ve seen a lot of positive trend lines on what
we can do at home on core domestic sources of strength. We've got more work to do, but we feel
like we are off to a pretty good start with the domestic efforts that are going to give us the sources of
strength that we need to compete with China and to have an affirmative approach to the Indo-Pacific
region.

The second piece of it is our allies and partners and our work in international institutions. | think that
all of you will have seen — and, of course, you've got the Secretary of State currently in the region,
which I'll leave to to speak to — but we have had early and intensive engagements, virtually and now in
person, to move out aggressively with our allies and partners. And this is about working with our allies
and partners on our shared interests and our shared values, but also in terms of understanding where
we face similar challenges, including from China.

| think sometimes folks think of our allies and partners piece here as just being about choreography,
that somehow we just need to talk to our allies before we talk to China. And | want to stress that
that’s actually not the case. Obviously, that sequencing is part of the equation here, but we’re working
actually with allies and partners to strengthen our hand. | think that the Quad last week was probably
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the most important very clear illustration in practical terms of exactly what we’re trying to achieve
here, bringing together the four leaders in a virtual summit for the first time to actually do something
together that we couldn’t do individually, particularly on the vaccine distribution deliverable. That was
big and affirmative for the region. This isn't just about something that is here to counter China; this is
about something that’s actually about doing something that enhances our leverage, enhances the
quality of life in the region in meaningful ways.

And so that work is well underway. 1I'd also just note that our diplomacy as it relates to the Indo-
Pacific is not limited just to the Indo-Pacific. We have been engaged in some pretty intensive
diplomacy with our European partners and allies on the Indo-Pacific region, including on China. We've
had a series of engagements at all levels with European partners and allies. We’ve been doing a bit
of a virtual roadshow with a number of different capitals, having interagency conversations with key
interlocutors there to really compare notes.

And two, we've always said that the domestic piece, strengthening ourselves at home, and then
working with allies, partners, and international institutions to strengthen ourselves globally is really key
to setting up how we are going to both confront China where it is undermining our interests and values,
and where we're going to cooperate with China where we have an interest in doing so. | think that it's
really important that that is the backdrop for our conversations in Anchorage. We are coming in with
what we feel like is an increasing — increasingly strong hand to come to the table with our Chinese
interlocutors.

| think that the conversations in Anchorage are very much intended as an initial discussion to
understand one another’s interests — sorry, our interests, intentions, and priorities, and frankly, to get
a bit of an understanding of where the Chinese are at.

We think it’s really important that our Chinese interlocutors hear from Secretary Blinken and from
National Security Advisor Sullivan directly about our priorities and about our intentions. We know that
sometimes there is a sense, potentially a perception, or maybe it’s a hope, in Beijing that our public
message is somehow different than our private message. And we think it’s really important that we
dispel that idea very early and that we're very clear with delivering the same messages in private that
you have heard from us in public. That includes making very clear our deep concerns about a range of
issues, whether it’s Xinjiang, Hong Kong, Chinese economic coercion of our allies and partners,
China’s increasingly aggressive activities across the Taiwan Strait. We will absolutely make those
points very clear. But this is really about having a broader strategic conversation, it's about
communicating the areas where we intend to take steps, and it's about understanding where our
Chinese interlocutors are at.

Let me just make a couple of other specific points on the meeting itself and the goals around it. |
know you've heard this from folks already, but just to reinforce it, that this really is a one-off meeting.
This is not the resumption of a particular dialogue mechanism or the beginning of a dialogue process.
This is very much about sitting down, getting an understanding of each other, and then taking that back
and taking stock. Many of you know that we are in the middle of a pretty extensive China strategy
development process, and the inputs that we're getting from our allies and partners are really core to
that understanding where we have some opportunities to work together and where we can best build
shared leverage. But in putting where our Chinese interlocutors are at as well, what we will hear from
Yang Jiechi and Wang Yi in this conversation will be important to informing where we go in our China
strategy going forward. And so we think it’s really important to get that.

| also want to underscore one point, which | know that this is a little bit of a unique configuration.
We've not had the national security advisor and secretary of state meet together with their Chinese
interlocutors previously, and we actually think that this is really important, not just in terms of
something for show; but rather, we've seen a track record from China in the past of attempting to try
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to play favorites within an administration and, in particular, to play the secretary of state and national
security advisor off each other. I've worked on China at both the State Department and the NSC
previously, and I've seen this in action. And we felt it was really important to underscore from the get-
go that this administration is unified and coordinated when it comes to China policy, and that the
President’s two closest foreign policy and national security advisors were going to be sitting down
together to have this conversation, that there is not going to be daylight, and that the games that China
has played in the past to divide us or attempt to divide us are simply not going to work here. And so
this is a very deliberate and visual demonstration of that from the get-go that we think is really
important for helping to inform and shape how China seeks to engage with us.

The last thing | would say before turning it over to is that | know there is a lot of questions from folks
about whether we’re going to get into detail of negotiating some of the specific issues that are
outstanding in the U.S.-China relationship. And our own view is that we’re simply not there yet. We
need to have more detailed conversations with our allies and partners, that it’s really important that we
take this deliberate time to understand actually sort of what the landscape is and how to best position
the United States for success in this competition. And that means getting inputs from a variety of
places and putting it in a hopper and understanding actually what’s going to give us the best hand.

And so the conversation in Anchorage is really going to be at that broader strategic level, where we
will touch on some specific issues but aren't expecting to come out with specific negotiated
deliverables that will answer the questions. Rather, this is just the beginning of that process.

So with that, let me hand it over to my colleague over at the State Department.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL TWO: Thank you so much, . Let me just point out, as you —
mentioned all the great diplomacy that is happening all over the world but particularly here in the East
Asia region. As folks probably are tracking, Secretary Blinken and Secretary Austin had superb
meetings with their Japanese counterparts yesterday and today the team is looking forward to a full
day of engagement with our Korean counterparts. | think it's worth pointing out that we’re receiving
extraordinary hospitality from these two allies of ours in the midst of a pandemic, which | think really
goes quite a ways to showing how important these alliances are. And of course, the fact that these
are the first overseas trips by Biden Cabinet officials | think also makes very clear the point that was
making earlier about how much we're focusing on conversations and getting ourselves aligned with our
partners and allies.

| think did a great job of laying out what we expect to get out of Anchorage. The only point | would
add on that is the — Beijing has been talking about its desire to change the tone of the relationship, and
of course, we’re going to be looking at deeds, not words on that front. And we’re of course coming to
these discussions with a very clear-eyed view about the PRC’s pretty poor track record of keeping its
promises.

So with that, I'm happy to turn it over, , for Qs and As. Thanks.

MODERATOR: Thanks very much, everyone. Operator, if you could please open the lines for our
first question.

OPERATOR: Absolutely. Ladies and gentlemen, if you do have questions, press 1 then 0 on your
touch tone phone. You'll hear an indication that you've been placed into queue, and you may remove
yourself from queue by repeating the 1 then 0 command. If you're using a speaker phone, please pick
up your handset before pressing any buttons and make certain your phone is unmuted before asking
your question.

We’'ll go first to the line of Nick Schifrin with PBS. Go ahead, please.
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QUESTION: Hey, . Hey, . Thank you for doing this. Two questions. The last time the U.S. met
Yang Jiechi, the administration asked that there would be no follow-on meetings specifically until there
was a behavior change from Beijing. Is that the same approach that you're taking? And a 30,000-
foot question: Do you believe that Xi Jinping is willing to change his behavior based on U.S.
pressure? Thanks.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: Hi, operator, are you there? | think we might have
muted the speaker.

OPERATOR: Yes, we'llgo —

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: I'm —oh, I'm sorry. That was me muting myself. |
apologize.

OPERATOR: No worries.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: (Laughter.) Nick, | was giving you a great answer
there. Great to hear from you. So on your question, what | would say is that as just made clear, we
believe particularly as Beijing is professing an interest in a change in tone in the relationship, what
we're looking for is deed more than word. | think said that exactly right. And that, of course, does
mean that we're going to lay down some specific areas where we believe that Beijing does need to
take some steps to change course. And you've probably seen some comments specifically about
China’s economic coercion in some of our allies, including Australia, that we do believe need to change
before we can take substantial steps forward in the relationship. And so that is absolutely one of the
factors that we are looking at here as we map out the way forward, but | agree with ’s point on being
very clear-eyed and realistic about what that might mean.

OPERATOR: We will go next to the line of Christina Ruffini with CBS News.

QUESTION: Hi, everybody. Greetings from Japan. | was wondering if you could talk a little bit about
how this meeting came about — who reached out to whom, who initiated it, how the venue was
chosen, and what kind of format we’re going to see in Anchorage. Thanks so much.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: Hey, thanks for the question. So what | would say is
that the U.S. felt that, number one, the timing of the meeting needed to occur after we had taken
some of those steps to really strengthen ourselves that | laid out at the top — domestic renewal and
reinvestment and some substantial engagement with allies and partners — and that it was very
important to us that we had some of that work meaningfully underway before we had an engagement
with our Chinese interlocutors at a senior level. And we’'ve made clear to them from the get-go that
the lines of communication are open. We think that’s important. But again, in terms of a high-level
meeting, that that needed to wait until we had some of those other steps in motion.

The other thing I'd say is that we also felt it was really important that we host the meeting on U.S.

soil. We just felt for a variety of reasons that being on our own territory was extremely important for
this meeting and of not attempting to meet in China. And so that’s — and then | guess the last piece of
it is in terms of the venue. A lot of it was sort of practicality involving travel and COVID protocols and
challenges of meeting in different places, and so we sort of landed here for a variety of reasons, but
that’s kind of how we ended up with that.

But | do just want to underscore the point again of feeling very important, and | think Jen Psaki had
said this from the podium previously, of actually hosting on U.S. soil as a key piece of this. | don't
know if wants to add anything on that.
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SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL TWO: Yeah, thanks, . You hit the point about the way the
travel arrangements worked out. So, of course, Secretary Blinken and company will be traveling back
from Korea and then — and Alaska makes a pretty good midpoint stop. And clearly, the fact that
Director Yang is willing to come out to the States again, | think that we certainly welcome that. He
made two visits in the last years of the previous administration. | think he was both in New York and
in Honolulu, so happy that we’ll be able to welcome him to Alaska. Over.

OPERATOR: We will go next to Owen Churchill with the South China Morning Post. Go ahead,
please.

QUESTION: Hithere. Can you hear me?
SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: Yep.

QUESTION: Great, thanks so much for doing this. A couple of quick questions. Just a broad one
first about how you would characterize success and failure, respectively, when it comes to your
expectations for this meeting. And then a second question about logistics: Are you anticipating
releasing a joint statement after this, or would there be separate readouts from either side? Thank
youl.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: There will not be a joint statement. I'm happy to take
that one first. | guess in terms of the question of what does success look like, | want to situate this
again in terms of a process. And | recognize that that is not necessarily the glitziest of a headline, but
we really see this meeting, again, as both part of the broad Indo-Pacific diplomatic work underway
and very much one piece of a continued ongoing — and there will be more to come after this, right?

And so | see this as being one data point in that overarching strategy and approach that we are
running right now, and so | think the — frankly, a failure would be if somehow this meeting were to be
seen to somehow be divorced from that overall strategy. And that’s why | think it’s really important for
us that these conversations be situated — by the way, including the conversations we will have in the
room in Anchorage — will be situated in what we are trying to achieve in our broader priorities across
this administration.

And so for us, our China strategy fits within our broader Indo-Pacific Strategy, sits within our broader
approach to national security. And you could see that in the Interim Strategic Guidance document that
the administration released a couple weeks ago. And so | think that’s a really critical piece of this.

And | think success — again, put this really well, so | just — I'm going to just keep quoting him back
here, which is this is about understanding will there actually be any change indeed, but | think our
expectations are really realistic there. And so for me, that’s not necessarily where my focus is going
to be. It’s going to be much more understanding over time how do we — how do we shape that
behavior change that we're trying to seek. probably has other even more insightful thoughts on this.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL TWO: Hey, don't raise the bar on me like that, . No, actually,
| would say, look, success —, you said it up front. | mean, we don’t have any unrealistic expectations
for sure, but we do think it's an opening to open up these lines of communication and for our principals
to be very, very blunt with their principals about the long list of concerns, quite a few of which ticked
off at the top. We don't want them to be operating under illusions about our tough-minded approach
to their very problematic behavior. And on the other hand, of course, it’s an opportunity for our guys
to hear from them. So without raising expectations unduly, | think we’re looking to have a nice, robust,
and very frank conversation with a power that is going to be a major competitor of ours. So it's good
that we're opening up these channels of communication. Over.
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OPERATOR: We'll go to the line of Lara Jakes with New York Times. Go ahead, please.

QUESTION: Hi, good morning from Japan. It's a beautiful day here. | wanted to pick up on what you
just said, . And I’'m wondering, as the United States’ principals are just as blunt about your
expectations, what happens if the Chinese come to the table and they are just as blunt about their
expectations? They’ve been very clear in saying the United States should not be meddling in what
they see as internal issues for China. What does that portend for the future of the relationship if they
come to the table and they say, no, these are our principles, and we don’t expect to move from that?

And then also, , | was wondering if you could just very quickly elaborate a little bit on what you said
about how this may be the first time that a secretary of state and a national security advisor have sat
down jointly with their Chinese counterparts. Are you making reference to the previous administration
or to the Obama administration or going back to the Bush administration? How far back does that
go? Thank you so much.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL TWO: Guess I'll try the first part there. Look, Secretary
Blinken has said that the relationship with China, we — it's going to be competitive when it should be,
collaborative when it can be, and adversarial when it must be. And if we get to issues where we just
have very different views, it'll be good to — it’ll be good for both sides to hear one another out.

But our view is, listen, we're not asking the PRC to do anything other than abide by the international
rules of the road, to honor its obligations, and to take — as said, take actions consonant with their
words. They talk about being a responsible champion of the multilateral system, but their deeds fall
far short of that in many, many respects.

So yeah, clearly, if we happen to have some serious disagreements in Anchorage, I'm not very
confident that we’re going to be able to persuade the Chinese of the error of their ways and the
righteousness of ours just over the course of a couple of hours’ worth of talks. But | think it is
important that each side know where the other does stand. Over.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: Yeah, | think put that really well. The only thing | would
just add on that point is that many of the things that China professes are internal matters of concern
are of concern to a great number of countries, not just the United States. And so we see these not
just as issues in the bilateral context, but as issues of global concern, and in some cases, growing
global concern. We see that in particular on Xinjiang. We see that on Hong Kong, where you're
seeing mounting not only condemnation but action by a number of countries to really make clear that
China’s violation of international rules, norms, and universal values does have consequences for its
relationships and its engagements with other countries.

On the history, | think we'd have to actually take that and get back to you on that, in terms of has a
national security advisor and secretary of state ever sat in the room together. My point is largely in
terms of a meeting like this, a standalone meeting like this where there is this kind of configuration.
We’d have to go back and check if there’s ever been a previous instance where one or the other
joined them in a meeting in Washington, D.C. or something like that.

OPERATOR: We will go to the line of Andrea Mitchell from NBC. One moment, please, while we
open your line. Your line is open. Go ahead, please.

QUESTION: When you said you were going to raise — when you said you were going to raise all
these issues, can you highlight what you think are the most critical issues that you definitely plan to
raise? And what role will the cyber issue and Microsoft play in any expectations of actions, impending
actions against China?
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SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: Thanks, Andrea. I’'m going to confess that | don't want
to give the Chinese our whole playbook in advance. So I'm going to save some of the answers of the
most important issues that we plan to raise until we can read out things to you guys afterwards. |
hope you'll be understanding of that. But obviously, some of the pieces that | mentioned earlier —
Xinjiang, Hong Kong, Taiwan, economic coercion of allies that you're well familiar with, our concerns
about China’s actions to impinge on freedom of navigation — it’s taking increasingly aggressive actions
with respect to some of those spaces as well, but of course we have concerns about — in the
technology space, in the economic space. So — but we will in our readouts afterwards be able to give
you a little bit more of a prioritized sense and a little bit more on maybe the nature of how we've
raised those things when we’re not going to be tipping our hand quite so much.

But cyber is absolutely an issue that we plan to discuss. Our U.S. concerns about Beijing’s malicious
cyber activity is not new, but it's a continued and ongoing concern and reports about recent activity
only heighten that. And so this is definitely an issue where | think that we will be making a very clear
point about our concerns and | think we’ll have more for you, again, on that after the — after the
meeting.

OPERATOR: For our last question we will go to Paris Huang with Voice of America. Go ahead.
QUESTION: Hi, can you hear me?

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: Mm-hmm.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL TWO: Yes.

QUESTION: So, yes, thank you for doing this. My question is you talked about before this meeting,
United States had talked with allies and partners in Asia and Europe. So where do you see Russia’s
role play in the United States and China relationship?

And also, China have influence over Africa and Latin America as well; for example, the One Belt and
One Road Initiative has extended over there as well. Did the United States talk to the countries over
there before this meeting? Thank you.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL ONE: I'm going to defer — those are largely, | think, areas.
Why don't | defer to on that.

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL TWO: Sure, that’s a great question. Thanks very much. And
yes, look, the State Department is absolutely practicing the same diplomatic outreach that was
referring to with our partners and allies across the globe. We have been in very, very close contact
with capitals in Latin American and Africa, Central and Southeast Asia about all of our common
agenda, whether it’s things like addressing the COVID pandemic, climate, and, of course, resisting
coercion and aggressive behavior by powers like China and Russia. So those conversations are
global in scope.

You asked about in particular the role of Russia vis-a-vis China. | mean, neither nor | are Russia
experts, but | would say to our colleagues that do cover Russia, in many ways | think Russia poses a
similar set of challenges, perhaps not quite on the same scope and scale that China does, but ones
that we feel the best way to push back on is by making a common cause, again, with our close allies
and partners and making sure that we're holding them accountable when they take actions that run
counter to sort of the international rules of the road, the international system that for seven or eight
decades now has helped enable the entire planet to enjoy great levels of peace and prosperity. So |
think probably a question that our Europe colleagues could answer in more detail, but | think the same
general approach. Thanks. Over.
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MODERATOR: Great. Thanks, everyone, for joining us tonight, and for our friends in Asia, have a
good morning. Reminder, again, we are on background, attributed to senior administration officials,
and with the conclusion of this call, the embargo is lifted. Thank you.
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Secretary Antony J. Blinken With Yuki Morikawa of TV Asahi
03/17/2021 10:19 AM EDT

Antony J. Blinken, Secretary of State

QUESTION: Hello, my name is Yuki, newscaster at TV Asahi, and thank you for accepting our offer
this time, and it is a great honor to have you in our program. How is your first trip in Japan as a —

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Thank you. So good to be with you.

QUESTION: Yeah, thank you so much. How is your first trip in Japan as the Secretary of State so
far?

SECRETARY BLINKEN: It's been wonderful, and it's so good to be back in Japan, in Tokyo. I've
spent many, many days here before, and it's wonderful to reconnect with colleagues in government,
with our team at the United States embassy, and | wish we had more of an opportunity to get out and
about, but just being here is a really good thing. And it's very deliberate. This is my first overseas trip
as Secretary of State, and we wanted to come to Japan along with Secretary of Defense Lloyd Austin
to demonstrate in a very, very concrete way the value that we place, President Biden places, on the
alliance between the United State and Japan.

QUESTION: That's great. We have only 10 minutes and | have five to six questions to ask, so let’s
get started.

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Okay.
QUESTION: So yesterday —
SECRETARY BLINKEN: Good.

QUESTION: — 2+2 was held in Tokyo, and in that meeting the U.S. and Japan shared their concerns
about, like, various issues, but obviously that was mainly about China. So here’s my question: What
will be your demands to China at the meeting that’s coming on Thursday, and do you think you can
push China to change its behavior in East and South China Sea?

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Well, first, | think both the United States and Japan are very concerned
because we've seen in recent years China acting more repressively at home and more aggressively
abroad, including with regard to the Senkaku Islands, the South China Sea, Hong Kong, Taiwan, and
that’s a concern to both of us and it’s also, | think, a concern to all of those who value peace and
stability in this region. And of course, there are many other issues of real concern, including economic
issues, including issues of human rights at home in China. And | think both of our countries as leading
democracies really share that concern. So we spent some time talking about it.

But we'll have an opportunity, as you alluded to, to meet directly with senior Chinese counterparts in
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Anchorage, Alaska at the end of the week. I'll be going there along with my colleague, the American
National Security Advisory Jake Sullivan. And that’s an opportunity for us to very directly, face to face,
share with our Chinese counterparts the concerns that the United States has, that our allies and
partners have about some of the things that China is doing. And | suspect it’ll be an opportunity for
China to share whatever concerns it has about us. But it's important that we have an opportunity to
speak directly, to speak clearly, to speak openly, also to demonstrate to our counterparts that there is
no difference between what we say in public and what we say in private. The concerns that we've
expressed publicly are the same ones that we’'ll be expressing to them in private.

QUESTION: Okay. What are the priorities in that meeting?

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Well, the priority really is this opportunity to lay out clearly, openly, directly
our concerns, how we see our own interests, our own priorities, and of course we’ll listen to our
colleagues from Beijing. | suspect they want to do the same thing. And it’s just important to make
sure we understand each other, and in particular that our Chinese counterparts understand the
concerns that we have, understand why so many countries are increasingly worried about the actions
that China is taking, again, whether it’s with regard to human rights at home or some of its aggressive
actions in the region.

QUESTION: Okay. And Chinese foreign minister, Mr. Wang Yi, is asking to remove tariffs on trade.
So how do you intend to halt this trade war?

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Well, when it comes to trade, | think there are two important things. Of
course, there are the questions of tariffs and of trade deficits, and these are important and we are
looking at all of that. But even more important are some of the fundamental structural problems that
China has not thus far addressed. For example, its support for state-owned enterprises, the
subsidization, the technology transfer, the theft of intellectual property, and basically creating an
uneven, unequal playing field that is tilted in China’s favor and against the interests of our workers and
our businesses. And in particular, when it comes to emerging technologies and technologies of the
future, some of the practices that China puts into play would give them an unfair advantage as well.
So it’s going to be very important that China address these concerns, and again, these are concerns
that are shared not just by the United States but by many other countries.

QUESTION: Okay. So about policy on North Korea, how different it will be from Trump
administration?

SECRETARY BLINKEN: We're reviewing our North Korea policy, and we're doing that with a lot of
inputs with — from various experts, including people outside of government, former officials, but also,
and critically, from our closest partners — from Japan and from South Korea — because their interests
are deeply implicated in this as well. And we're in the midst of that review. | imagine it’ll be
completed in the weeks ahead, and then we’ll be able to move forward in close coordination with our
partners to try to deal effectively with the challenge posed by North Korea, by its nuclear program, by
its missile program, by its abuse of human rights, and of course, the tragedy of the abductees that will
very much remain in our focus, and we'’re in absolute solidarity with Japan and the people of Japan on
that issue.

QUESTION: Could the military option be taken into consideration?

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Well, what we’'ll be looking at and what we are looking at in the course of
this review are reviewing the different possibilities for pressure, also the different possibilities for
diplomacy, and let’'s see where we come out. We want to make sure that we finish this process, that
we share our findings and our conclusions with our closest partners in Japan and South Korea, and
then we’ll work on this together.
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QUESTION: Okay. You said we work on it together, and about relationship with Japan. So a top-
level meeting is set for April in Washington, and there are concerns in Japan that our country would
enhance its military role. So would you ask Japan to beef up its self-defense force or to increase its
share on the expense of U.S. troops in Japan?

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Well, these are of course sovereign decisions for Japan to make, not for us
to make. When it comes to our alliance, that of course has been a cornerstone for peace and stability
in the region for decades, for generations, and a part of that — an important part of that alliance, of
course, is the work that we do together to ensure our common defense. And we’ve — the United
States has contributed significantly to that common defense, and we’ve benefited from the wonderful
hospitality of Japan for many years as well as the host nation support. I'm very pleased that we were
able to extend for one year the current agreement on host nation support and give us some time to
work through a longer multiyear agreement that I’'m confident we’ll reach in the months ahead.

The — unfortunately, security, freedom, democracy isn't free. It does come with costs, and costs that
we have to bear together in a fair and equitable way.

QUESTION: Okay. But what kind of costs we can pay as Japan?

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Well, I'm not — I’'m not going to get into the details of conversations or
discussions or negotiations. But | really do appreciate the fact that we've extended the current
agreement for a year and | think we’re both engaged in a very good-faith effort to conclude a
multiyear agreement in the months ahead.

QUESTION: Okay, thank you. The last question is, sorry, back to the Chinese question. Do you
plan to impose new sanctions to China in response to Uyghurs and the Hong Kong issue?

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Well, we'll be looking at all of that and also making sure that we’re closely
coordinated with allies and partners. One of the things that’s so important, | think, when it comes to
the challenges posed by China — and again, this is a complex relationship and maybe the most
consequential relationship for both of our countries, and it has adversarial aspects, it has competitive
aspects, and it has cooperative aspects — but the common denominator in dealing with each aspect of
the relationship with China is to approach it from a position of strength. And that strength starts with
our alliances and partnerships. It’'s a unique asset that we have and that China doesn’t have. It's a
real source of comparative advantage.

So however we deal with the challenges posed by China, the more we’re doing it together in a
coordinated fashion, the more effective we’re going to be. That’s what my friend the Japanese foreign
minister called the power of solidarity, and that’s what’s animating our approach to China.

QUESTION: Okay, thank you very much for your answers. Next time | hope we will meet at the
studio, though. Thank you so much.

SECRETARY BLINKEN: With pleasure.

QUESTION: Thank you.

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Thanks for having me. Good to be with you.
QUESTION: Thank you.
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Jalina Porter, Principal Deputy Spokesperson
Washington, D.C.
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MS PORTER: Good afternoon, everyone, and thank you for joining today’s briefing. | have one update
at the top, and then I'll resume to taking your questions. Today, Under Secretary for Political Affairs
David Hale met with Afghanistan Foreign Minister Mohammed Haneef Atmar and Tajikistan Foreign
Minister Sirojiddin Muhriddin for a virtual trilateral discussion on issues of mutual importance, including
Afghanistan peace negotiations and regional security.

With Tajikistan’s and Afghanistan’s historical and cultural ties, overlapping political and security
interests, including counterterrorism, and their shared eagerness for increased economic engagement,
the meeting was an opportunity to collectively support the Afghan peace process and promote greater
connectivity in Central Asia.

This meeting complements other trilateral engagements held separately last year between the United
States, Afghanistan, and the governments of Uzbekistan and Turkmenistan.

Now, I'll give it a few minutes for others to join the queue, and we'll start taking questions.
All right. Can we go to the line of Nike Ching?

OPERATOR: I'm sorry. | don't see that line in the queue.

MS PORTER: Nike Ching isn't in the queue — VOA?

OPERATOR: Oh, I'm sorry. Thank you. One moment. That line is open.

QUESTION: Hello.

MS PORTER: Hi, Nike.

QUESTION: Hi, Jalina, thank you very much for this call. | would like to ask about the Afghanistan
peace process. How optimistic is the United States about the Moscow summit? Does the U.S. believe
Russia can help the U.S. and allies with the peace process with the Taliban? And what are the
priorities in Ambassador Khalilzad’s agenda for participating in the Moscow summit? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for the question, Nike. You're correct. Ambassador Khalilzad will travel to
Moscow tomorrow. And he’ll be there to share perspectives on ways to bring about political
settlement and a permanent and comprehensive ceasefire. And, of course, we’re hopeful that the
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gathering will be productive, and we certainly welcome international efforts aimed at accelerating
progress towards a just and durable peace in Afghanistan. When it comes to engaging with Russia,
again, we're clear that we’'ll engage with them in ways that always advance American interests, but
we’re also clear-eyed about the challenges that Russia poses. When there are opportunities for our
relationship with Russia to be constructive and it's in our mutual interest to do work together, we
intend to do so. And this simply will be our mindset going into the meeting tomorrow.

Can we go to the line of Rich Edson of Fox?

QUESTION: On the sanctions announcement that came out last evening, just given that it was less
than two days prior to this summit tomorrow, was the timing of those sanctions meant to send a
message ahead of tomorrow’s meeting?

MS PORTER: Thank you, Rich. So yeah, as you saw yesterday, the Secretary released a statement
announcing the update to the Hong Kong Autonomy Act report. And that simply underscores our deep
concern with the National People’s Congress March 11 decision to unilaterally undermine Hong Kong'’s
electoral system. And again, we'll always advocate and promote for a stable and prosperous Hong
Kong that respects human rights, freedoms, political pluralism, and that serves the interests of Hong
Kong, mainland China, and the broader international community.

Let’s go to the line of Kylie Atwood, please.

QUESTION: Hi, thank you for doing this. Two questions for you. On China and their vaccine
diplomacy, they’ve obviously exported dozens of vaccines to other countries, secured vaccine
production agreements with many other countries. Does the Biden administration believe that they can
surpass China’s vaccine diplomacy after taking care of vaccinations at home? And then | have a
second question, but I'll let you do this one first.

MS PORTER: So let’s talk about your first question, Kylie. Thank you. When it comes to vaccine
diplomacy, we'll just keep that centered on our own goals. Again, as you know, President Biden has
been strongly committed to ensuring that all Americans have access to safe and effective vaccines as
soon as possible, and we've taken a lead role in beating this pandemic globally. As you know, we’ve
provided $2 billion in COVAX with another $2 billion committed. At the same time, we know what work
we had behind us with the amount Americans we’ve had lost, which has been half a million. But again,
we’re also working with partners on ways that we can increase global capacity.

QUESTION: And then could | just ask one more question? There are reports that the Russian
ambassador to the U.S., Ambassador Antonov, has been invited back to Moscow for consultations to
discuss what to do and where to go in the context of U.S.-Russia relations. Do you guys have any
response to that? And has Ambassador Antonov met with Biden administration officials? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Well, there’s certainly no meetings to read out. And we're aware of Moscow’s recent
announcement. But what we'll say is that as we engage in Russia in ways that advance American
interests, we also remain clear-eyed about the challenges that Russia poses. We can’'t underscore
that enough. And again, even as we work to — work with Russia to advance U.S. interests, we'll be
able to hold Russia accountable for any of their malign actions.

Can we go to the line of Simon Lewis of Reuters?

QUESTION: Hi. Hi, thanks. | have a question on Iran. There’s a report in The Financial Times that the
U.S. is planning to continue enforcing sanctions from the Trump administration on Iranian oil exports
even though the Chinese are ordering and importing a lot more oil, and quotes a senior administration
official saying there’s going to be no tacit green light for Iran’s oil exports. So | wondered if this is a
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policy that you're able to confirm, and if so, is this something that you can reasonably expect to be
able to enforce given how difficult it is to track oil tankers? And it seems like this is already happening
without any enforcement action being taken.

MS PORTER: Thank you for the question, Simon. We don’t have anything to report on that today, but
we're happy to take that question back and get back to you on that.

Let’s go to the line of Camilla Schick from CBS.
QUESTION: Hi, can you hear me?
MS PORTER: Hi, yes. | can hear you.

QUESTION: Hi. Thanks for this. Yesterday the NSC and State in a briefing previewed some of the
priorities, the topics that would be discussed at the Anchorage meeting between Secretary Blinken
and Jake Sullivan and the Chinese. On that list wasn’t included specifically COVID or the pandemic. |
wanted to ask what is the State Department’s current or if there is a new line on what you expect to
come out from the WHO COVID origins report that is expected this week or next and whether that will
also be something that the Secretary would address with his Chinese counterparts in Anchorage.
Thanks.

MS PORTER: Thank you for the question. Well, we certainly won't get ahead of the outcome of the
meeting. And when it comes to the WHO report directly, we expect transparency at the forefront of
that report. And Ill just reiterate that we’ll continue to press the PRC on issues where the U.S. and the
international communities expect transparency and accountability; such as Hong Kong, Xinjiang, Tibet,
pressure on Taiwan, human rights, South China Sea, the Mekong, and COVID-19, as well as other
issues. And again, we’'ll explore all other avenues for cooperation in both of our nations’ interests.

Can we go to the line of Casey O’Neill, Hearst?
OPERATOR: Your line is open.

QUESTION: Thanks so much. Thanks, Jalina, for doing this. | actually just had two quick questions
regarding Israel and the Palestinian Authority. So | don’t know if you've seen, but some of our
colleagues at The National just broke a story on an internal memo that they got their hands on vis-a-
vis Israeli-Palestinian affairs. So my two questions, quickly, just — can you confirm the $15 million in
COVID aid to the Palestinians? Can you confirm that amount, and if that’s actually going to be going to
them? And also related to this, is there any talk of reversing the administration’s previously stated
position and moving the U.S. embassy in Israel back to Tel Aviv? Thanks.

MS PORTER: So to your last question, our policy hasn't changed. And to your first question, we don't
have any comments on that specific memo.

Can we go to the line of Jennifer Hansler of CNN?

QUESTION: Hi, Jalina. Thanks for doing this. | wanted to ask you, Iranian Foreign Minister Zarif said
in an interview today that there is no — they see no reason to talk with the U.S. at this point, and they
want to see this coordinated action of a return to compliance with the JCPOA. And he also said that
the — Iran is prepared to exchange the Americans who are detained there for Iranians who are
detained in the U.S. And | was wondering if State has comments on either of those statements. Thank
youl.

MS PORTER: Well, of course we are always ready for — to engage meaningfully, in meaningful
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diplomacy with Iran, and we welcome them to join us at that table. And simply, this is just one of the
many issues that we’d like to discuss with Iran and that we’re open to doing so.

Can we go to the line of Francesco Fontemaggi?
QUESTION: Hi, Jalina. Can you hear me?
MS PORTER: Yes, | can hear you.

QUESTION: Yes, hi. Thank you. Going back to Russia, is — more specifically, is the State Department
considering recalling Ambassador Sullivan from Moscow for consultation as the Russians did with their
ambassador? And also, after the President’s interview this morning saying that he does believe that
Vladimir Putin is a Killer, is that also the assessment of the State Department? Does the State
Department thinks, considers that President Putin is a killer? Thank you.

MS PORTER: | have nothing to add — further to add on President Biden's comments. Again, when it
comes to your question on the recall to our ambassador of Russia, I'll just reiterate what we said
before. Again, as we engage in Russia in a way that advances American interests, again, we remain
clear-eyed about the challenges that Russia poses, and even as we work with Russia to advance U.S.
interests, we'll also work to hold them accountable. And so when it comes to any recall from us, we
have nothing to comment on that.

Can we go to the line of Nadia Bilbassy?

QUESTION: Actually, Francesco answered my — asked my question. But let me follow up on Russia
as well. You're saying that you — that you will cooperate with Russia when there is interest to the U.S.
national security, but you're saying also that Ambassador Khalilzad will be in Moscow tomorrow. But
do you believe that the language that the President used will complicate matters? And are you sure
now that the Russians will receive Ambassador Khalilzad? And are you able to work on common ties
of interests — like Syria, and Libya, and Iran — after these comments?

MS PORTER: Again, | have nothing to — further to add on what President Biden has already said. But
I'll reiterate that what he did emphasize is that, again, when there are areas of cooperation with
Russia, then there are — especially when they come — of the interests of American national security,
then we will cooperate with them.

And when it comes to Ambassador Khalilzad, he has been engaging in meaningful diplomacy and his —
again, his meetings in Moscow are obviously important in the region and they’re important to us, and
we’re clear-eyed about anything that they are capable of. But again, this is a good opportunity to — for
the ambassador to talk about our relationship with Russia to be constructive, and again, to work in
mutual interest that — interests that allow us to work together when we intend to do so.

Let’s go to the line of Michel Ghandour.

QUESTION: One on Yemen. Any update on the talks with the Houthis? And second, is the U.S.
planning to send vaccines to the Palestinian Authority?

MS PORTER: I'll take your second question first. Again, we absolutely welcome the reports of the
arrival of COVAX shipments for the Palestinians. This is a part of the COVAX facility’s commitment to
provide a total of 158,000 vaccine doses to the West Bank and Gaza, and as you know, the United
States is COVAX’s largest donor.

And when it comes to your question about the Houthis and Yemen, we'll just reiterate that, again, the
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United States is building on a UN framework and amplifying it throughout our own diplomatic
engagement and expanded regional support. And again, we call on all parties to seize this moment
and come to the table when it comes to peace and diplomacy in Yemen.

Can we go to the line of Conor Finnegan — excuse me — of ABC?

QUESTION: Hi, Jalina. I'm just following up on vaccinations as well. There are reports that the U.S. is
holding up to millions of AstraZeneca vaccines that haven’'t been approved yet by U.S. authorities. Why
are there those — that surplus right now while they’re not approved in the U.S. and vaccines are so
desperately needed elsewhere, like in Latin America or Africa? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Hi, Conor. I’'m going to do my best to answer your question. A part of it had cut out, but
| — 1 know it was largely due to vaccines. And I'll just say that President Biden has made it clear that
his current priority is to protect U.S. citizens from COVID-19. The accelerated vaccination schedule in
the United States has been embraced under President Biden’s leadership and is making that a reality
and a goal. At the same time, the President is also focused on the issue of expanding global
vaccinations, including manufacturing and delivery, and we know that will be critical in — to ending this
pandemic. We certainly look forward to ending this pandemic globally and, again, making sure that we
have safe and effective vaccines.

Let’s go to the line of Jiha Ham.
QUESTION: Can you hear me?
MS PORTER: Yes, | can hear you.

QUESTION: Oh, hi. So on North Korea, Secretary Blinken said in Seoul that the authoritarian regime
in North Korea continues to commit systematic and widespread abuses against its own people. So my
question is how you are going to handle this human rights issue. The U.S. has been dealing with North
Korea’s nuclear issue. So is this — human rights — something that you are trying to address as part of
your efforts to achieve denuclearization of North Korea, or is it just a separate issue? Also, will there
be a human rights envoy for North Korea in the State Department, which has been vacant more than
four years? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Let me take your first question. So broadly speaking, we always center human rights at
the forefront of our U.S. — our foreign policy and national security goals. We also remain concerned
about North Korea’s nuclear activities and we are committed to denuclearization of North Korea.

When it comes to your second question, if we have an update for you later, we'll be sure to announce
that.

Let’s take one final question from Janne Pak of USA Journal.
QUESTION: Hello?
MS PORTER: Hi, | can hear you.

QUESTION: Yes, hi. Recently, North Korean Kim Jong-un’s sister, Kim Yo-jong, criticized the United
States, but will the U.S. continue to a diplomatic approach to North Korea?

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question. So we are conducting a thorough interagency review of
U.S. policy towards North Korea, and that includes evaluation of all available options to address the
increasing threat posed by North Korea and its neighbors and the broader international community.
And we’re continuing to lead a structured and detailed policy process that has integrated a diverse set
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of voices from throughout the government, and also incorporated inputs from think tanks as well as
outside experts.

This concludes today’s briefing. Thank you, guys, so much for joining us today. We'll be back again
tomorrow at the same time.

(The briefing was concluded at 2:30 p.m.)
HHt#H
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Department Press Briefing — March 18, 2021
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Jalina Porter, Principal Deputy Spokesperson
Washington, D.C.
2:01 p.m. EDT

MS PORTER: Good afternoon, everyone, and thank you so much for joining today’s briefing. | have
three updates I'd like to share with you at the top, and then | will resume taking your questions.

Secretary Blinken and Secretary Austin had positive meetings in Tokyo and Seoul from March 15th
through 18th, reaffirming the United States commitment to strengthening two of our most important
alliances and highlighting cooperation that promotes peace, security, and prosperity in the Indo-Pacific
region and around the world.

Later today in Anchorage, Alaska, Secretary Blinken and National Security Advisor Jake Sullivan will
meet with Director of the Office of Central Commission for Foreign Affairs Yang Jiechi and State
Councilor Wang Yi. The meeting will follow the important work we’re doing in the region.

The meetings in Anchorage will be an opportunity to make clear our priorities and interests, and
to continue to press the PRC on issues where the U.S. and the international community expect
transparency and accountability, and to understand where we may have interests in
cooperating, including climate change.

This will be a frank conversation in calling out Beijing’s actions to defy their international commitments,
undermine the rule-based international system, and challenge the security, prosperity, and values of
the United States and our partners and alliances. We are coming to these discussions clear-eyed
about China’s unsettling track record of failure to keep its promises.

Next, the United States welcomes UN Secretary-General Guterres’s announcement yesterday where
he named Jean Arnault of France to be his personal envoy on Afghanistan and regional issues.

Mr. Arnault will assist with the achievement of a political solution to the conflict in Afghanistan, working
closely with the United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan as well as regional partners. He
brings decades of experience finding political solutions to some of the world’s most dire conflicts,
including past service on Afghanistan and as the Secretary-General’s delegate to the Colombia peace
talks.

The UN has a critical role to play in bringing the Afghan sides and regional stakeholders together to
find a path toward a just and durable peace, and the United States strongly supports Mr. Arnault’s
appointment to this important role.

Finally, today the United States announced nearly $52 million in additional humanitarian assistance to
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respond to the crisis in Ethiopia’s Tigray region. With this announcement, the United States has
provided a total of nearly $153 million in humanitarian assistance since the crisis began.

This assistance from the American people will help some of the estimated 4.5 million people in need in
Tigray and the nearly 62,000 refugees who have fled to Sudan. It will allow our partners to provide
lifesaving aid, including urgently needed food assistance, and also help our partners re-establish
contact between family members who have been separated due to the conflict.

We will continue to call for the immediate, full, safe, and unhindered access for humanitarian
organizations and workers and to emphasize the need for a political solution to the conflict and the
immediate cessation of hostilities. WWe have repeatedly engaged with the Ethiopian Government on the
importance of ending the violence and allowing full and independent international investigations into all
reports of human rights abuses and atrocities.

And with that, can we go to the line of Michel Ghandour?

QUESTION: (Inaudible) call. | have three questions, in fact. The first one, Iraqi President Barham
Salih has said that the presence of the American and the Coalition troops in Iraq is about to end. Is
there any American decision in this regard? And | will ask you the two questions later on.

MS PORTER: Thank you, Michel. | don't have any specific comment to make on the prime minister’s
remarks, but what | can say is that the topic is — the Coalition’s troop presence is at the request of our
Iraqi partners and that we remain committed to maintaining a security partnership.

All right. Your other two questions, please?

QUESTION: (Inaudible) discuss the possibility of reopening the U.S. embassy in Tripoli with the new
leadership with Libya during his last trip to Libya?

MS PORTER: Thank you for the question. So our embassy inside Libya suspended operations in
2014. However, we still have an ambassador to the mission and mission to Libya based in our
embassy in Tunisia. Ambassador Richard Norland has been the ambassador to Libya since 2019, and
even though he works from Tunis, Ambassador Norland and his team travel periodically to Libya for
meetings.

And I'll take your last question.

QUESTION: My last question: Is the U.S. considering providing any humanitarian aid to Lebanon or
financial aid to the Lebanese army after the collapse of the financial institutions and the economy in
Lebanon?

MS PORTER: Well, the United States has been long — has been a long-term commitment to the
Lebanese people over several decades. And again, we’ll continue to stand with them as they face
multiple and ongoing crises.

In fact, we've been the largest international donor, having donated more than $5.3 billion in foreign
assistance since 2006. In the 2020 fiscal year alone, the United States contributed nearly $396 million
in humanitarian assistance to provide support for the efforts of refugees in crisis as well as COVID-19.

Let’s go to the line of Laura Kelly from The Hill.

QUESTION: Hi, thank you so much for taking my question. It's on U.S. and Russia relations. How
would you describe the U.S. approach to relations with Russia in light of how areas of cooperation
compare to areas of confrontation? How much are areas of cooperation at risk because of conflict?
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MS PORTER: Thank you for the question, Laura. We'll say that our relationship with Russia, it will
remain a challenge, but it's something that we’re actually prepared for. But the goal of our relationship
with Russia is one that we want to be predictable and stable down the line. When there are
opportunities for us to be constructive and it’s in our interest to do so, we’ll definitely pursue them. But
given Russia’s conflict — conduct in the past couple months, there will obviously be areas, elements of
the relationship, that are adversarial. And we won't shy away from those.

We believe that the United States as well as our partners must be clear and impose costs on Russia’s
behavior that crosses boundaries that are respected by responsible nations, and we also believe that
we should be guardrails on how these adversarial aspects of our relationship tend to play out.

Let’s go to the line of Casey O’Neil from Hearst.
QUESTION: Hi Jalina, can you hear me?
MS PORTER: Hi. Yes, | can hear you.

QUESTION: Perfect. Thanks so much for doing this again. Just two quick questions for you. The first,
| was just wondering if you could speak to State’s involvement in Senator Coons’s trip to Tigray that
was announced earlier by the White House. And then the second question is just a very granular
personnel question that | can ask after.

MS PORTER: Yes, thank you for the question on Senator Coons’s travel. You might have noticed
before that NSA Sullivan did issue a statement on that, and we would guide you to that statement
because everything about that is up to date. And I'll take your second question, please.

QUESTION: Yes. So like | said, just a very granular personnel question. Regarding Special Envoy
Kerry, I’'m just wondering, is he based out of State, or is he working out of the White House?

MS PORTER: So on anything for personnel, | don’'t have anything for you. But thank you so much for
calling in.

Can we go to the line of Jiha Ham of VOA?

OPERATOR: Apologies. | don't see that name.

MS PORTER: Okay, let’s go to the line of Michele Kelemen of NPR, please.
QUESTION: Hi, thanks. | have one question on Russia and one on Belarus.

On Russia, I'm wondering if the kind of spat between Biden and Putin has had any effect on
Khalilzad’s diplomacy around Afghanistan in Moscow today.

And then on Belarus, is the State Department planning to have Ambassador Fisher move to Belarus to
take up her assignment? Is it possible to do that without presenting credentials to Alexander
Lukashenko? Thanks.

MS PORTER: So when it comes to you first question about Ambassador Khalilzad and his
participation in Moscow today, again, this is an opportunity for him to explore our relationship with
Russia where it can be constructive and, obviously, in our — with the forefront of our mutual interests to
do so. When it comes to anything from the President or any of his comments, | have nothing more.

But again, as we engage with Russia that are in ways that advance American interests, we will always
be clear-eyed about the challenges that Russia poses; and even as we do work with them to advance
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our own interests, we'll still be able to hold them accountable.

And your second question | believe was on Belarus. What we'll say to that is, again, the United States
strongly condemns the Lukashenko regime for its use of violence and repressive tactics against
peaceful protesters and quite simply calls for an end to their crackdown and release of all those who
are unjustly detained, including political prisoners; the conduct of free and fair elections; and the
peaceful transfer of power.

| believe we have Jiha Ham from VOA back on the line.
QUESTION: Hi. Can you hear me now?
MS PORTER: Yes, | can hear you.

QUESTION: Okay. That's good. Thank you. So not like the joint statement with Japan, the joint
statement with South Korea doesn’'t mention denuclearization of North Korea. Also while Secretary
Blinken called for denuclearization of North Korea, the South Korean ministers used the term
denuclearization of the Korean peninsula. So | was wondering if you had any disagreements with
South Korea on this when you were coordinating the joint statement.

Plus, if | may, do you have any response to the statement issued by North Korea'’s First Vice Foreign
Minister Choe Son-hui yesterday? Thank you.

MS PORTER: So to answer your question, North Korea’s WMD programs, as reflected in multiple UN
Security Council resolutions, are unlawful and constitute a threat to international peace and security.
And again, to reduce tensions and explore potential for full diplomacy, the Biden administration has
reached out to North Korea multiple times to restart that dialogue. And your — | didn't catch the part of
your second question, so we’ll have to take that back for you, okay? Thanks.

QUESTION: Foreign Minister Choe Son-hui yesterday was criticizing the U.S. about the reaching out.

MS PORTER: Yeah. So we don't have any comment to the rest of your question, so we’ll move right
along.

QUESTION: Okay.
MS PORTER: Let’s go to the line of Alex DeMarban from Anchorage Daily.

QUESTION: Yeah, hi. Thank you for taking my question. Our leaders here in Alaska, our state
leaders, are asking for some relief on tariffs, including the blanket exclusion for U.S. seafood products.
I’m wondering where the administration will fall in these talks on that question and also the removal —
also tariff relief when it comes to timber. Can you talk about that?

MS PORTER: Thank you for calling. We'll have to take that question back for you.
Let’s go to the line of Simon Lewis, please.

QUESTION: Hi. Thank you, Jalina. | wanted to ask on Myanmar, a couple of points. The European
Union is set to issue some sanctions on Monday. And I’'m wondering if there’s — if we can expect
anything more from the U.S. in line with that and how the — could they be coordinated with the EU for
another package of sanctions, because when you've released sanctions in the past, you've said this —
we are urging the junta to reverse course and we’ll ramp this up if they don’t, and things only seem to
be getting worse there.
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And second part of that, there were charges the other day brought by a Burmese court against Dr.
Sasa, who’s the international representative of the CRPH group of MPs, who are sort of operating as
a government in exile or an underground government. | wondered if the U.S. wanted to respond to
charges of sedition against him, and do you support that effort to create a sort of alternative
government rather than engaging with the military regime? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thanks for the question, Simon. So to your first question on the EU and as it aligns with
us, we certainly won't preview sanctions from here, but we’ll just reiterate that the United States will
continue to support the people of Burma and call for an end of the violence and atrocities. And we
certainly support their right to freedom of assembly and peacefully protest, and we call on other
countries, as well as our partners and allies, to speak with a unified voice against the violence in
Burma.

Let’s go to the line of Kylie Atwood, please.

QUESTION: Hi. Thank you for doing this once again. | am wondering if the administration has decided
on what percent of ambassadors will be political versus career, and if there is a commitment on behalf
of the administration to try and put career folks into spots where they can.

And then my second question is: Just what prompted Secretary Blinken’s statement on Nord Stream 2
today? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you, Kylie. So to your first question, we don't have any personnel
announcements regarding any type of staff person here at the department. But yeah, | will say to your
second question on Nord Stream 2, and as I’'m sure you've seen the statement and as the President
has said and as Secretary Blinken has said before, that Nord Stream 2 is a bad deal. And again, the
Biden administration is committed to complying with the legislation that’s already been out. That’s
bipartisan legislation. And | would refer | think anyone else on the call who hasn’t seen the statement
that was recently released to our website for that.

Let’s go to the line of Rosiland Jordan.
OPERATOR: | apologize, | don’t see that party.
MS PORTER: All righty then. Let’s go to the line of Francesco Fontemaggi.

QUESTION: Thank you. | have two questions on Afghanistan. The first one is on the Moscow
meeting. Do you have any readout? Is Special Representative Khalilzad satisfied with the outcome?
Do you think that it help put an end to the stalemate of Doha — of the Doha talks?

And the other question is: Next week is the ministerial meeting of NATO. | know you haven't
announced any travel, but whether it’s in person or virtually, is the Secretary ready to share with the
NATO allies its — the U.S. decision on the Afghanistan withdrawal that they are waiting for? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question. So to your first one, we don't yet have a readout of
Ambassador Khalilzad’s participation in Moscow and the conferences. But again, to your comment on
Doha, this meeting won't replace Doha. | mean, they are — what we're engaged in are international
efforts to support ongoing discussions, so | just definitely want to make sure that’s clear.

As far as your second question, again, there’s — our posture hasn’t changed about anything in
Afghanistan, so there’s no announcement at this time.

It looks like Rosiland Jordan from Al Jazeera is back in the queue.
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QUESTION: Hi. Thanks for the call. Regarding the statement on the death of the Tanzanian president,
John Magufuli, is the Biden administration concerned that the continuing government is up to the task
or not up to the task of dealing with corruption in the wake of his legacy in that arena?

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question, Rosiland. Let me start by saying that this administration
strongly condemns corruption not only in Tanzania but anywhere around the world that it's happening.
And again, we’'ll continue to extend our sincere condolences to all the Tanzanians who are mourning
the passing of their president. And we certainly hope and — that Tanzania can move forward to a more
democratic and prosperous path forward.

Let’s go to the line of Conor Finnegan, please.
QUESTION: Hey, can you hear me better today?

MS PORTER: Yes, | can. And let me just apologize for the name slip-up yesterday. | apologize for
that.

QUESTION: That's okay. That’s okay. Thanks, Jalina. | just wanted to try and follow up on my
colleague’s questions on Ethiopia. Is there an intended deliverable in sending Senator Coons there, or
is it just to convey a message of the seriousness with which the administration takes the issue? And
can you clarify, does this trip preclude appointing a special envoy for the Horn of Africa, as the
Secretary previewed in his House testimony?

And just quickly as well, do you have any update on the DART from USAID? Has their access to
Tigray been adequate in your view?

MS PORTER: Thanks for your question. So I'll just say that Senator Coons on this trip — he’s going
there to convey President Biden's message and his grave concerns about the humanitarian crisis and
all the human rights abuses that are going on in the Tigray region and the risk of broader instability in
the Horn of Africa. And again, we'’re — we continue to be gravely concerned by the reports of atrocities
and overall deteriorating situation in Tigray and Ethiopia. We’'ll always call for an end to fighting and
those responsible for those atrocities and human rights abuses, and we call for those who are
responsible to be held accountable.

And again, when it comes to your question on personnel or any envoys, we don't have anything to
announce at that time — at this time.

Can we go to the line of Nadia Bilbassy?

QUESTION: Hi, Jalina. Thank you for doing this. I'm sorry | joined late, so | don’t know if you
answered my questions, but | have two.

Mr. Malley said that he — you guys are willing to negotiate with Iran through a third party. What does
that mean? | mean, do we expect a lot of countries like Switzerland? What do you mean by a third
party, and where are we from the negotiation with Iran?

And second, would you consider a decision by the Trump administration to consider products
produced at Israeli settlements — to reverse that, because they consider it all Israelis, and that was a
clear distinction between products in the settlements and products produced by State of Israel. Thank
you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your questions, Nadia. When it comes to your question on what Mr.
Malley said, I'll just want to reiterate that we're committed to ensuring Iran never acquires a nuclear
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weapon, and we believe in diplomacy and we implore them to meet us at the table of diplomacy.
Whether that’s in coordination with our allies and regional partners or whether that’s bilaterally, either
way, the best way to achieve that path is doing that together.

And to your second question, we just believe that it’s critical for Israel and the Palestinian Authority to
refrain from unilateral steps that would exacerbate tensions and further undercut efforts to advance a
negotiated two-state solution, such as annexation of a territory, settlement activity or demolitions,
incitement to violence, and providing compensation for individuals in prison for acts of terrorism.

Let’s go to the line of Jennifer Hansler, please.

QUESTION: (Inaudible) much. | wanted to follow up on my colleague Kylie’s question and see
whether there were any conversations with the Hill on Nord Stream 2 prior to the Secretary’s
statement being released today. Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you, Jennifer. | wouldn't be able to comment on any potential or private
discussions with our partners on the Hill, but again, | would just guide people to our statement that
came out recently, and again just reiterate that we strongly believe that — obviously, President Biden
has said it, Secretary Blinken has said it, this has strong bipartisan support — that Nord Stream 2 is a
bad deal for our European allies and partners.

Let’s go to the line of Soyoung Kim, and I'll take this as our last question. Thank you.

QUESTION: Hi. Actually, | was going to ask similar questions that Jiha did, but if | may, one additional
question: Is the U.S. going to give another try to reach out to North Korea soon or waiting until the
policy review is done?

QUESTION: Hello? Hello?

MS PORTER: Yes. Thank you, thank you. So again, I'll just reiterate what we’ve said over the past
few days: again, that we’re conducting a thorough interagency review of our policy towards North
Korea, which includes evaluating all options available to address an increasing threat that’s posed by
North Korea to its neighbors as well as the broader international community. And we’re going to
continue to lead a structured and detailed policy process that’s integrated in a diverse set of voices
from throughout the government as well as incorporated inputs from think tanks and outside experts.

But what we will say is that we’re — we remain concerned about North Korea’s nuclear activities and
we are committed to denuclearization of North Korea.

Thank you, everyone, for joining today, and we will see you at the same — we will listen to you at the
same time tomorrow. Have a good afternoon.

(The briefing was concluded at 2:29 p.m.)
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MS PORTER: Good afternoon, everyone, and thank you for joining today’s press briefing. | have two
quick updates I'd like to share at the top, and then we will go into taking your questions.

Today, Under Secretary of State for Political Affairs David Hale represented the United States at a
meeting of the Coalition for the Sahel.

During his remarks, Under Secretary Hale announced then more than $80 million in humanitarian
assistance to respond to the crisis in the Sahel region.

This lifesaving assistance is critical for the survival of nearly three million refugees and internally
displaced people in Burkina Faso, Chad, Mali, Mauritania, and Niger. It will provide them with vital
protections, economic opportunity, shelter, essential health care, emergency food assistance, safe
drinking water, sanitation, and hygiene services. It will also help host communities across the Sahel.

The United States is the largest single donor of humanitarian assistance both in the Sahel region and
globally, and encourages other donors to contribute to these lifesaving efforts.

Next, we strongly condemn today’s drone attacks against Saudi Aramco facilities southeast of Riyadh.

We remain deeply concerned by the frequency of attacks on Saudi Arabia. We have seen that the
Houthis claimed responsibility for these attacks and condemn the Houthis’ attempts to disrupt global
energy supplies by targeting Saudi infrastructure. This behavior shows an utter lack of concern for
safety of the civilian population either working or living nearby the sites.

International voices have called for an end to the attacks and an end to the conflict in Yemen. Last
week, the United States joined the United Kingdom, France, Germany, and Italy in condemning Houthi
aggressive acts directed toward Saudi Arabia and within Yemen itself.

This week, the Gulf Cooperation Council called for an end to the attacks and a return to the
negotiating table to resolve the conflict and bring a lasting peace the Yemeni people deserve. And
yesterday, the Members of the UN Security Council also condemned the Houthi offensive on Marib and
the cross-border attacks against Saudi Arabia.

These attacks threaten peace efforts at a critical moment when the international community is showing
an increasingly united front in resolving the conflict in Yemen.
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We call on all parties to seriously commit to a ceasefire and engage in negotiations under UN
auspices, in conjunction with U.S. Special Envoy Tim Lenderking.

With that, | will wait a few minutes while our queue populates and start taking your questions.
Let’s go to the line of Casey O’Neil, please.

QUESTION: Hi, Jalina. Thanks so much for doing this again. Happy Friday. So just two quick
questions for you, the first on Burma: Can you provide any update on the Department’s review, the
interagency review that they’re undertaking — that you're undertaking, excuse me, with regard to the
Rohingya?

And then second question on Senator Coons’ trip to Ethiopia. | know | asked about it yesterday, but
just wanted to follow up: Can you provide any additional information on State Department involvement
in the trip, if any State Department officials are accompanying him and the like? Thanks.

MS PORTER: Thank you, Casey, and a Happy Friday to you as well. To answer your first question,
Secretary Blinken has committed to reviewing whether the atrocities committed against the Rohingya
in Burma constitute any specific atrocity crimes and has also expressed deep concern over the
Burmese military’s longstanding impunity for past and ongoing abuses. And I'll also say that the State
Department continues to review information related to the military’s abuses against all Burmese
people, which includes the Rohingya, to inform and develop policies that help address these abuses
and also prevent their future occurrences.

To your next question about the — Senator Coons going to Ethiopia, again, there — we’'ll just say that,
again, he is there at the request of President Biden, and as you know, they have a close friendship
and relationship. And he entrusts him to convey our concerns about the humanitarian crisis ongoing in
the Tigray region in the Horn of Africa.

Let’s please go to the line of Simon Lewis.

QUESTION: (Inaudible) Alaska, if you're able to talk about that. Obviously, there’s been a lot of
reporting since yesterday about how sort of tense the initial encounter was. And there’s been
discussions of — | think both sides have accused the other of breaking protocol in those initial
exchanges. But | wonder if — does the State Department — based on the tone of that first meeting,
does that give you any concern for the future of the relationship with China and the possibility of
reaching some agreements or getting some achievables out of these meetings? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question, Simon, and just as a response to that, of course, as you
know, Secretary Blinken and NSA Sullivan had their first meetings with Director Yang Jiechi and State
Councilor Wang Yi, and of course, are in sessions this morning. And these were serious discussions.
Again, I'll just reiterate something that NSA Sullivan said. And of course, to your point about it, the —
being contentious or not, again, we — he said we don't see conflict, but of course, welcome stiff
competition.

Again, this was a single meeting, and again, we know that sometimes these diplomatic presentations
can be exaggerated or maybe even aimed at a domestic audience, but we're not letting the theatrics
from the other side stop us from doing what we were intending to do in Alaska, which is lay out our
principles as well as our expectations and have these tough conversations early that we need to have
with the PRC.

Let’s go to the line of Edward Keenan.
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QUESTION: (Inaudible) of the Alaska meetings, the two Michaels, Kovrig and — the two Canadian
Michaels who are being held as political prisoners in China, widely perceived as leverage against the
United States, who are going to trial now as these meetings take place. Secretary Blinken and
President Biden expressed their desire to see those two Michaels released when they met with the
Canadian prime minister recently. | wonder to what extent those cases are up for discussion in Alaska
right now, and if so, like, to what extent and how?

MS PORTER: Well, let me start off by saying that the United States continues to publicly call on the
PRC to end the arbitrary and unacceptable detentions of the Canadians citizens Michael Spavor and
Michael Kovrig. And again, the United States is deeply concerned by the PRC’s decision to hold a
closed-court hearing with the Canadian citizens. Obviously, no one from — no diplomat from Canada or
the U.S. were involved in that. And we're also deeply alarmed by a report that the PRC will commence
the trial of Canadian citizen Michael Kovrig on March 22nd and we renew our call for PRC authorities
to attend this trial.

We'll always just reiterate that we stand shoulder-to-shoulder with Canada in calling for their
immediate release, and we also continue to condemn their lack of minimum procedural protections
during their two-year arbitrary detention.

Let’s go to the line of Rosalind Jordan.

QUESTION: (Inaudible) question about North Korea. Earlier today, the First Vice Foreign Minister of
the DPRK, Choe Son-hui — and | may be saying his name incorrectly — issued a statement rebuffing
the U.S.’s efforts to recommence contact. And I'm going to read a couple of quick quotes from his
lengthy statement: “We make it clear...we won't give it,” meaning the U.S., “such opportunities ,”
again, my words, “as in Singapore and Hanoi again.” And the final statement: “e will counter the U.S.
on the principle of power for power and goodwill for goodwill.” All of that to say that the U.S. needs to
stop its hostile actions. In the DPRK’s views, it needs to stop spying, military actions, sanctions, the
whole list, before Kim Jong-un will decide to engage again with the Biden administration. Is there a
response from the administration to this rebuffing? Does the U.S. believe that this is simply a way of
the government trying to build domestic political support for its untenable position, as the global
community has suggested?

MS PORTER: Thank you for the question, Rosiland. We'll - I'll reiterate what we’ve said a few times
this week in that the United States is conducting a thorough interagency review of the U.S. policy
towards North Korea, and we’re also evaluating all the options available to address the increasing
threat posed by North Korea as well as to its neighbors and, quite frankly, our international community.
And we're going to continue to lead a structured and detailed policy process that has an — integrated a
diverse set of voices from the government as well as outside of the government, which includes think
tanks and outside experts.

Let’s go to the line of Jeongeun Ji.
QUESTION: Hello.
MS PORTER: Hi.

QUESTION: Hi. | also wanted to ask about North Korea’s statement yesterday about Malaysia and
the U.S. So North Korea said it will cut off diplomatic relations with Malaysia and the U.S. will pay a
price because of the extradition of a North Korean to the U.S. So | wanted to see if you have any
comments on this North Korea statement and the ongoing extradition process. Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question. When it comes to the extradition and just all of that tied to
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your question, | would have to refer you to the Department of Justice.
Let’s go to the line of Pearl Matibe.

QUESTION: Thank you very much, and good morning to you, Jalina. My question is regarding the
security trainings for forces in Uganda and Nigeria. Can you speak a little bit about the status of your
relationship now? There was a report this week in a press conference accusing Uganda of more than
400 abductions, arrests, and so on. So | was wondering, do you feel that the trainings that were
taking place in Uganda and Nigeria to take out the LRA and Boko Haram, respectively — do you think
that that is working? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question. | won't comment specifically on trainings that are
happening in country, but what we will say when it comes to just overall safety and security in the
region, specifically to Nigeria and Uganda, that we will continue to support safety and security when it
comes to — especially when it comes to children and people who have been targeted for kidnappings.
And we remain concerned, especially in Nigeria, when it comes to an uptick in their kidnappings,
especially for ransom.

We'll also say that the United States remains engaged to respond to all the security challenges in
Africa, specifically when it comes to Nigeria and Uganda as well, and the State Department currently
funds the majority of U.S. Government peace and security assistance in Africa and remains committed
to these efforts. Diplomatic and security engagement with U.S. partners in Africa, quite frankly,
advances our interests and values. Enhancing our alliances and partnerships in Africa through
diplomatic development and security initiatives only enables us to better protect and serve interests —
U.S. interests in Africa.

Let’s go to the line of Beatriz Pascual.

QUESTION: Hi, thank you. | wanted to go back to China. The talks in Alaska are set to conclude
today, so | wanted to see if you could please provide us some details about what specific issues are
on the table today or some detail about the issues that were discussed yesterday. And also, what
specific outcome does the U.S. hope to achieve out of these dialogues? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question. Again, we'll reiterate that Secretary Blinken and NSA
Sullivan are in Anchorage having serious discussions. And the goal of the United States delegation
coming to Anchorage was to lay out our principles, interests, and values, and that we animate our
engagement with Beijing.

Knowing that the exaggerated diplomatic presentations in front of the media are aimed at a domestic
audience, we will continue to map out our planned agenda. And again, as | said earlier, that's to make
sure that we will still come from a position of strength and, again, lay out our common interests and
principles from the United States.

And again, as Secretary Blinken and NSA Sullivan have already emphasized, America’s approach will
be undergirded by confidence in our dealings with Beijing, even as we have the humility to know that
we are a country that’s eternally striving to become a more perfect union regardless of any of our
shortcomings and challenges we’ve had. We're always open to meeting these challenges, even in an
open forum where everyone’s watching globally, and we know we’ll come out better because of that.

Let’s go to the line of Jiha Ham.

QUESTION: Hi, Jalina. Thank you. On your Human Rights Report on South Korea, not North Korea,
there’s one part talking about South Korea’s law abandoning leaflet-sending activities. Some NGOs
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and North Korean defectors in South Korea argued that they were providing outside information to
North Korean people by sending leaflets. What’s your view on this? Do you support these kinds of
efforts — maybe not just the leaflets, but overall activities and efforts providing outside information to
North Korea?

Also, could you tell us about the new Human Rights Report on North Korea? What’s the State
Department’s position when it comes to improving the situation in North Korea? Thank you.

MS PORTER: | thank you for your questions. So we actually have not yet rolled out our Human Rights
Report. We'll actually — hopefully that happens soon. And we won't, again, get ahead of that, and
you'll have an update when that does come out. But we’ll say more broadly speaking, as a global
policy, we advocate for the protection of human rights and fundamental freedoms. When it comes to —
with regards to the DPRK, we continue to campaign for the free flow of information into the DPRK.

We'll take one final question from Hiba Nasr.

QUESTION: Yes, hi. Thanks for doing this, Jalina. | want to go back to Yemen. | heard your
statement, your opening statement, and we had several statements calling for the Houthis to stop
attacks against Saudi Arabia. What is the next move? What’s your next move? Are you considering
designating the Houthis again? Are you waiting until you sit with the Iranians?

And | have one other question on Lebanon, if you don't mind, please. People are expecting a total
collapse, maybe within weeks, maybe within months. Is the U.S. prepared for such a scenario?

MS PORTER: Thank you for your questions. Again, we will always condemn the Houthis for their
attacks on Saudi Arabia. And again, we will always call on them and all parties to commit to a serious
ceasefire and engage in negotiations that are specifically UN auspices and also in conjunction with
U.S. Special Envoy Tim Lenderking.

I'll just reiterate that President Biden made it one of his first foreign policy priorities to end the terrible
war in Yemen, and in doing so, of course, appointing Special Envoy Lenderking. And he has been
engaged with UN Special Envoy Martin Griffiths in Saudi Arabia and regional states to put together
elements to put together a nationwide ceasefire.

And when it comes to Lebanon, again, we remain deeply concerned about the developments in
Lebanon and, of course, the apparent inaction of the country’s leadership that face multiple ongoing
crises. Lebanon’s political leaders need to put aside their partisan brinkmanship and form a
government that will quickly implement critical and long-needed reform, restore investor confidence,
and as well rescue the country’s economy.

That concludes today’s briefing. Thank you again for joining me this Friday. | hope you all have a
wonderful weekend, and we will see you next week.

(The briefing was concluded at 2:25 p.m.)
H##
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Secretary Antony J. Blinken and National Security Advisor Jake Sullivan

Statements to the Press
03/19/2021 05:53 PM EDT

Antony J. Blinken, Secretary of State
Anchorage, Alaska
Hotel Captain Cook

SECRETARY BLINKEN: Good morning, everyone. | just have a couple of things to say. Jake and |
spent several hours in conversation with our Chinese counterparts over the last couple of days. And
we certainly know and knew going in that there are a number of areas where we are fundamentally at
odds, including China’s actions in Xinjiang, with regard to Hong Kong, Tibet, increasingly Taiwan, as
well as actions that it’s taken in cyberspace.

And it’s no surprise that when we raised those issues clearly and directly, we got a pensive response.
But we were also able to have a very candid conversation over these many hours on an expansive
agenda. On Iran, on North Korea, on Afghanistan, on climate, our interests intersect. On economics,
on trade, on technology, we told our counterparts that we are reviewing these issues with close
consultation with Congress, with our allies and partners. And we will move forward on — in a way that
fully protects and advances the interests of workers and our businesses.

But just to take a step back for a moment, the two things that we wanted to do in coming here and
meeting with our Chinese counterparts: first, we wanted to share with them the significant concerns
that we have about a number of the actions that China’s taken and the behavior it’s exhibiting —
concerns shared by our allies and partners. And we did that. We also wanted to lay out very clearly
our own policies, priorities, and worldview, and we did that too.

Jake.

NATIONAL SECURITY ADVISOR SULLIVAN: Thanks, everybody. As the Secretary said, we
expected to have tough and direct talks on a wide range of issues, and that’s exactly what we had.
We had the opportunity to lay out our priorities and intentions, and to hear from the Chinese side their
priorities and intentions. We were clear-eyed coming in, we're clear-eyed coming out, and we will go
back to Washington to take stock of where we are. We’'ll continue to consult with allies and partners
on the way forward and, of course, on issues ranging from Iran to Afghanistan through the normal
diplomatic channels. We'll continue to work with China going forward.

So we thank you all for the time you've taken here, and we look forward to getting down to business
and to advancing the interests and values of America.
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Department Press Briefing — March 31, 2021
03/31/2021 05:51 PM EDT

Ned Price, Department Spokesperson
WASHINGTON, D.C.
1:46 p.m. EDT

MR PRICE: Good afternoon. It's been a while. For those of you who don't remember, my name is Ned
Price. I'm the spokesperson here. It's good to be back with you all. We have a few items at the top,
starting with Belarus.

The United States has looked to improve the tenor of our bilateral relationship with Belarus; that effort
has received broad bipartisan support across administrations. We still want to see Belarus succeed
as an independent, prosperous, democratic country.

However, the events surrounding the conduct of the fraudulent 2020 presidential election, the violent
and repressive tactics in its aftermath, and over 300 political prisoners cannot be ignored. Many
American officials have conveyed these sentiments directly to Belarusian authorities since those
elections.

In 2015, the Department of Treasury issued — and has since extended annually — a general license
authorizing transactions with nine state-owned enterprises in Belarus. We did this because of notable
progress at the time in the field of human rights and specifically due to the release of all political
prisoners.

Regrettably, we find the human rights situation has deteriorated to arguably the worst point in Belarus’
independent history. With more than 300 political prisoners currently detained in Belarus, the
department is unable to recommend another extension at this time, particularly in light of the sense of
Congress expressed in the 2020 Belarus Sovereignty and Democracy Act. The current extension will
expire on April 26th.

This step is reversible, and we call on Belarusian authorities to take steps to allow us to do just that,
specifically by releasing all political prisoners.

The Lukashenka regime is still able to take these necessary steps to reverse course, release all those
wrongfully imprisoned simply for peacefully disagreeing with the authorities, espousing different views,
or daring to compete in an election.

We call for the full and unconditional release of all political prisoners and the cessation of violence by
the authorities against the Belarusian people.

Further, we continue our call for the authorities to commit to a meaningful dialogue with the leaders of
the political opposition under the auspices of the OSCE leading to free and fair elections under
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independent observation.

The United States will continue to support the Belarusian people in their aspirations for a democratic
future.

QUESTION: Do you want to take questions on that, or go through all —
MR PRICE: We'll have a couple more; we can come back to it.

As you may have seen in the Secretary’s recent statement, the Department of State is required by law
to submit the Hong Kong Policy Act report and accompanying certification to Congress annually.

This year’s report details the actions taken by PRC and Hong Kong authorities to further erode Hong
Kong’s high degree of autonomy and freedoms during the reporting period, which entailed June 2020
to February of 2021. Based on the report’s findings, the Secretary has certified to Congress that Hong
Kong does not warrant treatment under U.S. law in the same manner as U.S. laws were applied to
Hong Kong before July 1st of 1997 — the date, of course, of the handover from the UK to the PRC.

Today, therefore, we submitted the Hong Kong Policy Act report to Congress and certified for the
second time that Hong Kong does not warrant differential treatment to the PRC under U.S. law
because of the PRC and Hong Kong actions taken to dismantle Hong Kong’s autonomy.

We also want to take this opportunity to strongly condemn the actions taken on March 30th by the
PRC National People’s Congress Standing Committee to further erode political participation and
representation in Hong Kong. We are also deeply concerned by the delay of the September
Legislative Council elections for the second time.

These changes to Hong Kong’s electoral system defy the will of the people in Hong Kong, deny Hong
Kongers a voice in their own governance. The changes, which will establish a committee to vet
candidates for office based solely on their loyalty to Beijing and diminish the proportion of directly-
elected members of the Legislative Council, will severely curtail meaningful pluralism and
representative governance in Hong Kong. These changes are inconsistent with Hong Kong’s Basic
Law, which states that universal suffrage is the ultimate objective for the people in Hong Kong.

The United States stands united with our allies and partners in speaking out against the human rights
and freedoms — speaking out for the human rights and freedoms of Hong Kongers, and we call on the
PRC to uphold its international obligations and commitments under the Sino-British Joint Declaration.
The voices of the people in Hong Kong must be heard and the Legislative Council elections should
proceed in a free and fair manner that allows candidates to run for election irrespective of their
political views.

Moving on to Syria. Yesterday, U.S. Ambassador to the United Nations, Linda Thomas-Greenfield,
represented the United States at the fifth Brussels Conference: “Supporting the Future of Syria and
the Region.” It was co-chaired by the European Union and the United Nations.

Ambassador Thomas-Greenfield announced more than $596 million in new humanitarian assistance for
the Syria crisis response, continuing longstanding U.S. leadership in alleviating the suffering of
vulnerable people in line with both our values as a nation and our national interests. This brings U.S.
humanitarian assistance to more than $13 billion since the start of the crisis.

This new assistance will help some of the 13 million Syrians who have been forced out of their homes,
fleeing the horrific effects of the Assad regime’s vicious campaign of unjust detention and violence. It
will help those displaced inside Syria and those who sought refuge in Egypt, Iraq, Jordan, Lebanon,
and Turkey and support the generous communities hosting them.
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The United States will continue to be a leader in the humanitarian response and to advocate for
unhindered humanitarian access to Syrians regardless of where they live. To that end, we will work
with the UN Security Council to renew and expand the UN's authorization for cross-border access to
deliver humanitarian aid to Syrians in need.

I’m sure many of you heard Secretary Blinken's impassioned plea during the UN Security Council
session the other day to do just that.

In other news, yesterday, the United States and Cabo Verde participated in our third bilateral
Partnership Dialogue, reaffirming cooperation between our two countries that will strengthen our
economic ties, expand our educational exchanges, and further enhance our security coordination.

The United States is proud of its long friendship with Cabo Verde, which is a model of human rights
and democracy, and we deeply value our rich history of relations over the past two centuries.

As yesterday’s Partnership Dialogue underscored, we will continue to closely work with Cabo Verde to
expand trade and investment and cooperation on secure telecommunications networks, as well as
pressing challenges including recovering from the pandemic, confronting the climate crisis, and
improving maritime security.

Focusing on the global pandemic for a moment, the U.S. announced on Monday that the U.S.
Government will co-host a Vaccine Alliance event with Gavi, our partner in COVAX which is working to
provide COVID-19 vaccines to 92 low- and middle-income countries. In February, President Biden
announced the United States is providing an initial $2 billion, out of a planned $4 billion, to COVAX.

This event will bring together world leaders, the private sector, and partners from around the world to
mobilize additional resources and commitments needed to end the pandemic. Secretary of State
Blinken, U.S.Acting Administrator Gloria Steele, and Gavi Board Chair Jose Manuel Barroso will all
deliver remarks.

While we continue to distribute vaccines for Americans as quickly as we can, it is also imperative that
we contain the global spread of COVID-19 and emerging variants. We must win the race between
getting all of humanity vaccinated and the emergence of new and even more dangerous variants that
have the potential to threaten us all. While the U.S. — through USAID — is the world’s largest donor to
global COVID-19 vaccination effort, no nation can act alone in a global pandemic, and that includes the
United States. Equitable access to vaccines is critical to reduce the tragic loss of life, end the
pandemic, recover the U.S. and the global economy, and keep Americans safe.

And finally, in recognition of Transgender Day of Visibility, the United States stands with the
international community to celebrate the courage and resilience of transgender and gender non-
conforming persons around the world and to acknowledge their efforts to achieve equality and justice
in the face of adversity.

The United States is committed to continuing to advance human rights and fundamental freedoms
around the world. We call on all governments to honor their commitments under the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights to promote and protect the human rights of all individuals, which, of
course, includes lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer, and intersex persons.

With that, Matt.
QUESTION: | think that was close to a record for the number of toppers — six, almost nine minutes.

Anyway, so I've got two very brief ones on the Middle East, but | want to start with Belarus, because |
have some very quick questions about your opening on that. One, you said that these nine state-
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owned businesses are basically at risk of losing their authorization. Is there any indication that they
have taken advantage of the authorization since it was — | mean, what do they stand to lose here? Do
you know, or could you find out?

Secondly, you said that the department is — at the moment, is unable to recommend another extension
of this. Isn't it the case that this is a Treasury decision, so Secretary Yellen could basically say,
“Yeah, well, that's a nice recommendation, but | don't agree with it,” right, and then do it anyway?

And then lastly, | just wanted to — what’s the status of the ambassador who has been kind of bouncing
around in the region a bit?

MR PRICE: Yeah. Well, you're referring to Ambassador Julie Fisher. As you know, she continues to
be our ambassador to Belarus to represent our interests and our values when it comes to the
challenges in Belarus, when it comes to America’s support for the people of Belarus who are standing
firm against the repression of the Lukashenka government. She has traveled in the region. She was in
Europe, | believe it was, just last month meeting with some of our allies and partners to explore and to
coordinate our collective action to support — and collective efforts, | should say, to support the people
of Belarus. And so she continues to do that important work.

When it comes to the general license, as we —
QUESTION: But wait, there’s no progress in actually getting her to Minsk?

MR PRICE: She is not in Minsk. She is based here at the moment. When it comes to the general
license, as | alluded to at the outset, this is in fact something that we hope does not come to pass.
We have put forward, as | said just a moment ago, various demands that, if they were to be met, this
would not go into effect. And in fact, it is our hope that we will be able to renew this general license
before it is set to expire on April 26. You're right, this is a Treasury decision. The United — the
Department of State works closely in all matters, including this, to coordinate providing
recommendations, providing input to that Treasury decision.

QUESTION: Look, you expect that this building’s recommendation would be accepted by Treasury,
right?

MR PRICE: Well, we work closely together. We coordinate —
QUESTION: You're not aware of any pushback from —

MR PRICE: We coordinate closely together. | know when it comes to supporting the people of
Belarus, supporting their aspirations for democracy, we have worked incredibly closely together not
only with Treasury, but also with our partners throughout the government.

QUESTION: | can either do the two brief Mideast ones now or | can wait, however you want to do it.
MR PRICE: Let's come back to that. Shaun.

QUESTION: Sure. I'll go to the Middle East if you don't mind. Following up on yesterday, | know you
had an entire briefing yesterday on the Human Rights Report, but the question of occupation — there’s
been quite a bit of attention to that, that the U.S. didn't use “occupied territories,” that the State
Department didn't in the report. Does this indicate a type of permanent change in policy? Is this a
continuation of the policy under the Trump administration? How do you —

MR PRICE: Well, | addressed this from the podium several weeks ago now. What | said then, of
course, remains true today, and that is it is a historical fact that Israel occupied the West Bank, Gaza,
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and the Golan Heights after the 1967 war. You mentioned the Human Rights Report that we rolled out
yesterday. In fact, the 2020 Human Rights Report does use the term “occupation” in the context of the
current status of the West Bank. This has been the longstanding position of previous administrations of
both parties over the course of many decades.

QUESTION: To follow up on that, what are the implications for U.S. policy? Does the U.S. consider,
for example, Israeli settlements in the occupied territories to be illegal as a result of this stance?

MR PRICE: This doesn't change our position. We — as you have heard me say before, we continue to
encourage all sides to avoid actions — both sides, | should say — to avoid actions that would put the
two-state solution further out of reach. Again, our ultimate goal here is to facilitate — to help bring
about — a two-state solution because it is the best path to preserve Israel’s identity as a Jewish and
democratic state while bestowing on the Palestinians their legitimate aspirations of sovereignty and
dignity in a state of their own.

QUESTION: Can | just follow up on — just on assistance to the Palestinians? There have been some
reports on that, but | know you had a statement — | believe it was last week — on COVID assistance to
the Palestinians. Can you give an update on what the total assistance has been since the resumption
under this administration?

MR PRICE: Well, as — you are right, we announced last week that we had granted $15 million in
COVID assistance to the Palestinian people. USAID, | believe it was, made that announcement. We
continue to believe that American support for the Palestinian people, including financial support — it is in
— it is consistent with our values. It is consistent with our interests. Of course, it is consistent with the
interests of the Palestinian people. It’s also consistent with the interests of our partner Israel, and we'll
have more to say on that going forward.

QUESTION: Do you have a cumulative total?
MR PRICE: | don't have a cumulative total on me, but we can look into that for you.

QUESTION: Does that mean that the “no comment” that | got earlier about my question on the
Congressional notification stance? You don’'t have anything to —

MR PRICE: | don't have anything for you. As | mentioned, we announced $15 million in COVID aid to
the Palestinians. | believe it was last week.

QUESTION: Can | just get this — | know that you're not going to have an answer, but | want to get it
out there, and then that is — and | realize that ambassadorships haven't been named yet and certainly
not an ambassador to Israel, but that’s going to happen at some point, and currently whoever it is
doesn’t have a place to live. So I'm just wondering, are you actively looking for a new property for the
ambassador’s residence — ambassador to Israel residence? And if so, have you found one? It’s going
to take time to get something up to the security needs and all that kind of thing.

MR PRICE: You'e right, Matt, | don't have anything for you on the identity of that —
QUESTION: Well, I'm not asking for who. I'm asking where they’re going to live.

MR PRICE: — the forthcoming ambassador or the issue of the residence. | don't have anything for
you on that side.

QUESTION: Ned, | have two questions, one on the U.S. delegation that visited Sudan, Egypt,
Ethiopia, and the Congo. Do you have any update on this visit? And another question when you
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answer my first question.

MR PRICE: If we do, we'll let you know. We'll get back to you on that.
QUESTION: You don't have —

MR PRICE: | don’t have anything for you right now.

QUESTION: Okay. On China/lran, did you review the agreement between the two countries? And
what is your comment on it? And —

MR PRICE: WEell, when it comes to our broad posture, our current Iran-related sanctions remain in
effect unless and until they are lifted as part of a diplomatic process. We will address any efforts at
sanction evasion. Of course, our policy when it comes to sanctions has not changed at the moment.
We won't comment on any specific bilateral discussions in this regard, though.

Competition, as you know, does define our relationship with China, but we do have in some cases
rather narrow areas of tactical alignment. We’ve spoken to some of those in recent days, and it so
happens that Iran is one of them. China has been cooperative in efforts to constrain Iran’s nuclear
program. Of course, China is an original member of the P5+1. Beijing, of course, has no interest in
seeing Iran develop a nuclear weapon and the profoundly destabilizing impact that would have on a
region upon which China does depend.

We have been engaged with all parties, to include China, on the question of the JCPOA and what
comes next. We remain ready to engage in meaningful dialogue with Iran, as we have said, to find a
mutual return to the JCPOA and a mutual return to those commitments. And, of course, we’ll continue
to engage China and other countries to discourage them from taking steps vis-a-vis Iran or any other
issue that threaten our interests.

QUESTION: Ned, one follow-up: Will this agreement change your approach to the Iranian nuclear file
and to the region as a whole too?

MR PRICE: No, it doesn't, precisely because of what | said earlier, and that is that we are aligned in
our interests by and large with Beijing on this question. Beijing has no interest in seeing Iran either
acquire a nuclear weapon or have the ability to acquire a nuclear weapon. That’s precisely why China,
Beijing was a member of the P5+1. It's precisely why we have this alignment of interests that we'll
continue to pursue as we look to ways to find that mutual return to compliance with the JCPOA.

Yes, Pranshu.

QUESTION: Just to follow on Iran. Politico reported that the Biden administration plans to put forth a
new proposal to jumpstart talks with Iran maybe as early as this week. Can you give us an update on
timing and comment on that?

MR PRICE: Well, we have been clear for a number of weeks now — almost two months, | believe it
has been — that we are ready to pursue a joint return to compliance with the JCPOA. We have been
open that we are talking with our partners in the P5+1 and elsewhere about the best way to achieve
this. We did so in Europe last week. Secretary Blinken met several of his counterparts at the NATO
summit in Brussels, where Iran was a topic of discussion. We had a meeting with the E3 in the
multilateral format last week as well. And those discussions have been ongoing about the best way to
achieve that return to compliance, including through a series of initial and mutual steps.

We've been looking at options for doing so, including with indirect conversations with our European
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partners. We're not going to comment on the details of our diplomatic conversations, but of course,
we've been very clear that we want to see Iran constrained permanently and verifiably so that it can’t
produce or acquire or obtain a nuclear weapon. That remains our goal.

Yes.
QUESTION: Hi, Ned. Anthony Zurcher with BBC News.
MR PRICE: Okay.

QUESTION: Does the department have a reaction to Russian opposition leader Alexey Navalny
announcing that he’s going to go on a hunger strike because of what he says is a lack of proper
medical treatment in the Russian penal colony where he’s incarcerated?

MR PRICE: We've been very clear that Alexey Navalny, Mr. Navalny, is a political prisoner. His
detention is politically motivated. We have continued to call for Mr. Navalny’s release. We have done
so both ourselves and in tandem with our allies and partners around the world. We'll continue to do
that. We will continue to hold accountable — seek to hold accountable those in Russia who may be
responsible for the attempt on his life, for the repression against his peaceful supporters who have
taken to the streets, and we will continue to find ways to support Mr. Navalny and to call for his
release.

QUESTION: And then you talked about that $600 million in aid to Syria. Is there a concern that either
Russia or China is going to veto the renewal of safe passage into northwestern Syria at the Security
Council in July?

MR PRICE: Well, you heard Secretary Blinken speak to this in the UN Security Council meeting earlier
this week that he chaired on humanitarian access in Syria. He was impassioned, | think rightly so. He
invoked his own two children in speaking about the 13 million-plus Syrians who are food insecure at
the moment, the Syrian children that have been affected by this humanitarian suffering. | think his
words were “shame on us” if we are not able to address this. There is absolutely no reason any
country, and that includes China or Russia, should stand in the way of offering humanitarian access to
the people of Syria who have long suffered at the brutal repression and violence perpetrated by the
Assad regime.

Yes.

QUESTION: Hi. This is Muath Alamri from Asharg Al-Awsat newspaper. | have two questions about
Iran and Yemen. So when you talked about the nuclear agreement about Iran, there is a multiple
statement by U.S. officials. They haven't talked about the human rights abuse and the hostage swap.
So any update on that?

MR PRICE: Well, we have made clear early in this administration — and the National Security Advisor
Jake Sullivan has spoken to it, Secretary Blinken has spoken to it, others within this administration
have spoken to it — that we have no higher priority than the safe return of Americans who are unjustly
detained around the world, and that includes the Americans who are unjustly detained or who are
missing in Iran. We will continue to make clear to the Iranians that that practice is unacceptable.
Secretary Blinken, of course, issued a very strong message about the state taking of hostages, using
people for political pawns. He condemned it. Just as importantly, he condemned it in the context of
dozens of other world leaders who made clear that this practice is unacceptable.

| don’'t want to go into specific mechanics, but the Iranian — Iran’s leaders are — they have no
misimpression about where we stand on this issue. It is of paramount importance to us. Just as we

Document ID: 0.7.12479.6771 1049-000082



pursue a nuclear agreement that provides verifiable and permanent limits on Iran’s nuclear program,
we will not — we will persist, we will not desist in our efforts to secure a safe return of Americans who
are detained inside Iran.

QUESTION: Okay, on Yemen.
MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: I'm sorry. Yeah, when Mr. Tim Lenderking, the U.S. special envoy to Yemen, returned
from his second trip from the Gulf Arab region, he said he would go back if the Houthis are willing to
speak or to talk. So now he is being there for the third trip. My question is: Did he met with them, and
what happened to his ceasefire plan?

MR PRICE: Well, let me give you a little bit of context about Special Envoy Lenderking’s travels and
activities in the region. You are right that he is back from his trip to Riyadh and Muscat. In Muscat he
had productive meetings with senior officials in coordination with UN Special Envoy for Yemen Martin
Griffiths. The U.S. special envoy’s discussions were and continue to be focused on joint international
efforts to promote a lasting ceasefire, political talks, and an inclusive peace agreement, along with our
effort to address the country’s dire humanitarian crisis.

To that end, we have been very encouraged that fuel ships continue to offload at Hudaydah Port, and
we welcome Saudi Arabia’s announcement yesterday to provide over $400 million, $422 million, in
support to fuel products in Yemen. In terms of Special Envoy Lenderking’s meetings in the region, he
met with Omani, with Saudi, with Yemeni senior government officials, and as | said before, with UN
Special Envoy Martin Griffiths during this trip. He and the UN special envoy continue to work side-by-
side, and both, of course, are committed to bringing about a ceasefire and an end to this devasting
conflict in the country of Yemen, which is now home to the world’s worst humanitarian catastrophe.

Yes.

QUESTION: Meeting with the Houthis?
MR PRICE: I'm sorry?

QUESTION: Did he —

MR PRICE: As | said before, he’s met with senior officials, including Omani, Saudi, and Yemeni senior
government officials and, of course, with the UN special envoy.

Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you. | have two questions. One’s about Spain and another one about Brazil. About
Spain, in the Human Rights Report yesterday, the report included some complaints of Reporters
Without Borders and other organizations about the situation of freedom of the press in Spain. So my
question is: What is the U.S. opinion about the situation of the freedom of the press in Spain and if the
— what was the U.S. intention including this in the report, if the intention was to express concern or to
criticize the government of Pedro Sanchez?

MR PRICE: Well, as we mentioned yesterday, this is now the 45th year that the Department of State
has proudly produced the Annual Human Rights Reports. As it does every year, this document
provides a report on the world’s countries; 198 countries were included in this year’s report. Of
course, it’'s no surprise that Spain was among them. Secretary Blinken was here yesterday rolling out
this report himself because this administration is seeking to restore human rights and democracy to
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the center of our foreign policy.

When it comes to the issues that you flagged in the report on Spain, ensuring proper focus on media
freedom and freedom of expression is a priority ourselves within our own programming and our own
diplomatic engagement, but we’ll also continue to work with international partners in bilateral and
multilateral fora to encourage strong and sustained support for media freedom and freedom of
expression. That is around the world.

We consider freedom of expression, including freedom of the press, to be a critical component of
vibrant democracies the world over. Peaceful, prosperous, and inclusive societies, in fact, do depend
on the free flow of information and ideas, including the freedom to seek, to receive, to impart
information. A free and professional press is a vital and core institution that undergirds healthy
democracies, whether that is in North America, Asia, Europe, Africa, around the globe.

QUESTION: Let me follow up on that. It would be useful to get like a yes or no answer if the U.S. was
intending to criticize the Government of Spain, if that was the intention when you included those
complaints in the report, if that was the intention or not.

MR PRICE: These reports are factual reports. These are intended for countries around the world to
report, of course, on issues pertaining to democracy and to human rights. So | would look at it through
that lens.

Yes, Rich.

QUESTION: Hi, Ned. I'm wondering if you can confirm a report in The Wall Street Journal that the
Climate Envoy John Kerry will be traveling to India and the UAE, and if so, if there are any other
countries as part of that trip.

MR PRICE: Well, as you know, Rich, Special Envoy for Climate Kerry has been relentless in his work,
in his work to increase climate ambition around the world, knowing that we have the President’s
Summit on Climate Change on April 22nd. That is quickly coming up. Of course, the White House
issued invitations for that last week. Secretary Kerry has been working hard at that as well as working
very closely on preparations for COP-26 that will follow on the April 22nd summit.

| believe his office later today will have some additional details on the next chapter of Special Envoy
Kerry’s efforts, including some upcoming travel.

QUESTION: When the climate envoy is having these meetings trying to get countries to curb their
emissions, what is he telling them that the United States is willing or can do as part of that?

MR PRICE: WEell, the fact is very simple that the United States is the world’s most influential country.
What we do in the realm of climate, of course, has implications for the broader globe because, of
course, we are one of the world’s largest emitters. But we also set an example, and we are seeking
to raise that climate ambition by not only asking countries to make these commitments themselves, but
also to lead by example. And | suspect in the coming weeks you will hear more about the example we
intend to set — the example we intend to set not to be virtuous, not to pat ourselves on the back, but to
set this powerful example knowing that if we were to do this, we will see other countries raise their
ambition. And more importantly, we will be able to make progress on this existential threat of climate
change.

QUESTION: Is it a challenge given just the complicated nature of how things —

QUESTION: You don’t have any interest in being virtuous? Is that what | hear?
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MR PRICE: We're always interested in being virtuous —
QUESTION: Yes.
MR PRICE: — but not just virtuous. Sorry, Rich.

QUESTION: Just the complicated nature of getting things through Congress or imposing certain
mandates, what’s that challenge like for the administration as it looks to set this example?

MR PRICE: Well, Congress is always a partner for the Department of State and well beyond.
Secretary Blinken has spoken of our partnership with Congress, not only on the landing, as he likes to
say, but also on the takeoff. And so across every challenge, we have been working closely with
Congress to keep them apprised of our objectives, of our goals, of our activities. That includes when it
comes to climate ambition as well.

Yes.

QUESTION: On Syria, you spoke of the importance of getting aid to Syrians no matter where they
live. I'm wondering about Rukban. The Syrian Government is not allowing UN aid to get to the camp.
Would the Biden administration consider providing direct humanitarian assistance to these people,
given that they’re just miles away from an American military base?

MR PRICE: Well, | wouldn’'t want to get ahead of that. Of course, you heard, as | mentioned earlier
today, Secretary Blinken'’s first and foremost focus on ensuring there is adequate humanitarian
access, and including by doing so in the context of the UN Security Council system. We did that
because we know that there is no viable alternative to meet the scope and scale of UN cross-border
assistance into Syria. That is precisely why you've seen the emphasis that Secretary Blinken has
placed on it, that Ambassador Thomas-Greenfield has placed on it, that USAID has placed on it,
precisely because there is no viable alternative to meet that scope and scale. And we also know at
the same time that the humanitarian situation in Syria is already dire and it continues to worsen.

And so | think that is why no one should be surprised that Secretary Blinken was so impassioned
earlier this week when he spoke about the need to ensure this humanitarian access, again, making
clear that shame on us, shame on the international community if we’re not able to do this, given the
dire situation that so many millions of Syrians faced* today.

Yes.

QUESTION: Secretary Blinken yesterday called on international companies to consider cutting ties to
enterprises that support Myanmar’s military. U.S. company Chevron is still working in Myanmar and
providing revenue to the junta. Isn't Chevron now supporting the junta, and will the U.S. take action to
prevent natural gas revenues propping up this junta?

MR PRICE: Our focus has been on ensuring — seeking to assist the Burmese people in their
aspirations for the restoration of civilian-led government and democracy in their own country,
consistent with the November elections last year in Burma. We have sought to hold accountable
leaders of this military junta in a number of ways. USTR, of course, announced an action yesterday
together with our partners and allies around the world. We have enacted a number of sanctions on
individuals and entities affiliated with the military to make clear that the United States will not stand by.
Just as importantly, we have done that together, oftentimes in tandem with other international allies
and partners, knowing that when we work in concert our actions will have an outsized effect and an
outsized role.
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It is also true that the international community can do more, and we have made that clear in any
number of contexts. We, of course, continue to call on China, on the government in Beijing to use its
influence to hold to account those responsible for this military coup. What the junta has done in Burma
is not in the interest of the United States, it's not in the interest of our partners and allies, and it’s not in
the interest of Beijing. | wouldn’t want to comment from here on any specific U.S. companies. The
Secretary’s focus is on diplomacy, is on working with countries around the world to make sure that we
are doing all we can, again, to support those aspirations for the restoration of democracy of the
Burmese people.

QUESTION: Can | follow up on that?
MR PRICE: Yep.

QUESTION: In Alaska — | know a lot happened in Alaska, but how much time, if any, did you get to
address this issue with the Chinese? Were there any signals that they’re willing to help or speak out
loudly? And to that effect, how much did this come up with the Japanese who have been criticized for
not speaking out on what’s happening in — it’s attributed wrongly or rightly to their economic ties they
have with that country?

MR PRICE: Well, you were with us on that very memorable trip, so, as you know, the topic of Burma
did come up in both Alaska and in Japan, and as well as in South Korea. It also came up, for that
matter, in Brussels because this is an issue where we know that, again, concerted action, action that
is coordinated with and among our closest partners and allies, is likely to have an outsized effect on
the junta. So we discussed it in Tokyo, we discussed it in Anchorage. | think when it comes to Beijing,
the government in Beijing can certainly do more, it can say more knowing that the PRC does have a
good deal of influence that we want the government in Beijing to use constructively, to leverage
constructively, again, to support the aspirations, the legitimate, absolutely legitimate aspirations of the
people of Burma to see their democracy restored.

QUESTION: But was that topic shifted into the bucket of things we think the two countries have in
common and can work on, or is that still in the contentious issues we’re working through category?

MR PRICE: | would say that we do have overlapping interests when it comes to Burma. We would like
to see the government in Beijing act on those interests and to do so constructively, again, in a way
that supports the people of Burma. The government in Beijing has absolutely no interest in seeing
instability in Burma. The United States has no interest in seeing instability in Burma. Just as
importantly, the United States Government puts a premium on democracy, on human rights, on the
legitimate aspirations for the restoration of democracy in Burma. Of course, the government in Beijing
might see that slightly differently, but in many ways our interests are aligned in the end state that we
would like to see in Burma, and we continue to encourage the government in Beijing to act in that
regard.

Yes.

QUESTION: Hi. Amanda Mars from El Pais newspaper. I've got a question regarding Brazil. | would
like to know: Is the U.S. concerned by the resignation of several military chiefs yesterday, military
chiefs that are knowingly opposed to some measures like the military rule?

MR PRICE: Well, of course, we're aware of developments in Brazil but we’re not going to comment on
it from here. We'd refer you to the government in Brazil. We continue to support Brazil's democratic
institutions.

QUESTION: Can | follow up on Brazil? The — one of the issues with the Bolsonaro government, of
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course, has been the supply of vaccines, and there have been agreements with China on the supply of
vaccines. Do you have any concern about China’s effort there or elsewhere in terms of how they're
supplying vaccines? Do you see it as a conflict with what the U.S. wants strategically?

MR PRICE: Well, the United States has always stood by vaccines that are safe, that are effective,
and with that in mind we remain a firm partner with Brazil in our joint fight against the pandemic. In the
last couple months alone, the United States has delivered field hospitals to Brazil equipped with
ventilators and other necessary equipment. We continue close cooperation and sharing information
critical with Brazil's health agency to support their vaccine approval process on more and more. Earlier
this month on March 21st, Brazil received its first one million doses of the AstraZeneca vaccine
through the COVAX facility. And this, of course, is a strategic multilateral mechanism to expand global
access to vaccines that the United States has already supported to the tune of $2 billion, and pledged
$2 billion more.

COVAX is an important mechanism when it comes to allowing Brazil that access to vaccines now, and
it will continue to be in the coming months ahead. Our embassy in Brazil has also provided technical
and financial support directly to public health and science experts in Brazl. So in all of these various
ways, we continue to partner with the Government of Brazil on this challenge of the pandemic, and |
would take it back to what Secretary Blinken has said before.

Of course, when it comes to this administration, our first priority is ensuring the vaccination of millions
of Americans, and that campaign is well underway. But we know that as long as this virus continues
unchecked, whether it is in the United States or around the world, all of us will continue to be
threatened by it as it continues to mutate and as variants develop. So we all share an interest in
seeing an end quickly to this virus in the United States, in Brazil, and around the world.

I'm sorry, | need to make that the final question. | have to run to a meeting but we will do this again
tomorrow. Thank you all very much.

QUESTION: Thank you.
(The briefing was concluded at 2:27 p.m.)
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MR PRICE: Good afternoon. Just a couple things at the top, not quite as many as yesterday.

But I'd like to call your attention briefly to the Secretary’s announcement yesterday of the candidacy of
Doreen Bogdan-Martin to become the next secretary general of the International Telecommunications
Union. The United States strongly supports Ms. Bogdan-Martin, who is a leader deeply committed to
inclusion, transparency, and performance and supremely qualified for the position.

The ICU of course is hardly a household name, but it probably should be.
QUESTION: You got it wrong just then. Underscoring it's the ITU, not CU.

MR PRICE: | intended to say ITU. I'm sorry if it came out wrong. But the ITU of course should be a
household name. Every time you use a cell phone, watch television, get the weather forecast, or travel
by air or sea, you are benefitting from work done at ITU to coordinate allocation of radio spectrum and
facilitate seamless communication between and among countries.

If elected, Ms. Bogdan-Martin would be the first woman to serve as the ITU secretary general in the
organization’s 156 years of existence. U.S. support for Ms. Bogdan-Martin is yet another element of
the administration’s renewed emphasis on multilateral tools and fora to tackle global issues, playing a
more prominent role in the multilateral space, all while working together with our allies and partners
around the world. We know Doreen Bogdan-Martin is the right person for this important job.

Next, today the Department of State is proud to recognize April as National Arab American Heritage
Month. The United States is home to more than 3.5 million Arab Americans, representing a diverse
array of cultures and traditions. Like their fellow citizens, Americans of Arab heritage are very much a
part of the fabric of this nation, and Arab Americans have contributed in every field and profession.
Many of them, in fact, serve here at the State Department and throughout the interagency, and their
careers are as diverse as their backgrounds. We mark National Arab American Heritage Month noting
these contributions that are as old as America itself.

And with that —
QUESTION: Really? No April Fool's joke?

MR PRICE: You know, | thought about it. | thought about it.
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QUESTION: No embassy in Wakanda? No —
MR PRICE: Thought about just not showing up. | thought that could be good enough.

QUESTION: Can | ask you one very brief one on the ITU before we go to — | want to talk about — ask
about the Middle East. But just on the ITU, you know the current secretary general is a Chinese
gentleman. Is he running for reelection? Is that why you guys are coming out twice in two days to
support this other candidacy?

MR PRICE: Well, it’s still very early in the process. As you know, the elections aren’t until next year,
2022. Right now we’re aware of only one other candidate. That’s a candidate from the Russian
Federation.

QUESTION: Oh, okay. So it’s either the current guy, if he runs for re-election, or a Russian.

MR PRICE: There — that could chance between now and 2022, but of course we are strongly
supporting Ms. Bogdan-Martin.

QUESTION: All right. On the Middle East. Yesterday Shaun tried to nail you down without success —
not his fault — on the question of settlements and the occupation. And | want to take another stab at it
today, because frankly it's confused a lot of people and it's — your position is, to be frank, clear as
mud, right? You said in response to him yesterday that, on settlement activity, that you want both
sides to refrain from any actions that might hurt or will hurt a two-state solution. Does settlement
activity in the West Bank or construction in East Jerusalem hurt prospects for a two-state solution or
not?

MR PRICE: Matt, on this, | want to be clear. And we have said this from the start. We believe when it
comes to settlement activity that Israel should refrain from unilateral steps that exacerbate tensions
and that undercut efforts to advance a negotiated two-state solution. That includes the annexation of
territory. That includes settlement activity. We've been equally clear when it comes to the potential
actions of the Palestinians, whether that is incitement to violence, providing compensation for
individuals in prison for acts of terrorism. That, too, moves us further away from a two-state solution.
Our goal in all of this is to advance the prospects for that two-state solution.

QUESTION: Okay. So that’s a little better, | think, or a little more clear, not like trying to nail Jell-O to
a wall. But does this administration intend to be as forceful in its opposition or criticism of settlement
activity as the Obama administration was? Do you know?

MR PRICE: We intend to do everything we can to advance the prospects for a two-state solution. We
intend to do that with the knowledge that it is in the interests of — consistent with the interest and
values of the United States, but importantly, consistent with the values and the interests of Israelis and
also Palestinians. This is something that successive administrations have sought to do; it's something
that we will seek to do.

QUESTION: Okay. And then do you know if the Secretary — not the President — does the Secretary
intend to have someone dedicated to pursuing Israeli relations or Israel's engagement with the Arab
world, someone specific in an envoy-type position?

MR PRICE: Well, | —
QUESTION: Or is Hady doing that right now and that’s the way it's going to stay?

MR PRICE: So of course we do have people in our NEA Bureau who are engaged —
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QUESTION: Right.
MR PRICE: — very closely on this.
QUESTION: But | mean like a —

MR PRICE: I’'m not in a position to announce any plans for an additional envoy-type role, but there are
people in this building, there are people throughout our government who are focused —

QUESTION: Right.

MR PRICE: — on this process of normalization.
QUESTION: And then —

MR PRICE: That's something that we very much support.

QUESTION: Okay. And then just as an aside, what does this — what do you call these agreements
between —

MR PRICE: They're normalization agreements.

QUESTION: Yeah, but what are the — what is the name for them?

MR PRICE: Normalization agreements.

QUESTION: No, there’s a specific name that they all signed onto. | believe you know what it is.
MR PRICE: Look, we call them — we call them normalization agreements. That's —
QUESTION: Why do you not —

MR PRICE: That’s precisely what they are.

QUESTION: — use the name that the leaders of these countries signed onto —

MR PRICE: We're —

QUESTION: — which is the Abraham Accords? Why is that —

MR PRICE: I'm not averse to using that. I'm describing what these are. These are normalization —
QUESTION: Well, then can you say it for me, please?

MR PRICE: Of course | can say the term “Abraham Accords,” Matt.

QUESTION: Thank you.

MR PRICE: But we call them normalization agreements.

Said.

QUESTION: Thank you. Just to be redundant on the issue of occupation of the West Bank and East
Jerusalem, why can’t you say it is occupied, without all the caveats? Can you say that it is occupied,
that you acknowledge that position? It's been like this since 1967.
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MR PRICE: Well, Said, and that’s precisely what | said yesterday.
QUESTION: Right.

MR PRICE: It is a historical fact that Israel occupied the West Bank, Gaza, and the Golan Heights
after the 1967 war. That’s precisely why the 2020 Human Rights Report uses that term in the current
context of the West Bank. It has been the longstanding position of previous administrations of both
parties over the course of many decades. Do we think that the West Bank is occupied? Yes.

QUESTION: Mm-hmm. Okay. Let me just follow up on that. | mean, if you consider it occupied — |
know you've taken a very strong position in the past; you've called for ending the occupation of the
Ukraine immediately and so on. Why can't you call for this occupation to end immediately and all the
human rights abuses that go along with enforcing it immediately? Why can’t you call for that?

MR PRICE: Said, what we are calling for — and this really gets to the root of this challenge — is that
two-state solution.

QUESTION: Right.

MR PRICE: The two-state solution is precisely what will allow Israelis and Palestinians to live side by
side in dignity and security, securing the interests — in the interests of Israelis, in the interests of
Palestinians together. That’s precisely why are we are supporting this two-state solution, just as
previous administrations of both political stripes have.

QUESTION: If you would allow me — and my colleagues indulge me — just | have a couple of other
questions. It was conveyed — | think AP broke the story — that the administration has given an
additional $75 million to the Palestinians. Can you confirm that? And is that — is also — are we also
headed towards, let’s say, a resumption of aid to UNRWA?

MR PRICE: I’'m happy to turn it over to my colleague Matt Lee from the AP to comment on this.
(Laughter.) But look, we have been clear that resuming assistance to the Palestinian people is a
priority, and we are working with Congress on this right now. All U.S. assistance to the Palestinian
people will be provided consistent with requirements under U.S. law, and that includes the Taylor
Force Act. We just announced — | believe it was last week, Linda Thomas-Greenfield, our ambassador
to the UN announced — $15 million in humanitarian assistance to some of the most vulnerable
populations throughout the West Bank and Gaza. That was in the context of COVID. We don’t have
any additional announcements to make at this time. But again, we have been clear that we are
resuming that assistance to the Palestinian people as a priority.

QUESTION: And lastly, | promise, on the Palestinian election. We heard that there are two Palestinian
businessmen that are here, feeling out the administration or would be a reaction to, let’s say, the
cancelation of the elections and so on. What is your position on the election? Are you like, let’s say,
the European Union and you're pushing for these elections? Give us your —

MR PRICE: WEell, the exercise of democratic elections is a matter for the Palestinian people to
determine. We note that the U.S. and other key partners in the international community have long been
clear about the importance of participants in that democratic process, renouncing violence and
renouncing terrorism, recognizing Israel’s right to exist. But Palestinian elections are ultimately a
matter for the Palestinian people to decide.

Yes.

QUESTION: | wanted to ask you on this. Has the Secretary been in touch or tried to be in touch with
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the president of the Palestinian Authority? Because there are reports from the Israeli press that
Mahmoud Abbas wouldn't talk to Secretary Blinken.

MR PRICE: We believe it's important to engage the Palestinian people. We believe it’s important to
engage the Palestinian leadership. The Secretary, for his part, has not had a conversation with the
Palestinian prime minister. | imagine if there is a high-level call from here, including one from the
Secretary, we’d be in a position to read that out.

QUESTION: Can | go to Iran?
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Yeah, so the European just announced that there will be a meeting of the joint
commission of the JCPOA tomorrow, virtual meeting, without the U.S., if | understand, unless you will
be observer or participant in some way. They also say in their statement that they are going to
discuss the willing of the U.S. to get back to compliance for compliance. Does that mean that you have
shared with the Europeans what you're ready to do, and that they will kind of mediate with the
Iranians? And can you tell us what your stance before this meeting, which is the first one since —

MR PRICE: Well, | just saw this announcement from the Europeans before | came out here. We
obviously welcome this as a positive step, and that’s precisely because we have been clear for weeks
now that we are ready to pursue a return to compliance with our JCPOA commitments, consistent
with Iran also doing the same. We have also been open about the fact that we have been talking with
our partners in the P5+1 context and elsewhere about the best way to achieve this, including through a
series of initial mutual steps. We’ve been looking at options for doing so, including with indirect
conversations through our European partners. | mentioned this yesterday, but when the Secretary was
in Brussels last week, there was a meeting with the E3+1, or the European Quad, whichever term you
want to use, where of course Iran was a topic of discussion. Iran was a topic of discussion in other
meetings in Brussels as well. Iran was a topic of discussion in Anchorage with representatives of the
PRC.

So we have been having these conversations in different fora and with different allies, and in some
cases partners. We took note of the Europeans’ announcement today. It's a positive step, especially if
it moves the ball forward on that mutual return to compliance that we've talked about for a number of
weeks now.

Yes.

QUESTION: Following up on that, we understand there’s an — the Iranians already met with other
members of the other parties to the deal on Monday. And there’s a — an Iranian proposal which
sources tell us has been shared with the — with you guys. Can you comment on that, or tell us what —
is there any substance to that?

MR PRICE: I’'m not going to comment on the substance of any diplomatic conversations beyond the
broad outlines of what we shared, namely that we have been looking at ways, proposing ways,
exploring ways with our allies and our partners — principally our European allies in this case — to effect
that mutual return to compliance with the deal.

QUESTION: (Inaudible) Iran?
MR PRICE: Yeah. Sure.

QUESTION: One, there was the sanctions waiver for Iraq today. Can you describe, is that part of this
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effort to explore ways to get back into the talks, or is that just — how do you characterize that?

And then also later this week, Siamak Namazi faces a grim milestone of 2,000 days in an Iranian jail.
Can you update us on what efforts the administration is taking to get him released?

MR PRICE: When it comes to the energy waiver with Iraq, | would put that in the context of our
partnership with the Government of Irag. This renewal acknowledges the recent success the United
States and Iraq have experienced through two rounds of our strategic dialogue with Baghdad, and
several energy agreements signed by the Iragi Government as well. These agreements will ultimately
allow Iraq to develop its energy self-sufficiency and, we hope, to end its reliance on Iran.

In the interim, renewal of the sanctions waiver is appropriate until the agreement — agreements and
development of the Iragi energy sector can be fully realized and implemented. This is a 120-day
waiver extension. We believe it is possible within the 120 days for the Government of Iraq to take
meaningful action to promote energy self-sufficiency and to reduce its dependence on expensive
Iranian energy.

When it comes to the Namazis, you're right. There is a grim milestone coming up: 2,000 days — 2,000
days separated from family, loved ones, held in — held unjustly in detention by the Iranians. This is
something that | know we will mark here, we will mark here rhetorically, but also by renewing our calls
that we have issued consistently, almost since day one, through different partners, means, and
channels, to leave no doubt in the minds of Iranian leaders the priority we attach to this. We have no
higher priority than seeing the return of Americans unjustly detained in Iran, Americans who may be
missing in Iran. That remains our goal. We have been very clear. We have been working very closely
with our allies and partners and being very clear with the Iranians as well on that score.

Yes.

QUESTION: | work for Kurdish TV, so | may ask questions in different countries, but starting with
Iraq, the Iraqis and the Kurdish leadership have finally reached an agreement on the budget. | just
wanted to see if you have a comment on that, but more importantly, the — according to some of the
local sources or reporting, some of the Iraqi Shiite militias are saying that they are ceasing their
attacks on the coalition forces with the condition that the U.S. withdraw troops in Iraq within a year. Is
that something that you guys are also — is a goal for you to withdraw troops within a year?

MR PRICE: Well, I'm obviously not going to comment on the intentions of Iran-backed militias inside of
Iraq. What | can say, what | will say is that we have the strategic partnership with the Government of
Irag. We have had now two rounds, | believe it is | just said, in terms of that strategic dialogue. It's
something that — it’s a partnership that benefits both our countries. It's one that we look forward to
deepening in the days, weeks, and years ahead.

QUESTION: And any comment on the issues between Baghdad and Erbil? Is that something that the
U.S. tries to get them closer to a resolution?

MR PRICE: Well, of course, constructive relationship between Erbil and Baghdad is in our interests.
It’s in the interests of both those entities, but I'll leave it at that.

QUESTION: And one — can | — one more question about northeast Syria. Just couple of days ago, the
SDF political missions representative here wrote that — and | quote — “President Biden can show the
world that we can again trust the U.S. leadership calling on Turkey to withdraw from Syria.” Is that
something that — are you willing to call on Turkey to withdraw from Afrin and other areas that we've
seen multiple reports of human rights abuses?
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MR PRICE: Well, we have talked about our partnership with partners on the ground, the partners with
whom we work to effect our important mission — namely, in this case, the counter — the D-ISIS mission
that we have taken on for some time. But | don't have a specific comment on that call.

Yes.
QUESTION: Can we transition to Russia?
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Okay. Foreign Minister Lavrov said U.S.-Russia relations have hit bottom today and said
there’s no date for their ambassador to come back to Washington. Do you have any response to this?

MR PRICE: Well, | think our response would be to point out why relationships — why the relations have
— are in the state they are. And | think you can look at any number of reasons for that. We have
spoken of several of them from this podium in recent weeks, and many of them remain the subject of
inquiry, investigation, analysis by the U.S. Government, including our Intelligence Community. We've
spoken about Russia’s assault on our democracy in 2016 and more recently in 2020. We've spoken of
reports of Russian bounties on American soldiers in Afghanistan. We’ve spoken of Russia’s malicious
cyber operations, including in the context of Solar Winds. And we’ve spoken of Russia’s imprisonment
of Mr. Navalny and the repression and the arbitrary detention of those Russians who peacefully took
to the streets to protest Mr. Navalny’s arrest, all of which was preceded by Russia’s attempt to
assassinate Mr. Navalny.

So I’'m aware of the comments of the Russian foreign minister, but I’'m also aware of the backdrop.
And that is what is important to us: why we are where we are in terms of the bilateral relationship with
Russia. It remains true that we continue to look for a stable and predictable relationship with Russia.
Just because we have these profound disagreements, just because the relationship is where it is right
now, doesn’t mean that there aren’t going to be any areas of tactical alignment. And, of course, we
demonstrated that early on in this administration by renewing the New START agreement for five
years, precisely because — not because it’s in Russia’s interest but because it’s in our interest. And so
when there are areas for potential cooperation, areas that are in our — America’s — national interest to
pursue, we will do that. But that doesn’t change the backdrop against which this activity is taking
place.

QUESTION: And can | just follow up? One thing that you mentioned was the reported bounties on
U.S. troops in Afghanistan. Over the weekend, Secretary Blinken was more definitive with his
language. He said Russia, quote, “put bounties on U.S. troops.” So is that now the definitive conclusion
that the U.S. Government has come to, that they did actually put those bounties on U.S. troops, or are
you guys still looking into it, investigating?

MR PRICE: The department is still deferring to the Intelligence Community. Those reports originated,
as | understand it, with the Intelligence Community. That’s where this analysis currently rests.

QUESTION: Hey, Ned, just on Russia, do you have anything to add to what your Pentagon
counterpart and predecessor at this podium said yesterday about the Russian troop movements on
the Ukrainian border? If it’s the same as what you said yesterday, then | don’t need it, but —

MR PRICE: | don't believe we addressed it yesterday.
QUESTION: But he said — | mean —
MR PRICE: Yeah, | don't think | —
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QUESTION: Yeah he did, but — Kirby did.

MR PRICE: Yeah, he — he did, correct. No, but | think it's worth us reiterating it from here and, of
course, when we talk about the state of the relationship between the United States and Russia, we
can't forget Russia’s ongoing aggression in Ukraine. And we’re absolutely concerned by recent
escalations of Russian aggressive and provocative actions in eastern Ukraine, including violations of
the July 2020 ceasefire that led to the deaths of four Ukrainian soldiers on March 26th and injuries to
others. Russia’s destabilizing actions undermine the de-escalation intentions achieved through the
OSCE-brokered agreement of July of last year.

Additionally, we are aware of Ukrainian military reports concerning Russian troop movements in — on
Ukraine’s borders. We are discussing our concerns about that increase in tensions and ceasefire
violations and regional tensions with NATO Allies. You've heard from various departments and
agencies including the State Department; Secretary Blinken had a call with his Ukrainian counterpart
yesterday. The chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff had a call with his counterpart. And National
Security Adviser Jake Sullivan had a call with Andriy Yermak in Ukraine as well. We will continue to be
in close touch with our partners in Kyiv and in Ukraine more broadly in the face of these recent
escalations.

QUESTION: But just to put a fine point on it, though, you don’t have any indication that Russian troops
have left Russian soil, do you?

MR PRICE: | would not want to go there. | will leave that to the Department of Defense to speak to
any tactical movements. | am speaking to our broad concerns with these escalations on the part of
Russian activities.

QUESTION: Granted the situation on that border is tense and not — it’s not like the U.S.-Canadian —
well, it's not like — it’s a tense border, but in general, you don’t have objections to Russia moving its
own troops around in its own country, do you?

MR PRICE: | don't think anyone is — | think we — what we would object to are aggressive actions,
actions that have an intent of intimidating, of threatening our partner in Ukraine.

QUESTION: Okay. But you have made the conclusion that these movements are intended to
intimidate?

MR PRICE: We have made the conclusion that Russia’s recent escalations and aggressive and
provocative actions in eastern Ukraine are just that. They're —

QUESTION: All right. Well, no, no, that’s eastern Ukraine.
MR PRICE: That’s right.
QUESTION: I'm talking about in Russia itself.

MR PRICE: | am speaking about our concern in terms of Russia’s recent escalations and provocations
in eastern Ukraine.

QUESTION: Right, and I'm talking about the troop movements, which you also talked —

MR PRICE: But | think my previous point stands that any efforts to intimidate Russia’s neighbors is
something that would be —

QUESTION: Do you think that the troop movements are — is an effort to intimidate the Ukrainians —
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MR PRICE: Matt, | think —
QUESTION: — even though they haven't left —

MR PRICE: | think we’re missing the forest for the trees because we are concerned about the
concrete activities that are taking place in eastern Ukraine. That’'s what we're talking about today.

QUESTION: Yeah, but the point is, is that the Russian troops’ movements that you're talking about
are inside of Russia.

MR PRICE: Matt, what | am talking about are recent escalations of Russian aggressive and
provocative actions in eastern Ukraine. That —

QUESTION: So forget about the troop movements, then? (Inaudible.)

MR PRICE: That is the subject of this.

QUESTION: All right.

MR PRICE: Yes, please.

QUESTION: Do you include the troop movements —

QUESTION: A follow-up?

MR PRICE: I'm sorry?

QUESTION: Do you include the troop movements in Russia in this escalation?

MR PRICE: What we are talking about — our concern is predicated on Russian escalations and
aggressions in eastern Ukraine. Of course, we would be concerned by any attempt on the part of the
Russian Federation to intimidate its neighbors and our partners. Of course, Ukraine is among them.

Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you. | had a follow-up on Russia and then | wanted to ask a question about
Afghanistan if that was possible.

MR PRICE: Okay. Mm-hmm.

QUESTION: You announced today that the U.S. was moving all consular services to the U.S.
embassy in Moscow. | know that there had been a temporary decision along those lines that was
notified to Congress in December based on staffing. | wonder if there was any other motivation or
reason for making that decision today.

MR PRICE: Well, we announced today that the consulate general in Yekaterinburg remains open while
operations at the CG in Vladivostok remain suspended due to COVID. We continue to review our
diplomatic presence in Russia to ensure that we’re able to carry out our important diplomatic activities,
including providing services to Americans — American citizens safely and securely in the face of
ongoing staffing challenges. We have been in close touch with Congress on this as well.

The decision to — the decision to continue the suspension of operations was made after months of
careful review of U.S. foreign policy goals, the state of the bilateral relationship, which we were just
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discussing, and ongoing staffing challenges as well as the safety and security of U.S. diplomatic
personnel within the Russian Federation.

QUESTION: Okay.

QUESTION: Does that mean, though — does that mean, though, that you're — you may not close down
Yekaterinburg and Vladivostok?

MR PRICE: We don't have — look, we hope these — because of our strong connection with the
Russian people, we hope one day it will be possible to reopen diplomatic missions across the Russian
Federation, but it's — we’re unable to predict at this point when that might be.

QUESTION: Well, yeah, but when you're reviewing — | mean, the previous administration, although it
was the exact same ambassador, which remains — Ambassador Sullivan made the — made the
recommendation to shut them both down. It sounds to me as though there’s a review about whether
those closures should continue and you should abandon the property rather than just leave —

MR PRICE: What we have said now is that we've informed the Russian Federation that our consulate
in Vladivostok will remain in suspended status. The consulate general in Yekaterinburg will remain
open, but it will suspend visa and American citizen services as of April 1st.

QUESTION: Right, but that is different than what the previous administration had said. Right?
MR PRICE: We're constantly — we are constantly evaluating.

QUESTION: Isn't that correct?

MR PRICE: We are —

QUESTION: It’s different than what the previous administration had said.

MR PRICE: We are constantly evaluating the security situation, our ability to staff our missions around
the world, and those decisions will be based on that.

QUESTION: On Afghanistan, Ambassador Khalilzad has been in the region meeting with, as |
understand it, the Afghan Government as well as the Taliban. | wondered if you had any readouts of
those meetings. And then can you provide any further details on the meeting between these groups in
Turkey and will the Secretary have any participation in that meeting?

MR PRICE: Well, Ambassador Khalilzad, as you just alluded to, is currently in Doha. He is meeting
both with the Islamic Republic and Taliban negotiating teams to push for further progress in
negotiations and a reduction in violence. That has been our goal all along. He's also meeting with other
international partners to explore how the international community can best help the two negotiating
sides accelerate the peace process. Special Representative Khalilzad recently traveled to Turkey, as
you also alluded to, to meet with Turkish counterparts on the upcoming international conference on the
Afghanistan peace process to be held in Istanbul in the coming days. Building on recent international
gatherings in support of the peace process, the Istanbul conference is meant to help Afghan
negotiators make progress in their negotiations and will complement peace talks currently ongoing in
Doha.

During his visit, Ambassador Khalilzad and Turkish officials agreed that an Afghan-led, Afghan-owned

gathering supported by high-level attendance from the international community provides the best
means to accelerate that peace process. They also agreed to urge the Afghan parties to prepare for
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constructive participation in that conference.
Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you. | have two questions, both related to North Korea. First, on the North Korea
policy review, | understand it’s in the final stages, but how soon can we expect the outcome and what
can we expect to see when it's — when the review is done? | mean, is there going to be a statement
explaining what the new U.S. approach toward North Korea is going to look like?

And my second question is on the meeting tomorrow between the security advisors. The U.S. had said
that — has said that coordinating U.S. policy with those allies, South Korea and Japan, is a very
important part of the review process. Now, does that mean the U.S. policy approach toward North
Korea could change or be modified in — at least in some way as a result of tomorrow’s discussions
given that South Korea just renewed its call for efforts to declare an official end to the Korean War as
a way of restoring dialogue with North Korea, whereas the United States seems to believe that that
should be part of the end game?

MR PRICE: Well, Secretary Blinken made this point when he was in Japan and South Korea earlier — |
guess it was last month now. But he made this point in Japan and South Korea that we were there not
only to share our initial thinking on our approach to issues of mutual concern, and, of course, North
Korea is at or near the top of that list, but also to solicit input from our treaty allies, the ROK and, of
course, Japan. Prior to that trip, Ambassador Sung Kim, the acting assistant secretary for East Asian
and Pacific Affairs, held a meeting with — a trilateral meeting himself.

The meeting that National Security Advisor Sullivan will convene tomorrow with his counterparts,
Secretary General Kitamura of Japan and National Security Advisor Suh Hoon of the Republic of
Korea, follows on Secretary Blinken’s engagement in the region last month, where we did emphasize
the importance not only of close bilateral cooperation between the United States and the ROK, and
the United States and Japan, but the imperative of close trilateral cooperation. And we are gratified to
see this meeting coming along.

It will provide National Security Advisor Sullivan and other U.S. officials an opportunity to hear directly
from these senior Japanese and South Korean officials to share, again, where we are in terms of our
review. We did announce several days ago now that that review is coming to a conclusion, but it will
also be an opportunity for them to share with us their thinking, their perspective that we have heard, at
least from other Japanese and South Korean officials during our trilateral engagements here at various
levels. But this will be an important opportunity to hear that in person from them at the Naval Academy
with their national security advisors.

Now, | wouldn’t want to prejudge the conclusion of any ongoing review, but we have said that
denuclearization will remain at the center of American policy towards North Korea. We also know that
any approach to North Korea in order to be effective will be one that we will have to execute in
lockstep with our close allies, including in this case, our treaty allies, Japan and South Korea. And
that’s another reason why it's so important that this that these trilateral engagements, continue apace,
and you'll see the next iteration of that tomorrow.

Yes.
QUESTION: On China, is that okay?
MR PRICE: Mm-hmm.

QUESTION: The — a question about the U.S. ambassador of Palau’s recent visit to Taiwan: What
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message was meant to be sent to China by the visit, and does it represent a continuation of the Trump
era policy of lifting restrictions on U.S. travel to Taiwan?

MR PRICE: Sorry, lifting restrictions on —
QUESTION: On U.S. official travel to Taiwan.

MR PRICE: Anh. Well, | think as a general matter, we are committed to deepening ties with Taiwan.
Taiwan, of course, is a leading democracy; it’s critical. It’s a critical economic and security partner of
the United States, and that’s why we will continue to engage Taiwan consistent with the longstanding
“one China” policy. We will consider, just as we have, opportunities for visits to Washington and Taipei
by senior-level authorities that advance our unofficial relationship and enable substantive exchanges on
issues of mutual concern.

QUESTION: And so just one last thing: Is there still no sort of tangible progress from the U.S.-China
meeting in Alaska? I’'m just following up on this because, as you know, that the Chinese announced a
number of sort of smaller collaborative things that were worked on, such as a climate change working
group, things like that. Those have not been confirmed by the U.S. side. But is it still the case that
basically, from the U.S. perspective, there wasn'’t really any tangible progress made on specific issues
stemming from that meeting?

MR PRICE: No. | would distinguish a bit, parse a bit what you are saying. Let me just back up for a
moment and repeat what | said yesterday, that our relationship with the government in Beijing is one
that is predicated on competition. As the Secretary has said, it is a relationship that has competitive
elements, it is one that has adversarial elements, but it’s also one that can, and in fact probably
should, have cooperative elements. And we did have an opportunity in Anchorage to discuss with the
PRC representatives some of those cooperative elements. Climate is one of them; Iran was one of
them. As | talked about yesterday, there are some alignment of our interests when it comes to Burma
and other regional challenges.

Now, | think there is a difference between saying there was no progress and not having a grand
announcement about a new working group or a new initiative. There is work that is going on within this
building, within other elements, within other departments and agencies of the Executive Branch that will
help us further those areas of cooperation, those areas where it is in our interest to cooperate with the
government in Beijing, that we will do so. And that work is ongoing.

Yes.

QUESTION: That’s the first time from this podium anyone has agreed to parse something that
someone else has said. I'll tell you that that’s historic right there.

MR PRICE: There we go.

QUESTION: | feel honored.

MR PRICE: | will take it. Mark this moment.
Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you, Ned. Just to follow up on the North Korea question, is tomorrow’s trilateral
meeting sort of the final stage before the review process is finished? Or do you anticipate you'll need
further consultations with allies or within the U.S. Government before the review’s complete?

MR PRICE: Well, | wouldn’'t want to go beyond what we said before, and that is namely that our
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review of our North Korea policy is coming to a conclusion. It is a review that has been informed
throughout that process by consultations with our allies, in this case the South Koreans and the
Japanese, but also with other partners. Secretary Blinken heard that directly, Ambassador Sung Kim;
many others in this building have engaged in those consultations as well. This will just be the next
iteration in that consultative process as we bring this review to a close, but | wouldn't want to put a
firm deadline on it.

QUESTION: And then just quickly on Hong Kong, does the department have any statement regarding
the verdict that was announced against the seven pro-democracy activists?

MR PRICE: We do. Today’s convictions in Hong Kong of seven pro-democracy activists on politically
motivated charges once again show the degree to which the PRC and Hong Kong authorities seek to
crush all forms of peaceful dissent in the city. The United States continues to condemn the PRC’s
continuing assault on fundamental freedoms and democratic institutions in Hong Kong. The April 1
convictions are yet another example of the erosion of Hong Kong’s freedoms by PRC and Hong Kong
authorities. The seven pro-democracy activists — Martin Lee, Jimmy Lai, Albert Ho, Margaret Ng, Cyd
Ho, Lee Cheuk-yan, and Leung Kwok — participated in a peaceful assembly attended by 1.7 million
Hong Kongers.

The United States continues to stand with those millions of Hong Kongers who have peacefully
demonstrated to protect the autonomy and freedoms promised to them by the PRC. And just as you
saw earlier this week, and in fact last week too, we will continue to hold to account those authorities in
Beijing, those authorities in Hong Kong who seek to erode those fundamental freedoms and those
autonomies to which Hong Kong is due.

Yes.

QUESTION: There was an exclusive report on Wall Street Journal today that the U.S. has directed
the Pentagon to begin withdrawing some military capabilities from the Gulf region. | know that this
question should be asked to your colleagues in the Pentagon. I'm just wondering if you have anything
to say on this.

And secondly, if | may on Syria, what’s the U.S. policy towards the Syrian President Bashar al-Assad?
Does the U.S. Government think that he shouldn’t be part of that country’s future? Thank you.

MR PRICE: Well, first starting with Saudi Arabia, the Department of Defense announced in February,
early February, that DOD would conduct a global force posture review of the U.S. military footprint,
resources, strategy, and missions at the directive of the President. We, of course, would in fact refer
you to the Department of Defense for any details there and especially when it comes to potential troop
movements or reallocations.

When it comes to our relationship with Saudi Arabia, Saudi Arabia is a key partner on many priorities,
including regional security and counterterrorism. Saudi Arabia faces significant threats to its territory
from Yemen and elsewhere in the region. Attacks on Saudi Arabia put the lives of innocent civilians,
including U.S. citizens, in danger. And that’s why we’re committed to working together to help Saudi
Arabia strengthen its defenses against these threats. There are many areas where we believe it is in
our interest to maintain strategic cooperation with Riyadh, and that includes working together to deter
and defend against threats to the kingdom, including those ultimately emanating from Iran. We do
want a working partnership with the Saudis to help defend against this aggression, to end the war in
Yemen, and to take on other challenges.

Now, of course, we have talked about the ways in which we have sought to recalibrate that
relationship, to recalibrate it in such a way that it corresponds both to our interests and to our values.
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But we will continue to stand by our partner, Saudi Arabia, in the face of these threats that, as I've
said before, jeopardize Saudi civilians as well as Americans in the region.

QUESTION: And on Syria, the U.S. position towards the — or the policy towards the Syrian president?

MR PRICE: Our policy towards Bashar al-Assad has not changed. He has slaughtered his own
people. He has engaged in indiscriminate violence using chemical weapons against his own people. He
has done nothing, of course, to regain legitimacy that he has long ago lost. Our goal is to work to
ease the humanitarian suffering of the Syrian people as we seek to bring about a political solution to
this longstanding conflict.

QUESTION: But should he be excluded in any agreement in Syria or, like, how does the U.S. see the
future of President Bashar al-Assad in Syria?

MR PRICE: We believe that stability in Syria — and, for that matter, within the greater region as well —
can only be achieved through that political process that | spoke to, a political process that represents

the will of all Syrians, and we're committed to working with allies, partners, and the UN to ensure that

a durable political solution is within reach.

QUESTION: But just to follow up on that, Ned, | mean, | remember as far back as 2011, August
2011, when the secretary of state then said that he lost his right to govern, whatever; his days were
numbered and so on. Now, if he enters, let’s say, a legitimate election or election that you would
approve of and can get the support of many Syrians — as there are a lot of Syrians that support him —
would you then see a way of working with him?

MR PRICE: Again, our focus is on bringing about, advancing a political settlement that brings stability,
security, and an end to the suffering of the Syrian people. As | said before, Assad has over the course
of the many years since 2011 — the 10 years, that grim milestone that we just marked not all that long
ago — he hasn't regained that legitimacy in our eyes, and there is absolutely no question of the United
States normalizing relations with his government.

We are, at the same time, not in the business of trying to engineer regime change in the region. But
we will demand accountability and justice for the Syrian people, the Syrian people that have suffered
enormously and horrifically under the rule of Bashar al-Assad.

QUESTION: But he’s now outlasted two presidents, U.S. presidents. He’s on his third. | mean, he’s
not quite at the Fidel Castro level for someone that you guys consider to be a pariah, but he’s — his
days have been numbered for thousands and thousands — thousands of days now according to you

guys.

So the point — | guess the question is: When you say that you will not normalize relations with his
government, does that mean that you — the U.S. will not normalize relations with any government —
with a government that he leads? Does he have to go in order for relations to get back to somewhat
normal?

MR PRICE: Matt, | wouldn’'t want to try and set out what that political settlement would look like here
from the podium. What | will reiterate is that our goal is to advance that political settlement to bring
precisely the security, stability, and an end to the humanitarian suffering of the people of Syria.

Thank you all.
QUESTION: Just quickly, does that —
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MR PRICE: Yes, very quickly.
QUESTION: Does that also include the SDF having a seat at the table?

MR PRICE: Again, I'm not going to spell out what that political settlement might look like from here,
but we hope to make progress on it. And | should say you heard from the Secretary earlier this week
about the importance of humanitarian access. You heard from Ambassador Linda Thomas-Greenfield
about our profound financial commitment to the Syrian people, some $500 million that was announced
in U.S. funding just earlier this week.

So thank you all very much.

QUESTION: Thanks.

(The briefing was concluded at 2:56 p.m.)
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MS PORTER: Good afternoon and thank you for joining today’s press briefing this Friday. | have two
quick announcements at the top, and we'll start with your question and answers.

First, we are deeply saddened by the loss of life and casualties from the train derailment in Taiwan on
April 2nd, 2021. We extend our deepest condolences to all those affected and stand ready to offer all
possible assistance.

We are working closely with local authorities to determine if any U.S. citizens were affected. We wish
Taiwan peace and comfort during this difficult time.

Next, this weekend marks 2,000 days since Iran arrested Siamak Namazi for being a U.S. citizen.
Siamak Namazi was a businessman living in Tehran when he was arrested in October of 2015. When
his father, 84-year-old Baquer Namazi, traveled to Iran to help free his son, the Iranian Government
arrested him too.

Both Siamak and Baquer were arrested, were sentenced to 10 years in prison on baseless charges.
As a result, the Namazi family has suffered for five and a half years while the Iranian Government
continues to treat their husband, father, son, and brother as political pawns. This terrible milestone
should offend all who believe in the rule of law.

We call on Iran to immediately and safely release all U.S. citizens who are wrongfully detained in Iran,
including the Namazis, Emad Sharghi, and Morad Tahbaz, who is a U.K. citizen. Iran must also
account for the fate of Robert Levinson and other U.S. citizens who are missing or abducted in Iran.
The abhorrent act of unjust detentions for political gain must cease immediately — whether in Iran or
anywhere around the world.

And with that, we’ll give it a few minutes before we start taking your questions.
Let’s go to the line of Carmen Rodriguez, please.
OPERATOR: One moment. Carmen Rodriguez, your line is open. Go ahead, please.

QUESTION: Thank you. Thank you for this conference. My question is regarding what’s going on right
now in El Salvador. You may see there is an — a confronted attitude from the president of El Salvador
regarding all the Biden administration’s plans to fight against immigrations, or fight to combat the roots
of immigrations. What will be the U.S. position in this matter, if this attitude continues and if there is no
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way that President Bukele sits with the U.S. to work against immigration?

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question, Carmen. I'll first start off by saying that the President is
serious about working and discovering the root causes of migration and working through those
challenges in a way that requires systemic change and political will from government leaders. And we’ll
also say the United States stands ready to partner up with governments as well as the private sector
and members of civil society who are ready and willing to rise to the situation at hand in EI Salvador.

I'll also say that the United States, we're focused on working towards a more democratic, fair, and
prosperous El Salvador, of course, where the people of El Salvador can thrive. And of course, we look
forward to continuing to work with El Salvador to achieve these goals in the future.

Let’s go to the line of Janne Pak, please.

OPERATOR: And Janne Pak, your line is open.

QUESTION: Yes. Thank you very much. | have two questions for you. Can you hear me?
MS PORTER: Yes, | can hear you.

QUESTION: Yes. As you know, the China is inviting foreign ministers from four ASEAN countries to
talks at the same time as the U.S., South Korea, and Japan trilateral dialogue are held. The South
Korean foreign minister and Chinese minister of foreign affairs talked — also talked today. I'm
wondering why at this point the foreign minister of South Korea should go to China to talk with the
Chinese foreign minister. Do you have any comment on this?

And secondly, what are the difference of view between South Korea and the United States in North
Korea policy? And will the difference of view be reduced in this trilateral talk? Thank you very much.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your questions. I'll start with your first one, Janne, and to say that we —
we aren't in a position to comment on the foreign minister’s — of Korea’s decision to engage in
discussions with China. But to your second question, as you're probably already apprised of, NSA
Jake Sullivan is again welcoming National Security Secretariat Secretary General Kitamura as well as
National Security Advisor Hoon of Republic of Korea today in Annapolis, Maryland at the Naval
Academy for these trilateral talks. And as you are well aware that our — the talks are ongoing, but it’ll
— will be drawn to a conclusion soon. We don’t have any other announcements at this time other than
that we remain committed to denuclearization of North Korea.

Please go to the line of Laura Kelly.
OPERATOR: Laura Kelly, your line’s open. Go ahead.

QUESTION: Hi, thank you for taking my question. | wonder if you can give more details on the
meeting next week in Vienna with signatories to the Iran nuclear deal, what U.S. officials are going to
be at the meeting, and what type of sanctions relief may be proposed for Iran to take steps to reverse
its breaches of the agreement. Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for the question. We don’t have any specific announcements to make about
details of who will participate from the U.S. in that meeting. And just as a reminder, this is a healthy
first step forward, and we kind of — we definitely want to underscore that. And obviously, when it
comes to issues that are discussed, we're going to talk about nuclear steps that Iran would need to
take in order to return to a compliance with the terms of the JCPOA. And we won'’t preview any
specific sanctions, but we’'ll definitely say that sanction relief steps that the U.S. would need to take in
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order to return to that compliance as well will be up for discussion.
Let’s go to the line of Shaun Tandon, please.

QUESTION: (Inaudible.) Can I just follow up on Iran? What exactly do you think will be the — what
you're looking for there? | know you mentioned actions by Iran. There’s been some talk by the EU of
having some synchronized action. Is that something that you are going to look to do there in Vienna, to
try to coordinate the action?

And if you don't mind, could | also ask you the latest on Burma? There was an announcement
yesterday by the junta of shutting down all internet connections, all internet service. Do you have any
reaction to that? Is there any way to circumvent that? Thanks.

MS PORTER: Thank you. To your first question on talks in Vienna, | won't get ahead of the meeting,
but | will underscore that obviously the goal is a mutual return to compliance of the JCPOA.

When it comes to internet shutdowns, unfortunate internet shutdowns in Burma, we certainly condemn
all that’s going on when it comes to internet shutdowns. This actually poses a serious security and
health issue. As you know, using platforms as they’ve used before like Facebook and Twitter have
been really crucial for the people of Burma to get what they need, and without access to internet
they’re not able to get access to programs when it comes to health relief. We certainly condemn the
use of military-imposed internet shutdowns, and again, we hope this won't silence the voices of the
people of Burma. But we will continue to encourage the military regime to push forward for Burma'’s
path of democracy.

Let’s go to the line of Jennifer Hansler.
OPERATOR: Ms. Hansler, you're open. Go ahead.

QUESTION: Hi, thanks so much, and apologies if this was already asked. | had to drop off for a
second. Can you confirm whether Rob Malley will be representing the U.S. at the talks in Vienna?

And then separately, given that the U.S. is vaccinating a lot of folks and there are these new CDC
travel guidelines about folks who are vaccinated, are there any talks with the governments of Canada
or Mexico about lifting some of the border restrictions for nonessential travelers? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Again, to your first question, | want to underscore that we don't have any
announcements to make at this time as far as U.S. representation or personnel at the talks in Vienna.
When it comes to lifted restrictions on travel restrictions for coronavirus, | would have to direct you to
the CDC.

Let’s go to the line of Ellen Knickmeyer.
OPERATOR: Ms. Knickmeyer —
QUESTION: Ready.

OPERATOR: — your line is open. Go ahead.

QUESTION: Okay. Thank you. | unfortunately joined a couple minutes into the call and heard you
finishing a statement about the detainees. | don't know if — about detainees held by Iran. | was
wondering if it's possible to get the substance of that again. And along those lines, are there — are
issues like American citizens held in Iran or Iran’s intervention in the countries around it and other
complaints against Iran going to be included in any talks next week and going forward in the Iran
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nuclear deal?

MS PORTER: Thanks for your questions. I'll take your first one, and I'll start off by saying that the
safe return of all U.S. citizens who are wrongfully detained, whether they’re in Iran or anywhere in the
world, is a top priority of the United States. And just because you missed the last portion of it, what
we were discussing is this weekend marking the 2,000th day since Iran arrested Siamak Namazi for
being a U.S. citizen as well as his father who came to try to help him and were imprisoned for 10
years simply on baseless causes. Again, we won't underscore enough that we call on Iran to
immediately and safely release all U.S. citizens who are wrongfully detained in Iran. And Iran must
also take into account the fate of Robert Levinson and all other U.S. citizens who were actually
abducted in the country.

Let’s go to the line of Joel Gehrke.

QUESTION: Hi, thanks for doing this. | have two very different questions. I'll start with the Russia and
Ukraine. One, | just — | saw of course that President Biden spoke to President Zelenskyy and there’s
been a lot of focus on the military movements around the borders of Ukraine. | wonder, do you think
that the Russian military is staging the kinds of forces that would be used in any kind of imminent —
imminent invasion into Ukraine? Is that — is that your assessment right now?

MS PORTER: Well, | mean, | won't make a firm assessment, but I'll definitely say that we're aware of
Ukrainian military reports concerning Russian troops’ movements around their borders. And we're
discussing our concerns about this increased tension and a ceasefire violation as well as regional
tensions with NATO allies. And again, we remain concerned about these recent escalations of Russian
aggression and provocative actions in eastern Ukraine. And you had a second question?

QUESTION: Yeah, | wondered since we're talking about Bob Levinson today — | wonder if you're
aware of his name has come up in — of course in the context of a controversy involving Congressman
Matt Gaetz, who claims that he’s being extorted as part of a — as part of some kind of shadowy
initiative to — where the people who approached him said they could — they could also help with the
freeing of Robert Levinson. Have you heard anything about these allegations that would seem to
implicate some of your equities if somebody were doing this? Is there any kind of — is there any kind
of conversation underway to see what — what’s going on there, if anything?

MS PORTER: | can’t confirm that we’'ve had any conversations when it comes to Mr. Levinson and
Congressman Gaetz. And that being the case, | would have to refer you to the — either the campaign
or the congressional office of Congressman Gaetz.

Let’s go to the line of Jiha Ham.
OPERATOR: Okay, Jiha, your line is open. | apologize for the delay. Go ahead.

QUESTION: Thank you. Hi, Jalina. Happy Friday. South Korean Foreign Minister Chung Eui-yong said
on Wednesday that he looks forward to seeing Washington to consider more positively on the idea of

an end to the Korean War — so-called an end-of-war declaration. So what’s the State Department’s or
this administration’s position on this idea?

Also, could you give us an update or tell us more details on the meeting of the three national security
advisors? | know you mentioned about this earlier, but I'm wondering if you could share with us more.
Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your questions. As far as meeting details from the trilateral meeting, I'll
have to refer you to the White House. I'm sure they’ll have a readout that they will publish after the
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meeting. And as far as your first question, we’ll have to take that back for you.
Let’s go to the line of Pranshu Verma.

OPERATOR: And Pranshu, your line is open. Go ahead.

QUESTION: (Inaudible) confirm whether the Biden administration is going to reverse the executive
order allowing — that President Trump passed authorizing sanctions on ICC personnel?

MS PORTER: We don't have anything to announce at this time on the ICC, but | suspect we’ll actually
have an announcement later today that will be published. Thanks.

Let’s go to the line of Mouhamed Elahmed.

OPERATOR: Mouhamed, you're all open. Go ahead.

QUESTION: Hi, Jalina. Thank you for doing this. (Inaudible.)

MS PORTER: Hi, I'm having trouble — I’'m having trouble hearing you, Mouhamed.
QUESTION: Hello?

MS PORTER: Okay, | can hear you now.

QUESTION: Yes. Thank you for doing this. | have a question about Afghanistan. I’'m wondering if you
have any update about special envoy Zalmay Khalilzad’s meetings and consultations in Doha. And
also, how are the consultations and the preparations for the upcoming meeting in Istanbul going so
far? Thank you so much.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question, Mouhamed. And as a matter of correction, yes,
Ambassador Khalilzad is currently in Doha and he is currently meeting with both the Islamic Republic
and Taliban negotiating teams to push for further progress and a reduction in violence. And of course
he’s meeting with other international partners to explore how the community can both help both sides
accelerate the peace process.

Now, when it comes to the meeting, upcoming meeting in Turkey, Special Representative Khalilzad
recently traveled to meet with Turkish counterparts on the upcoming conference on the Afghanistan
peace process held in Istanbul. And we’re encouraged by the international community’s interest in
accelerating the peace process. But for further details when it comes to Turkey specifically, | would
have to refer you to the Turkish Government.

Let’s go to the line of Muath Alamri.
QUESTION: Hello, can you hear me?
MS PORTER: Yes, | can hear you.

QUESTION: Happy Friday. Thank you for doing this and allow me to ask. My question is about Iran.
Since the U.S. and Iran agreed to talk to each other indirectly, who is going to be the mediator, your
back channel here? Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you. This definitely seems to be a common question today, but I'll just
underscore that we don't have any announcements today on who will serve as U.S. representation in
that meeting. We'll certainly share that when we do have those details.
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Let’s go to the line of Soyoung Kim, please.
QUESTION: Oh, hello.
OPERATOR: Soyoung, you're open. Go ahead.

QUESTION: Mm-hmm. | was actually going to ask you a similar question regarding the trilateral
meeting today, and then you answered. But if | could just make one — you said that the review of North
Korea policy is complete soon. So when can we actually expect to see the result? And then, will there
be, like, a report or a press briefing on this? So what kind of form that we are going to see the review.
Thank you.

MS PORTER: Thank you for your question. We don't have a specific timeline on when the review will

be complete. But of course, when we do have an update to that, I'm sure obviously through our
channels at the State Department as well as the White House we will be releasing that through
specific statements. But we don't have all those details ironed out at this time.

We'll take one final caller from Joseph Haboush.
OPERATOR: Mr. Haboush, your line is open. Go ahead, sir.

QUESTION: Thanks. | wanted to ask if the U.S. consulted with its allies in the Gulf and in Israel ahead
of next week’s talks. And secondly, will you guys be carrying any of their concerns into the talks next
week? Thank you.

MS PORTER: So we certainly won't preview any private diplomatic discussions. But again, I'll
reiterate what was shared earlier in that the issues that will be discussed are nuclear steps that Iran
would need to take in order to return to compliance with the terms of the JCPOA as well as the
sanction relief steps that the United States would need to take in order to return to the compliance as
well.

This concludes today’s briefing. Thank you all so much for joining today, and | hope you have a nice
weekend ahead.

(The briefing was concluded at 2:26 p.m.)
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MR PRICE: Okay, good afternoon. As you see, we have a couple guests with us today. We'll get to
that in just a moment.

But first, today we celebrate 20 years of American leadership, cooperation, and support for the
preservation of cultural heritage around the world through the Ambassadors Fund for Cultural
Preservation. Since the fund launched on April 3rd, 2001, U.S. embassies have used this public
diplomacy program to support disaster preparedness and response effort overseas, to spur economic
development, to adapt to climate change, and promote American values, such as respect for cultural
diversity. In the process, our embassies have provided educational and career development
opportunities for American students and professionals from nearly all 50 states.

For example, in 2019, a 6.4 magnitude earthquake hit Albania and damaged three ancient
fortifications. With a grant of nearly $800,000, the Ambassadors Fund for Cultural Preservation is
supporting the emergency stabilization of the structures, a conservation analysis for each fortification,
and reconstruction of the damaged sections. In Bosnia and Herzegovina and other post-conflict
countries, embassies have incorporated the fund into the recovery and reconciliation efforts. In
Rwanda, our embassy used the program to help preserve the memory and evidence of lives lost in
1994. And in northern Iraq, our embassy has used the program to mitigate the effects of genocide by
preserving cultural sites of terrorized communities.

Through more than 1,000 projects thus far, the Ambassadors Fund continues to incorporate cultural
preservation and protection into American diplomacy.

Moving on to the release of the department’s newly published report, To Walk the Earth in Safety,
which those of you in the room have in front of you, and which is also available on our website
www.state.gov, this annual report highlights the United States’ enduring commitment to making post-
conflict communities safer and setting the stage for their recovery and development.

| would like to introduce Acting Assistant Secretary Tim Betts from our Political-Military Affairs Bureau,
who will first make brief remarks along with Acting Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary Stan Brown,
who is then prepared to take your questions.

So with that, Acting Assistant Secretary Betts, the floor is yours.

MR BETTS: Well, thank you very much, Ned, for that introduction and good afternoon, everyone.
Today | have the pleasure to release the 20th edition of To Walk the Earth in Safety, the annual report
of the U.S. conventional weapons destruction, or CWD, program.
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www.state.gov

For more than 25 years, the United States has demonstrated its commitment to protecting civilians
through support for destruction of at-risk conventional weapons and the clearance of landmines, IEDs,
and unexploded ordnance. Over that period, we have provided more than $4 billion in CWD assistance
in more than a hundred countries.

The success of the U.S. CWD programs relies not only on the technical abilities of our implementing
partners but also on the active support and participation of the affected states and communities.

Early on we recognized that every individual should be included in mine action activities for peace and
security gains to be sustained. One way NGO implementing partners encouraged inclusivity was to
recruit women deminers. Today women across the globe work in all aspects of mine action, making
their families and communities stronger.

From leading survivor advocacy in the Democratic Republic of Congo to providing municipal
government oversight in Bosnia and Herzegovina to training deminers in Laos, this edition of To Walk
the Earth in Safety highlights the accomplishments of women in our “Improving lives Through U.S.
CWD Programs” segments.

Protecting civilians is at the core of the U.S. CWD assistance. These programs help to protect our
nation and our citizens, promote economic opportunity and prosperity, and build strong partners who
will help us advance America’s interests on the global stage.

Projects to secure state-held small arms and light weapons from Africa to Europe to Central America
supports security. The disposal of excess and unserviceable munitions reduces the risk of unplanned

explosions at military storage sites located close to populated areas. For example, in — where did my
prep go? Here it is.

For example, as illustrated in the report’s cover photo, ITF Enhancing Human Security, one of our
longest-standing partners, in coordination with the Kyrgyz Ministry of Defense demilitarized more than
45,000 pieces, or more than 200 metric tons, of expired large-caliber ammunition.

Even with such assistance, unplanned explosions continue to happen, and we’re prepared to respond
on short notice. Most recently our Quick Reaction Force, which is highlighted in the report, deployed to
Equatorial Guinea to assist with ordnance disposal following the March 7th explosion at the military
base in Bata.

Following the Port of Beirut explosion on August 4th of last year, State Department funded teams
undertook a stockpile security assessment that led to upgrades to the Lebanese Armed Forces’ First
Artillery Regiment ammunition depot to reduce the risk of another catastrophic explosion.

The Interagency Man-Portable Air Defense Systems, or MANPADS, Task Force supports MANPADS
Recognition Training seminars to assist foreign security officials at airports, border crossings, and
seaports in their advanced weapons systems counterproliferation efforts. Adapting the course
curriculum to a virtual format enabled the training of officials from the Middle East and North Africa in
our pandemic-constrained environment, providing them with the skills needed to reduce the threat to
civil aviation from MANPADS.

Implementing partners have also adapted as traditional methods of in-person delivery are complicated
by the global pandemic. For example, the Swiss Federation for Demining ran an Explosive Ordnance
Risk Education campaign in Iraq on Facebook that reached more than 230,000 people.

The Department successfully partnered with Facebook and NGO Mine Action Group, or MAG, in 2019
to pilot risk education over social media in areas of northern Iraq liberated from ISIS. It was effective
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in reaching far more civilians than traditional methods — over 983,000 persons in three months. In
November of 2020, we launched phase two of that program, which will deliver risk education to more
than nine million at-risk civilians in Iraq, Lebanon, Somalia, and Vietnam.

CWD assistance for the clearance of explosive hazards reduces the risk to civilians from accident or
injury from unexploded ordnance or IEDs in post-conflict areas in Iraq, Libya, and Syria. As can be
seen on the back cover, civilians often return home to a sobering reality in the search for — in seeing
that their homes had been searched and marked “safe”. These projects provide safe access to
buildings and other infrastructure, which is necessary to rebuild their communities.

Finally, the U.S. commitment is grounded in over 25 years of bipartisan congressional support
combined with the experience and determination of our implementing partners. Together, we have
worked with host governments as well as communities at the local level to create a resilient program
that has evolved and adapted along with the explosive remnants of war threat.

Our CWD program has been flexible enough to continue performing and producing tangible results
despite the challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic. We look forward to seeing our
programs running at full capacity again in the near future.

That’s all I've got as far as an overview of the report. Now Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary Stan
Brown and | will be happy to take your questions, mainly him. (Laughter.)

MR PRICE: Matt, do you want to go ahead?

QUESTION: Yeah, please. So last — and I'm sure you're prepared for this, so I'll expect a fairly
concise recitation of whatever talking points you have down there.

MR PRICE: Are you saying we're predictable?
QUESTION: I'm saying that what you're going to say is predictable. (Laughter.)
MR BROWN: Okay.

QUESTION: So last year, the former administration rescinded the landmine policy as it relates to the
Ottawa Treaty, and | just want to know if you guys are considering reinstating what that policy had
been. And I’'m familiar with what it was before and what it is now. Are you going back to that old
policy, or are you going to stick with it?

MR BROWN: So right now, that policy is in effect, as you well know, and we haven't had any
discussions yet in the administration on changing the policy. So basically, it removed the geographic
restriction of Korea and now geographic commanders can decide the use of land mines, which is a
pretty high bar. So no decision has been made and no study has been done yet.

QUESTION: Is this something the administration is looking into? Is it prepared to review or what?
Where does it stand? Or is it not an —is it not a priority right now?

MR BROWN: It has not been —
QUESTION: Because this is a long book, which 72 pages —
MR BROWN: Correct.

QUESTION: — including the back cover, which your colleague mentioned, about the problem that this
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MR BROWN: Right. No, | understand. So the United States will continue to be the largest donor. As
you say — it talked about the book — we’ve donated 4 billion since 1993 to 100 countries. We continue
to be the larger donor to this effort and have impacted countries — 49 countries around the world. I'm
sure there’ll be a discussion on this, but we haven't started that discussion yet.

QUESTION: Thank you.
MR PRICE: Said.

QUESTION: Thank you, Ned. Egypt is listed as one of the most contaminated countries with land
mines despite the fact that the last war they had was in 1973. Why is that — why does it continue to be
such a daunting task? | mean, there are something like 23,000 — maybe 25,000 mines and so on,
despite these treaties, despite U.S. involvement.

MR BROWN: Right. So the process of removing land mines is — and if you look through the
publication, you'll see the work is very much done by individuals from the local communities. It’s very
intensive. It takes a long time. It may vary from anything from a requirement for the host country to
want to remove them, a request for assistance if they need assistance to move them, as well as
looking at it from the type of devices, the type of geography, vegetation, and otherwise, and the tools
that are needed to remove those things. So we are still removing ordnance from World War Il in the
Pacific Islands. And you'd think that, that would be done by now, but it's — it takes a long time, and it's
very painstaking to do so.

QUESTION: Could they be banned? Could you envision a future without land mines? | mean,
considering they’re a very cheap weapon.

MR BROWN: One hundred sixty-four countries have signed up to the Ottawa Convention Ban. The
United States has not, | think as Matt has pointed out here. And — owing to our commitment to Korea
under the last administration was where the restriction rest, or the requirements rest. And currently the
Department of Defense owns the policy. So | would defer you to them for the operational reasons why
they would still need them.

MR PRICE: Yeah, Conor.

QUESTION: Could you speak to U.S.-sponsored programming in Syria and whether or not this
administration shares the view of the previous administration that such stabilization programs should
be the job of other countries in the region and not the U.S. Government?

MR BROWN: Syria specifically is under review as far as what kind of assistance we might add there.
We have provided the UN — | think it was a million dollars — for mostly risk education in regards to
Syria. Prior to that, we did have extensive clearance operations on the ground basically around IEDs
to clear the critical infrastructure and to provide for populations going back to Syria. That kind of work
still continues on in Iraq after ISIS’s departure and clearing about 500, | guess, critical infrastructure
type facilities there. So we're still doing the work that has been, | guess, characterized as stabilization
in some of these areas immediately after conflict and when conflict’s over.

MR PRICE: Any final questions? Okay. Gentlemen, thank you very much.
MR BROWN: Thank you.

MR BETTS: Thank you.

QUESTION: Thank you.
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MR PRICE: Congratulations on the rollout. Do you have a question for them?
QUESTION: No. No, for you.

MR PRICE: Oh, okay. (Laughter.)

MR BROWN: He’s staying. He’s staying.

QUESTION: Well, | would like to congratulate you on this very glossy book.
QUESTION: Yes.

QUESTION: This is very nice.

MR BETTS: Thank you.

MR PRICE: Hopefully, you'll be able to —

QUESTION: WEell, let’s see. I'll have to delve into the content to see.

MR PRICE: Exactly.

(Laughter.)

MR BROWN: Well, thank you.

MR BETTS: Yeah, | think it has contact information if you have other questions.
QUESTION: Excellent. Thank you.

QUESTION: Thank you.

MR PRICE: Thank you both very much. Congratulations.

QUESTION: Ned, do you have a topper?

MR PRICE: The only topper | had was what | delivered at first.

QUESTION: Okay. Can | go ahead?

MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Sure.

MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Okay. Sorry. Thank you. | just got back from holiday and very keen, clearly.
MR PRICE: Well, welcome back, | should say.

QUESTION: Yeah, thanks. Just wanted to ask about Ukraine. So | just want to ask very clearly: What
is the U.S. assessment on Russian troop movements near the eastern Donbas region in Ukraine? Do
you believe Russia is getting ready for a fresh offensive? And what is the United States prepared to
stop that? President Biden said — offered his unwavering support. In what form will that be?
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MR PRICE: Mm-hmm. Well, it's not my job to speak to what might be motivating the Russians. It is my
job to speak to what the United States Government is doing about it. And let me say very clearly, as |
did last week, that we are concerned by recent escalating Russian aggressions in eastern Ukraine,
including the credible reports that have been emanating about Russian troop movements on Ukraine’s
borders and occupied Crimea. The movements were, of course, preceded by violations of the mid-
2020 — the July 2020 — ceasefire that led the deaths of four Ukrainian soldiers last month on March
26th, | believe it was, and the wounding of two other Ukrainian personnel. Russia’s destabilizing
actions undermine the de-escalation intentions achieved through the OSCE-brokered agreement of
July of last year.

In addition to our reassurances to Ukrainian officials, we’re discussing our concerns about this
increase in tensions and ceasefire violations and regional tensions with NATO allies, of course. And
the other week in Brussels, this was a broad topic of discussions.

We have asked Russia for an explanation of these provocations, but most importantly what we have
signaled directly with our Ukrainian partners is a message of reassurance. You saw that in the readout
that President Biden had of his call with President Zelenskyy of Ukraine. Of course, National Security
Advisor Jake Sullivan spoke with the Head of the Presidential Office Andriy Yermak last week as well,
Secretary Blinken in this building spoke with Ukrainian Foreign Minister Kuleba, and Secretary Austin
spoke with Defense Minister Andrii Taran, and | believe the chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff also
spoke with his counterpart.

So at the highest levels of government, literally, across multiple institutions, we have sent that
message very clearly to our Ukrainian counterparts, and implicitly to the Russians as well, that we
stand by Kyiv, we stand by our partner, Ukraine, in the face of this intimidation and aggression.

QUESTION: Can | have just a follow-up on that? Can | just ask you once again? | mean, do you
believe that this build-up on the Russian side of the border, on Russian territory, is a provocation in
that you think it's some kind of build-up for an invasion? Or is it — do you have a — do you just have an
objection to Russia moving its troops around inside of its own territory?

MR PRICE: What we certainly have an objection to, and what certainly is a cause for concern for us,
is Russia’s escalating aggression in eastern Ukraine — including, as | mentioned, the troop movements
on Ukraine’s borders and occupied Crimea.

QUESTION: Okay, but wait —

MR PRICE: But now let me just say | will leave it to Moscow to speak to what it is they may be in the
process of doing, any signals they want to send. But | will say that the United States would certainly
be concerned by any effort on the part of Moscow — whether it is within Russian territory, or within
sovereign Ukraine — to intimidate our partner, Ukraine.

QUESTION: Okay, fair enough. So you think — you believe that their troop movements, Russian troop
movements that are happening inside of Russia, are an attempt to intimidate Ukraine?

MR PRICE: | said we would be concerned by attempts on the —
QUESTION: I'm asking you whether you think that it is or not.

MR PRICE: This involves assessments that are in many cases going to be undergirded by non-public
information. So | wouldn't want to speak from here —

QUESTION: Well, then —
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MR PRICE: | wouldn't know. My point is | wouldn’'t want to —
QUESTION: But you are speaking from here. So —

MR PRICE: No, | am speaking from here about our policy concerns.
QUESTION: Okay, fine.

MR PRICE: | wouldn't want to speak from here about what it is that Russia may be attempting to do
or attempting to signal.

QUESTION: | understand —

MR PRICE: | will say that if the implication of this is intimidation —
QUESTION: If —

MR PRICE: — intimidation of our Ukrainian partners —

QUESTION: Yes, but is it? Is that your assessment, that it is intimidation? Or is it just a country
moving troops inside its own borders? Which you do, which China does, which Kenya does, which
Brazil does. | mean —

MR PRICE: | think you are throwing a lot of apples and oranges together with this. | think —

QUESTION: No, I'm just trying to find out if you think that Russia moving its own troops inside its own
territory is intimidation towards Ukraine, | mean, fine. But say that, don't just say “If it is, then we
would have a problem with it.”

MR PRICE: Obviously, there is a history here that goes back to 2014 —
QUESTION: Yes.

MR PRICE: — and even before that.

QUESTION: Yes.

MR PRICE: And so | think that is relevant context when we talk about, and when we think about, and
when we respond on a policy basis to what we are currently seeing in eastern Ukraine, in occupied
Crimea, and within Russia itself. Of course, the Russians have for quite some time sought to intimidate
and to bully their neighbors —

QUESTION: | am not doubting that. | just want to know — | just want to know if you think that these
specific troop movements that you've been talking about for the last ten days, or week now, you think
that those are intended to be intimidation.

MR PRICE: Well, the message we are sending to Ukraine is one of reassurance. And you have heard
that at the highest levels. The United States continues to stand by our Ukrainian partners. We will do
that without exception.

Other questions — yes.

QUESTION: Can | move to Jordan, please?
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MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Does the State Department have clear picture now of what’s going on in Jordan? | mean
what the Jordanian officials described as plot to destabilize the country.

MR PRICE: Well, | would leave it to our Jordanian partners to speak to what they may have found.
What | will say is that we are following the situation in Jordan closely — we made that very clear over
the weekend — and we have been in touch with Jordanian officials because Jordan, of course, is a
strategic partner of the United States. We value immensely our relationship and King Abdullah II’'s
leadership. We value his integrity, his vision. And as we said over the weekend very clearly, that the
king has our full support. And that is in large part because Jordan is a close friend. It is an invaluable
strategic partner. And it’s an indispensable partner on a range of shared concerns and challenges
throughout the region. The United States and Jordan, of course, share the mutual goal of a negotiated
two-state solution in which Israel lives in peace and security alongside a viable Palestinian state. We
support jointly an end to violent extremism that threatens security in the region, including within the
kingdom.

And more broadly as well, of course, Jordan has also been an invaluable partner in addressing
virtually all of the highest-priority challenges facing the region, including by helping to mitigate the
humanitarian crisis caused by the Syrian conflict. Jordan has helped to make progress towards a
political transition in Syria, ensuring the enduring defeat of ISIS as well. We've said before that we
value and appreciate the Jordanians’ extraordinary assistance to the Syrian people, including by
hosting so many refugees. And we remain committed to working with Jordan to address the threat
posed by ISIS and also supporting Jordan in any threats to its borders, including those posed by ISIS
as well.

QUESTION: And | have another question on Iran. On the eve of Vienna talks tomorrow, I’'m wondering
who is going to participate from the American officials. Some media reports revealed that the goal is
to achieve two separate deals with the U.S. and Iran agreeing on certain steps with clear timetables,
so can you confirm that?

MR PRICE: Well, as we announced last week, as we announced on Friday, we have agreed to
participate in talks with our European, Russian, and Chinese partners, the P5+1 partners who are —
who remain party to the JCPOA to discuss the issues involved in a mutual return to compliance with
the JCPOA, “mutual” meaning on the part of Iran and on the part of the United States. That has long
been the proposition on the table. | can confirm that Special Envoy for Iran Rob Malley will lead the
U.S. delegation to Vienna. These talks are scheduled to start tomorrow.

| would also hasten to add, as we did late last week, that we don’t underestimate the scale of the
challenges ahead. These are early days. We don't anticipate an early or immediate breakthrough, as
these discussions we fully expect will be difficult. But we do believe that these discussions with our
partners and, in turn, our partners with Iran is a healthy step forward.

Now, you asked about how these talks will be structured and what they’ll be predicated on. They'll be
structured around working groups that our European — that the EU is going to form with the remaining
parties to the JCPOA, and that includes Iran. The primary issues to be discussed are actually quite
simple. They’re, on the one hand, the nuclear steps that Iran would need to take in order for Iran to
return to that desired end state — and again, that is an end state of compliance with the JCPOA — and
the sanctions relief steps that the United States would need to take in order for us to return to
compliance with the JCPOA. So again, that is what we aspire over the longer term to achieve, that
mutual return to compliance with the JCPOA. It’s precisely what President Biden — then-candidate
Biden — laid out on the campaign trail.
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Now, we don't anticipate at present that there will be direct talks with Iran, though, of course, we
remain open to them. And so we’'ll have to see how things go starting early this week.

QUESTION: | have —
MR PRICE: Yeah.

QUESTION: | have two quick follow-ups on that. There was a Los Angeles Times report quoting
some Pentagon officials saying that the tensions are so severe that it might not be possible to delay
further without a deal, a deal restricting the Iranian nuclear program. And they are warning of a
confrontation in case there is no deal. And also | — like, my question is: How urgent does the U.S.
Government feel that it is necessary to reach a deal in the coming two months? And also, a Western
official was quoted as saying that the aim during those talks is to reach an agreement within two
months. Do you share this hope?

MR PRICE: WEell, look, I'm not going to put a timeframe on it. We are conducting principled diplomacy.
We are conducting that principled diplomacy in close coordination with our European allies, with whom
we discussed the broad challenge of Iran the other week in Brussels. Of course, we do have some
area of tactical alignment in this case with China and Russia as well. So the diplomacy will move at the
speed that we deem it appropriate to move at.

To your question about the urgency of this challenge, look, there’s no denying that we are approaching
this with urgency. And we are doing so because even in recent weeks, Iran has continued to take
steps away from the JCPOA, and our concern with that is that over time, Iran’s — the so-called
breakout time has continued to shrink.

Just a reminder that at the end of the Obama administration, the Obama-Biden administration, that
breakout time when the JCPOA was fully in effect was 12 months. That breakout time into the last
administration, the Trump administration, was 12 months when the JCPOA was fully in effect, with the
— with both sides having distanced itself from the JCPOA and Iran taking these steps, including the
steps that have been reported on in recent days.

That time has dwindled. Our goal is, of course, to see to it that that breakout time is as long as
possible. Our overarching goal is to ensure that Iran’s nuclear program is permanently and verifiably
constrained, and that on a permanent and verifiable basis, Iran will not be able to obtain a nuclear
weapon. That is not just our goal. That is the goal of our remaining partners in the P5+1, it is the goal
of our partners and allies in the region, and it’s certainly a goal that has broad support within Congress
as well. So we are not seeking to drag these talks on any longer than necessary, but we’re also not
going to cut corners given that — given the profound stakes that are at play here.

Said.

QUESTION: Well — but hold on a second, just on — your remaining partners in the P5+1? You guys
are —no —

MR PRICE: The — the participants in the P5+1 and the JCPOA.
QUESTION: Yeah, well — you have no partners in the —
MR PRICE: We — well, we are a — we're still in the P5. Let’'s not —

QUESTION: Well, yes, but not in the deal. So can you say, though, that you are not prepared to lift
any sanctions or ease any sanctions that are non-nuclear related?
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MR PRICE: Well, | can be —

QUESTION: As part of this —

MR PRICE: | —

QUESTION: Because there are plenty of sanctions, as you know —
MR PRICE: Right.

QUESTION: — there are plenty of sciences that are non-nuclear related, that are not contingent on
the deal.

MR PRICE: Right. What | can say is that we certainly will not entertain unilateral gestures or
concessions to get Iran — to induce Iran to a better place. Our goal at these talks in Vienna, again, is
to set the stage for that mutual return to compliance. The original formulation is one that still holds
today. It’s the limited lifting of sanctions, nuclear sanctions, in return for permanent and verifiable limits
on Iran’s nuclear program.

QUESTION: Okay. But when you say —

MR PRICE: Now, I'm not going to preview from here what that look — might look like on our side, but |
think that formulation is one that the JCPOA remains in existence. It is one that the JCPOA itself
continues to call for. So | would imagine that as we look at the steps that we need to take, we'll be
guided by the original formulation that was in the JCPOA.

QUESTION: Okay. So when you say you're not prepared to make any inducements, that means no
non-nuclear sanctions relief?

MR PRICE: | will leave it to the negotiators to detail positions.

QUESTION: Well, that’s not going to — that’s going to be a problem. If you say that you're prepared to
lift non-nuclear sanctions —

MR PRICE: | am not. | am absolutely not saying that. | am saying that our —

QUESTION: Yeah, you're saying you're going to leave it to the negotiators, so it seems it might be
open.

MR PRICE: | am saying that our negotiators will go to — are headed to Vienna to take part in talks
with our partners, starting tomorrow, to discuss how Iran might get back into compliance with the
JCPOA. And Iran getting back into compliance would mean the strict and verifiable limits on Iran’s
nuclear program, permanent limits on Iran’s nuclear program. They will also discuss the sanctions
relief that the United States would be prepared to take. And, of course, we’ll continue to be guided by
what the original JCPOA called for.

MR PRICE: Which is nuclear sanctions, so |, again — yeah.
QUESTION: All right.
MR PRICE: Said.

QUESTION: Thank you, Ned. Couple questions on the Palestinian issue. Couple —
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MR PRICE: Anything else on Iran before we move one?
QUESTION: Can | ask one more thing on Iran?
MR PRICE: Sure, yeah.

QUESTION: So I'm just wondering what a productive result from these meetings would look like. Is it
that the U.S. writes down exactly what concessions they’re willing to give and Iran writes down what
nuclear concessions they’re willing to give? Like, what should we be looking for at the end of this?

MR PRICE: | think we are looking for a better understanding of how we might arrive at that desired
end state, and that desired end state remains compliance for compliance. Of course, we haven't had
direct discussions with the Iranians about this. We'll be working indirectly through primarily our
European partners on this. But if we come away from Vienna with a better understanding of how both
sides can get there and — the result of which would be how Iran could move back into compliance with
the JCPOA and what we would need to do to see to that. | think that’'s what we’re after.

Said.

QUESTION: Thank you, Ned. A couple days ago, Secretary Blinken spoke to his Israeli counterpart,
Ashkenazi, but he has not — maybe for the third time. | think this was his third conversation with him as
Secretary of State. He has not spoken to any Palestinian leader. Why is that? Why has he not
reached out to Dr. Riyad Maliki, the foreign minister of the Palestinian Authority?

MR PRICE: Well, we have been clear that it is a priority of this administration to engage the
Palestinian people as well as the Palestinian leadership. And we've talked about resuming assistance
to the Palestinian people and the priority that we attach to it. Just the other week, of course, U.S.
Ambassador to the UN Linda Thomas-Greenfield announced $15 million in humanitarian assistance to
provide relief to Palestinians throughout the West Bank and Gaza who are currently suffering from the
COVID-19 pandemic. We will continue to provide assistance to benefit all Palestinians, including
refugees, and we’re determining at the moment how to move forward with that.

Look, | would fully expect that there will continue to be engagement with the Palestinian people and
Palestinian leaders as well.

QUESTION: Are you engaging with any Palestinians? | mean, what level of engagement do you have
right now?

MR PRICE: Yeah, | — we typically don't read out conversations at the working level, but certainly we
are prepared to continue to engage the Palestinians, including Palestinian government officials, on
ways we can provide assistance to the Palestinian people.

QUESTION: So during the campaign, there were unambiguous statements by — by candidate Joe
Biden then about resuming aid to UNRWA and so on. We have not heard anything since the
administration has assumed office, and —

MR PRICE: Well, that’s not true. That’s not true. Of course, you heard from —

QUESTION: On UNRWA. On UNRWA. | know that there’s been aid for — to combat COVID. There’s
probably been an increase in aid to the PA. But on UNRWA, there has not been any clear messaging.

MR PRICE: It is certainly true — it remains true today — that we intend to provide assistance that will
benefit all Palestinians. We've — Ambassador Thomas-Greenfield spoke to that the other week, and
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that includes, of course, refugees. We're in the process —
QUESTION: You keep saying “refugees,” but UNRWA is —

MR PRICE: We are in the process of determining how exactly we’ll move forward on providing that
assistance, of course, at all times consistent with U.S. law.

QUESTION: Will you resume aid to UNRWA?

MR PRICE: We are looking at the ways we can provide assistance to Palestinians, including
Palestinian refugees.

QUESTION: Can | ask three questions where — they’re yes or no, very easy — on this issue?
MR PRICE: These are — yes-no questions are usually not the easy ones.

QUESTION: Yes. Oh, yeah, they are. You said that you're not going to move the embassy out of
Jerusalem, but does this administration still regard Jerusalem as Israel’s capital and do you still
believe that a two-state solution would result in Palestinians having a capital in East Jerusalem?

MR PRICE: These are not yes-no questions, Matt, just to clarify.
QUESTION: Yeah, but it's a — yes or no. | mean —

MR PRICE: There has been no change on our position in Jerusalem, and, of course, Jerusalem is a
final status issue that is to be negotiated by the two parties.

QUESTION: But the previous administration declared — said that Jerusalem is Israel’'s capital. And
that —

MR PRICE: That's — and | said there’s been no change on our position in Jerusalem.
QUESTION: There’s been no change? Okay. And on the Golan?

MR PRICE: There has been no change in our position.

QUESTION: And then back on Jerusalem, on the passport issue?

MR PRICE: There has been no change in our position.

QUESTION: There’s no — is there any thought of changing it?

MR PRICE: We, of course, don’t discuss internal deliberations, but there’s been no change in our
position.

QUESTION: But you know what I'm talking about?
MR PRICE: | do know what you're talking about.
QUESTION: Okay.

MR PRICE: And | will just note we unfortunately need to conclude here in the next few minutes given
the event with the Secretary, but yes.

QUESTION: A couple questions on Ethiopia.
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MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Last — at the end of last week, Amnesty International, CNN, BBC verified videos that
they say show a massacre by Ethiopian forces. Do you have any response to that? And is it
something that the U.S. Government has confirmed as well?

MR PRICE: Well, we are gravely concerned by reported human rights violations, abuses, and
atrocities in the Tigray region of Ethiopia. We strongly condemn the killings, the forced removals, the
sexual assaults, the other human rights abuses that multiple organizations have reported.

QUESTION: But any word on whether or not you believe Ethiopian forces have conducted these
particular massacres?

MR PRICE: We are, of course, looking into these reports. We have taken close note of them and we'll
continue to pay close attention.

QUESTION: And then on Saturday, the Ethiopian foreign ministry said that Eritrean forces have begun
to leave the country. Is that something that you've been able to verify as well?

MR PRICE: Well, we have taken note of the — what we heard from Ethiopian authorities. We are
encouraged by the prime minister’s announcement that the Government of the State of Eritrea has
agreed to withdraw its forces from Ethiopia. The immediate and complete withdrawal of Eritrean
troops from Tigray will be an important step forward in de-escalating the conflict and restoring peace
and regional stability.

QUESTION: But you haven't seen whether or not they’ve started that process?
MR PRICE: We've — we've — encouraged by that report and we’'ll be paying close attention, of course.

QUESTION: Can | — just one other quick question on the special envoy for the Northern Triangle’s
visit. He’s traveling to Guatemala and El Salvador but not to Honduras. And so far at least, Vice
President Harris hasn't called President Juan Orlando Hernandez of Honduras as well. Are you trying
to isolate or send some sort of message to his government given the allegations against him by U.S.
federal prosecutors?

MR PRICE: | fully expect that we will be engaging with appropriate Honduran Government officials,
including upon their return. There will be a meeting, | expect, with the Honduran foreign minister, who
will be visiting the United States upon their return. As we've said before, we are deeply concerned
about the challenges that the people of Honduras are facing right now —the effects of COVID-19
compounded by the impacts of not one but two hurricanes. It’s led to a 15 percent economic
contraction as well as food insecurity.

We continue to stand with the Honduran people as they confront these challenges. We will continue to
stand with the Honduran people and civil society and those members of the Honduran Government that
are committed to fighting corruption with us, because we know that our goal has to be to address
these root causes, these root drivers of migration if we’re going to find a long-term solution to this
challenge.

QUESTION: (Off-mike.)
QUESTION: Does President Hernandez present one of those challenges?

MR PRICE: Hearing a lot of things coming at me.
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QUESTION: Sorry. Does President Hernandez present one of those challenges?

MR PRICE: | will say that corruption continues to be a challenge when it comes to our relationship with
Honduras. We are committed to partnering with the Honduran people, with elements of Honduran civil
society, and with those in the Honduran Government that are committed to working with us to root out
the corruption that has become really endemic to that country.

Yes.

QUESTION: Yeah. My question is regarding El Salvador, too. President Bukele announced a couple
of hours ago a series of donations that it will receive from the Chinese Government. And on the other
hand, in recent days we have seen evident distancing of the Salvadoran Government with the Biden
administration. We even saw President Bukele insult and attack Congresswoman Norma Torres, and
he also asked Latina community do not vote for her in California.

What is the position of the Biden administration regarding this relationship between El Salvador and
China? And China’s approach with the Northern Triangle region represent any concerns for you?

And the other question is regarding the combat to the root causes on immigration. President Bukele
said that he will veto a law that was approved last week for the National Assembly to punish all the
smugglers and in Central America. So what'’s the position?

MR PRICE: To punish all the — I'm sorry, | didn’t hear.
QUESTION: The traffickers —

MR PRICE: Traffickers.

QUESTION: — and coyotes, yeah, in Central America.

MR PRICE: Well, Secretary Blinken spoke to this broad challenge the other week in his remarks from
Brussels, and he said at the time that it would not be the policy of the United States to force our
partners to choose between the United States and China. We will offer a partnership that works in our
interests and also that works towards the interests of our partners, including our partners in our own
hemisphere, the Western Hemisphere.

When it comes to El Salvador, we enjoy a strong relation — relationship with El Salvador and its
people. We’'ll continue to work closely with our Salvadorian partners to address the challenges we've
talked about in this broader realm. That includes irregular migration, it includes corruption, it includes
impunity, governance, respect for human rights, economic opportunity, and security as well.

We'll also focus on preserving democratic standards, and we look forward to President Bukele to
restore strong separation of powers where they’'ve been eroded and demonstrate his government’s
commitment to transparency and accountability to the people of El Salvador. We'll continue to
emphasize to political leaders the importance of appropriate democratic institutions as we partner with
them. And, of course, we'll also engage with civil society groups and to promote freedom of
expression and, independent media, and the protection of journalists. Our goal in all of this is to create
the conditions where the people of El Salvador can live healthy, successful lives and to thrive. We
value this relationship. We value this partnership. It's a partnership that is not only in the interests of
the people of El Salvador, but it’s also in the interests of the American people.

I’m sorry we have to cut this short, but —
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QUESTION: Ahead of the 2:00 p.m. coronavirus conference, do you have an estimate on how many
State Department staff globally, including local staff, have been vaccinated?

MR PRICE: | don't have that number in front of me. What | can say is that we will soon have an
update on our efforts to provide the vaccine to embassies and missions worldwide. | think we have
made tremendous progress. As you know, some 80 percent of our vaccine supply has been sent to
missions and to embassies around the world, and | think within weeks we will be in a position to say
that all of our officials around the world have received access to the vaccine.

QUESTION: Can | follow up on Yemen?
QUESTION: Can we get back here?
QUESTION: On Iran, how long —

MR PRICE: Sorry, we haven't gotten to the back.

QUESTION: Thank you, Ned. Following the Human Rights Report detailing egregious abuses in China,
do you think that American companies should re-evaluate their participation in the Olympics next year
in a sponsorship role?

MR PRICE: WEell, look, | will — the Human Rights Report was quite strong when it came to what we
are seeing in China, what we have seen in China. It, of course, called what has transpired, what is
transpiring in Xinjiang, genocide. I’'m not going to offer advice to U.S. companies from this podium.

What | can say is that when it comes to the issues of — the issue of the Beijing Olympics, that’s
something that we're consulting closely with our allies and partners. We are consulting closely with
them not only on that specific issue but also on the broader issue of China’s human rights record. You
saw a concrete manifestation of that when together with our Canadian, Brits, and European partners
we rolled out sanctions in recent days targeting those who have been responsible for some of the
most egregious abuses of human rights when it comes to Xinjiang.

So we'll coordinate with them very closely on the question of the Olympics, but | don’t have an update
to share at this time.

QUESTION: On Yemen, please. Is there any update about the diplomatic efforts about Yemen, and
when would the Special Envoy to Yemen Tim Lenderking go back again to the region?

And on Afghanistan, there are some reports that the upcoming Istanbul — the conference will begin
April 16 and would last 10 days. Do you confirm the date and the —

MR PRICE: I’'m not in a position to confirm anything about an upcoming conference in Turkey vis-a-vis
Afghanistan.

Very quickly and finally on Yemen, we released statements last week to note that Special Envoy
Lenderking returned on March 31st, late last week, from his travel to Saudi Arabia and Oman. He held
productive meetings with Omani, Saudi, and Yemeni senior leaders in coordination with UN Special
Envoy for Yemen Martin Griffiths. Special Envoy Lenderking and the UN special envoy continue to
work side by side to help bring about a ceasefire, inclusive political talks, as well as a durable
agreement that addresses the needs of all Yemenis.

They also discussed the dire humanitarian needs for the people of Yemen. To that end we — and |
said this the other week — we welcomed the Saudis’ announcement last week to provide more than
$400 million — | believe it was $422 million — in support for fuel products in Yemen. That, of course, is
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in addition to what we announced in the not-too-distant past regarding our own support to the people
of Yemen as well.

Thank you all very much. We have to rush up to get to the Secretary, but we'll do this again tomorrow,
of course.

QUESTION: Thank you.
MR PRICE: Thank you.

(The briefing was concluded at 1:50 p.m.)
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MR PRICE: Good afternoon.

QUESTION: Good afternoon.

MR PRICE: | actually do not have anything at the top, so ready to dive right in.

QUESTION: Oh really? Wow. Okay, let’s start with the most obvious, | think: Iran. So | presume that
you've gotten an update from Vienna?

MR PRICE: Well —

QUESTION: Can you tell us what — well, if you have, can you tell us what it is? And if you haven't, can
you tell us why you haven’t gotten an update?

MR PRICE: Well, as you know, Matt, the discussions just commenced today at 2:30 p.m. local time in
Vienna. It’s my understanding that they were scheduled to go until just about now. So they are still
underway. | think you have probably seen what one of the European officials described as a
“constructive” meeting of the joint commission. Of course, Special Envoy Rob Malley is representing
the United States in these discussions.

| think what | said yesterday also remains true. These are early days; we don't anticipate any
immediate breakthrough. We don't anticipate being in a position to provide any sort of live commentary
on these discussions. We know these will be tough talks. We know there will be difficult discussions
ahead. But again, this is a healthy step forward. It's a healthy step forward because it allows us to
move forward with what we see is — as the only path to achieve what President Biden — and as a
candidate, Candidate Biden — laid out, and that is a mutual return to compliance: “mutual” meaning Iran
returning to its commitments under the 2015 JCPOA, those commitments spelling out the parameters
under which Iran is permanently and verifiably prevented from obtaining a nuclear weapon; and on our
side, what we might need to do to return to compliance ourselves.

Those are the two working groups. Those are the two issues that are on the table. The shorthand is
“compliance for compliance.” There are also — there are obviously many more complexities involved in
that, but that will be the task ahead for the — our partners, the Europeans, as well as the Russians and
the Chinese, in their talks with the Iranians going forward.

QUESTION: Okay. Well, you said you weren't going to be offering any live commentary, but in fact,
you offered some live commentary, even if it wasn't even your own. It was a European official’s
commentary. Would you agree with the European official? | assume this is Mora, or —
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MR PRICE: That's right.

QUESTION: Yeah. Would you agree with that assessment that this whatever it was that has
happened so far has been constructive?

MR PRICE: Well, we weren't a part of that joint commission meeting, obviously. I'm just relaying what
Mr. Mora said in his statement. But certainly as a step forward, as a broad step forward, these
discussions in Vienna, even though we are not meeting directly with the Iranians, as we have said, it is
a welcome step, it is a constructive step, it is a potentially useful step as we seek to determine what it
is that the Iranians are prepared to do to return to compliance with the stringent limitations under the
2015 deal, and as a result, what we might need to do to return to compliance ourselves.

QUESTION: Okay. So what interaction do you expect the U.S. Envoy Malley and the rest of — other
U.S. officials to have? If they weren't — they weren't, obviously, in this meeting of the joint commission.
You quoted a European as saying it was constructive. But do they even need to be there right now?
What are they doing? What —

MR PRICE: Well, they do need to be there, because there are, as | said before —
QUESTION: What are they — when do they get involved in whatever talks there’s going to be?

MR PRICE: WEell, so they're involved on a daily basis. So as we have said, we do not at this point
anticipate direct talks between the United States and Iran. We are open to them because we are open
to diplomacy. We know that we can engage in clear-eyed, principled diplomacy even with a country
like Iran, with whom, of course, we have tremendous and profound differences.

But the Iranians want to do this indirectly. We are comfortable with that. So what we will be doing is
engaging in discussions with our allies, principally our European allies, who, in turn, together with the
Chinese and Russians, will be engaging directly with the Iranians. Our allies —

QUESTION: But have those started yet? Have they started engaging with their — with the Europeans?
MR PRICE: Well, it has started really since January 20th. That’s the —

QUESTION: Well, today, in Vienna.

MR PRICE: That’s been the —

QUESTION: No, come on, I'm not trying to be obtuse.

MR PRICE: No, no, no, | —

QUESTION: | mean, you're being obtuse.

MR PRICE: No, | just —

QUESTION: Wait, wait. Have they met? Have they — has there been — has Malley and the — have they
and the Europeans actually sat down after this joint commission meeting, or are we still waiting for
that? Is that going to happen tomorrow? Will it happen tonight?

MR PRICE: Well, let me —

QUESTION: Are they going to go out and have wienerschnitzel and —
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MR PRICE: Well, Vienna, as is much of Europe, is under stringent COVID conditions.
QUESTION: Yes. But | mean, is that going to happen today, or when?
MR PRICE: So | don't expect them to be going out into public to have discussions over drinks.

But what | will say — and | think this context is useful, because this has been the activity in which we
have engaged since the very early days of this administration — we undertook intensive consultations
with our allies, with our partners, and with members of Congress to explain to them what we might be
prepared to do, and more to the point, what we sought to do to bring Iran back into compliance with
the 2015 nuclear deal. Most recently — and we were just in Brussels with Secretary Blinken the other
week when we had a meeting with our E3 partners — Iran, as | have said, was a primary topic of
conversation. This was, in fact, the third meeting with the E3 that Secretary Blinken had had — not
meeting but consultation because the first two were, of course, virtual.

But Iran has been a consistent topic of conversation with our allies. It's also been a topic of
conversation with our partners. We have talked about Special Envoy Malley’s engagement with the
Russians and the Chinese, two of the original members of the P5+1 who were, of course, engaged in
these talks, again, in Vienna.

So all that to say our European allies certainly are not going to be surprised by what they hear from
us. The utility of this setting in Vienna is that there can be real-time interaction, albeit indirect, between
the United States and, in turn, the Iranians with those messages ferried back and forth between — by
our allies and partners.

So yes, we do see this as a constructive and certainly welcome step. And in the end, we hope that we
are able to leave Vienna, return to the United States — our negotiating team, | should say — with a
better understanding of a roadmap for how we get to that end state: mutual compliance; Iranian
compliance with the deal, and how the United States might also resume its compliance with the deal.

Andrea.

QUESTION: How difficult would it be to unwind the Trump sanctions given how many were layered on,
especially the terrorist designation?

MR PRICE: Well, that will be one of the topics of conversation in Vienna, and in fact, it is the focus of
one of the two working groups. Because again, one of the working groups is focused precisely on
what the Iranians will need to do given the steps away from the Iran deal that they have taken since
May of 2018. We have even yesterday and in recent weeks, of course, expressed our concern with
those steps because of the implications they hold for Iran’s nuclear program. It’s precisely why we are
approaching this challenge with a great degree of urgency.

So the primary issues that will be discussed are, as | said, the nuclear steps that Iran will need to take
in order to return to its compliance with the JCPOA, and on the other hand the other working group will
be focused on the sanctions relief steps that the United States will need to take in order to return to
compliance with the JCPOA. And so precisely that is what we'll discuss in this context.

QUESTION: And in terms of the terror designation, what steps have to be taken to reverse that if and
when Iran has complied? And one further question is: Do you agree with the commonly described
position which Secretary Blinken himself has said in other interviews that Iran would be theoretically
within months of having a nuclear weapon at the current state of their progress?

MR PRICE: Well, I'm not going to get into any intelligence assessments. What | will say is to reiterate

Document ID: 0.7.12479.6847 1049-000129



what | said yesterday most recently, and that is a reminder that when the Iran deal was fully in effect
— that is to say, from implementation day January of 2016 until 2018 — Iran’s breakout time was at 12
months. That was one of the primary objectives, one of the many virtues, of the Iran deal when Iran
was in full compliance with the deal.

What that means is that if Iran made the strategic decision to pursue a nuclear weapon, if somehow
Iran were able to evade the stringent verification and monitoring parameters associated with the deal,
it would take them a full 12 months to produce the fissile material alone that would be required for a
nuclear weapon. And of course, that doesn't include the weaponization aspects of that activity.

Now that Iran has distanced itself from the deal, there are various estimates out there. Various public
assessments have put Iran’s breakout time in the single digits, in a handful of months. To us, that is
not acceptable. To us, our goal is, again, to ensure that that breakout time is as long as possible but
more broadly to ensure that Iran is once again subject to a deal that will permanently and verifiably
prevent Iran from ever obtaining a nuclear weapon.

Now this takes me to another point. We have talked about mutual resumption of compliance with the
JCPOA as a necessary but insufficient step, because we have also talked about, once we are there,
working on what we are calling a longer and stronger deal, using the original JCPOA as the baseline
for those discussions, but then not stopping there, because we have also made no secret of our other
profound concerns with Iran’s behavior, Iran’s malign activity in the region. That includes its support for
terrorism; it includes its ballistic missile programs; it includes the activities of its proxies. All of these
are issues that not only the United States but also together with our allies and many of our partners
that we seek to constrain. So that will be the broader effort here.

Now, what is on the table in Vienna today and over the next handful of days are those initial, indirect
discussions about that first step. What Iran would need to do to resume compliance with the JCPOA
and what the United States would need to do to resume its compliance with the JCPOA — that task
alone won't be easy; it won't be simple. These talks will not be uncomplicated, but again, we are
encouraged by the fact that they are taking place, because it is a necessary first step to get to that
desired end state.

Yes.
QUESTION: And the terror designation, just very briefly?

MR PRICE: Well, again, the second working group — one of two — is going to be focused on the steps
the United States would need to undertake. Our — what we recognize is that we will need to provide
sanctions relief — with — for sanctions that are inconsistent with the JCPOA. But again, that’s why we
have a working group focused on this, and | wouldn’t want to discuss it from here.

QUESTION: Wait. Consistent, not inconsistent.

MR PRICE: We need — we would need to provide sanctions relief for sanctions that are inconsistent
with the JCPOA.

QUESTION: Oh, no. Really? You — no, | think what the Iranians are looking for is an easing of
sanctions that were lifted, consistent with the JCPOA.

MR PRICE: | think we’re saying the name thing.

QUESTION: |.e., nuclear sanctions.
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MR PRICE: We're saying exactly the same thing.
QUESTION: All right.

QUESTION: Iran.

MR PRICE: Yes, Iran.

QUESTION: So you said a handful of days. There’s going to be another meeting tomorrow and then
the day after that? | mean, could you give us some idea of how long this presumably first round is?
That’s one. Two, since you're talking about a roadmap, does that suggest the possibility of
simultaneous steps being taken towards compliance? And three, since the Iranians are still saying
publicly the supreme leader’s statement, which is that they want all sanctions lifted at once and not
step by step, is that even something that’s being considered on the table? | mean, is there some way
you could work with that?

MR PRICE: Well, Special Envoy Malley has spoken to this in recent days, and he has made the point
that maximalist demands are not going to get us anywhere. The reason we are in Vienna is to discuss
what those steps might look like to return to mutual compliance. Calls for the United States to take
unilateral gestures or conciliatory overtures that are unmatched by the Iranians — | don't think that is
constructive; we don't think that is constructive. And so we're focused and the team is focused in
Vienna on what would be constructive, on what would be reasonable to achieve that desired end state
of mutual compliance for compliance.

QUESTION: But in terms of the roadmap, does that suggest the possibility of simultaneous steps?

MR PRICE: Well, again, I'm going to leave that to our negotiating team in Vienna to work that out with
our European allies and our other partners. | think what we can essentially rule out are the maximalist
demands that the United States do everything first and only in turn would Iran then act. | don't think
anyone is under the impression that that would be a viable proposal. What we are looking forward to
hearing — again, indirectly, via our European allies in the first instance — are constructive proposals for
how we might get to that desired end state.

Now, in terms of what this might look like in the coming days, | think it is a fair expectation that Special
Envoy Malley will be in Vienna for at least the better part of this week. | think — | am not sure that he
has yet a return ticket in hand. | think his schedule is going to be somewhat flexible, as will the
schedules of other members of our negotiating team here at the Department of State.

Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you. On Iran’s eastern neighbor Afghanistan, can you give us an update on where
we stand on the peace process, what’s going to happen after May 1st?

QUESTION: Can we stay in Iran, the nuclear —

MR PRICE: Let’s take one or two more questions on Iran — on Afghanistan and — sorry. One or two
more questions on Iran, and then we will go to Afghanistan.

QUESTION: Okay.

QUESTION: Are you planning to achieve an agreement with the Iranians before the elections in June?
And what kind of sanctions you will take off the table? And then when will you discuss the missile
program and the activities — Iranian activities in the region, before you get back to the agreement or
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after?

MR PRICE: Well, as we all know, there are elections upcoming in Iran in the coming months. The point
remains, however, that we are not seeking to accelerate our diplomacy, nor are we seeking to stall
our diplomacy. We are seeking to move in a manner that is consistent with our interests and in
lockstep primarily with our European allies in this case. So again, these negotiations will take however
long they will need to take, if we are able to reach that desired end state — again, that end state being
compliance for compliance.

Now, in terms of the other phases of this — and | spoke of this in response to Andrea’s question before
— but again, we do see this as a necessary but insufficient step, albeit an important early one, to seek
to return to compliance with the JCPOA, consistent with Iran also doing so. The goal from there will be
to build that longer and stronger agreement, building, using the JCPOA as a baseline. At that point, we
also want to work very closely with our allies, with our partners, including our regional partners, to do
all we can to seek to constrain in important ways the other areas of malign activity that we have
spoken to, and that includes ballistic missiles, it includes support for terrorism, it includes support for
regional proxies. But again, today in Vienna and this week in Vienna, our teams are focused on that
first step, an important first step, because it is necessary — if not sufficient — to what we want to do
over the longer term.

One more question on Iran, and then we’ll move on.

QUESTION: Ned, does the administration believe that Russia and China have a constructive role to
play here? Or are you concerned that they may play a sort of spoiler role, given evidence, for
example, that China is ramping up its purchases of Iranian oil and undermining the sanctions that are in
place?

MR PRICE: Well, we do have alignment in many areas when it comes to our interests with those of
Moscow and Beijing. It is certainly not in the interests of Moscow, it is certainly not in the interests of
Beijing for Iran to be on the path to a nuclear weapon or for Iran to obtain a nuclear weapon, of
course.

Now, what we have said when it comes to sanctions enforcement is that right now all of our sanctions,
of course, remain in effect. We will continue to work with our partners and our allies around the world
to enforce that sanctions regime. If we get to a point by mutual agreement where it is appropriate for
us to remove sanctions, we will do that in the context of Iran also resuming compliance with the deal.

But obviously, we’re not there yet, and | think principally and strategically this is an area where we do
have aligned interests with Moscow and aligned interests with Beijing. They were original members of
the P5+1. They have sought to uphold the JCPOA, and we do see them as partners in this fairly
narrow effort.

Moving on. Afghanistan.

QUESTION: On Afghanistan, just 24 days are left for the May 1 deadline. Can you tell us what’s going
to happen after that? Where are we on the Afghanistan peace process?

MR PRICE: Well, | don’'t have an update for you in terms of where we are. But | think the broader
context here is also useful, because again, President Biden has been clear that he wants to see an
end to our military presence in Afghanistan. As he has said, as Secretary Blinken has said, as
Secretary Austin has said, as others have said, we are committed to bringing a responsible end to the
conflict, removing our troops from harm’s way, and ensuring — importantly — that Afghanistan can
never again become a platform, become a launch pad, for terrorist attacks that would threaten the
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United States or our allies.

We heard this in Brussels the other week, that there is a good deal of agreement with our NATO allies
on the path forward when it comes to Afghanistan. The international community is similarly united in
the belief that there isn’'t a military solution to what we have long faced in Afghanistan. It’'s a conflict
that has to end through a political solution and a comprehensive ceasefire, processes that are at their
core Afghan-owned and Afghan-led.

So, of course, | don't have any updates to share for you now in terms of where the President may be.
He has obviously spoken to this in recent days, in the context of the impending May 1 deadline. What |
can say is that any removal of troops, any withdrawal plan, would be orderly and it would, of course,
be informed by those consultations with our partners and allies.

QUESTION: And Mr. Khalilzad has been talking to the Talibans for more than two years now and he
has continued in his position in the new administration. Do you see a commitment or honesty, sincerity
from the Taliban’s side towards the peace process or just — they are just dilly-dallying as they have
done in the past?

MR PRICE: Well, we know that there is no military solution to this. We know that a comprehensive
ceasefire and a political settlement has to be arrived at through diplomacy, and that is precisely what
Ambassador Khalilzad, what his team is engaged in. He is currently in Doha, meeting with both the
Islamic Republic and the Taliban negotiating teams to push for farther — further progress in
negotiations and a reduction in that violence. He’s also meeting with other international partners to
explore how it might be that the international community can best help the two negotiating sides
accelerate that process.

Now, we have also said in recent days that levels of violence are unacceptably high, and we have
consistently called on the Taliban to reduce those levels of violence. And that is precisely because we
want to create conditions that are conducive to those peace negotiations moving forward in a way that
is constructive and in a way that is promising. The extended Troika — the United States together with
Russia, China, and Japan — released a statement — it's now last month — calling for the Taliban not to
launch a spring offensive and to avoid further casualties, helping to create, again, an environment that
is, in fact, conducive to a negotiated political settlement that Ambassador Khalilzad, his team, and our
partners are seeking to achieve.

QUESTION: Staying in the region, last week, Pakistan — senior ministry in the Pakistan has asked for
import of sugar and cotton from India, who is the — Pakistani cabinet declined it. What do — do you
have any views on that?

MR PRICE: | wouldn't want to comment on that specifically. What | would say is that we continue to
support direct dialogue between India and Pakistan on issues of concern.

QUESTION: Well, | have one more question, follow-up from what the Secretary did yesterday
upstairs on COVID-19 vaccine. Several countries led by India and South Africa have reached out to
WTO for TRIPS waiver of certain COVID-19 vaccines. | think 60 congressmen here in the U.S. have
also written a letter to President in support of that cause. The commerce or the companies here are
opposing that, but what is the administration’s positions or the State Department position on it?
Because it's going to be a key element in what Secretary of State said yesterday, that everyone has
to be vaccinated at a affordable cost.

MR PRICE: Yeah. Well, what the Secretary said yesterday, and what President Biden has
consistently said, is that our first priority as the American Government is to take care of the American
people. We are a country, of course, that has suffered tremendously from the toll of the pandemic.
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We have suffered more deaths in this country than any other country around the world. And given the

unpredictability of this virus, the surges, the spikes that we have seen here, the mutations that we can
continue to see take hold, not only here but around the world, we need to be prepared for a variety of
scenarios. And that is precisely what we are doing.

At the same time, as we increase confidence that we have enough vaccine for the American people,
that we have accounted for various scenarios, we will look at options for sharing doses globally,
including through Gavi and the COVAX Advance Market Commitment or the AMC. But we already
have taken important steps to demonstrate the sort of international leadership that Secretary Blinken
referred to yesterday. His point is a profoundly important one, and that is principally that in order for
us to be able to fully protect the American people, we must address COVID not only here in the United
States, but also around the world. Because as long as the virus is circulating in the wild, as long as the
virus is not controlled anywhere, it has the potential to mutate. It has the potential to come back to this
country.

And so that is why from literally day one, we have demonstrated our commitment to working closely
with the international community. We, of course, re-engaged the WHO on President Biden's first day in
office. We committed to providing the most funding to COVAX of any other country in the world — $2
billion initially, another 2 billion over time. We have, of course, spoken about the arrangement that we
have reached with our Mexican and Canadian partners. And we announced with our Quad partners
that we're working to achieve expanded manufacturing of safe and effective vaccines at facilities in
India. This in turn produced a boost production globally, so this — we will continue to be engaged on
the international stage just as we continue to focus on a safe and effective distribution of the vaccine
here at home.

QUESTION: But what is going to be U.S. position at WTO where India and South Africa are asking
for TRIPS waiver of COVID-19 vaccines?

MR PRICE: Well, | don’'t have anything specific to preview or to add on our position at the WHO. |
think what is — it is safe to say that the President is deeply focused, Secretary Blinken is deeply
focused, on the issue of expanding global vaccine manufacturing and delivery, which, of course, will be
critical to ending this pandemic.

Yes.

QUESTION: Jordan? In your assessment, has the conflict there been resolved, and did anyone from
the administration call the king during the last two days?

MR PRICE: Well, | don’t have any calls to read out at the moment. Of course, we said over the
weekend that we were in close touch with Jordanian officials, starting when those reports began to
emerge, and we were in close touch with Jordanian officials precisely because we value King Abdullah
II’s leadership, we value his integrity, we value his vision.

And again, he has our full support. He has our full support for all of those facets in all of those regions,
in addition to the mutual interests that we have with the Kingdom of Jordan, on top of the fact that the
king has demonstrated remarkable leadership in the humanitarian gestures, in what he has done for
the people of Syria who have suffered so tremendously under the brutal dictatorship of Bashar al-
Assad. So we have been in close touch with our Jordanian partners —

QUESTION: Did the Secretary call him? Did anyone call him from —

MR PRICE: | don't have any calls to read out at the moment.
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QUESTION: And did you provide them with any kind of any support?

MR PRICE: | am not aware that they made any requests for support. Of course, we do have a
strategic partnership with the Kingdom of Jordan. We stand by Jordan, but I’'m not aware of any such
requests that came in.

QUESTION: My last question on the Irag-U.S. talks tomorrow: What are your expectations from the
strategic dialogue?

MR PRICE: Well, this, of course, will be the third strategic dialogue that the United States will hold
with our strategic partner, Irag. Secretary Blinken will engage with his counterpart. They will discuss
the entirety of the relationship. | would expect after tomorrow’s session that we’ll have more to say
and that we’ll have more details to share.

Yes.

QUESTION: Changing subject, Egypt foreign minister warned that his country will act if any water
damage is caused to it by the Renaissance Dam in Ethiopia after the failure of the talks in Kinshasa.
Would the U.S. Government plan to exercise more pressure on the parties, even hosting the parties
back to D.C., in order to find a solution to this water crisis?

MR PRICE: Well, | think as you know, a U.S. delegation traveled to the region to engage our partners
on issues related to the Grand Ethiopian Renaissance Dam or the GERD. The delegation included
Ambassador Don Booth, it included our OES Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary Jonathan Moore,
as well as NEA Deputy Assistant Secretary Karen Sasahara.

Through this mission and this concluded exchange, we heard from all interested parties, including from
the Congolese presidency of the African Union, about how best the United States and our European
partners can support their efforts, our collective efforts, to find a path forward to constructive
negotiations. The team held consultations in Kinshasa, in Addis Ababa, in Cairo, and Khartoum, and
these consultations were done in conjunction with our European — with European Union
representatives.

| think the key point is that we understand the importance of Nile waters to all three countries, and we
continue to encourage a resumption of productive dialogue when it comes to the GERD. Now, what
exactly that might look like, | don’t have anything to preview for you at the moment. But we will
continue to encourage a productive dialogue, and we have continued to stress our impartial approach
towards the GERD.

QUESTION: Thank you.
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Just the other day, you guys filed a motion — | presume through DOJ, but you—ina
lawsuit against an Egyptian official who’s accused of torture and other bad things related to detainees
there. And I'm just wondering, given the administration’s focus or its intended focus, claimed focus, on
human rights, why exactly would you be supporting his claim of diplomatic immunity in this case?

MR PRICE: Well, | do understand that there was a brief filed with the court. This does have to do with
issues of diplomatic immunity that | wouldn’'t want to get into from here. But what | will say is that we
continue to seek to promote a stable and prosperous Egypt where, importantly, the government
protects the rights of all individuals and fulfills the aspirations of the Egyptian people. That is, in fact, a
core objective of U.S. policy. President Biden has made clear, we made clear with the release of the
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Human Rights Report in recent days, that human rights will be at the center of our foreign policy.

And that does, in fact, include with Egypt. The Secretary told Foreign Minister Shoukry in a recent call
that human rights will be at the center of our relations with Egypt, and we look forward to
strengthening not only our partnership, but to strengthening that respect for democracy and human
rights in Egypt.

QUESTION: Okay. They'll be center — central to your foreign policy going towards Egypt, except in
this case?

MR PRICE: No, | would not say that. | would say that human rights are —

QUESTION: Well, | mean, let’s look at the two most recent things: this one, and Saudi Arabia. Right,
okay? So you come out, you release the intel report on Khashoggi’s murder, you directly tie the crown
prince to it, but you don’t do anything to him about it. And now here’s an actual lawsuit that’s going
forward, and you are arguing on behalf of a person who is accused of being involved in the same kind
of human rights abuses that you say that you're against and that you're going to punish. So square
that for me.

MR PRICE: This is a matter before the court, so again, | wouldn’t want to weigh in from here on a
particular court case. What | would say is that our commitment to human rights globally, in the Middle
East, and when it comes to Saudi Arabia, and as you mentioned, Egypt — nothing can stand in the way
of that. We will continue to raise cases. We will continue to monitor how these partners respond when
it comes to the cases that we raise bilaterally with them. You mentioned Saudi Arabia. Of course, we
have seen the Saudi regime take some welcome steps in the right direction when it comes to Saudi
Arabia.

QUESTION: You just put out a statement —

MR PRICE: Exactly.

QUESTION: — this morning criticizing the Saudis for sentencing — right? Was that this morning?
MR PRICE: That was this morning.

QUESTION: Yeah. I'm sorry, so | don't see where the — where is the right direction? What — was
there any statement praising something else that the Saudis did?

MR PRICE: No, obviously, Matt. We — the case of — there have been other cases in Saudi Arabia
where they have made — where they have taken constructive steps forward. We did put out, as you
said, a statement this morning, which | think speaks to the fact that even when it comes to our close
security partners, that we won'’t turn a blind eye when it comes to what we consider to be violations of
human rights.

QUESTION: Unless someone claims diplomatic immunity, or he happens to be the de facto head of
state. Right?

MR PRICE: Was that rhetorical?
QUESTION: It’s not rhetorical, because | just don’t see how you can square the two. But go ahead.
MR PRICE: Please.

QUESTION: Two question on North Korea. Recently, North Korea is ratcheting up the tension in
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Northeast Asia, and it — now it announced that it will strengthen the nuclear capability and ballistic
missile launch technology. So President Biden said that the U.S. will respond accordingly. So my
question is: What is U.S. redline on that? And secondly, North Korean Government announced that it
will not participate in the Tokyo Olympics this year. So it could have been a catalyst for South Korea
with talks about the denuclearization talks. Was that the issue and case for the United States? Any
comment on that?

MR PRICE: Well, your second question first. We are aware of reports that North Korea has decided
not to participate in the summer Olympics, which would appear consistent, in fact, with the DPRK’s
stringent response to COVID-19. We will continue to coordinate closely with the Republic of Korea
and with Japan on DPRK issues in pursuit of our shared goals of peace and security on the Korean
Peninsula and across the Indo-Pacific. Of course, the White House spoke late last week to the
trilateral meeting between the National Security Advisor Jake Sullivan and his South Korean and
Japanese counterparts at the U.S. Naval Academy in Annapolis. All of this is part of the ongoing
review that we have underway when it comes to our North Korea policy.

This is something that we have spoken of for several weeks now. The review that we are undertaking
— the review that we are undertaking in close consultation with our allies and partners, including our
treaty allies in the Indo-Pacific — it is a part of the reason why Secretary Blinken thought it so
important that for his first physical travel overseas that he travel to Tokyo and that he travel to Seoul
so that we could compare notes, so that we could share thinking on a number of common challenges
and common threats. And of course, North Korea is a common threat to all three of us.

So this review is still underway. | wouldn't want to get ahead of where this review might end up, but
we will continue to focus on reducing the threat to the United States as well as to our partners as well
as to our treaty allies in the Indo-Pacific as we remain committed to the principle of denuclearization of
North Korea.

QUESTION: Can | stay in that region?
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: And on Olympics. With regard to participating in the Beijing Olympics, can you detail how
the State Department has been or will be involved in the administration’s decision on that front?

MR PRICE: Well, part of our review of those Olympics and our thinking will involve close consultations
with partners and allies around the world. We have consistently said, when it comes to our concerns
with the government in Beijing, including Beijing’s egregious human rights violations, its conduct of
genocide in the case of Xinjiang, that what the United States does is meaningful, what the United
States does will have impact, but everything we do that is — that brings along our allies and partners
will have all the more influence with Beijing.

And so that is why the Department of State, as part of our thinking on the Beijing Olympics, is
engaging with partners, with allies to coordinate — coordinate closely on decisions and approaches to
the government in Beijing. You saw an illustration of that only the other week when the United States,
together with United Kingdom, together with Canada, together with the EU, enacted a set of sanctions
against those responsible for some of the atrocities in Xinjiang. So clearly, we are coordinating on all
of these issues of concern, and, of course, the Beijing Olympics is an area that we will continue to
discuss.

QUESTION: And when do you think those discussions will — specifically on the Olympics will be
concluded with partners and allies?
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MR PRICE: Well, of course, this is — we're talking about 2022 and we are still in April of 2021. So
these games remain some time away. | wouldn’t want to put a timeframe on it, but these discussions
are underway.

QUESTION: And how complicated would U.S.-China diplomacy become if the U.S. decided to boycott
the Olympics?

MR PRICE: Again, | wouldn't want to comment on a hypothetical. We know that when it comes to our
engagement with the government in Beijing, the — principally, it is a relationship predicated on
competition. There are also adversarial aspects of that relationship. There are also some cooperative
aspects of those relationships — of that relationship. Really, all three of those were on display in
Anchorage, both in the session that was public as well as in the discussions that were behind closed
doors.

But with our approach to Beijing, we will continue to be guided by two things and two things only.
Those are our interests, including the interests we share with allies and partners around the world, and
our values. And those are the values we share with our allies and many of our closest partners around
the world.

Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you. A couple of follow-ups of — on vaccine, if | may. First question is about
Johnson & Johnson is its vaccine from Netherlands. And | wonder why the U.S. Government doesn't
allow the export of AstraZeneca vaccine, 30 million doses, that are still here in U.S. and except for 4
million doses, if not mistaken, lend to Mexico and Canada. The rest are there, although those vaccines
are not yet approved — have not yet been approved by FDA. So | wonder if you, as a government, can
stretch a point — | know there is a law that don't allow — doesn’t allow so far to make this export
possible, but can you stretch a point since you get Johnson & Johnson vaccine from Netherlands? It's
a European country. This is my first question.

The second one, if | may, is about the restrictions on travel, if you have any signs of ease of the
restriction for travel from Europe and to Europe.

MR PRICE: Well, your second question, that will be a question that will be guided by the science. It
will be guided by what our Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, what our broader set of
scientists and medical experts advise. Obviously, the CDC has recently issued new guidance on some
elements of travel. | would refer you there for more information on that, but at its core, these will be
decisions that, again, will be based on science, on expertise, on epidemiology in this case.

When it comes to the vaccine, | just want to be very clear — and | know the White House has made
this point as well — that there is no outright export ban on vaccines. But the point | was making before
when we were talking in the context of — with Lalit remains, and that is that this administration, this
President, this Secretary of State are focused first and foremost on protecting the American people.
And we are in the midst of an ambitious, a heretofore successful distribution of safe and effective
vaccine to millions of Americans.

But we also know that over the longer term, Americans won't be fully safe until this virus is contained
not only in this country but around the world as well. And so that is why we know that America needs
to continue to play that leadership role when it comes to global public health. It's precisely what we
have done, and | have spoken to some of those steps, from re-engaging with the WHO; our ambitious,
bold commitments to COVAX; the arrangements that we have arrived at with the Quad; the
arrangement that we have arrived at with Canada and Mexico that you mentioned as well.
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But right now, we are focused on that safe and effective vaccine distribution here at home, planning
for what might allow us to vaccinate as many Americans as quickly as possible while also accounting
for scenarios that may develop. But we fully expect as we become more comfortable in our position
here at home and this vaccination campaign here at home that we’ll be able to continue to engage the
international community on this important challenge, because we know, again, that is a challenge that
we must address collectively, and no one has the potential to galvanize international action — collective
action — like the United States. And that’s what we’ll continue to do.

QUESTION: | wanted to get your response on a couple of pieces of news. | think this broke just
before you started talking, but Al Arabiya is reporting that an Iranian cargo ship, possibly affiliated with
the Revolutionary Guards, has been — come under attack in the Red Sea. If you have anything on that,
that would be great.

And just secondly, Ukrainian President Zelenskyy has called on NATO to support a path to
membership for his country. Does the U.S. support that, bearing in mind this buildup that you've
expressed concerns over?

MR PRICE: Well, this administration is committed to ensuring that NATO’s door remains open to
aspirants when they are able to meet the commitments and obligations of membership and contribute
to security in the Euro-Atlantic area. We affirm our support for that open door policy that was
expressed in the 2008 Bucharest declaration, and we stand by the right of each sovereign country to
choose for itself whether it joins any treaty or alliance, and, of course, that does include NATO.

We are committed to ensuring that aspirant countries wishing to join NATO meet the organization’s
standard for membership. To that end, we continue to urge the Government of Ukraine to implement
the deep, comprehensive, and timely reforms necessary to build a more stable, democratic,
prosperous, and free country. We support Ukraine’s efforts to advance the rule of law. We support
reforms and economic growth, and we, of course, continue to support our partner Ukraine in the fight
against Russian aggression.

And you're right that we have spoken about this in recent days. More importantly, several of the most
senior members of this administration have spoken to their NATO counterparts, starting with the
President of the United States. The Secretary of State, the National Security Advisor, the Secretary of
Defense, the chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, and others have been in close touch with their
Ukrainian counterparts.

QUESTION: So that doesn’t change your view on Ukraine in NATO given what’s happening on the
border? You don't want to kind of give more impetus to that push now?

MR PRICE: Oh, we are certainly supportive of all the reforms that Ukraine is engaged in on all of the
areas that | just listed. Again, we are fully supportive and affirm NATO’s open door policy, and we
continue to look forward to working closely with Ukraine on all of these reforms that are in train.

QUESTION: Ned —
QUESTION: On the Iranian ship?

MR PRICE: On the Iranian ship, | don't have anything immediately to offer, but if we do, we can get
back to you.

QUESTION: Two things | think you can dispatch with extremely quickly. One, the administration came
in saying it’s going to reverse the Trump-era refugee admission policy, but it hasn’t done it yet. Do you
have any idea what'’s taking so long for the cap to be elevated?

Document ID: 0.7.12479.6847 1049-000139



MR PRICE: Well, what —
QUESTION: What’s going on?
MR PRICE: President Biden has spoken both on the campaign trail as a candidate and —

QUESTION: Yes. Yes, he has. But he hasn't actually done anything about it yet, so I'm wondering
what the holdup is.

MR PRICE: And more recently as President about his commitment to ensuring that the United States
is again a leader when it comes to refugees and when it comes to providing humanitarian relief to
those fleeing violence, to those fleeing persecution the world over. It is also true that our — the United
States refugee program was left in a state of disarray by the past administration. There is a great
deal of rebuilding that needs to take place in order to have a refugee program that allows us to
achieve what we want it to achieve in a way that is both effective and that is safe.

QUESTION: So is that what’s taking time? You have to rebuild the program?
MR PRICE: There is a great deal of rebuilding given the state of disrepair it was left in.

QUESTION: Secondly, the Secretary met with the acting head of the U.S. Agency for Global Media
today. As you will recall, the previous administration also left that agency in a bit of a — well, it did
what it did. Anyway, one of the things that the previous CEO did was to change the composition of the
board, the directors. And I'm just wondering if the meeting today between the Secretary and the
acting AGM head means that the State Department is going to or wants to take a more active role, to
retake an active role, in the running of VOA and the other networks.

MR PRICE: Well, the Secretary certainly understands the importance of USAGM. He does have an
opportunity to meet with Kelu Chao, who is currently at the helm of USAGM. We understand the
important function that USAGM’s component elements provide in the dissemination of information the
world over, including in places that lack options to hear messages that are unadulterated by the host
government.

At the same time, we also recognize the important editorial independence that comes with those
elements. The Secretary respects that editorial independence. He thinks that it is important that we
continue to adhere to that firewall when it comes to editorial independence. But we can do both: We
can ensure that USAGM has the backing, has the support it needs, to accomplish its important mission
without interfering in that important mission.

QUESTION: Right. But is there a desire on his part to get back onto the board? Just there was a
State Department seat on what used to be the BBG and then turned — and then it was eliminated
under the previous CEO.

MR PRICE: If we have anything on that, we’'ll be happy to get back to you.
QUESTION: Thank you.
MR PRICE: We'll take a final question.

QUESTION: Just a follow-up on Kylie’s question. You seemed to suggest on the Olympics that the
U.S. is in consultations with allies discussing whether to consider or plan some sort of joint boycott. Is
that the case?

MR PRICE: Well, it is something that we certainly wish to discuss and that it is certainly something
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that we understand that a coordinated approach will be not only in our interests but also in the
interests of our allies and partners. So this is one of the issues that is on the agenda both now and
going forward, and when we have something to announce, we will be sure to do that.

Thank you very much.

(The briefing was concluded at 3:01 p.m.)

Stay connected with the State Department:

External links found in this content or on Department of State websites that go to other non-
Department websites should not be construed as an endorsement of the views or privacy policies
contained therein.

Update your subscriptions, modify your password or email address, or stop subscriptions at any time
on your Subscriber Preferences Page. You will need to use your email address to log in. If you have
guestions or problems with the subscription service, please contact subscriberhelp.govdelivery.com.

[X]

us ng GovDe very Commun cat ons Coud on beha f of: U.S. Departrment

Ths ema was sent to[{«}N{s)
of State 2201 C Stree

Document ID: 0.7.12479.6847 1049-000141


https://subscriberhelp.govdelivery.com

From: U.S. Department of State

Subject: Department Press Briefing — Apri 8, 2021
To: Good ander, Margaret V. (OAG)
Sent: Apri 8, 2021 7:25 PM (UTC-04:00)

You are subscribed to Press Releases for U.S. Department of State. This information has recently
been updated, and is now available.

Department Press Briefing — April 8, 2021

04/08/2021 07:09 PM EDT

Ned Price, Department Spokesperson
2:10 p.m. EDT

MR PRICE: Good afternoon. Today Secretary Blinken delivered remarks at the United States
Holocaust Memorial Museum’s Yom HaShoah commemoration. If you haven't already seen it, the
video is posted on the Secretary’s twitter account and on our website, state.gov.

The Secretary’s words on this solemn occasion were powerful and they underlined why remembrance
is so vital. He said in that message:

We remember to honor the lives of the six million Jews, as well as the Roma, the Sinti, the Slavs,
disabled persons, LGBTQ+ individuals, and many others, who were murdered by the Nazis and their
collaborators.

We remember to recognize, to recognize the innate dignity of those killed and those who survived —
something their killers sought to strip away with each dehumanizing act.

We remember that before these people were victims, they were girls and boys, they were women and
men, with distinct lives, distinct hopes.

And we remember not only what happened, but also how, how it was allowed to happen.

We remember to look at the institutions and societies we are part of and to understand better,
understand better what they do and what they did not do.

We remember to learn. And we learn so that we do not repeat. Never again.

Next, today the United States Government, through USAID, announced more than 152 million in
additional humanitarian assistance to help the people affected by the crisis in Tigray’s Ethiopia region
— I'm sorry, Ethiopia’s Tigray region. This announcement of additional funding brings the total U.S.
humanitarian assistance for the Tigray response to $305 million since the crisis began in Fiscal Year
2020.

This new assistance will provide lifesaving food, water, medical and health support, shelter, and
protection for the most vulnerable — and that includes support for women and girls, case management
for survivors of gender-based violence, training for social workers and community case workers, and
programs to reunite children separated from their families.

With this funding, USAID will provide more than 148,000 metric tons of urgently needed food
assistance, including wheat, yellow split peas, vegetable oil, and specialized nutritious foods. In total,
USAID has now provided more than 206,000 metric tons of food — enough to feed 4 million people for
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nearly three months.

We also must take this opportunity to raise that as more information comes to light regarding the
scope of human rights violations, abuses, and atrocities, assistance in protection of the most
vulnerable is more important than ever.

Finally, in keeping with the Department of State’s commitment to facilitate legitimate travel to the
United States, Secretary Blinken determined today that it is in the national interest to exempt all
immigrant and fiance(e) visa applicants from the regional travel restrictions currently in effect due to
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Beginning today, immigrant and fiance(e) visa applicants in a country affected by a geographic
COVID-19 visa restriction who believe they may fall under these exceptions should check the website
of the nearest U.S. embassy or consulate to determine their next steps.

As the global situation evolves, the department continues to seek ways to process visa applications
around the world, in keeping with guidance from health authorities and with the U.S. travel restrictions
currently in place.

So with that, Matt.

QUESTION: Thanks. Just on the last one, these people still, if they’re going to come, still need to be
negative, right?

MR PRICE: That’s right. This does not change any of the restrictions and guidelines that are in place
when it comes to COVID.

QUESTION: Secondly, on your remarks about the Holocaust Remembrance Day and Secretary
Blinken’s speech or his comments to the Holocaust Museum, it was quite a mea culpa, right? Singling
out one specific former State Department employee by name for not doing or, in fact, apparently
contributing to the Holocaust, and also mentioning that the rest of the department, or a lot of the rest
of the department with some exceptions, did the same thing, or didn't do enough, | mean.

When you look at that and the whole idea of “never again” and China and Xinjiang, are you confident
that a future secretary of state is not going to have to make the same kind of confession, I'll say, but
it's not really a confession? Does this — make the same kind of comments 70 years from now?

MR PRICE: Matt, | think what Secretary Blinken said in that note is a sentiment he has reflected any
number of times in any number of public fora both in his time in this role, in his limited time in this role,
but of course, long before it. It is something — that sentiment “never again,” it is something that is not
only meaningful for him; it is personal for him. As you know, his family story, the values, the spirit of
this country that is imbued within him as a result of that story, that heritage, | think is something he
feels very personally every day across every realm. It is precisely why he has spoken so passionately
about human rights violations, abuses, atrocities that are taking place around the world. He, as you
alluded to, has spoken to it in the context of Xinjiang. He has spoken to it of repression in other parts
of the world. He spoke to it in the context of Tigray during his recent appearance on the Hill as well.

But it’s not just words. This Secretary is committed that — committed to the fact that in both word and
in deed, this department and this administration and this government will stand up to human rights
abuses. We will do what we can, cognizant of this idea of acting confidently but also with humility — the
two flip-sides of the coin that Secretary Blinken often refers to — to do what we can and as much as
we can, oftentimes in concert with our allies and partners, to stand up to these atrocities that have no
place in the 21st century, have no place in 2021, but yet horrendously continue to be perpetrated
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today.

QUESTION: So you're confident that in 75, 100 years from now, a future secretary of state is not
going to have to — or not feel compelled to make the same kind of statements that he did?

MR PRICE: | am confident, Matt, that —
QUESTION: About the (inaudible) during the ‘30s.

MR PRICE: | am confident, Matt, that this Secretary of State, this department, this administration will
continue to be clear-eyed and speak with a clear voice when it comes to human rights violations.

QUESTION: Last one, just on the — very, extremely briefly on Afghanistan. This conference in Turkey
is supposed to be happening. Is it correct that it's happening on the 16th, and is someone other than
Zal going to be there? What’s the — and what’s the — what do you expect from it?

MR PRICE: Well, I'm going to allow the hosts of this conference to speak to the details of it. What |
can say is that planning is underway for a conference in Istanbul to accelerate the peace process. The
gathering, as in all facets of this process, will be Afghan-owned and supported by high-level
attendants from the international community, building on recent international meetings in support of the
peace process.

This upcoming conference, it’s meant to help Afghan negotiators to make progress, to make progress
in their negotiations, and will complement the peace talks that are currently ongoing in Doha. Of
course, Ambassador Khalilzad remains in Doha. He continues to engage with the parties on this very
task, helping the parties, supporting the parties in this Afghan-led, Afghan-owned process to reach a
political settlement and comprehensive ceasefire. We are working with our Turkish counterparts and
the Afghan parties to prepare for constructive participation in this conference.

QUESTION: Who are the attendants?

MR PRICE: I'm sorry?

QUESTION: You don’t have anything to say about who's going to be —
MR PRICE: | will let the host speak to the details of it. Yes.
QUESTION: No, no, no. On your side.

MR PRICE: Oh, | don't have any details to share just yet. Yes.

QUESTION: On Iran. Could you address the comments by the Iranian chief negotiator in Vienna,
where he essentially said that they’re working on an approach that would not be step-by-step but
would remove sanctions in one go? And then also one of his comments was, “In our view, America has
to take its actions in one step, then we'll verify, and then Iran will follow with its own actions.” What’s
your response to the Iranian view on how this is going to go?

MR PRICE: Well, our response to specific proposals is best delivered in engagement with our
European allies and with the Russian and Chinese partners on the ground in Vienna. As you know,
Special Envoy Rob Malley remains in Vienna, where he has had occasion to meet with our allies and
partners in this effort, the remaining elements of the P5 — original P5+1. He’s had an opportunity to
meet with the IAEA director general as well. He issued or noted in a tweet today that he had met also
on a bilateral basis with the Austrian foreign minister, who is helping to host these.
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| think broadly speaking, what | will say is actually to repeat probably what you've heard me say
before, and that is that the primary issues to be discussed in Vienna are twofold: on the one hand, the
nuclear steps that Iran would need to take in order to effect its return to compliance with the JCPOA,;
and on the other hand, the sanctions relief steps that we would need to take in order to return to
compliance as well. You mentioned one comment from the Iranians. | think we’ve all seen some of the
commentary, including on social media, that these talks have been described as constructive, as
businesslike, as accomplishing what they set out to do. And that is true; we would characterize it that
way as well.

We would also, however, hasten to not allow expectations to outpace where we are. After all, we
have said this will be hard. And yesterday, | explained many of the reasons why it will be difficult, while
it will be hard. Just to quickly recap, it will be hard because these are indirect engagements, and
obviously the mechanics of this are not un-cumbersome. It'll be hard because the subject at hand is
very technical; it’s very complex, and it is technical and complex precisely because we have arrived at
a strategic formulation, something that candidate Biden and now President Biden has called
compliance for compliance. We know that is the desired strategic endpoint, so we need not have
broad, strategic talks at this stage; we are engaged in technical talks about how we might get to that
endpoint. And it will be hard, of course, because there is no insignificant degree of distrust between
the United States and Iran, between the United States and the broader international community.

Now, we're not going to let any of that be insurmountable, to potentially stand in the way. And in fact,
these discussions have been constructive. This forum has been constructive; it has been businesslike;
this has been a step forward. | think you probably saw the announcement that the Joint Commission
will meet tomorrow. We expect the talks may resume in the coming days, potentially next week.

QUESTION: But just to follow up on that, | mean, it seems like when you boil everything down you still
have this fundamental problem which is — at the heart of this, which is Iran essentially is insisting that
you go first and you're insisting that Iran go first. So where does that leave us?

MR PRICE: Well, it leaves us where we started, really, with the knowledge that maximalist demands
probably are not going to get us very far. But problems are addressed in most cases, in almost all
cases — we would hope in all cases — with diplomacy. This is precisely why Rob Malley is in Vienna,
because this is a challenge, this is a problem. We started from very different places. And his job on
the ground with the support of a team there and a team here is to determine if we can move slightly
closer, if — consistent with our principled diplomacy, consistent with what’s in our interest, and that is
principally an Iran that is permanently and verifiably prevented from obtaining a nuclear weapon, if we
can move — if the two parties can move closer together and we can arrive at an arrangement that
would allow for the United States to resume compliance with the deal and Iran to do so, Iran to again
be subject to the strictest verification and monitoring regime ever negotiated.

QUESTION: And just — sorry — last thing. So is it — | know you had an extensive back-and-forth with
Matt and others about this the last couple of days, but is it your expectation that if there is a deal that
you would see not only the nuclear sanctions relived but then also the terrorism sanctions,
designations on the Central Bank, and things like that?

MR PRICE: Well, it comes to the two tasks, the Iranians have a task and that is to determine if and
how they might return to compliance with the nuclear deal, to return to compliance with the strictest
verification and monitoring regime ever negotiated. Our task, if it gets there, is to determine how we
might resume compliance with our commitments under the JCPOA. And if we get there — which of
course remains an if — we have said that we are prepared to take the necessary steps to return to
compliance with the JCPOA and that would include lifting sanctions that are inconsistent with the
JCPOA. The dynamics of that, the mechanics of that, is precisely what Rob and others are discussing
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right now with our European allies and our Russian and Chinese partners in this endeavor and that we
may have occasion down the road to discuss with the Iranians, but obviously we’re not there yet.

QUESTION: But that still leaves open the question of whether you guys think the terrorism sanctions,
ballistic missile sanctions, human rights sanctions are inconsistent with the JCPOA. Do you think that
they are?

MR PRICE: We believe that Iran’s ballistic missile program, that Iran’s violation of the — Iran’s human
rights abuses, that Iran’s support for malign proxies, Iran’s support for terrorism — we believe all of
those things pose a profound challenge to us as well as to our regional partners. That is why we will
continue, including through sanctions, to push back on those issues.

QUESTION: Well, why couldn’t you have said this like yesterday or the day before?
MR PRICE: | did. | did. | absolutely did.

QUESTION: No, no, you didn't. You left it open, and so, like, it's been — it’s crazy. | mean, you said
“I’'m not going to characterize whether we think the FTO designation on the IRGC” —

MR PRICE: Well, | didn’'t. I'm not characterizing specific sanctions. Again, this is why we have a
negotiator in Vienna and a team in Vienna, to speak to specific — the specifics of this. The point I'm
making is precisely the same point | made yesterday, perhaps inartfully, but the same point | tried to
make yesterday: namely, that when it comes to Iran’s nefarious activities — support for terrorism, its
human rights abuses, its ballistic missile program, its support for proxies — we will continue to push
back on that. Sanctions will continue to be important tools for doing that.

QUESTION: Just one more on that. Is Rob Malley staying in Vienna next week?

MR PRICE: | expect Rob will be returning to the United States as these talks break for the weekend. |
don’t have any details to provide just yet on his — any return travel.

QUESTION: And who'd he meet with while he was —
MR PRICE: I'm sorry?
QUESTION: And who'd he meet with while he was there?

MR PRICE: He had an opportunity to meet with the IAEA director general; he had an opportunity to
meet with his Austrian — not his Austrian counterpart, but the Austrian foreign minister. He had an
opportunity to meet with representatives of the P5+1.

Yes.
QUESTION: Different topic, Northern Ireland.
PARTICIPANT: Yep.

QUESTION: | know Jen spoke to this a little bit a moment ago. How concerned are you with the —
what we've seen in recent days with the violence in Northern Ireland? And does the administration
have any plans diplomatically on this, such as the appointment of a special envoy in Northern Ireland
again?

MR PRICE: Well, we are deeply concerned by the violence in Northern Ireland, and we join the British,
the Irish, and the Northern Irish leaders in their calls for calm. We remain, as you have heard us say
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before, steadfast supporters of a secure and prosperous Northern Ireland in which all communities
have a voice and all communities enjoy the gains of a hard-won peace. This is something that the
President has spoken to quite passionately in the past. We welcome the provisions in both the EU-UK
Trade and Cooperation Agreement and the Northern Ireland Protocol, which help to protect the gains
of the Belfast and the Good Friday agreements.

As the United Kingdom and the EU implement Brexit-related provisions, this administration encourages
them to prioritize political and economic stability in Northern Ireland. As | said before, President Biden
has been unequivocal in his support for the Belfast and Good Friday agreement, which was an historic
achievement. We believe that we must protect it and we believe that we must ensure it doesn’t
become a casualty of Brexit.

When it comes to personnel moves on our side, | don’'t have anything to preview or to forecast, but
suffice it to say that we are — our partners in Northern Ireland, in the UK — I'm sorry, in the UK, in
Ireland, Northern Ireland — of course, they are close friends. We, of course, are willing and ready to
support them.

QUESTION: If | could press you on one part. You said it shouldn't become the casualty of Brexit. Is it
the view of this administration that these problems could have been avoided had Brexit not occurred?

MR PRICE: Well, this administration wants to see a strong UK and a strong EU. I'm not going to go
back and litigate the past.

Andrea.

QUESTION: Can | follow on that and then ask another question about Afghanistan? Is there — what is
the status of any bilateral trade talks with the UK, in light of what’s happening with Northern Ireland?

MR PRICE: Well, this President has been very clear about where he stands when it comes to trade
agreements. He believes that we must first invest in ourselves. He believes that we must first take
stock of where we are, what we can do here at home, because he knows, Secretary Blinken knows,
that in many ways — and | believe Jake Sullivan often uses this phrase — that domestic policy is foreign
policy and foreign policy is domestic policy. We know that our vitality here at home is our vitality on the
world stage. It is a key source of strength, and we’ve spoken to that domestic vitality as a source of
strength vis-a-vis any challenge we face, whether it is a nation-state, whether it is a non-state threat,
but across the board.

And so that is why this administration is first and foremost focused on investing in ourselves before we
then go back and take a look at free trade agreements, whether it’s in the context of Europe, whether
it’s in the context of Asia, whether it’s in any other context.

QUESTION: Well, that raises the question as to whether you don’t — the administration does not
believe that free trade agreements lead to vitality here, that they are a win-win.

MR PRICE: This administration believes in deep economic cooperation, economic cooperation that is
guided by what'’s in our economic interests and that’s consistent with our values. We believe in high
labor standards. We believe in high — when it comes to climate, green technologies. We believe that
American workers need to be protected. So we believe absolutely in deep economic ties, deep
economic ties with our allies and partners around the world, but we also believe that we have to effect
those agreements consist with what is in the best interest of the American people and what is in the
collective interest, and whether that’s in terms of labor standards, whether that’s in terms of the
environment, those are absolutely elements that this administration will be looking at.
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QUESTION: Let me just ask you about Afghanistan. As we approach May 1st, there’s reporting that
there is frustration with — among the military — not the cabinet level, but among the military that there is
— let’s just say indecision or no clear timeline as we approach May 1st. And I’'m just wondering how
close we are to a decision on —

MR PRICE: Well —

QUESTION: — the Afghanistan withdrawal.

MR PRICE: So | think | will not break any new ground by saying that May 1st is three weeks away.
QUESTION: You're going out on a limb there. Wow. (Laughter.)

MR PRICE: That is on the record. You can lead with that. But the broader point, of course, is that we
have been engaged in this review of what has been agreed to as we look to this May 1st deadline.
The President has spoken specifically to the deadline. | think you should expect that the President will
— have an opportunity to speak to this issue again before we reach that deadline, which again is only a
few weeks away. This is something that across the interagency, this department, the military, the
intelligence community, all of the relevant components have been engaged in.

Knowing that, the decisions ahead will have implications for this country, and the President has been
very clear: He wants to see our military presence end in Afghanistan. This is not a position he has
arrived at recently. It’s also not a position he has arrived at lightly. The administration is committed to
bringing a responsible end to the conflict, committed to removing our troops from harm’s way, and
committed to ensuring that Afghanistan can never again become a haven for terrorists who would
threaten the United States or our allies. Those are the principles that are guiding these discussions.
And those are the principles that will guide what we ultimately will hear from this administration. This is
not a decision that any administration should take lightly. It's certainly not one that this administration
takes lightly.

QUESTION: Is there any anticipation that you will have — any assurance that Afghanistan will not
become a haven for terrorists given the state of the talks right now?

MR PRICE: | —it's — | will say a couple things. As you know, we have sought to galvanize the
diplomacy between the parties knowing that there is no military solution to what we face in
Afghanistan. It’s precisely why at all levels, the President, the Secretary of State, the — Ambassador
Khalilzad and his team have been working tirelessly, including in the region, including in Doha, including
in Turkey, including in Russia just the other week to see to it or to lay the groundwork as best we can
for those two things we seek to accomplish: a comprehensive political settlement, and a
comprehensive ceasefire.

We know that in the end diplomacy is what will allow for the people of Afghanistan to have the best
shot at what they deserve, and that is peace, it is security, it is prosperity, it is dignity. And that is
what — that is a task we’ve been engaged in at all levels since January 20th of this year.

QUESTION: China — | wanted to ask — Senators Menendez and Risch unveiled their comprehensive
bipartisan China legislation, the Strategic Competition Act. | haven't gone all the way through it, but it
mentions sanctions a couple dozen times. Is the State Department or the administration involved in
working with them on that? Does it approve of this legislation? Is it a good idea for Congress to be
setting foreign policy and sanctions rules, or is that something that the administration would prefer to
do in consultation with Congress and allies?

MR PRICE: Well, as a general rule, we don't comment on pending legislation, so | won't comment on
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this legislation specifically. What | will say, however, is that we know when it comes to the challenges
we face in the world — and of course we have spoken of competition with China as a defining
challenge for this administration — that we will enjoy the greatest amount of success when we work
hand-in-hand with Congress, and when our proposals find support on both sides of the aisle in
Congress, and that when we work closely with Congress on their proposals.

We have been heartened that there is a good deal of bipartisan agreement when it comes to how we
should and could approach the government in Beijing, the PRC. This is precisely one of the reasons
why, following their consultations, their discussions, | should say, with their Chinese — with their PRC
counterparts, National Security Advisor Sullivan and Secretary Blinken met with Alaska’s two
Republican senators. We know that any approach to the PRC has to be — has to have bipartisan
support. It has to have the support of Congress. It's precisely why this Secretary has committed to
consultations with Congress, as he likes to say, not only on the landing but also at takeoff, also mid-
air. And that’s precisely what we’ve been doing, and we look forward to continuing that engagement
on China.

QUESTION: Has that engagement begun with the Senate Foreign Relations Committee on China and
other issues?

MR PRICE: I'm sorry?

QUESTION: Has that engagement already begun with the Senate Foreign Relations Committee as it

MR PRICE: We have had a number of occasion to — | don’'t want to read out specific briefings, but we
have had a number of occasions to send briefers from this building to offer insight into our thinking on
any number of challenges, to update lawmakers on what it is we’re doing, to seek their ideas on how
we could work together to take on challenges. And, of course, as | said before, our approach to the
PRC and the competition with China is a defining challenge for this administration.

QUESTION: Ned, just on your takeoff, mid-flight, and landing consultations with Congress, | want to
go back to something yesterday, the resumption of aid to the Palestinians. You said, as you were
announcing it, that we have been gratified by the bipartisan support or by the reaction that we have
had from Congress on a bipartisan basis. What'’s the basis for that? I'm — are you aware of a single
Republican who has come out in support of this?

MR PRICE: The basis for that, Matt, are reactions we have heard, again, in our consultations with
Congress, as you may know — as you may know better than most, given your reporting. We have
consulted with Congress and we did consult with Congress on this funding decision.

Let me also make another point, though. The funding we were speaking about yesterday was funding
that was set aside not during this Congress, but during the last Congress.

QUESTION: Oh, you're talking about when it was actually — what — you're talking about prior.
MR PRICE: No, | —

QUESTION: Since the announcement.

MR PRICE: | am talking about what we have — and again, | wouldn't —

QUESTION: Which was not — which was — maybe there were a couple of Republicans who voted for
it when it was in the budget bill or whatever — the reconciliation bill or whatever it was —
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MR PRICE: It was —

QUESTION: — but | —

MR PRICE: It was appropriated by the last Congress.

QUESTION: Have you heard support —

MR PRICE: — a Republican Congress during a Republican administration.

QUESTION: Can you identify some — any specific example —

MR PRICE: | am —

QUESTION: — of support for what you have announced over the last day or so from Republicans?

MR PRICE: | am not going to speak for members. I’'m not going to speak for members. But | think
there is broad consensus. There is consensus, certainly, that supporting a two-state solution is
consistent with our values. It's consistent with our interests, that’s supporting the humanitarian needs
of the Palestinian people. It's consistent with our values. It’s consistent with our interest in supporting
the security and providing the security assistance, which in turn redounds positively on the security of
our ally, Israel.

QUESTION: But that’s — that’s far different than claiming to have bipartisan support for specific
assistance that many — not just Republicans, but also Democrats — think may violate the law.

MR PRICE: And | think —

QUESTION: So I'm just curious, when you say that you have bipartisan support for this, you're
referring to the passage, which was contested, of the previous budget, and not the announcement
yesterday, right?

MR PRICE: The funding that was approved during the last administration, a Republican administration,
by a Republican Congress —

QUESTION: Yeah, yeah, yeah —
MR PRICE: But also — but also — but also, we —

QUESTION: | get that, but the last administration also cut all of that funding, right. So | just want to
know, yesterday — since yesterday, since you announced this and made it public, for UNRWA, for the
— and for the other stuff, have you have you heard from any Republicans saying yes, we’re on board?

MR PRICE: | would not want to speak to individual conversations, but as you know, Matt, we have
had consultations with Congress on this, going back to my earlier point about consultations at takeoff
and on the landing, and we have had many opportunities to hear from Congress about this.

Yes.

QUESTION: | wanted to ask on the North Korea review, we've been hearing that it’s in the final
stages for a couple of weeks now. Wondering if you could comment on what’s the holdup with that.
Are you waiting for an assistant secretary to be confirmed or is there something else? And also, when
that review is complete, how are we going to know? What sort of format is it going to take?
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MR PRICE: Well, | would contest the idea there’s any sort of holdup. We were talking earlier in this
briefing about the careful consideration of a major decision in a completely different context. And |
think that would also apply to this case. North Korea’s nuclear program, North Korea'’s ballistic missile
program of course is a profound challenge, not only, again, for the United States, but also for our
allies in the Indo-Pacific and our partners as well.

And so of course, we want to make sure we do a number of things: Number one, we want to make
sure we know and have a good understanding of what has been tried in the past. And we’ve said
before that we have consulted widely, including with former administration officials, about their
approach, their strategy, their tactics. We want to make sure we understand fully the nature of North
Korea’s programs, where they are, what their intentions and capabilities might be. We want to ensure
that we have consulted broadly and widely and deeply with our partners and, of course, with our
treaty allies.

And that is precisely why as his first physical trip Secretary Blinken went to Japan, went to the
Republic of Korea. It’s precisely why Acting Assistant Secretary Kim hosted a trilateral meeting among
his — with his South Korean and Japanese counterparts. It's why National Security Advisor Sullivan
hosted his South Korean and Japanese counterparts at the Naval Academy only a few days ago to
make sure that we understand the concerns of our allies, to make sure we understand and to see to it
that we are working in concert and in coordination with one another.

And so | would suspect, and the White House has said this, that the review is in its — entering its final
stages. | wouldn't want to get ahead of the White House or get ahead of that review and to offer a
timeline on it, but we are undertaking this review with careful consideration given the nature of this
challenge and the many stakeholders that are involved.

QUESTION: Separate question on the COVAX — sorry, vaccine diplomacy that you've been talking
about this week. You — the Secretary sort of talked about giving money to COVAX separately, loans
and giving vaccines themselves to allies. Is there a prioritization issue here? Why not give the excess
vaccines to COVAX, who can give them to the middle and lower-income countries that seem — surely
that’s the priority?

MR PRICE: WEell, there is a prioritization issue here. And this administration — this President —
Secretary Blinken mentioned it on Monday as well — has been very clear that first and foremost our
primary task is to ensure the distribution of a safe and effective vaccine to Americans here at home.
That is what we are focused on at the moment.

Now, that doesn't mean that we can't play a leadership role when it comes to helping the world
address this virus, knowing that Americans here at home can't be fully safe if this virus is mutating in
the wild. And that’s precisely why the administration has contributed $2 billion to COVAX with a pledge
of 2 billion more. It’s precisely why have spoken to our efforts in the context of the Quad, our efforts in
the context of the — our partnership with our Canadian and Mexican partners as well.

Now, as the virus comes under control in this country and distribution of a safe and effective vaccine
continues, as we account for contingencies and scenarios that could come to pass here, could come
to pass elsewhere, it's certainly our hope that we’'ll be in a position to do more. But again, right now,
we’re focused on ensuring we do everything we can to beat this disease here at home just as we help
the other countries with our profound assistance that has already gone out the door.

QUESTION: When you do get to that point of we're ready to give away — to provide vaccines to other
parts of the world, where is the priority in terms of — yeah, COVAX — giving money to COVAXis one
thing, but COVAX needs vaccines rather than cash, right?
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MR PRICE: Right, but I'm just not today in a position to entertain a hypothetical. That's something that
we may be able to speak more about in the coming days.

Yes.

QUESTION: Or any day.

QUESTION: So there are growing concerns that elections in Chad and Benin this weekend may
accelerate the erosion of democracy in Africa given criticism that governments in these two countries
have suppressed opposition. How does the U.S. see the elections and how might the outcome of the —
these two elections affect relations with the — with these two countries? Thank you.

MR PRICE: WEell, | would start by saying we are watching these elections very closely. We call on all
actors to remain peaceful. We share with the people of Benin and Chad their desire for democratic,
peaceful elections that ensure voters have a choice, and that is a choice among candidates who share
their perspectives. Of course, we don’t support any one candidate. What we do support is a credible
democratic process itself. That is true in Chad and Benin. That is true around the world.

We further underscore the importance of protecting freedoms of assembly and expression, including
opinions about any candidate or political party online and in the media. We urge all parties to express
their perspectives peacefully and we urge the electoral institutions and courts overseeing these
processes and verifying these results to ensure these elections are conducted freely, fairly, and
transparently. And we’ll be watching in the days ahead.

QUESTION: (Off-mike.)

QUESTION: Opposition and civil — sorry, if | may just follow up, quick question: Opposition and civil
society groups in Chad have said that Western countries, including the United States, have overlooked
the human rights abuse in Chad because of the President Deby’s role in the fight against terrorism in
the Sahel region. Would you like to comment on such allegation?

MR PRICE: | would say — | would make two broad points. Number one is that security engagement
with Chad, and across the African continent for that matter, keeps Americans safe and it keeps our
African partners safe. | would also add that respect for human rights and fundamental freedoms is a
pillar of our foreign policy, and we’ve had an opportunity to speak about that in this briefing room in
recent days. So we will certainly take a holistic approach to security challenges, ensuring that our
security assistance and approaches to governance are mutually reinforcing and sufficiently
comprehensive as well.

We continuously work closely with our partners at DOD, the Intelligence Community, and other
stakeholders to review all of our overseas deployments, including in Africa, to ensure they are the right
size, to ensure that they are protecting and promoting human rights, and to assist our partners on a
comprehensive basis in confronting the threats they pose from terrorists and other violent extremist
organizations.

Rosiland, go ahead.

QUESTION: | wanted to go back to the Ethiopia announcement. $152 million is a sizable amount of
money, and noting that the National Security Advisor had a conversation yesterday with the deputy
prime minister, is this administration growing frustrated with Ethiopia’s treatment of people in the
Tigray region? What pressure is the administration putting on the Ethiopian Government to stop
committing human rights violations? And finally, is this administration worried that there may be actions
verging on genocide happening in Tigray?
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MR PRICE: Well, we have had an occasion to engage directly with the Ethiopian Government. You
mentioned the call that National Security Advisor Jake Sullivan had with the Ethiopian deputy prime
minister. Secretary Blinken has spoken with the Ethiopian prime minister. Senator Coons, acting at
President Biden's behalf, has recently traveled to the region. And our messaging across all of those
engagements has been consistent. We are deeply concerned about the — what we have — the reports
that are emanating from Tigray about the humanitarian plight of the Tigrayan people. And | would say
that while the recent announcement of the Ethiopian Government’s commitment to providing
humanitarian access to Tigray are welcome, we are, of course, looking for deeds to match those
words.

And we continue to monitor the implementation of what we have heard emanate from Addis Ababa.
We have called for full and unhindered access consistently since the start of this crisis. It is absolutely
critical for humanitarian community to — not only to scale up its response, but also to ensure that that
humanitarian assistance is reaching the people in need. As | said, we are we are also encouraged by
Prime Minister Abiy’s announcement that the Government of Eritrea has agreed to withdraw its forces
from Ethiopia. But we also want to see follow-through on this commitment and to see the immediate
and complete withdrawal of Eritrean forces.

We know that a cessation of hostilities and an end to the Ethiopian Government’s deployment of
Amhara regional forces in Tigray — both of these things are essential to ensuring full and unhindered
humanitarian access. And we continue to urge the government to implement even further, even
additional methods to ensure this unhindered humanitarian access, knowing how important it is.

QUESTION: Well, it would appear that President Abiy and his government are resisting if the U.S. is
having to repeat its calls for access, for relief, for not harming its citizens in Tigray. What is this
administration prepared to do to make President Abiy know that you're serious about this? Are there
repercussions coming?

MR PRICE: Well, | think the Ethiopian leadership knows just how serious we are. It is a message the
leadership has heard directly. It is a message we have relayed via different channels, different
messengers. But again, the message has been consistent. Our concern for the reports that are
emanating, that have emanated from Tigray, we have made no secret of that. We have gone to
tremendous lengths to provide, to make available, | should say, humanitarian assistance. Of course,
the U.S. Agency for National Development has deployed a DART, a Disaster Assistance Response
Team, as well.

And now the task ahead of us is to make sure that these welcome, these constructive statements
emanating from Addis, that again, they are met with concrete action, and that there is follow-through.
We have left no doubt with our — with the Ethiopian leadership that there needs to be follow through
given the humanitarian crisis that has unfolded in Tigray.

Kylie.

QUESTION: (Inaudible) guys’s statement on being disturbed about Aleksey Navalny, but I'm just
wondering if there’s any action that is being considered right now in terms of further advocating for his
release.

MR PRICE: Well, you've heard this from the department, you've heard this from the White House, but
it bears repeating that Mr. Navalny exposure of the regime’s corruption in the first instance prompted
his politically motivated detention and arrest. And we are of course disturbed by these reports that Mr.
Navalny’s health is worsening and that he is on a hunger strike to demand access to outside medical
care. We urge authorities to take all necessary action to ensure his safety and to ensure his good
health. And we reiterate our call for his immediate release as well as an end to the persecution of his
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supporters.

It was only last month — it was on March 2nd that we took action to impose costs on Russia for the
events surrounding Mr. Navalny — of course, his attempted murder, his attempted assassination using
chemical weapons, his subsequent arrests and imprisonment. And in doing so, we mirrored actions
taken both by the EU and the UK, again understanding that when we act in concert we have — our
actions carry much more heft. We know that Russia’s use of chemical weapons has consequences,
and it did have consequence — consequences for Moscow.

| wouldn't want to preview what may lie ahead if Moscow continues down this road, but we've made
abundantly clear that we will continue to hold Moscow to account. And we've spoken of many areas of
that malign activity. We've spoken about SolarWinds. We have referred to Moscow’s interference in
our elections. We have spoken to Mr. Navalny — his attempted assassination, his arrest, his continued
detention, the repression of his supporters, and of course the reports of bounties on the heads of
American soldiers in Afghanistan. Moscow is — or at least should be — under no illusion that we do
intend to hold Russia to account for these actions. We can, and we will, just as we seek more broadly
a relationship that is stable and a relationship that is predictable. Up until now it has been the Russian
Government, the Kremlin that has injected that instability into the relationship, including through these
malign activities.

That may be an indication that we have gone on for too long. And unfortunately, | do have to runto a
meeting. Very quick question.

QUESTION: How soon will you hold Russia accountable? We've been waiting for the other shoe to
drop.

MR PRICE: President Biden has made very clear that Russia will be held to account. President Biden
is a man of his word, and | think you will have another reminder of that. Thank you.

QUESTION: Thank you.
(The briefing was concluded at 2:58 p.m.)
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MR PRICE: Good afternoon. Good to see you all again. Some of you I've seen quite a bit of over the
last few weeks, but — last few days, | should say, but not all of you. But it's good to be back. We have
a few items at the top.

First, on behalf of the United States, we offer the people of Chad our sincere condolences as they
mourn the passing of President Deby.

We condemn recent violence and loss of life in Chad.

The United States stands with the people of Chad during this difficult time. We support a peaceful
transition of power in accordance with the Chadian constitution.

Next, we welcome the agreement reached in Georgia yesterday, April 19th, to bring an end to the
country’s political crisis.

This agreement, reached under the auspices of EU President Michel's mediation, required difficult
compromises by all sides. Above all, it required political courage and a commitment to the people of
Georgia to continue the hard work of building democratic institutions and strengthening the rule of law.
It’s a sign of the important progress for Georgia’s democratic development. Implementation, of
course, will be equally important.

And we invite individual members of parliament and remaining parties to sign the agreement so that all
of Georgia’s elected representatives can begin working together on the pressing issues facing
Georgia.

The United States is committed to assisting the Georgian parliament to ensure this agreement
achieves its aspirations. And, as always, we stand ready to support Georgia on its path towards full
integration into the Euro-Atlantic family of nations.

Next, Secretary Blinken will meet tomorrow with 15 foreign ministers of the Caribbean Community,
known also as CARICOM.

They will discuss a number of issues affecting our region, including climate change and disaster
resilience, and reinforce the deep bond we share with our Caribbean neighbors.

The United States is continuing to support the people of Saint Vincent as they deal with the eruption of
La Soufriere volcano.
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Yesterday, the Sudan Sovereign Council and Council of Ministers voted to repeal its more than six-
decade-long boycott of Israel. The United States welcomes the announcement. It’s an important step
that will create new, promising opportunities for the people of Sudan, Israel, and across the region.

The announcement brings Sudan and Israel closer to normalizing relations and will have tangible,
immediate impacts on the lives of the Sudanese and Israelis, allowing trade and investment that was
previously blocked.

This announcement was the result of hard work by our diplomats and their counterparts in Sudan and
Israel. We are pleased to welcome this new era in Sudanese-Israeli relations, and we look forward to
seeing the fruits, the fruits this boycott’s end will bear.

And finally, | wanted to make note that as of Sunday, we can confirm that the department has
completed deployment of vaccines to all of our posts abroad. This announcement represents over
190,000 doses distributed to 220 postings around the world, allowing us to offer the vaccine to all
direct-hire employees, locally engaged staff, and eligible family members.

Thanks to the work of countless people — our diplomatic couriers, post representatives, logisticians,
and clinicians both here in the United States and around the world — not a single dose was lost in
transit since we began our vaccine rollout in December of last year.

This collective effort is reflective of the Secretary’s commitment to support the health, safety, and the
security of the department’s workforce so that we can continue to carry out our mission on behalf of
the American people.

With that —
QUESTION: Really? Not a single dose was lost — like, not even one fell off the cart?
MR PRICE: Not — from Belize to Belgium, not a single dose was lost.

QUESTION: This is like when you went out to play golf for the first time and you got 17 holes-in-one,
right? Not a single dose was lost. Right.

MR PRICE: Not — our — this is a true testament to the experts in this building and everyone who had a
hand in this. And of course, we know this has been on the minds of our employees around the world,
and so we wanted to make note of this important news.

QUESTION: Thank you. Can | — | do want to ask about Chad, but first just two really brief ones, and
I'll let someone else go after I'm done with this.

But on Sudan, when you talk about the lifting of the Israeli boycott, how much of this work was done to
get them to lift it post-January 20th, and how much of it was done by the previous administration?

MR PRICE: Right. Well, Matt, the way we look at this, this was an accomplishment for America, for
the Israeli people, for the Sudanese people, and of course, for the American people. Now, it is true
that it was the result of work that spanned two administrations. We have said repeatedly — and I’'m not
saying this for the first time today — that the normalization agreements that were started by the
previous administration — certainly something we want to build upon. It is one of those areas of
agreement, one of those areas we share with the previous administration. We look to build on them.
We herald the progress that this news today signifies.

QUESTION: And then on Chad, so you said you're offering sincere condolence — unless anyone else
wants to ask on Sudan. No?
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MR PRICE: Please.

QUESTION: No. Just on Chad. Do you think that the appointment of now the late President Deby’s
son is in keeping with this Chadian constitution?

MR PRICE: Well, Matt, what | would say is, again, we are — our thoughts are with the Chadian people
at this time. We stand with them. We continue to condemn recent violence and loss of life in Chad, and
importantly, we support a peaceful transition of power in accordance with the Chadian constitution.
That’s what is important here in terms of what this means going forward.

QUESTION: Okay. But that didn't answer my question at all.

MR PRICE: What we are saying and what is important to us —
QUESTION: You get that it doesn’t answer my question, right?
MR PRICE: But Matt, our —

QUESTION: Not but. You get that it doesn't answer my question?

MR PRICE: Matt, our focus now is that what happens next is a peaceful transition of power in
accordance with the Chadian constitution.

Yes.
QUESTION: But you're not going to weigh in on whether —
QUESTION: (Inaudible) what happened is — happened based on the constitution?

MR PRICE: We are standing, of course, with the people of Chad. We will be watching very closely.
We will be supporting the people of Chad and seeking to ensure — to help them ensure that everything
going forward is in accordance with their constitution.

QUESTION: More on Chad?
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: So given Deby was an ally in the fight against Islamist militant groups, how worried is the
United States that his death is going to — the counterterrorism effort will be disrupted? And also, have
you guys reached out to his son or the transition council, tried to make any contact?

MR PRICE: So, of course, we will continue work with our regional partners such as the G5 and the
Multinational Joint Task Force to combat violent extremist organizations in the region. | suspect that
and | am confident that work will continue. | don't have any details of calls to read out at this time. But
we wanted to make clear that our support for the Chadian people remains strong.

Obviously, we continue to condemn the violence, and the United States will continue to partner with
them. In recent months, we’ve provided millions of dollars in humanitarian support to the Chadian
people, and we will continue to do everything we can to support the peaceful transition of power,
again, that’s in accordance with their constitution.

QUESTION: Have you reached out to the son?

MR PRICE: | don't have any calls to read out.
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QUESTION: Or the transitional council?

MR PRICE: | don't have any calls to read out at this time.
QUESTION: Can | move on to Russia?

QUESTION: One on Chad? You have one on Chad?

QUESTION: Just briefly on Chad. Just one thing about it is that the parliament has been dissolved. |Is
that problematic in any way? Is this still something that you see as consistent with the transition that
you mentioned?

MR PRICE: Well, again, what we want to see is a transition that is consistent with Chad’s constitution.
Obviously, Chad’s institutions are enshrined in its constitution. We want to see the elements of that
constitution protected going forward, whether that entails a transition of power or the sanctity and
integrity of Chad’s institutions.

| heard Russia.

QUESTION: Can you talk about — a little bit about the circumstances of his death? Do you have any
more details? And what about embassy staff, Americans there? What'’s your advice to people?

MR PRICE: Well, we don't have any details to share regarding the circumstances of his death. | know
that Chadian authorities have spoken to this. | would need to refer you there.

In terms of what this means for the American embassy there, effective April 17th, the U.S. Embassy in
Chad remains on ordered departure status. We continually adjust our posture at embassies, in
consulates, missions around the world in line with local security concerns and the health situation on
the ground. We are committed, even though we remain on ordered departure, to a strong, diplomatic
partnership with Chad. That will not change. The charge remains in Chad and the embassy there
continues to operate.

QUESTION: A follow-up on that?
MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: Before the border shut down, you were advising Americans to get on commercial flights
to leave.

MR PRICE: That’s right.

QUESTION: Given that that’'s no longer possible, what efforts are being undertaken to help Americans
still on the ground?

MR PRICE: Well, the embassy does remain open. We are providing services, as we always do,
consular services to American citizens. The embassy has been in contact with public messages to the
American community in Chad. As you mentioned, we did pass on messages to them in the context of
this violence and will continue to support them to the best of our ability, given the status, the operating
status of the embassy in Chad.

QUESTION: Can | quickly follow up? Are you planning any evacuation flights now that commercial
options are no longer available?

MR PRICE: | don't have anything to preview at this time. Of course, the safety and security of our
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citizens around the world, including those citizens who remain in Chad, are — is a paramount concern.
The embassy and the department will continue to support them.

Russia.

QUESTION: Yes. So as Ambassador Sullivan is returning to Washington, can you just like give a
broad assessment of how would the State Department characterize the current state of relationship
with Russia? Are you seeing signs from Moscow of potentially deepening crisis, or contrary, do they
seem to be de-escalating? And | have a follow-up.

MR PRICE: Well, | would start by saying what we would like to see of our relationship with Moscow.
And as | have said before, we would like to see a relationship with Moscow that is stable and that is
predictable. Now, of course, there has been instability and unpredictability injected into this
relationship, and that has been done by the actions of the Russian Federation and by President Putin.
And we have spoken to those actions in the past.

And in fact, as we have said from the earliest days of this administration, we undertook a review of a
discrete set of actions: the SolarWinds cyber activity, election interference, the attack on Mr.
Navalny’s life, the assassination attempt using a banned chemical weapon against him, the crackdown
we have since seen on his supporters, and, as we have mentioned, the reports on bounties on
American soldiers in Afghanistan.

All of those things, of course, injected instability, unpredictability, and frankly, danger into a relationship
that we would like to see predictable and stable going forward. That is why President Biden has been
resolute. Even before he became President, in July of last year, he made clear that if Moscow
interfered in the 2020 election, there would be a price to pay once he became President. We have
seen a response in March, last month, to what the Russian Federation has done vis-a-vis Mr. Navalny
and his supporters. And then last week, of course, we saw a response to what has transpired in the
broader context, and that includes SolarWinds, that includes the election interference. Of course, that
announcement also spoke to what has become of Mr. Navalny, his supporters, and the reports of
bounties on the heads of U.S. soldiers.

So we announced a series of actions that were proportionate and that were appropriate to respond to
Russia’s harmful activities. Now, of course, we have heard various reports emanate from Russia about
their potential response from Moscow. We have not yet received any official diplomatic
correspondence providing details of the Russian Government’s actions against the diplomatic mission
of the United States of America in Russia. We have seen those reports, but we haven’t seen any
official communication from Moscow.

Of course, when we do receive any correspondence from Russian authorities, we will review that, and
we reserve the right, of course, to respond as we see fit.

QUESTION: | didn't hear an answer, but let me quickly go to Navalny, and I’'m going to leave it to
others to follow up. Jake Sullivan over the weekend said there is going to be consequences if Navalny
dies. Why wait? Couldn’t the United States do something to avoid that outcome?

MR PRICE: Well, | wouldn’t say we've waited. | would say a couple things. On March 2nd, | believe it
was, we announced a series of sanctions together with our partners in the international community to
hold accountable the Russian authorities for what they had done to Mr. Navalny: the attempted
assassination attempt — again, using a banned chemical weapon — the repression of his supporters
who had taken to the streets seeking to do nothing more than to exercise the rights that are
guaranteed to them under their very own constitution, under the Russian constitution.
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So last month, we enacted a series of measures together with some of our closest allies around the
world to respond to that. | would say that it is — we are certainly looking and will not hesitate to use
additional policy tools should that be in our interest and in the interest of human rights in Russia in the
context of Mr. Navalny going forward.

Now, we are holding Russia and Moscow accountable for anything that does happen to Mr. Navalny
because they are responsible for his deteriorating health state. We call on them to allow for access to
necessary and independent medical care immediately in response to these disturbing reports that his
health has worsened rapidly. We have communicated this in no uncertain terms. We've done so
publicly, as | have done just now, and we have done so through other channels as well. There should
be no question for the Russian Government that there will be consequences if something becomes of
Mr. Navalny while he’s in their custody.

QUESTION: Sorry, Ned. Just two really brief ones. When you say you have not yet received any
official communication from Moscow, that’s about the retaliatory — the reciprocal expulsion of 10
Americans?

MR PRICE: Well, we wouldn't call it reciprocal —

QUESTION: Yeah, all right —

MR PRICE: — because, again, our actions were not escalatory.
QUESTION: They would — they would call it reciprocal.

MR PRICE: Well —

QUESTION: You kicked out 10, they’re going to kick out 10. But anyway, is that what you're talking
about?

MR PRICE: That’s right.
QUESTION: So it doesn’t have any — that’s it on what you have not received communication?
MR PRICE: That is correct.

QUESTION: Okay. And then secondly, you talk a lot about Navalny, which is fair enough, but there
are a couple of Americans —

MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: — actual American citizens. Navalny, of course, is not an American citizen. So what do
you make of the situation involving Trevor Reed and the others?

MR PRICE: Yes. Well, we continue to be seriously concerned, as we have said on a number of
occasions, regarding the treatment of Americans who are unjustly detained in Moscow. That includes
Paul Whelan and Trevor Reed. Both of them traveled to Russia as tourists. They were arrested. They
have been convicted without credible evidence. We expect Russia to do the right thing, and that is to
authorize their release and return them to their families in the United States. Both of these individuals
have been deprived of their freedom for far too long. | can tell you that the Special Presidential Envoy
for Hostage Affairs, Ambassador Carstens, is working these cases aggressively, doing all we can to
provide support not only to these individuals, but also to their families.

QUESTION: So that means you regard them as hostages?
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MR PRICE: It means that we believe they are being held unjustly in Russia.

QUESTION: Thank you. Just two on Russia. One, | mean, are you seeking clarification from Russia
on what those reciprocal measures will be? How many diplomats have to leave? And what about
Russian — local Russian staff who work for the U.S. embassy?

MR PRICE: Well, we’re going to leave it to the Russian Government to determine when and how they
want to relay any communication to the United States Government, whether that’s through our
embassy or otherwise.

When it comes to the local staff, we — and this goes back to what we have heard publicly — the
Russian Government has made an unfortunate public announcement regarding locally employed staff.
It goes without saying that steps to prohibit the employment of local staff members will impact our
personnel in the American community in Russia. Our local staff are key members of our workforce
around the world. That includes in the Russian Federation. Their contributions are important to our
operations and to our bilateral mission, and they’re important to our overall goal of having a
relationship — seeking, | should say, a relationship with Russia that is stable and predictable.

This is a key point. We seek to have continued diplomatic access to the Russian Federation, knowing
that it is in our interest, knowing that only through diplomatic channels will we be able to move in the
direction of a relationship that we would like to see with Russia over time. That is precisely one of the
reasons why President Biden in his call with President Putin last week held out the opportunity for a
meeting between the two presidents in the coming months.

Even as we have these tremendous disagreements — and that certainly understates what we face
from the Russian Federation and their malign activities, their efforts to undermine democracy,
territorial integrity, to violate the human rights of their own citizens — we seek to have a constructive
dialogue, and a dialogue that can work to our national interest. WWe made this point in the earliest days
of this administration when we extended the New START agreement by five years. We didn’'t do that
as a gift to Moscow. We didn’t do that because the Russians asked for it or because the Russians
wanted it. We did that because it was, and it is, in our national interest.

Something else that is in our national interest is strategic stability. It is in no one’s interest to have and
to see the proliferation of nuclear weapons, an untold number of nuclear weapons, that whether by
accident or intentionally could unleash catastrophe on the world. And so of course that is why we
would also be open to strategic stability talks in the context of any discussions with — high-level
discussions with the Russian Federation.

The point remains that it is — there are certain elements that are absolutely in our national interest, and
that is why we seek to have a fully functioning embassy on the ground, and why we continue to
engage, as appropriate, the Russian Federation.

QUESTION: Two quick ones —

QUESTION: So — but just to follow up on that quickly, so they — you have — aside from that public
announcement on local staff, you've gotten no direct notification on —

MR PRICE: That’s right.

QUESTION: — on them? Okay. And then also on the Ukraine military buildup, does the Secretary or
the State Department or the administration have an official view, or do you have any thoughts on why
they’re doing this?
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MR PRICE: Well, | wouldn’t want to get into the motivations of the Russians. | — there may be
assessments within the U.S. Government. Rather than speak to the motivations of the Russian
Federation, | would speak to what we are concerned about, and what we are doing about it. And it
goes without saying that we are deeply concerned by Russia’s ongoing aggressive actions and
rhetoric against Ukraine. As we’ve talked about last week when the Secretary was in Brussels
meeting with his NATO counterparts, as | mentioned the week before that from here, these actions
include credible reports of Russian troop buildup in occupied Crimea and around Ukraine’s borders.
And importantly, we are now seeing a presence of Russian troops at levels not seen since Russia’s
invasion in 2014, as well as continued attacks and other provocative actions by Russian-led forces at
the line of control.

So let me be clear: Russia is the aggressor here. We have seen no indication whatsoever that Ukraine
is engaging in provocations or escalating intentions — tensions. \What we have seen is a Russian
disinformation campaign designed to falsely blame Ukraine for the Kremlin’s own actions. This was
one of the primary discussions in Brussels last week at NATO Headquarters. It featured in every
discussion the Secretary had. The NATO alliance is resolute. We are — we spoke with one voice as
we continue to stand by our partner Ukraine, and of course, the Secretary last week had a meeting in
Brussels to meet with Foreign Minister Kuleba, his Ukrainian counterpart. We — the Secretary relayed
that message in private, made clear that the United States Government stands by Ukraine. We will
continue to support the government and the people of Ukraine in the face of what appears to be
intimidation.

QUESTION: On Iran?
MR PRICE: Anything else on Russia, or —

QUESTION: Two just quick — quick on Russia. So it sounds like — that the U.S. mission still employs
Russian local staff and that hasn’'t changed because there hasn’t been follow-up.

And then the second thing is just the strategic stability talks. Is there any way that you can talk a little
bit about what the U.S. conception is of that in terms of what aspects of the Russian arsenal is the
impetus behind the President wanting to talk to Putin about strategic stability?

MR PRICE: Well, | wouldn’'t want to get ahead of any discussions, and, of course, these discussions
are still hypothetical. The — as you saw from the readout from the White House yesterday, National
Security Advisor Sullivan had an opportunity to speak to his counterpart. Discussions have begun
about the possibility of a meeting between the two presidents in the coming weeks or months, and
strategic stability, of course, is one of those areas of mutual interest. But | wouldn't want to get ahead
of that right now, and you are correct about locally employed staff and their current status.

| heard Iran. Go ahead.

QUESTION: How long will Ambassador Sullivan be back in D.C., and who specifically will he be
meeting with while he’s here?

MR PRICE: So Ambassador Sullivan, of course, is an ambassador whom the incoming administration
asked to remain in his post. He very graciously agreed to remain for an initial period. He subsequently
even more graciously agreed to remain indefinitely. Ambassador Sullivan, as the ambassador to
Moscow, has worked in that country under very difficult, trying, I'm sure highly pressurized conditions
since he arrived in Moscow in January of 2021, | believe it was. He is —

QUESTION: 2020.
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MR PRICE: January 2020. You are right. Thank you. That would have been just a couple months ago.
Yes, 2020.

And as | understand it, he has not had an opportunity to return to the United States for some time,
including to see his family or to meet with incoming members — members of the current administration.

This, of course, is also an opportune time for the ambassador to return. He has been an integral
member of the team as the new administration has sought to plot out a new and — a new approach to
Moscow as we engaged in the policy planning process for the actions that have been rolled out in
recent weeks, including sanctions, including what you saw last week as well. And now, with those
elements behind us, this is a good time for the ambassador to come back, to undertake those
consultations, to see his family, of course, importantly, and | expect he will return to Moscow in the
coming weeks.

QUESTION: Can | follow up on that?
MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: Was that done at the request of the Russian Government, his return to the United
States?

MR PRICE: The ambassador has not been expelled. The ambassador’s — has not been ordered out of
the country. The ambassador is returning now at an opportune time to undertake consultations here,
to see his family, and again, | expect he'll return to Moscow in the coming weeks.

QUESTION: And just to follow up to — | mean, Russia had advised him to go home. So you're saying
there’s no link between his decision to come home and the Russian advice that he return home?

MR PRICE: Look, | will allow the Russian Government to speak to any advice they may have offered
the ambassador. | think for his part, for our part, Ambassador Sullivan is still very much Ambassador
Sullivan. He will be returning home to undertake consultations with the administration, to take a break,
to see his family, and again, | fully expect he will be returning to Moscow in the coming weeks.

QUESTION: What about the timing?
MR PRICE: I'm sorry?
QUESTION: What about the timing? Why now?

MR PRICE: Well, the timing | just mentioned. | just mentioned the timing. Of course, Ambassador
Sullivan has been deeply engaged in our new approach to Russia. He’s been deeply engaged in some
of the policy measures — in all of the policy measures, | should say, that we have spoken to in recent
days and recent weeks. Of course, with the announcement late last week and the prospect of a
meeting between President Biden and President Putin now weeks away, this is an opportune time for
the ambassador to return home to undertake those consultations and to do what’s important: to see
family and perhaps even take a little bit of R&R.

QUESTION: (Inaudible) on behalf of the Russian Government, but the fact of the matter is is that
Foreign Minister Lavrov and other people in the Foreign Ministry made it very clear last week that they
thought it would be — that he should come back for consultations. And just can we get a straight up
answer: Did that — did those comments, regardless of what you — regardless of what their motivation
was — did those comments have anything to do with his decision today, earlier today, to come back?
That’s it.
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MR PRICE: Ambassador Sullivan is still Ambassador Sullivan.
QUESTION: It’'s a really easy question.
MR PRICE: He is — no, no, no, but — but no, just —

QUESTION: Did the Russian — did the comments from the Russians suggesting that he — it may be a
good time for him to come back and — for consultations, did that have anything to do —

MR PRICE: We are at an opportune moment —
QUESTION: — with this?

MR PRICE: — for a number of reasons, as | said, in part because several actions are now in the
rearview mirror. The potential meeting between President Biden and President Putin is now weeks
away or longer, and so this is an opportune time for the ambassador to return home.

QUESTION: That is not a “no,” though.

MR PRICE: It's an opportune time for the ambassador to return home.
QUESTION: (Inaudible) saying that it's not a no. So | don’t know if it —
QUESTION: Iran?

MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Any update on the talks in Vienna, and any comments on Iranian President Rouhani’'s
comment? He said today that the talks in Vienna have progressed by about 60 to 70 percent. He
added if Americans act within the framework of honestly — of honesty, we will achieve results in a
short time.

MR PRICE: Well, before | get to that, | would just say generally that the talks have continued in
Vienna, as we know. The United States and Iran, we have together a stated common objective of
returning to mutual compliance with the JCPOA. We have been engaged constructively in a diplomatic
process to achieve that goal. | think it is — continues to be fair to say that the talks have been
businesslike; they have been positive. Yes, there has been some progress, but there remains a long
road ahead. And | think it’s fair to say that we have more road ahead of us than we do in the rearview
mirror.

We welcome — and you may have seen the statement from the Joint Commission today — we welcome
the Joint Commission’s establishment of a third working group. The chair of the Joint Commission put
out a statement on this working group, so we would refer you there for additional details. Of course,
Rob Malley has been leading the delegation and he’s been exploring concrete approaches concerning
the steps both Iran and the United States would need to take to return to mutual compliance. Again,
these discussions, they have been thorough, they have been thoughtful. Of course, they have not been
without difficulty, in part because these talks are indirect, and so, of course, there are going to be
logistical hurdles associated with that.

We have shared ideas among the delegations present. It’s fair to say that there have been no
breakthroughs, but we've always said that this process, even if it were going quite well, would not be
easy or quick, and, of course, that remains true. | think you may have also seen in the statement
issued by the Joint Commission that delegations are returning to their respective capitals. That will be
true of Rob Malley, who will be returning here in the coming day or so for consultations in the coming
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days back here in Washington.
QUESTION: (Off-mike.)
QUESTION: Tomorrow, do you mean?

MR PRICE: So | believe the Joint Commission statement said that they would expect talks to resume
in the coming week.

QUESTION: On Iran?
QUESTION: Sorry. He will be back tomorrow?
MR PRICE: | expect he'll be back in the next day or two.

QUESTION: So Iranian officials yesterday were suggesting the possibility of Iran suspending 20
percent enrichment in return for the release of some of the frozen Iranian funds abroad. There are
various estimates of it: 15 billion, 20 billion. So why would the U.S. do that, which would in effect be
pay Iran to stop doing things that it should not be doing under the JCPOA? How could they be
suggesting that or is — the U.S. has any intention to do anything like that?

MR PRICE: Well, | certainly wouldn't want to comment on a proposal that hasn't come from us. What |
will say, and you heard National Security Advisor Sullivan this Sunday speak to what we have been
very clear about from the outset, and what he said is this: He says, “What | will say is that the United
States is not going to lift sanctions unless we have clarity and confidence that Iran will fully return to
compliance with its obligations under the deal, that it will put a lid on its nuclear program, that will
expand its breakout time, that it will reduce the level of enrichment and the scope of enrichment in its
country. And until we have confidence in all those things, the United States is not going to make any
concessions.” That remains true today.

QUESTION: If you have confidence, then, could this be a suggestion that you can entertain?
MR PRICE: | am certainly not going to entertain any suggestions from the podium.
QUESTION: Do you expect Malley to go back when the — next week if the talks reconvene?

MR PRICE: | certainly expect Rob to continue to lead the delegation, and | expect he’ll be going back
at the appropriate time. The Joint Commission statement said that the talks would resume in the
coming week.

QUESTION: Are you saying — Jake’s statement, you're saying — the clarity and confidence of Iran —
that Iran will go back — is this at all saying that — maybe this is reading tea leaves a bit, but is this at all
(inaudible) with what was said before? Previously, the U.S. was saying that Iran should come back
into compliance. Does this mean if just that there’s confidence in it, that if there’s a roadmap for it, that
the U.S. could lift sanctions?

MR PRICE: That absolutely remains our position. Iran must come back into compliance. The name of
the game since even before this administration, the proposal and proposition that President Biden put
on the table, was compliance for compliance. That remains where we are today. What we have
always said, though, is that we are not going to offer unilateral gestures or unilateral concessions. Our
goal is to have Iran back into compliance, and what that means is to have Iran once again subject to
the most stringent verification and monitoring regime ever negotiated. Because again, our objective —
the objective of our allies and partners in all of this, including in the case of the P5+1, a couple
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partners with whom we always don't see eye to eye, to put it — to once again understate it — is to
ensure that Iran can never develop a nuclear weapon. That’s precisely what the JCPOA does. That’s
precisely why the proposition on the table for some months now has been compliance for compliance.

QUESTION: Ned, but —
QUESTION: But the —
QUESTION: Do you agree with President Rouhani that you made 60 to 70 percent —

MR PRICE: | wouldn't want to put a number on it. Again, the road ahead remains long. There will be, |
am sure, difficult moments. We are — we certainly have a ways to go. | think what | said before is
accurate, that we probably have more road ahead of us than we do behind us at this stage.

QUESTION: Does that mean that you guys have abandoned the 12 demands that Secretary Pompeo
made back —

MR PRICE: The 12 demands, Matt, were part of the maximum pressure campaign. It is certainly true
that we have seen a real-life experiment when it comes to the maximum —

QUESTION: You still want them to do those —

MR PRICE: When it comes to the maximum pressure campaign. And you look at the results of that
experiment compared to what maximum pressure was supposed to deliver. It was supposed to deliver
a better deal, a stronger deal, a longer deal with Iran. It was supposed to cow Iran and its proxies. It
was supposed to bring us together with our allies and partners around the world.

In fact, all of those things, the opposite has come true. Under the previous administration, we got
nowhere closer to a better deal. There was always the myth of the better deal. And in fact, Iran
accelerated its nuclear program and enacted measures that would have been prohibited under the
JCPOA. Of course, its proxies —

QUESTION: (Inaudible.) Do the 12 — do the 12 demands still stand?
MR PRICE: I'm sorry?
QUESTION: Do you still want them to do those 12 things or not?

MR PRICE: Matt, maximum pressure has proved to be an inappropriate course given what we have
seen from the real-life experiment over the past several years.

QUESTION: Okay, but you just said hanging out there all the time in the previous administration was
the myth of a better deal. Isn’t that what you guys are looking for?

MR PRICE: The myth of a better deal that maximum pressure would bring. And we have —
QUESTION: Okay, you guys think you can get a better deal without any pressure?
MR PRICE: We — Matt —

QUESTION: What’s — okay, but just tell me. | mean, you still think you can get a better deal, right?
That’s your idea.

MR PRICE: Our goal —
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QUESTION: Or lengthen — lengthen and strengthen, right? That’s a better deal.

MR PRICE: Our goal — our goal first and foremost to focus on compliance for compliance. That is
what the team in Vienna is focused on right now. They are focused on that right now because
compliance on the part of Iran would mean that Iran would once again be subject to the strictest
verification and monitoring regime ever negotiated.

Now, we have spoken to that as a necessary but not sufficient step. We do remain from there focused
on lengthening and strengthening the provisions of that deal, and from there, working on addressing
other areas of malign Iranian behavior, whether it is Iran’s ballistic missile program, whether it is its
support for terrorism, whether it is its egregious violations of human rights. That — those latter areas
are certainly areas that — where we think we have a good deal of partnership and seek to leverage
cooperation with our allies and partners, including our partners in the region.

Yes. Let’'s go where we haven't gone yet. Yes.

QUESTION: Yeah. Can | talk about the conversations with Brazil about the climate summit that will
happen this week? In a letter to President Biden, the Brazilian president, Jair Bolsonaro, committed to
ending illegal deforestation by 2030, but we also know that the U.S. Government is saying that it
would like to see Brazil showing more than just words, and that it is necessary to engage in immediate
actions that produce tangible results. So what would be those immediate actions that the U.S. is
expecting from Brazil during the summit?

And a second question, if | may: The Brazilian Government is asking for resources to support the
environmental protection. Should we expect from the U.S. any financial support or funds for the
Amazon rainforest, for example?

MR PRICE: Well, to your first question, this is something that special envoy — Special Presidential
Envoy Kerry spoke to. | believe he issued a tweet just a few days ago speaking to President
Bolsonaro’s recommitment to eliminating illegal deforestation. He called it “important.” He said that
“We look forward to immediate actions and engagement with indigenous populations and civil society
so this announcement can deliver tangible results.” Of course, we note Brazil's commitment to ending
that deforestation by 2030. We want to see very clear and tangible steps to increase effective
enforcement, and a political signal that illegal deforestation and encroachment won't be tolerated.
Tackling the climate crisis requires global partnerships with big impacts, and, of course, Brazil will be a
key partner here in finding and implementing solutions to this crisis. Brazil is one of the world’s largest
economies and a regional leader. It has a responsibility to lead, and we look forward to Brazil's
participation in the upcoming climate summit.

Now, in terms of the funding, to your second question, we have continued to focus our conversation
around steps that need to be taken to halt that illegal deforestation — the subject of the recommitment
from President Bolsonaro — rather than looking at specific funding streams, but that’s been the focus
so far.

QUESTION: Is there a specific target for decreasing deforestation this year, for example, that the
U.S. would like to see, to consider there is a concrete step from Brazil?

MR PRICE: Again, I'm going to let Secretary Kerry’s office speak to this. | think when it comes to
what we would like to see, we would like to see very clear, tangible steps to increase effective
enforcement, and a political signal that illegal deforestation encroachment won't be tolerated going
forward.

QUESTION: On Afghanistan?
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MR PRICE: On Afghanistan? Sure.

QUESTION: Yeah. Is — are the talks in Istanbul now off? Can you just give us an update on where
things are diplomatically? And are you worried at all about that, Taliban not going there?

MR PRICE: Well, when it comes to the talks in Istanbul, this gets to the point that from the various
early — very earliest days of the Biden administration, we have recognized, number one, that there is
no military solution to the conflict in Afghanistan, and only through a political settlement and a
comprehensive ceasefire will we be able to support a resolution that brings security, stability, and
prosperity to the people of Afghanistan. The conference in Istanbul is part of that broader effort, that
broader diplomatic engagement. We are grateful to the hosts — Turkey, Qatar, and the UN — for
convening it. | would need to refer to them when it comes to the current status of that timing of it or
timing of it going forward.

But what | will say more broadly is that our diplomatic efforts have spanned months now. Special
Ambassador Khalilzad has spent the better part of two months in the region, whether it’s Doha,
whether it's Kabul, whether it’s Islamabad — of course, he was in Moscow for the extended Troika —
and throughout the region, seeking not only to achieve progress between the Afghan parties, but also,
again, to bring in the international community in a way that several of these countries have not been
brought in before.

We recognize — and | can tell you from discussions with President Ghani last week in Kabul that the
Afghan Government recognizes — that there are countries in the region, and in some cases even
slightly beyond, that have a role to play, a supporting role to play in the Afghan-led, Afghan-owned
process. We want to see the international community and many of these countries serve as effective
and constructive stakeholders in this, supporting and lending assistance to the process that we hope
and we have invested in to bring about a political settlement and a comprehensive ceasefire going
forward.

QUESTION: (Off-mike.)

QUESTION: He spent a lot longer than just two months. (Laughter.) In fact, | think the Qataris might
be giving him honorary citizenship. He’s been over there for the last two years, so like — but speaking
of people who have been in places for a long time, do you guys have anything to say about Raul
Castro’s retirement, resignation? He’s been a fixture of the Cuban Government for longer than I've
been alive, for longer than you've been alive —

MR PRICE: | —
QUESTION: — | think probably everybody in this room has been alive.

MR PRICE: | appreciate the transition there. What | would say is, of course, it is for the Cuban people
to speak to the results of the Cuban party congress. We have spoken about our review of our Cuba
policy, which remains ongoing, but we know, of course, that will be governed by two principles. First,
support for democracy and human rights will be at the core of those efforts, and we will seek to
empower the Cuban people to determine their own future. And second, Americans, as we've said, are
— tend to be the best ambassadors for freedom in Cuba. Don’t have anything to add about the change
that has been announced. Again, it’s for the Cuban people to speak to the results of their party
congress.

QUESTION: (Off-mike.)
MR PRICE: Yep.

Document ID: 0.7.12479.7128 1049-000169



QUESTION: Ned, we've known a little bit about where some of the senior officials came down on the
decision to withdraw. It's become reported, about General Milley’s position and Secretary Austin’s
position. Where did Secretary Blinken come down on the decision to withdraw by September 11th?

MR PRICE: Look, | think as we have said, as the White House has said, as the Pentagon has said,
this was a rigorous process; it was an inclusive process; it was a process that certainly wasn't
whitewashed. President Biden was determined that he wanted all of the inputs, he wanted the
unvarnished truth. He wanted the unvarnished assessments, knowing that any effort to put spin on the
ball ultimately would not redound well, either on the people of Afghanistan, the Government of
Afghanistan, or the American people and our interests there, and of course, the significant investment
that the American people have made in Afghanistan over the past 20 years in terms of blood, in terms
of treasure.

What Secretary Blinken has been focused on since his earliest days in this office has been seeking to
support the Afghan parties as we seek to advance a diplomatic solution and a comprehensive
ceasefire, and again, to bring in the international community. Secretary Blinken has had a number of
opportunities to speak to NATO Allies, other regional players, including about Afghanistan. And we
have consulted closely and he has consulted closely with his counterparts around the world.

Of course, we went to Brussels in March. We went — we returned just a few weeks later on the eve of
the President’s announcement. That has all been part and parcel of our efforts not only to — in the
case of NATO — speak and to act with one alliance voice, but also in the broader sense to ensure that
this is an effort that enjoys the support of stakeholders throughout the region. Because again,
recognizing that there are countries in the region, slightly beyond, that do and should have a
constructive role to play to support the Afghan-led, Afghan-owned process, that’s been our focus at
the State Department. That will be our focus going forward.

QUESTION: Follow-up, Afghanistan?
QUESTION: But if Blinken had opposed this, would you tell us?

MR PRICE: (Laughter.) | would probably not read out any internal deliberations. That’s just now what
we do.

QUESTION: On the U.S. assistance to the Palestinians, there are criticism —
QUESTION: Wait. Can | go on Afghanistan? Before we move?

MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: You can.

QUESTION: I'm sorry. Thank you. We just put out reporting that Afghan peace conference in Turkey
now postponed over non-participation by Taliban. It just hit out, hit the wire. What’s your response?

MR PRICE: WEell, you're telling me something that apparently just hit the wire, so what | would do is
refer you to the host. Again, this is part and parcel of a broader diplomatic process. This is a process
that has been ongoing in Doha for quite some time now. Ambassador Khalilzad, during this course of
this administration, has spent the brunt of his time traveling, attempting to bring the parties together —

QUESTION: How is that diplomatic process going to continue if this conference is postponed?

MR PRICE: Again, | would fully expect that broader diplomatic efforts will continue. | would, again,
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refer you to the hosts for any details on when a conference in Istanbul may take place going forward.
But again, we've always been very clear. Istanbul was not a replacement for Doha. It was not
intended to subsume the broader diplomatic effort. That is an effort that continues to be ongoing and
it's an effort where we will continue to invest our resources, our political heft, knowing again that only
through diplomacy, only through a political settlement, an Afghan-owned, Afghan-led process, will we
be able to help support bringing peace, stability, and security to the people of Afghanistan.

QUESTION: Can | do one more follow-up on Afghanistan? Has there been a decision on the
diplomatic presence for future U.S. footprint in Afghanistan? Is that something Secretary Blinken will
be able to tell members of Congress today?

MR PRICE: Well, Secretary Blinken is up on the Hill today. He is briefing all members of the House
and the Senate, together with several of his counterparts, on our approach to Afghanistan going
forward. What we have said and what President Biden announced last week is that by later this year,
by September, all American service members will be out of Afghanistan except for those required for
the continued operation of our embassy in Kabul. We believe it is important to continue the partnership
between the United States and the Afghan Government as well as the Afghan people.

That’s precisely why within hours of President Biden's announcement, Secretary Blinken and President
Biden, of course, thought it important for Secretary Blinken and his team to get on a plane, to go
directly to Kabul, to meet with President Ghani, to meet with Chairman Abdullah, and to meet with
representatives of civil society. And of course, while there, we had a very interesting and | think time
well spent, a roundtable with members of Afghan civil society, all but one of whom were women — an
attorney, a mayor, a member of parliament, a reporter, a human rights advocate — to ensure that we
sent a very strong signal to this small but important cross-section of the Afghan people that the United
States will continue that partnership. And of course, a diplomatic relationship, a continuing diplomatic
relationship with Afghanistan, is part and parcel of that, and it's something we will expect to see going
forward.

QUESTION: So as it regards the status of the Istanbul conference, your short answer is that's
nobody’s business but the Turks?

MR PRICE: No, | don't believe | said anything of the sort.
QUESTION: (Inaudible) it’s a joke.

MR PRICE: | see. Okay. Explain it to me afterwards.
Yes, Said.

QUESTION: Michel. There are criticisms for the U.S. renewal of funding to UNRWA and calls for its
reform. Do you take these calls or those concerns seriously, and are you planning to do anything with
the UNRWA?

MR PRICE: Well, we spoke to this when we announced our resumption of funding to UNRWA a couple
weeks ago now, and | made the broader point at the time that our disposition is that when we engage,
when we are back at the table, the United States can have influence that we otherwise wouldn't have.
And you've seen that in any number of other contexts. We rejoined the World Health — we re-engaged
with the World Health Organization on day one of this administration. We have announced our
observer status with the Human Rights Council and announced our intention to seek a seat on the
council going forward. Of course, the Paris Agreement, any number of other international bodies and
institutions.
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And that’s true of UNRWA, too. In our communication with UNRWA prior to the announcement,
UNRWA made firm commitments to the United States on the issues of transparency, of accountability,
and neutrality in all of its operations. The commitment to neutrality, importantly, includes zero tolerance
for racism, discrimination, and anti-Semitism. UNRWA'’s head commissioner, in fact, General Philippe
Lazzarini, who was newly appointed just last year, conveyed his utmost commitment to these very
same principles.

In the months ahead, looking forward, we plan to negotiate a new framework with UNRWA in which
the principles of transparency, accountability, and neutrality will again be affirmed. | made the point
when we were speaking to our re-engagement with UNRWA just a couple weeks ago that even when
the United States was not supporting UNRWA, the relationship with UNRWA remained. We were in the
room under the previous administration and in the first couple months of this administration, but we
weren't at the table. By re-engaging, by re-supporting and reaffirming our support for UNRWA, we are
now back at the table; we are in a position to secure those commitments from UNRWA'’s leadership,
and we are in a position to see to it that those commitments are upheld. We can hold the
commissioner general and now UNRWA accountable to these commitments since we are now back at
the table. And with our seat at the table restored, along with some of our key allies and partners,
many of whom are major donors — that includes the Japanese, Germany, Norway, the UK, the EU,
among others — we’ll once again have a position to advocate so that our assistance is used in ways
that not only meet our interests but are consistent with our values.

So | think it’s fair to say that if anyone tells you that the United States has not secured any sort of
commitments from UNRWA on these core issues — again, that includes accountability, it includes
transparency, it includes neutrality — they are simply wrong. We have very solid commitments, and we
will make them even more solid in the months ahead.

We'll take a final question. Lalit.

QUESTION: Thank you. | have two questions on India and COVID. Adar Poonawalla, who is the CEO
of Serum Institute, has urged the U.S. and President Biden in particular to lift the ban on export of
certain raw materials which are used in manufacturing of COVID-19 vaccines in India. But Serum
Institute — Serum Institute, as you know, is the world’s largest manufacturer of vaccines, COVID-19
vaccines, and any delay in that might cause — impact the vaccination process not only in India but
globally as well. What do you have to say on that part?

MR PRICE: Well, we wouldn’t want to weigh in on that from here. | would refer you to USTR as well
as the White House, and | believe the White House press secretary has spoken to this as recently as
yesterday.

What | would say more broadly is that President Biden, Secretary Blinken, they’re deeply focused on
the issue of expanding global vaccination, manufacturing, and delivery — all of which will be critical to
ending the pandemic. Secretary Blinken consistently makes the point that as long as the virus is out of
control, is uncontained anywhere around the world, whether that is here in the United States, whether
that is elsewhere, it continues to present a risk to the American people.

So of course, first and foremost, our priority is ensuring the distribution of a safe and effective vaccine
to millions of Americans, to all Americans who are able to take advantage of it. But we also know that
we need to continue to demonstrate that leadership when it comes to countries beyond our borders,
and that’s precisely what we’ve done. As | mentioned before, we’ve re-engaged the WHO; we've
committed $2 billion to COVAX, another $2 billion over time; we’ve spoken to our partnership with
Canada and Mexico when it comes to vaccines, and we've spoken to the arrangement we have with
the Quad and the increased production capacity that that will bring about.
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It is not only in our interest to ensure that the American people are vaccinated, the other point | would
make is that the rest of the world also has an interest in seeing to it that the American people are
vaccinated and that the virus is brought under control here. | don't have to tell you that this country has
suffered tremendously. We have more deaths than any other country around the world, more than
550,000 at this point, tens of millions of cases. So again, as long as the virus is uncontrolled
anywhere, it is a threat to people everywhere. That is true in the United States; that is true in countries
around the world, and it's precisely why we're taking this approach.

QUESTION: Did this issue came up when Secretary Blinken spoke to India's External Affairs Minister
Dr. S. Jaishankar yesterday?

MR PRICE: So we issued a readout of that call. They did discuss COVID, but | wouldn't want to go
beyond that readout.

QUESTION: One more question. India is experiencing a second wave of COVID spread. It's very
serious right now. CDC yesterday issued some kind of travel advisory asking all Americans not to
travel to India. Is the U.S. considering any kind of restrictions on travel from India to the U.S.?

MR PRICE: Restrictions on travel from India to the U.S.? Of course, there are protocols in place
requiring testing for international travel. What is true is that we are tracking the course of the COVID
outbreak in India very closely. As | mentioned before, Secretary Blinken and Foreign Minister
Jaishankar did discuss it yesterday. It is also the case that whether it's India, whether it is any other
country, we are committed to doing what we can both at the present and going forward to see to it
that this virus is brought under control. And I've spoke, again, of our engagement with the WHO, our
funding to COVAX, the Quad arrangement that, of course, implicates what we're seeing in India and
what we've done in our own hemisphere as well.

QUESTION: Thank you.

MR PRICE: Thank you very much.
QUESTION: Thank you.

MR PRICE: Thank you.

(The briefing was concluded at 3:20 p.m.)
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Via Teleconference

MODERATOR: Good afternoon, everyone, and thanks very much for joining this call. We wanted to
take an opportunity to provide an update on the diplomacy that has been ongoing in Vienna. As a
reminder, this call is on background. It is also embargoed until the conclusion of the call. Just for your
awareness and not for reporting, our speaker today is . So again, you can refer to him as a senior
State Department official, and what you hear will be embargoed until the conclusion of the call.

With that, | will turn it over to our speaker. Go ahead.

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: Thanks, . So for those of you who were on the briefing
about a week ago, | want to say something that shouldn’t be surprising, which is that what you're
going to hear today is not radically different from what you heard then. That’s because talks between
the P5+1 and Iran have always been a slow process, made all the slower this time by the fact that
we're not talking directly to Iran and because the only thing that’s happened since then has been six
days of the second round of what is likely to be a multi-round negotiation.

So we made some progress, but we’re not in a situation that’s radically different from where we were
at the conclusion of round one. I'll make a few points on that.

First, what we did achieve is greater clarification. In other words, | think the United States has a better
idea of what it will need to do to come back into full compliance with the JCPOA, and Iran has a better
idea of what it will need to do to come back into compliance with the JCPOA.

The next point is that clarification doesn't necessarily mean consensus. There still are disagreements
and, in some cases, pretty important ones on our respective views about what is required to — what is
meant by a return to full compliance. And the distance that remains to be traveled is greater than the
distance that we've traveled so far. So we're not near the conclusion of these negotiations. The
outcome is still uncertain. We've made some progress. The talks have been business-like, productive,
but with still many differences that would need to be overcome.

Two last points. First, our view remains that if we can come back into a mutual compliance with the
JCPOA, we do that, as the President has said many times, as a platform from which we would like to
discuss a longer, stronger, broader set of understandings with Iran. And second, as in all of these
conversations indirect we have with — indirect conversations we have with Iran, we always insist on the
necessity of releasing our four wrongfully detained citizens. That was the case again during this round
and it will be true anytime we have contact with the Iranians, whether it's about the nuclear deal or not.

So with that, I'm happy to take your questions.
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OPERATOR: Ladies and gentlemen, if you'd like to ask a question, please press 1 then 0 on your
telephone keypad. You may withdraw your question at any time by repeating the 1-0 command. If
you're using a speakerphone, please pick up the handset before pressing the numbers. Once again, if
you have a question, you may press 1 and then 0 at this time. And one moment for the first question.

MODERATOR: Great. We'll start with the line of Nick Wadhams, please.
OPERATOR: Your line is now open.

QUESTION: Hey, thanks very much. , could you offer a little more detail on the sanctions you're
prepared to lift? There are reports out there obviously from The Wall Street Journal that you're willing
to lift the terror sanctions on Iran’s Central Bank, its national oil and tanker companies. Could you shed
some light into that in light of, obviously, your previous remarks that some sanctions were not applied
on the nuclear program and, thus, were under review? And also, are you any closer on a sense of
sequencing? Could there be a scenario where both sides just re-enter the deal at the exact same time
and you forgo the previous demand that Iran come back into compliance before you do? Thanks.

And you may be muted.

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: Sorry. Thanks, Nick. | think there have been many
reports and there will be many reports as to who has said what during these talks, and we're not
going to comment on each and every one of them. As | said, it’s already a complicated negotiation
enough without adding to the complexity by negotiating it in public.

What | will say, and as | said last time, but this time we have gone into more detail is that we have
provided Iran with a number of examples of the kind of sanctions that we believe we would need to lift
in order to come back into compliance, and the sanctions that we believe we would not need to lift and
we would not lift as part of a return into compliance with the JCPOA.

And then a third category, which are the difficult cases for — difficult cases because this is a complex
process, but also because the Trump administration deliberately and avowedly imposed sanctions by
invoking labels — terrorism labels and other labels even though it was done purely for the purpose of
preventing or hindering a return to the — compliance with the JCPOA. So that has made it more
difficult. We have to go through every sanction to make sure whether — to look at whether they were
legitimately or not legitimately imposed.

So I'm not going to get into precisely the examples that we gave, but we gave Iran examples of the
three categories that | mentioned.

On sequencing, there has not been much of a discussion because we're still at the — in the process of
describing and detailing the steps that each side is going to have to take. We have not gotten into the
discussion of sequencing. What we can say is that a sequence in which the U.S. does everything
before Iran does nothing is not an acceptable sequence. We made that clear to Iran. And beyond that,
we're prepared and we're open to different kinds of sequencing which meet our interests, which is to
see both sides in full compliance and not us coming into full compliance before Iran has acted.

MODERATOR: Can we go to the line of Farnaz Fassihi?
OPERATOR: What was that name again? | apologize.
MODERATOR: Farnaz Fassihi.

OPERATOR: Okay, your line is now open. Thank you, sir.
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QUESTION: Hello?
MODERATOR: Yes, go ahead.

QUESTION: Okay. The Iranians were saying that they're insisting on getting a written guarantee from
the U.S. that a future administration will not abandon the deal. How does that look to you and is this
negotiable? They’re also insisting on having some time to verify sanctions relief before they decrease
enriching uranium or turn the switch off. How does that look? That would — at least the optics of it
would seem like the U.S. is returning first.

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: So thanks, Farnaz. So on the question of a written
guarantee, | think it’s clear there is no such thing as a guarantee. This is a political understanding in
which — and it was clear at the time of the JCPOA that it is the sovereign right of all participants to
decide whether they want to maintain their participation or not. We — | think the Biden administration, if
it decides — if it reaches an understanding with Iran and the other P5+1 to come back into compliance
with the deal, it would be with the intent of acting in good faith and not of departing the deal for no
good — for no good reason. But there is no such thing as a guarantee and | think, again, we have
made that clear to Iran that it’s not something that the U.S. can or will give. This is a political
understanding that relies on the good faith of all actors. Iran has the experience, and understandably a
— not a very pleasant one, of the U.S. withdrawing unilaterally from the deal, but certainly the Biden
administration’s intent if it were to come back into compliance would be to act in good faith if Iran did
the same. As for verifying the sanctions, | mean, if — as we've said, if Iran’s position is that the United
States needs to lift all sanctions to come back into compliance, then Iran would verify that only then
would Iran take action. That’s not a sequence that we could accept and, frankly, | don't think it'’s a
sequence that the other participants in the JCPOA believes is a reasonable one. There are many other
forms of sequencing that one could discuss, and we’re open to that, but we're not going to accept a
process in which the U.S. acts first and removes all of the sanctions that it is committed to removing
before Iran does anything.

MODERATOR: We'll go to the line of Michele Kelemen.
OPERATOR: Your line is now open, Ms. Kelemen.

QUESTION: Thank you. In your consultations back here, will you be talking to members of Congress
about what sanctions are on the table? Are there any plans for small kind of reciprocal gestures,
building confidence? Or is the plan — is the conversation just about both sides going back in all at
once? And then on — and then you mentioned the detainees. | wonder if you've heard — has there been
any progress on that topic?

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: So, Michele, on the on the question of whether there’'d
be confidence-building steps or full compliance, | think, as you know, several weeks ago, Iran had
expressed an interest in first steps that each side could take. That’'s no longer on the agenda. At this
point, the discussions taking place in Vienna are about full compliance for full compliance, and that’s
the discussions that we're engaged in. So not necessarily going to rule anything out, but | think at this
point the discussions that all the participants are engaged in are what the U.S. would need to do to
come into full compliance and what Iran would need to do to come into full compliance.

On the detainees, all | will say about that is that we have pressed very hard, we have an indirect
channel of communication with the Iranians on it, and we very much hope that we’'ll be able to resolve
it because it’'s an imperative and it is — as we said many times, it is unconscionable that Iran would
hold American citizens for no reason other than the fact that they’re American, because they have not
done anything wrong and Iran knows that.
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MODERATOR: We'll go to the line of Arshad Mohammed.
OPERATOR: Your line is now open.

QUESTION: Two things. One, European diplomats have been talking about their hope to have
something concrete in hand by mid-May. And as you know, Iranian officials have also been pushing
this, pointing to the expiration of their agreement with the IAEA. One, do you think it is even remotely
conceivable that you could have some kind of an agreement in place within a month? And two, do you
see any reason to push hard for that given that that deadline or marker is entirely self-imposed by the
Iranians, given their legislation and then their deal with the IAEA? And | guess the last thing would be:
What can you say about the nature of the pretty significant or pretty important differences that
remain?

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: So Arshad, I'd say, on the question of timing, it’'s a
position that we’ve taken from the outset that we’re not going to drag our feet. As — the moment
there’s an understanding between us, Iran, the other P5+1 is the moment that there’ll be an
understanding that we — that will be official. But before that time, we’re not going to rush in order to
meet a deadline. We will be dictated by whether we think the understandings that have been reached,
if they are reached, are satisfactory. And | think that’s the — that’s what we need to do.

There is the IAEA technical understanding with Iran. There are also the Iranian elections. This is
something that commentators bring up as reasons to move by mid-May. Again, if we can get it by mid-
May — and I’'m not — we’re certainly not going to rule that out. If we can make enough progress, we'll
make enough progress by the time it’s made. And it may be within weeks; it may not be within weeks.
But our hope is to get it as soon as possible, not at the expense of getting a deal that’s wrong the kind
of deal for us. So we’'ll keep saying that. We’re not going to (inaudible) anything down. We'll go as fast
as we can. But we’re not going to go fast at the expense of the solidity of the understanding that we're
seeking to reach.

As for the nature of the differences, well, the differences are very simply which sanctions we — both
sides believe, Iran and the U.S. believe are going to need to be lifted in order for us to be back in full
compliance with (inaudible). And what steps Iran is going to have to take to come back into
compliance with its nuclear obligations, there certainly is no (inaudible) there either. So we’re hoping
that Iran will understand that the goal here is to come back into compliance with the JCPOA, all of the
JCPOA, and nothing but the JCPOA, which means that demands that the United States lift sanctions
that are consistent with the JCPOA should not be part of this conversation. And Iran — if Iran thinks or
if Iran hopes that it could do less than come back into compliance with its nuclear obligations under the
JCPOA, that won't work either. So we’re prepared to do everything that we need to do to be back in
full compliance with the — with the deal, and we hope that Iran will do the same.

MODERATOR: Go to the line of Kylie Atwood.
OPERATOR: Your line is now open.

QUESTION: Hello, thank you for doing the call. | am wondering — the Iranians have also said that they
must be the ones who are the arbiters to judge and verify if the lifted U.S. sanctions are actually
working and benefiting them in the way that they want them to. Does the U.S. accept that that
judgment should be made by the Iranians, or is there an outside party that should be judging?

And then my second question is: How long does the U.S. believe it would take to actually lift the
sanctions that you guys decide are going to be lifted? | know this is a tricky process, so it can’t
happen overnight. Once the decision is made, how long does it take? Thanks.
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SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: So on the first question, I'm not — it's not entirely clear
what that means. We will lift the sanctions and we’ll do our part. We’'ll meet our obligation. It's not a
matter of judging whether we’ve lifted the sanctions. We will have lifted the sanctions and Iran will
have to then decide if it does not want to — if it doesn't believe that its needs are being met and it
wants to leave the deal, then it will leave the deal and we could do the same. That’s the nature of this
understanding. But we will meet our obligation lifting the sanctions as we did in 2016, and we believe
that that’s what the JCPOA requires.

How long it will take — it wouldn't take that long, but | don't want to get — | can’t get into the details. As
you said, it's complex, but we don't think this is something that would be very time-consuming. Once
we make the decision to lift the sanctions, it's something we believe we could execute relatively
quickly.

MODERATOR: We'll to Mohammed Elehad.
OPERATOR: Your line is now open, sir.
MODERATOR: Mohammed —

OPERATOR: Mr. Elehad?

QUESTION: Yes, hi. Can you hear me, please?
MODERATOR: Yes, we can.

QUESTION: Yeah. There are some media reports that South Korea released around $30 million to
Iran as part of the unfrozen assets there. Do you have any confirmation about that, sir? Thank you so
much.

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: So we have not taken any action regarding the South
Korean assets. We see reports floating every now and then, but we have not taken any action
regarding those assets.

MODERATOR: We'll go to Barak Ravid.
QUESTION: (Inaudible), for doing this.
OPERATOR: Your line is now open.

QUESTION: Hi. Thanks for doing this. Two questions. First, about this third category of sanctions, the
sanctions that were imposed by the Trump administration on the nuclear deal but under terror
designations or human rights, what’s the — in comparison to the two other groups of sanctions, how
many of the sanctions are under this group, under the third category?

And second question: Israeli officials are saying that they feel that the U.S. is not transparent enough
with them about which sanctions that are non-nuclear-related it's planning on removing as part of the
talks with Iran. What do you say about that?

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: So I’'m not going to give numbers of the kind of
sanctions. As | said, the third category is the one that is more ambiguous in terms of our — our — |
mean, we have to look into whether we conclude in the end that they are — whether the sanctions will
consist — whether lifting the sanctions is necessary in order to come back into the JCPOA or not, and
for that we have to consider a number of factors, including the reality that the Trump administration, as
| said earlier, professed to be imposing these — this wall of sanctions in order to prevent a return to
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the JCPOA. So that’s one of the considerations. It's not the only one, of course, but we are going to
looking into — we’re looking into those.

| believe we have had numerous conversations with Israeli officials before and after every round of
talks. We certainly will have one again. We believe we've been transparent. We've been in the
process of — as | said, of looking into which sanctions we would — we believe would need to be lifted
as part of the return to the JCPOA. But we’ve been very transparent that we believe it's the — it's
sanctions that we need to lift to be consistent with the — sanctions that are required for a return to the
JCPOA and for Iran benefiting from what a return to the JCPOA would mean. And | think we’ve said
that explicitly to the Israelis. We've discussed it. We’'ll discuss it at further length this week and coming
out of these talks. So we intend to be as transparent as we can. We know there’s a disagreement
with Israel’s perspective and we respect that. We'll try to be as transparent as we can about how we
see things and how we want to go and listen to their perspective as well.

MODERATOR: We'll take a couple final questions. We'll go to Nadia Bilbassy.
OPERATOR: Your line is still open.

QUESTION: You know there are worries among your allies in the region that the money that Iran gets
from any sanction relief might go actually to support terrorist organizations and cause more havoc in
the Middle East. Is there kind of any verification that you can impose to make sure that this money
won't go to people like Hizballah and the like?

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: So first, thanks for the question, because | wanted to
say, obviously, we do consult and discuss with our Israeli allies, but we also are very transparent with
our partners as we talk to them regularly, again, both before and sometimes during and after every
round of talks, and we intend to continue doing that.

As for your specific question, first of all, our view is that the situation only became worse from their
perspective — from our perspective and their perspective during the years of maximum pressure.
Those are the years when the activities — Iran’s activities, Iran’s direct activities against some of our
Gulf partners, the direct attacks against Saudi Arabia, those grew during the period of maximum
pressure. So there’s no direct correlation between lifting of sanctions and Iran’s conduct in the region.
| think that’s been proven by simply the experience of the last four and more years.

We do — we certainly intend to continue to pressure Iran and to counter their activities in the region
that are destabilizing and that are going after our interests or the interests of our partners. And we
also, of course, retain sanctions on Hizballah and other such organizations and the ability to go after
any support that is given to them. Those sanctions, of course, will remain in place.

So we understand that what — that lifting sanctions is something that will have to come from a return —
lifting of some sanctions will have to come from a return to the JCPOA, but that doesn’t mean that we
can't continue to counter Iranian activities in the region that are destabilizing and that go against our
interests or those of our partners or allies in the region.

MODERATOR: We'll go to the line of Matt Lee.

QUESTION: | wanted to try to dig down a little bit into the three baskets of sanctions, recognizing that
you didn’t want to say how many are actually in the third category. But if we look at all three
categories — the ones that you would need to lift, the ones that you wouldn't need to lift, and then this
third category — can you give a rough percentage as to — out of 100 percent of the sanctions that
would be — like, what percent fall into each category? And even if you can’t do that, is there a rough
agreement between you guys, or do you understand that there’s a rough agreement between you and
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the Iranians on the first two baskets? Or is that still something that needs to be decided?

Secondly, would — forgetting about who was the arbiter of whether the sanctions relief is actually
effective or not, is this administration prepared, like the Obama administration was, to go out and do
these, for lack of a better word, road shows where you try to encourage other countries and other —
and businesses and other countries to do business with Iran? Thank you.

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: So Matt, yeah, no, I'm not going to give a percentage,
partly because this is still a work in progress, so we are not — we’re not about to give numbers. And
we have to be in agreement for what these baskets are. There’s no agreement with Iran on anything
at this point, and that’s — I’'m not saying that as a measure of pessimism, but it’s the nature of these
talks that the parties are not going to agree to anything until they see the full — the full picture. So it’s
not a surprise at this point that there’s no agreement on any of the categories at this point. These are
discussions in which ideas are being exchanged, but there’s been nothing at this point that | would
point to and say, “Here’s something that’s been agreed that we could put to the side.” Nothing will be
agreed until everything is agreed. | think that’s clearly the principle behind these talks.

And I'm sorry, | forgot your — oh, your other question about — I’'m not going to begin to talk about what
we will do if and when we reach an understanding. | think the first step is to get there and we're not
there yet. | mean, we hope we’ll get there, but we — there’s certainly no certainty, and we can then
figure out what we will — what steps each side will take to make sure that their commitments are fully
implemented.

MODERATOR: We'll take a final question from Francesco Fontemaggi.
OPERATOR: Your line is now open.

QUESTION: Hi. Thank you. Thank you, and . | want to just to go a little bit more into the process.
When you said that you shared examples of the sanctions that you can lift, the ones that you'd want to
lift and the ones that are in between, have you shared the full list of the sanctions that you're ready to
lift and the ones you are not ready to lift or just examples? And also on the second thing, when Jake
Sullivan said last Sunday that you won't lift any sanctions until the U.S. has the assurance that Iran is
ready to go back to compliance, is that a fair description of the stance you're defending in Vienna? |
mean not having the compliance but the assurance of this compliance. Thank you.

SENIOR STATE DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL: So I’'m going to start with your last question because
we've had — as you know, | mean, there’s been many questions about sequence and we're not ready
to discuss that yet, whether directly — certainly not — but even indirectly. The sequence has not been
the focus of the discussions. The focus of the discussion is on defining the steps that both sides need
to take.

So there are many ways of choreographing this. There are many ways that one could do it. We know
what we think would be unacceptable for us, which is that we do everything first, and then Iran acts,
and we assume that it would be unacceptable for Iran to do everything first and then the U.S. acts. In
between, there are many ways and many, many possibilities that we could consider.

As to your first question, which is what we have provided with — what we have provided Iran with, we
have given them many examples. I’'m not going to get into the details, but | think they have a pretty
clear sense at this point of our understanding, of our view about the sanctions that we’re going to have
to lift and those that we don’t think we need to — we would not lift. And then as we said, there’s some
issues that we're still working through in our own system because this is, as | said, a very complicated
assessment. There’s no — it’s not as if — when the former administration reimposed sanctions, they
labeled them: ‘These are sanctions that are consistent with the JCPOA, and these are the kind of

Document ID: 0.7.12479.7171 1049-000181



sanctions that are not consistent with the JCPOA." So it is @ much more difficult work that we are
doing to try to understand the nature of the sanctions and on what basis they were imposed.

MODERATOR: Well, thanks very much, everyone. Just a reminder, this call is on background to a
senior State Department official. And the embargo is now lifted. Thanks for joining.
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MR PRICE: Good afternoon. Happy Earth Day, everyone. With that in mind, just a couple things at the
top. I'll start on that subject.

We are grateful to each and every leader who has participated in today’s Leaders Summit on Climate.
And of course, we look forward to the summit’s continuation tomorrow.

| think President Biden’s announcement speaks for itself: The United States has put forward a more
ambitious target to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 50 to 52 percent below the 2005 levels by
2030.

| do want to highlight just a few encouraging announcements by several key allies. With ambitious new
2030 commitments by Japan and Canada, and the European Union’s move to put their 2030 target
into law, and the UK’s new pace-setting 2035 goal, more than half of the world’s economy is now
committed to the pace of emission reductions required globally to keep a 1.5 degree Celsius future
within reach. And we know this coalition is growing — including with South Korea’s newly announced
commitment that it will strengthen its 2030 target.

We saw a variety of other announcements today about the increasing scope and pace of action
around the world. For example, Argentina announced an increase in its nationally determined
contribution, or NDC, as well as new steps to make it happen, including scaling renewables and
addressing deforestation as well as methane pollution. India is formally stepping up its commitment to
accelerate renewable energy deployment. South Africa is strengthening its own NDC. The Republic of
Korea announced an end to external coal finance. And countries are moving in the right direction, but
of course, we know there is more to do.

Again, we are grateful to each nation that has contributed to the summit’s success thus far and, most
importantly, we look forward to working with all nations to increase ambition during this decade of
action to put the world on a sustainable path towards climate reduction.

Next, April 25th will mark the 32nd birthday of Gedhun Choekyi Nyima — the 11th Panchen Lama — the
Panchen Lama who is forced to spend another year disappeared, separated from his community, and
denied his rightful place as a prominent Tibetan Buddhist leader. The United States supports Tibetans’
religious freedom and their unique religious, cultural, and linguistic identity. We respect Tibetans’ right
to select, educate, and venerate their own leaders, like the Dalai Lama and the Panchen Lama,
according to their own beliefs, and without government interference.

We call on the PRC Government to immediately make public the Tibetan-venerated Panchen Lama’s
whereabouts and to give us this opportunity to meet with the Panchen Lama in person.
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With that, I’'m happy to take your questions.

QUESTION: Thanks, actually I've got a bunch of kind of minor things but nothing that really merits
leading off, so I'll pass to — as long as | can come back.

QUESTION: Russia?
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: That's unexpected. Russia and Myanmar actually. So Russia said it was ordering troops
back to base from the area near the border with Ukraine. What is the U.S. assessment on this view?
Are you seeing some weaponry also being moved back? What do you think this is?

MR PRICE: Well, we have heard Russia’s announcement — its announcement that it would begin
withdrawing troops from the border of Ukraine. As I've said, we've heard words. | think what we’ll be
looking for is action. The United States will continue to monitor the situation. We’'ll do that closely and
we'll — we'll coordinate closely with Ukrainian officials as well as other — as well as allies and partners
throughout.

We have made clear in our engagement with the Russian Government that it needs to refrain from
escalatory actions and immediately cease all its aggressive activity in and around Ukraine, including its
recent military buildup in occupied Crimea and on Ukraine’s border and its intention to block specific
vessels in the parts of the Black Sea. We of course reaffirm our support for Ukraine’s sovereignty,
independence, and territorial integrities, and of course that extends to Ukraine’s territorial waters. So
our message is we've heard the announcement. We'll be watching closely for that follow-through.

QUESTION: So yesterday, before this, Ukrainian foreign minister gave an interview with Reuters, and
he talked about how they needed more Western support. What else the United States could do about
that?

MR PRICE: I'm sorry?
QUESTION: Well, he — do you want me to go —
MR PRICE: I'm sorry. What —

QUESTION: What else the United States can do about that? He reiterated that Ukraine needs more
Western support.

MR PRICE: | see.

QUESTION: Obviously, there was, like, a NATO meeting, and there has been a serious of
statements, but he — nevertheless, he mentioned this again yesterday that he needs more from the
West. What can the U.S. do?

MR PRICE: Well, we have provided our partner, Ukraine, with significant support since 2014. We have
stood by Ukraine. We have committed more than $2 billion in security assistance to Ukraine over the
years. And of course, we'll continue working to provide Ukraine the security assistance it needs to
defend itself against Russian aggression, including the lethal defensive weapons based on an evolving
assessment of Kyiv's needs.

QUESTION: Is there a specific new plan on that assistance?
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MR PRICE: It is something we are always taking a close look at. It's something we're always
evaluating. Of course, the Secretary had an opportunity to meet with his counterpart, Foreign Minister
Kuleba, just a few days ago in Brussels. We discussed continuing to work closely together and to
standing by as a partner, including when it comes to Ukraine’s security needs.

QUESTION: Two on Russia?

QUESTION: Can | ask (inaudible) follow-up on that? So just to put a finer point on it, are you currently
considering the option of sending more lethal weaponry to Ukraine?

MR PRICE: I’'m not going to get ahead of any additional moves we might make. But look, the
Ukrainian Government has no doubt where we stand. Similarly, | think it is also fair to say that
Moscow has no doubt where we stand, and that is firmly in support with our partner, Ukraine, including
its sovereignty, territorial integrity, and that includes in the maritime domain.

Yes.

QUESTION: On the troop withdrawal from the Ukrainian border, was this signaled in any way ahead
of time? In other words, was the Biden administration surprised to see this happen? And then also, |
see that Slovakia and the Czech Republic have both expelled more Russian diplomats over the last 12
hours. Notwithstanding the expulsions that were announced here last week, I'm wondering if there’s
any additional considerations to shut down more consulates in — Russian consulates in the United
States to bring it in line with the American consulates that have been shut down in Russia.

MR PRICE: Well, as we said yesterday, we have had an opportunity to engage in discussion in
Moscow. Our embassy took part in a discussion with Moscow authorities, and we expect those
discussions will continue in the coming days, perhaps even the coming weeks. So we’re not going to
get ahead of where those discussions might lead. Of course, President Biden announced just a few
days ago a very strong response to the different categories of Russia’s malign activity, and that
includes its interference in our democracy; that includes what we have seen vis-a-vis Mr. Navalny; it
includes the reports of bounties on American soldiers in Afghanistan; and of course, it includes
SolarWinds. And so we will continue to have discussions in Moscow, but again, | don't think it's
appropriate for us to get ahead of those discussions right now.

QUESTION: How about were you all surprised about the troop withdrawal from the Ukrainian border?
Was this —

MR PRICE: Well, again, we've heard the announcement. And to the best of our knowledge, it remains
an announcement. That's why we’re going to continue to watch very closely.

QUESTION: I'm sorry, | just need to be clear on this. | mean, were you all signaled ahead of time that
this might be happening?

MR PRICE: We've heard the announcement, but you'll have to speak to Russian authorities when it
comes to their future plans or their motives.

Yeah.

QUESTION: To follow up on my colleague’s question, were you signaled ahead of time that there
would be the announcement?

MR PRICE: Did the Russians tell us ahead of time that they planned to make an announcement that —
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QUESTION: Yeah.

QUESTION: Yeah, that’s the question.

MR PRICE: (Laughter.)

QUESTION: That’s not a ridiculous question.

QUESTION: In the phone call, for example, between the two presidents, was there a hint that some
kind of drawdown might be coming?

MR PRICE: We have — we have read out the phone call between President Biden and his counterpart,
Russian President Putin. We've read out the phone call between National Security Advisor Sullivan and
his counterpart. I'll have to refer you to those readouts. | don’'t have any more to add to that. But look,
our point is that we have heard words from Moscow. The entire world has heard those words. It's an
announcement insofar as we know yet. We’'ll be looking for follow-through when it comes to what the
Russians actually do.

QUESTION: Okay, can | try a different one then?
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: The Russian MFA has said that it's going to prohibit local staff from working at the U.S.
Embassy in Moscow. Can you give us an idea of how many people that is? Is there a deadline for
when they have to stop working? Some of these people have worked there for more than decades. Is
this going to force a drawdown of the embassy, and how is it going to impact operations?

MR PRICE: Well, it is true that we have had discussions with the Russian Government, and they have
relayed their — elements of their response. We were — we have received the official diplomatic
correspondence, as | mentioned yesterday, that lists the diplomats that the Russian Government has
PNG’d. Now, the Russian Government has made a public announcement when it comes to locally
employed staff. That is an unfortunate announcement. As we have said, steps to prohibit locally
employed staff will impact our personnel. It will impact the community. We know that locally employed
staff in Moscow and around the world — they are key members of our workforce and their
contributions are important to our operations. They’re also important to the bilateral mission.

Even as we have these profound disagreements with Moscow, even as we enact our own policy
response in the aftermath of Russia’s malign activity and behavior, we know that only through
continued engagement and diplomacy will we be able to aspire to have that predictable and that stable
relationship with Moscow that we seek to have. Now, locally employed staff are a key component of
our embassy operations. That, in turn, makes them a key component of that ability to engage
diplomatically. So again, we haven't received formal notification when it comes to locally employed
staff, but we’ve heard the announcement and we continue to consider that quite unfortunate.

QUESTION: Just on climate, you asked people — countries to come to the summit with more
ambitious targets. You've mentioned allies that did; Australia did not. Is that a disappointment to you?

MR PRICE: Well, what is true is that we have heard ambitious announcements from partners, allies,
even some countries that don't often fall into either of those categories. Now, of course, Australia is a
very close ally and we're pushing countries around the world, including ourselves, to be as ambitious
as we can be, knowing the stakes of this existential threat. We know that we can solve this, but we
know that in order to do it we’'ll have to work together.
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Australia is a strong ally across the board, in technology development and the opportunities — and in
opportunities for policy development. We have a long history of cooperation with our Australian allies,
and we see enormous potential for joint work between our two countries.

At the same time, we know that cooperation on technology or any other innovative climate solutions
will only achieve the necessary scale if they are, in fact, coupled with ambitious climate policy and
commitment. And that’'s why we know that the coming decade will be decisive. The steps that
countries commit to now will set us up for success or they will set us up for failure. And to keep that
goal of limiting warming to 1.5 degrees Celsius within reach we know we have to get on that right path
now. That's why we’ve been pushing our allies, our partners, even countries that don't fall — typically
don't fall into either category towards that direction.

QUESTION: So you're saying you would have liked to have seen Australia commit to a more
ambitious target?

MR PRICE: The entire world needs to do more. That is precisely why President Biden and the White
House announced an ambitious NDC on our part; it’s precisely why we have encouraged countries
around the world to do more. We’'ll keep doing that. This climate summit is not the end of the road.
This is, in fact, the start of the road to Glasgow, and of course we’ll continue from there. So we will
keep this up. We will keep the pressure on ourselves as well, knowing that what the United States
does tends to have a catalytic effect. And that’s why, for us, it was so important to announce an
ambitious NDC, 50 to 52 percent below the 2005 levels by 2030. And that’s what we hope to see from
countries around the world.

QUESTION: Just to follow up. Prime Minister Scott Morrison was pretty far down the list of speakers,
| think 21 out of 27, even behind Bhutan for instance. Is that any sort of reflection on Australia’s
perceived lack of commitment to climate change?

MR PRICE: | wouldn't read more into the order or the sequence than is necessary. Of course,
Australia is a close ally. We have an incredibly close partnership across many realms, and just as we
do with all countries, we hope and expect Australia will commit to bold ambition when it comes to
climate. It's what we have sought to do ourselves and we’'ll continue to have those conversations going
forward.

Yes.
QUESTION: Wait. How much is necessary?
MR PRICE: How much is necessary? Well —

QUESTION: Well, you said don't read anything more into the placement of speakers than is
necessary. So how much is necessary? It clearly wasn’t alphabetical if she’s right and Bhutan went
ahead of Australia; I'm pretty sure B comes after A. So how much do we read into the fact that he
was — whatever he was — 21st, or 27th?

MR PRICE: | do not think order was indicative of anything other than temporal sequencing. So | think
you're probably reading too much into it.

QUESTION: I'm not reading anything into it. You're the one who said don't read more into it than you
should, and so how much should we read into it?

MR PRICE: Well, | think just the fact that the question is being asked is perhaps parsing things. But
look, we are gratified at the 39 other countries that have showed up at this summit. We are gratified
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at the commitments that we’ve heard today, the commitments that we’ve heard preceding this, and —
knock on wood — the commitments that we’ll hear going forward as well.

Yes.

QUESTION: On climate, in your opening remarks you didn't mention China. Has China’s commitment
today met your expectation, and what role do you like to see China to play in the next phase?

MR PRICE: Well, we know that every major economy, every country that is responsible for a large
share of global emissions — and China would certainly fall into that category as the world’s largest
emitter — has a special responsibility. That is precisely why we have not shirked our own responsibility
as the world’s second-largest emitter. It's precisely why President Biden and the White House put
forward that ambitious nationally determined contribution in the last day or so.

So I'm not going to speak to what we would like to see specifically from Beijing, but it is absolutely
true that China, the United States, other major emitting countries do have a special responsibility to
step up, if we are going to remain — to keep that target of 1.5 degrees Celsius within reach.

QUESTION: So at this summit, while the former secretary, the — Special Envoy Kerry is talking about
cooperation, but this week Secretary Blinken, he actually said the USA is falling behind on the
renewable energy, and it’s difficult to imagine the United States winning the long-term strategic
competition with China. Are you sending a mixed message?

MR PRICE: No. | think if you look at the fuller context of what he said, that the — that we see climate
both as an existential threat, which is what has in many ways galvanized our action, but we also see it
— and this may sound like a paradox, but it's absolutely true — as an opportunity. It is an opportunity for
us to create opportunity within this country — good-paying, green jobs for American workers. That is
what Secretary Blinken was speaking to, the two sides of this climate coin, the threat and the
opportunity.

And certainly | think it is fair to say that the United States has not done enough yet to seek to seize
that opportunity, to seek to seize what this climate challenge has put before us in terms of the
economic opportunities for American workers, in terms of our ability to demonstrate our own ambition,
and to galvanize the rest of the world to action. That’s precisely what this administration has sought to
do really since day one by rejoining Paris, by putting forward this NDC, by convening this summit of 40
countries from around the world, to focus the world’s attention on the threat while also making clear
that here at home domestically, this presents an opportunity for us that we would be unwise to pass

up.

QUESTION: | have a last question. Two days ago, you said the department has completed
deployment of vaccines to all the posts abroad. Does it mean that the United States embassies and
consulates around the world are going to restore the full capacity of your visa service? And also, are
you considering ease the travel restriction between United States and China, given the United States is
the most vaccinated country, and China has controlled the virus pretty successfully?

MR PRICE: Well, we're always going to listen to science. We're always going to listen to medical
professionals and public health professionals when it comes to that guidance. That is why CDC is in
the lead on these issues. And so this isn’'t a question of politics; it is a question of public health. And
that’'s how we’re going to treat it. So when the science says that it is safe to ease restrictions or if the
science requires that we impose additional barriers, whether that pertains to China or any other
country, | suspect that's what you'll see us do.

When it comes — remind me of your first question.
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QUESTION: The embassy and the consulates, are they going to restore the full capacity?

MR PRICE: So certainly our hope is that over time, we will be able to restore the capacity within our
embassies, our posts, missions, consulates around the world. We need to take into account not only
the vaccination status of our own employees, but also the rate of the virus, the virus’s toll in that
particular country. So there are a number of factors that go into this, but certainly our hope going
forward in the coming months is that we will be able to restore a good deal of that functionality in our
missions around the world.

QUESTION: Yeah.
MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: Any comment on the pressure between Israel and Syria, and on the Iranian
announcement that the missile that targeted Israel and landed near Dimona facility is an old generation
Iranian? Do you view an Iranian escalation or an escalation in the region?

MR PRICE: Well, we support Israel’'s ability to exercise its inherent right of self-defense. We condemn
any actions that threaten Israel and regional security more broadly. | would need to refer you to the
Government of Israel for more details about its operations. | know they’ve spoken to it, but | would
need to refer you there for a reaction.

QUESTION: Do you view any Iranian role, and especially after confirming that the missile was
Iranian?

MR PRICE: | don’t have a confirmation of that that I'm prepared to offer from here. What | would say
is that we condemn any action that threatens Israel and regional security more broadly.

QUESTION: And one more, please. Do you welcome the meetings between Saudi Arabia and Iran in
Iraq, and it looks like there’s another meeting?

MR PRICE: | would need to refer you to those two governments to speak to that.
QUESTION: Thanks.

QUESTION: (Inaudible) Australia has moved to cancel two projects that the Victorian government had
with China regarding the Belt and Road Initiative. Of course, it has been labeled by critics as a debt
trap diplomacy, and also a scheme to take over parts of the world. Is the U.S. looking at taking similar
sort of moves, or has the U.S. spoken to Australia at all about that move?

MR PRICE: Well, when it comes to that move, this is a decision made by the Australian Government.
We would refer all questions on Australian law and the substance of these decisions to the Australian
Government, our ally there. We continue to stand with the people of Australia as they bear the brunt of
the PRC’s coercive behavior. | believe it was Foreign Minister Payne who made clear in her statement
that the Australian Government has determined that the agreements you refer to — to be inconsistent
with Australia’s foreign policy or adverse to Australia’s foreign relations. The government’s cancellation
of these additional arrangements with entities in Iran and entities in Syria further demonstrate that
Australia is focused on protecting its national interest from all international concerns — this is not unique
to the PRC — but these are decisions by the Australian Government.

QUESTION: But is the U.S. talking to partners about potentially pushing back against the Belt and
Road Initiative?
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MR PRICE: What we’'ve made clear is that what unites us are our shared values, are our shared
interests. We know that allies around the world, we know that partners around the world are going to
have relationships with Beijing that may look slightly different than the relationship that we have. That’s
okay. As Secretary Blinken said recently, we’re not going to put our allies or our partners in a position
to choose between the United States and Beijing. We are going to focus on what unites us. There is
much more that unites us with our partners and certainly our allies, and certainly that’s the case with
Australia, than any disagreement we may have when it comes to China or any other issue.

QUESTION: Did the U.S. express its concerns about this agreement? Did the U.S. induce the
Australians in any way to consider canceling these agreements?

MR PRICE: This is an — again, this is an action that is internal to Australia, so we would need to refer
you there. Of course, it is also true that Australia has borne a tremendous toll of the coercive actions
on the part of the PRC. So this is a country that has been really on the front lines of this coercive
diplomacy. But when it comes to their actions, we would need to refer you to Australian authorities.

QUESTION: Is the U.S. pleased that the Australians have canceled this deal?

MR PRICE: Look, we continue to work closely with our ally Australia on any number of fronts. We — a
number of senior officials have made comments that the United States is standing with Australia in the
face of coercive action, coercive diplomacy by the PRC. But these decisions to cancel arrangements
at the sub-national level, that’s a matter for the Australian Government.

QUESTION: Are you then having conversations with Australia regarding the cancellation of the
contracts?

MR PRICE: | don't have any conversations to read out on that.
Yes.

QUESTION: Two questions, if | may. The first is on Japan’s announced targets of 46 percent cut to
emissions by 2030. During Prime Minister Suga’s visit, there were some reports that the U.S. was
seeking a 50 percent cut. So | just wanted to ask if the U.S. is satisfied with Japan’s announced target
of 46 percent.

And then separately on Taiwan, on Monday, the head of Taiwan’s defense ministry’s strategic planning
office said that he was seeking U.S. long-range cruise missiles. Is this something that Taiwan has
been in contact with the State Department about? |s this something that the U.S. is open to providing
Taiwan?

MR PRICE: When it comes to Japan and Tokyo’s target, just as the question that pertained to Beijing,
I’m not going to prescribe from here. The United States Government is not going to prescribe
specifically what targets certain countries should have. Our goal is to raise ambition across the board.
And again, we have sought to do that in any number of ways, including through conversations, but also
including through the catalytic power of our example. And that is why President Biden thought it was
so important and the White House released the United States NDC, which is quite ambitious, for the
rest of the world to see. And so we will continue these conversations, whether it is with our allies in
the Indo-Pacific, our allies in Europe, and in some cases, countries that have not been allies nor would
not be allies going forward.

When it comes to Taiwan, our commitment, | would say, to Taiwan is rock solid. It contributes to the
maintenance of peace and security in the Taiwan Strait and within the region. It has been longstanding
U.S. policy and it is reflected in the Taiwan Relations Act that the United States maintains the capacity
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to resist any resort to force or other forms of coercion that would jeopardize the security, social, or
economic system of the people on Taiwan. We'll continue to work with allies and partners in support of
our shared prosperity, security, and values in the Indo-Pacific and that includes peace and security in
the Taiwan Strait.

QUESTION: Can | follow up on Taiwan? Is it possible for the U.S. to speed up the delivery of arms to
Taiwan that have already been sold but have not yet been delivered there?

MR PRICE: | am not in a position to speak to the logistics of that or what might be required there.
QUESTION: Right, but is it under consideration?

MR PRICE: Look, | — again, our support for Taiwan is rock solid. We continue to have a dialogue with
Taiwan on a range of issues. Security, of course, is one of them. But I'm not going to get into the
details of that.

QUESTION: Okay. And then can | just ask a question on Navalny? So yesterday National Security
Advisor Sullivan said that he reiterated that in private conversations, Navalny’s been discussed. And he
said that U.S. officials have told Russian officials, quote, what would unfold should the worst befall
Navalny. I'm just wondering what the strategy is behind that. Why tell the Russians privately what the
U.S. would do if Navalny dies but not publicly? Describe that — what’s the benefit there?

MR PRICE: WEell, | think what — and by the fact that you're asking about it, what you heard is that we
have had those private discussions. | think the National Security Advisor made the point that
sometimes points are conveyed and have more effectiveness when they are conveyed privately, in
private channels, and perhaps in a different level of detail as well. But also, he made the point that
we've had these discussions privately, that we have made very clear to the Russians in private and
now we’'ve made this public for all the world to know that we — that we consider Russia, Moscow,
responsible for anything that would befall Mr. Navalny while he is in detention.

| don't think it does Mr. Navalny any good, | don't think it does the United States any good for us to
forecast specifically what that might look like if something were to befall Mr. Navalny. The point we
have made to the Russians privately and the broader point we have made publicly is that there would
be consequences, there would be severe consequences were something to happen to him in their
custody.

QUESTION: Can you describe for us an example of when having these private discussions with
Russia has actually benefited a situation and produced tangible results?

MR PRICE: Well, look, | would hesitate to do that in any specific case. | will say, broadly speaking,
there are certain cases when private diplomatic exchanges and keeping a matter in those channels
could be to our benefit. Hostage negotiations, for example, or the negotiations over a wrongful
detainee, someone who is wrongfully held, could be one such example of it. But when it comes to our
relationship with Russia, | wouldn't want to go into those details.

QUESTION: So this strategy hasn’t worked during the Biden administration to date yet?
MR PRICE: You certainly didn’'t hear me say that.

QUESTION: Well, no Americans have been released from Russia since the Biden administration came
in.

MR PRICE: We - this is now month three, | suppose. It is certainly the case when it comes to Trevor
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Reed, when it comes to Paul Whelan, when it comes to the Americans who are being held unjustly in
Russia that we have regularly raised their cases, that we have continued to work closely with their
families. Our embassy in Moscow continues to provide the level of support that we can, and it remains
a priority for us to see them safely and quickly reunited with their families.

QUESTION: Just a follow-up on Mr. Navalny. Given all these high-level conversations about him
recently, is it fair to assume that his fate has become a national security priority for the Biden
administration?

MR PRICE: Certainly, human rights in Russia has always been a concern for us. Mr. Navalny, | think,
embodies and in many ways personifies what has befallen to the broader issue of human rights in
Russia. The fact that the Russian Government has sought to silence Mr. Navalny, has literally
attempted to assassinate him using a banned chemical weapon; the fact that he now sits in their
custody, is in their custody; the fact that the Russian Government has clamped down, including even in
recent hours, on those Russians who have peacefully taken to the street to do nothing more than to
exercise the rights that are guaranteed to them under their own constitution, the Russian constitution, |
think is emblematic of what has become of human rights in Russia. That is what we are standing up
for. Mr. Navalny has long sought to be an advocate and has long been an advocate for human rights,
for anticorruption in Moscow. It’s precisely why he now sits in Russian custody.

So that is why his case is of such interest to us, but we also would note that it is not just an interest to
us. It’s an interest to our allies, to our partners around the world. We've seen multilateral statements,
very powerful multilateral statements on paper. You have seen messaging from some of our closest
allies and partners that has been coordinated to make clear that this is not a question of the United
States, of Washington versus Moscow. This is a question of countries standing up for basic values,
universal human rights, values that have come under tremendous threat, tremendous strain from
President Putin and Moscow.

QUESTION: Armenia?
QUESTION: Can | —

MR PRICE: | heard Armenia.
QUESTION: Yeah, sure.

QUESTION: So ahead of this Saturday’s Armenian Remembrance Day, does this administration has
anything new to say about what happened in 1915 regarding the deportations and massacres against
Armenians?

MR PRICE: | know that the White House press secretary was asked about this. | know that she said
that there would be more to say in the coming days, so | would just leave it there.

QUESTION: Well, in 2019 — the end of 2019, the U.S. Senate adopted unanimously S.Res. 150 to
recognize the Armenian genocide. Does the State Department endorse this congressional action?

MR PRICE: Again, I'm going to defer to the White House. | know that, as the press secretary said,
there will be more to say on this subject, but I'm going to leave it there for now.

QUESTION: One more on Turkey and Ukraine.
MR PRICE: Sure.
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QUESTION: Do you support Turkey providing drones to Ukraine?

MR PRICE: | — we'll — if we have anything to say on that, we’'ll get back to you.
QUESTION: Okay, I'll ask —

QUESTION: Can we go to Afghanistan?

QUESTION: Oh, let me follow up on Turkey then.

MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: So the expectation is that the President is going to recognize Armenian genocide.
Relations with Turkey are already in a pretty bad situation. Where do you think that is going to leave
things on — after this? How do you expect to have any further leverage on Ankara?

MR PRICE: Well, I'm not going to weigh in on a hypothetical. Again, when it comes to any
announcements that the White House would make, | would refer to and defer to the White House.
What | would say more broadly and taking a step back from the immediate question is that Turkey, as
you know, is a longstanding and valued ally and NATO ally.

QUESTION: That we have a lot of problems with.

MR PRICE: We have shared interests with Ankara, and that includes countering terrorism. It includes
ending the conflict in Syria. It includes deterring broader malign influence in the region. And we seek
that cooperation on common priorities because, again, Turkey is an ally. And where we do have
disagreements, as you referred to, we engage in dialogue as allies do.

QUESTION: So what is the current dialogue then?
MR PRICE: Well —
QUESTION: What is it about? Is it about S-400s?

MR PRICE: Well, as you know, the Secretary had an opportunity to meet with his Turkish counterpart
twice recently. They met in — they were together in Brussels. They had a bilateral meeting at our —
during our first trip to Brussels. And so the bilateral — the dialogue there reflects the bilateral
relationship in that —

QUESTION: Have you gotten any indications from Turks that they might back down from the S-400s
or even if they wouldn't back down, there would be a way going forward?

MR PRICE: What | will say is that bilateral meeting that they had reflected the relationship. We talked
about those shared interest. We talked about security challenges. We talked about terrorism and
countering terrorism. But Secretary Blinken, as he does in all engagements, as appropriate, does not
hesitate to raise those areas of disagreement. And of course, there are some when it comes to our
alliance with Turkey: the S-400 you raised; human rights is another. And we won't shy away from
raising those. We know that we can do those two things simultaneously. As friends, as allies, when we
have disagreements, we raise those. We discuss those. And there’s no — there’s no papering over
them.

QUESTION: Okay. Can | go to vaccine diplomacy?
MR PRICE: Sure.
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QUESTION: So India is currently facing a horrible surge in coronavirus infections.

MR PRICE: Mm-hmm.

QUESTION: And we reported that they’'ve asked United States to lift a ban on the export of —
MR PRICE: Mm-hmm.

QUESTION: — vaccine raw materials, which basically threatens to slow the country’s vaccination
drive. When will the administration decide on that?

MR PRICE: So we've addressed this a couple times in the briefing. As I've said, this is a question for
USTR when it comes to —

QUESTION: But why is it a question for USTR? Blinken had — Secretary Blinken had a phone call with
his counterpart.

MR PRICE: That’s right. And they did discuss COVID. But when it comes —
QUESTION: And this didn't come up?

MR PRICE: We issued a readout of that call. And as that call — as the readout of the call notes, they
did discuss the COVID-19 response. You asked about intellectual property and certain controls. That
was — is within the purview of USTR. What | will say broadly is that the United States first and
foremost is engaged in an ambitious and effective and, so far, successful effort to vaccinate the
American people. That campaign is well underway, and we’re doing that for a couple of reasons.

Number one, we have a special responsibility to the American people. Number two, the American
people, this country has been hit harder than any other country around the world — more than 550,000
deaths, tens of millions of infections in this country alone. But there’s also a broader point here that |
made yesterday that it’s, of course, not only in our interest to see Americans vaccinated; it’s in the
interests of the rest of the world to see Americans vaccinated. The point the Secretary has made
repeatedly is that as long as the virus is spreading anywhere, it is a threat to people everywhere. So
as long as the virus is spreading uncontrolled in this country, it can mutate and it can travel beyond our
borders. That, in turn, poses a threat well beyond the United States.

It is true that even as we focus on this, we have also played a leadership role when it comes to
containing, seeking to contain the virus beyond our borders. We have re-engaged with the WHO on
day one, the $2 billion we've contributed to COVAX, with 2 billion more on the way. When it comes to
our own hemisphere, the loan arrangement with Canada and Mexico, and when it comes to India, the
Quad and the arrangement with the Quad, including to increase production capacity in India.

So as we are more comfortable in our position here at home, as we are confident that we are able to
address any contingencies as they may arise, | expect we'll be able to do more. And we will, of
course, always do as much as we can, consistent with our first obligation.

QUESTION: Can | ask you two really brief ones?
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: Well, they should be really brief, | think. Yesterday, as I'm sure you're aware, the Senate
Foreign Relations Committee cleared off on two more State Department nominees, but also at the
same time unanimously approved an amendment that would kind of force the administration’s hand on
Nord Stream 2 sanctions. So I’'m wondering, while you — I'm sure you welcome the movement to the
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floor for votes on Toria Nuland and Uzra Zeya. What do you think of the Nord Stream 2 provisions?

MR PRICE: Well, as you know, Matt, we don't comment on legislation. But | think the — what is true is
that this administration, the President, Secretary Blinken, we share an overall attitude towards Nord
Stream 2 with many on Capitol Hill. And that is the position that it is a bad deal. We have called it a
Russian geopolitical project that threatens European energy security, and that of Ukraine and the
eastern flank of our NATO Allies. That’s why the Secretary has emphasized that he opposes it, the
President opposes it, and will continue to do everything we can, including consistent with legislation
that’s already on the books, to oppose its construction and finalization.

QUESTION: So you do comment on legislation?

MR PRICE: | —

QUESTION: You comment on legislation all the time.
MR PRICE: No.

QUESTION: It's only when you don’'t want to that you say, we never — oh, no, no, we never comment
on legislation.

MR PRICE: That’s not true. That’s not true. That’s not true. | didn't — | did not comment on legislation
that is pending.

QUESTION: You do it all the time.
MR PRICE: | commented on the law that’s on the book — on the books, PEESA and PEESCA

QUESTION: That's legislation. Anyway, number two. Yesterday, a senior State Department official
talked about this administration’s belief that the previous administration had disingenuously or
improperly imposed sanctions on Iran for terrorism, ostensibly for terrorism reasons, but they were
really designed to make it harder for any future administration to return to the nuclear deal. In other
words, they labeled what — nuclear sanctions as terrorism sanctions, or human rights sanctions, things
that would be exempted or wouldn’t be allowed to be done under the deal. Can you give us an
example of one sanction, or set of sanctions, that you think fits that category?

MR PRICE: Well, your question is a very good way, device, to seek me to — an attempt to elicit some
more detail on the various sanctions —

QUESTION: No.
MR PRICE: — and the categories of sanctions. But let me make the broader point —

QUESTION: I'm not. | just want one example of a sanction, or set of sanctions, that you think was
improperly or illegitimately or that the — that the Trump administration imposed with an ulterior motive
of tying your — of tying this administration or any other administration’s hands in returning to the deal.
Just one. Just one. I'm not asking for the whole set.

MR PRICE: | would make — | would make the point that there are sanctions that are inconsistent with
the JCPOA. And as we have said, if Iran resumes its compliance with the nuclear deal — meaning that
if Iran once again becomes subject to the most stringent verification and monitoring regime ever
negotiated — we would be prepared to lift those sanctions that are inconsistent with the JCPOA. There
are sanctions that are consistent with the JCPOA. | —
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QUESTION: And then there’s the third category that this official talked about. And all I'm asking for is
one example. There are —

MR PRICE: There are sanctions that are consistent with the JCPOA. And the point —
QUESTION: No, one example of what you think was duplicitously or disingenuously imposed.

MR PRICE: The point | made yesterday is that there is nothing in the JCPOA that does not, that
prohibits us from countering Iran’s broader malign behavior — its ballistic missiles program, support for
terrorism, support for proxies in the region.

Now, the point of these negotiations, and the point of these talks, is that if it were very clear if
sanctions were — came to us, came to this administration, labeled green or red, it would be a much
easier proposition for us to resume compliance, to do what we would need to do to resume
compliance if Iran committed to do the same. As you know, sanctions do not come pre-packaged. The
diplomacy did not come pre-arranged for us. And that’s why we’re engaging in these talks in Vienna.
This is precisely —

QUESTION: Yeah, but then you can't have it — make an accusation like this official did that the
previous administration acted in bad faith, that it was only attempting to screw over anyone who came
after them who might want to get back into the deal by mislabeling or improperly labeling nuclear
sanctions as terrorism sanctions, | think you have an obligation to give one example of the kind of
sanction that you think needs further study so that you can determine what the motive is. | mean, it’s a
pretty serious allegation, right? Is it not?

MR PRICE: The challenge, though, Matt, is that this is very much the subject of diplomacy in Vienna.
And again —

QUESTION: You've already identified the three baskets, according to this official. You've got these
three baskets: consistent, inconsistent, and gray area that you're trying to determine. | don't see what
the problem is in identifying one example of something that falls into a gray area.

MR PRICE: It’s a little more complicated than that, in part because there are going to be differences
of opinion between the United States and Iran as to what may fall within that gray area as you —

QUESTION: But Ned, there’s clearly a difference of opinion between this administration and the
previous administration.

MR PRICE: Of course.

QUESTION: Okay? So talk — let’s forget about the Iranians for a second. What does this
administration — give me one example of what this administration thinks was a — is a sanction that may
have been duplicitously imposed by the previous administration for — in an attempt to tie your hands.

MR PRICE: The reason | am hesitant to do that is because you're asking me to prejudge what may
happen withing —

QUESTION: You already have decided which there — which sanctions fit into that third basket.

MR PRICE: No, Matt, | think that the comments yesterday made very clear that this is a subject of
ongoing diplomacy, ongoing discussions in Vienna. Again, if it were clear cut, if they came pre-labeled
and pre-packaged for us, it would be a much easier proposition. It’s precisely why —

QUESTION: But they did come pre — they came pre-labeled. You're saying you don't agree with the
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label and that they were acting in bad faith when they did it. So just one.
MR PRICE: Matt —

QUESTION: All right. Really —

MR PRICE: This is the point of diplomacy.

QUESTION: Just a follow up. So when you guys do roll out this sanctions relief, can you identify some
of those as having been disingenuously put into place by the Trump administration?

MR PRICE: | would suspect that if, and that remains a big “if,” we are able to get to a point where
Iran has committed to resume its compliance with the nuclear deal, that is to say, once again be
subject to the most stringent verification and monitoring regime of a nuclear program ever negotiated,
and we have found a way for us and devise what it is that we would need to do to resume our own
compliance with the JCPOA, that that roadmap will become clear. Because if we get back to that
point, we will need to lift sanctions that are inconsistent with the deal.

QUESTION: Can we — can | go at it a slightly different way? Can you define what makes the sanction
inconsistent? What are the qualifications that make it inconsistent versus — is it they’ve sanctioned a
certain group, a certain military group, for example, a certain individual, versus consistent? How are
you defining those two baskets?

MR PRICE: The JCPOA, the original agreement, makes that very clear. It lays out precisely what the
sides would need to do. So this is not something that we are writing on the fly. Again, our — the
proposition that has always been on the table is compliance for compliance. If Iran were to resume its
full compliance with the JCPOA, we would do the same. So the JCPOA, that original agreement,
spells out precisely what is allowed, precisely what is prohibited in order for a country to be in
compliance with it. That remains the blueprint for all of this.

QUESTION: But that’s up for interpretation, as we’ve all been discussing. So if you're narrowing that,
can you say what would make something consistent? Could you give us an example of what would
make a sanction inconsistent?

MR PRICE: What would make a sanction consistent?
QUESTION: Inconsistent. Sorry, masks.

MR PRICE: Inconsistent. There are very clear cases, as you heard yesterday. Sanctions — nuclear
sanctions would be inconsistent.

Anyone else? Okay.

QUESTION: Thank you.

MR PRICE: Thank you.

(The briefing was concluded at 3:27 p.m.)
HH#
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MR PRICE: All right. Good afternoon. Our apologies for starting a bit late today. Couple items at the
top. First, Secretary of State Blinken will travel tomorrow, April 27th, on his first virtual trip to Africa,
where he will visit Kenya and Nigeria and meet with young people from across the continent.

He will begin his virtual travel meeting with Young African Leadership Initiative, or YALI, alumni.
Through YALLI, the United States signature effort to invest in the next generation of African leaders, we
work with partners across the continent to develop initiatives and economic opportunities to support
the creativity, innovativeness, and energy of Africa’s youth.

Secretary Blinken will then visit Nigeria, where he will meet with President Buhari and Foreign Minister
Onyeama to underscore our shared goals of strengthening democratic governance, building lasting
security, promoting economic prosperity, and defending human rights. Secretary Blinken will also
participate in a health partnership event to emphasize U.S. health care support through the PEPFAR
program and in response to COVID-19.

Finally, during his visit to Kenya he will meet with President Kenyatta and Cabinet Secretary Omamo
to reaffirm our strategic partnership. Secretary Blinken will also visit Kenyan-based renewable energy
companies and, in solidarity with Kenya amidst the pandemic, we will highlight a U.S.-donated mobile
field hospital providing essential COVID-19 medical supplies via AFRICOM and the Massachusetts
National Guard’s State Partnership Program.

Next, today, we remember human rights activist Xulhaz Mannan, who was murdered five years ago for
his courageous work on behalf of marginalized communities in Bangladesh. At the time of his death, he
worked in USAID’s Bangladesh Office of Democracy and Governance, where he helped lead
programs to combat trafficking in persons, reduce gender-based violence, and promote human rights.
Before joining USAID, he served for nine years as the protocol specialist for the U.S. Embassy in
Dhaka, where he was a founding member of the embassy’s diversity committee.

Xulhaz's selfless dedication to advancing the principles of diversity, acceptance, and inclusion
exemplified the best of Bangladesh, as did his generosity of spirit, devotion to family, and dedication to
community. Today, we honor his fearless advocacy on behalf of his fellow Bangladeshis and recommit
to upholding the dignity and human rights of people around the world.

So with that, happy to take your questions.

QUESTION: Thanks. Where to begin. Let’s start with East Africa or the — in addition to this virtual trip
to Kenya tomorrow, Kenya is of course a key player in the whole IGAD process. The Secretary spoke
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with the prime minister of Ethiopia today, and the message seems to be getting increasingly impatient,
perhaps, for the fact that there is still Eritrean troops in Tigray. And I’'m just wondering, apart from the
talk and the pushing, pressing for them to get moving on this withdrawal — if and when it’s going to
happen — are you prepared to do anything else to make your case either with the Ethiopians or the
Eritreans?

MR PRICE: Well, let me make a couple of broad points. As you noted, the Secretary did have an
opportunity today to speak to Prime Minister Abiy. The message he conveyed, and we read that out,
but the message he conveyed is one that we have made at many levels in recent days. We remain, of
course, committed to building an enduring partnership with the Ethiopian people, and we remain
committed to the territorial integrity and unity of Ethiopia. All that said, we are gravely concerned
about the deteriorating humanitarian crisis in Tigray and the reports of human rights abuses, violations,
and atrocities that have emanated from there.

This administration has encouraged international partners, including the AU and regional partners, to
work with us to address the crisis in Tigray, including through action at the UN and other relevant
bodies. Now, of course, we have heard statements emanate from the region. We have heard the
Eritrean Government’s public statement that will — that it will withdraw its forces from Tigray, but that
must still be implemented in practice. There is no evidence that such a withdrawal is underway, and
any such withdrawal must be immediate and verifiable.

We also call and continue to call for a withdrawal of Amhara regional forces from Tigray for an
immediate end to the hostilities, all of which are critical to protecting civilians and ensuring unhindered
humanitarian access.

We continue to raise our grave concerns over the abuses and violations, human rights violations that |
mentioned before. We condemn in the strongest terms specifically the killings, the forced removals,
the sexual violence and rape, and other human rights abuses that multiple organizations have reported
on the ground in the region.

As more information comes to light, the urgency to meet those commitments and to move forward with
independent international investigations and accountability only increases. You probably noticed that at
the end of the readout of the Secretary’s call today, he did note that our new special envoy for the
Horn, Jeff Feltman — Ambassador Jeff Feltman — will be traveling to the region in the coming days,
and, of course, we expect this to be a topic of his conversations there.

QUESTION: But are you not at the point where you're warning them that there could be specific
measures taken against either country?

MR PRICE: Well, | would say that, of course, there have been some private communications, including
between the Secretary and the prime minister. Of course, Senator Coons recently undertook travel to
the region at the behest of the President and the administration to convey similar messages to Prime
Minister Abiy and others, and | would expect these will be conversations that the special envoy will
have when he travels to the region in the coming days.

QUESTION: When that happens, can you give us like dates and —

MR PRICE: Certainly. We will provide more details on his travel before it takes place.
QUESTION: Thank you.

MR PRICE: Great. Yes.
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QUESTION: There’s been some news about vaccines and the White House saying that these
AstraZeneca vaccines are going to start going to other countries. | wondered if you could give us a bit
more on the process for deciding who's going to get vaccines when the U.S. is giving them out. |
guess — is this — you've talked before about giving money to COVAX. | think what the word from the
White House today was that these would be distributed through direct partnerships. Does that mean
not through COVAX? And are you choosing to give these to countries based on need or is this based
on relationships and not — obviously, what the Secretary said — not political favors, but what is the
basis for this?

MR PRICE: Well, | would say broadly that it's based on a couple things. One is the broad recognition
that as long as this virus is spreading anywhere, it is a threat to people everywhere. That point applies
to COVID in India, it applies to COVID in the United States, it applies to COVID anywhere around the
world. And so that is why we have consistently spoken of our efforts not only to get the virus under
control here, recognizing that the United States has been the site of the world’s worst outbreak to
date, but also recognizing that as long as the virus is circulating here, it poses a threat and continues
and has the potential to continue to mutate to pose a threat well beyond our borders.

But that’s also why, since the very first days of this administration — in fact, the very first day of this
administration — President Biden has committed the United States to be a leader when it comes to
global public health, re-engaging with the WHO on day one; committing $2 billion to COVAX
immediately, another $2 billion over time as well; the loan arrangements we have discussed and we've
talked about in the context of Mexico and Canada; and, of course, our engagement with the Quad that
will seek to increase production capacity within India itself.

Let me just spend a moment on the situation in India, which, of course, is of great concern to the
United States, and we have always stood in solidarity with our friends and our partners in India. We
are working nonstop across the government to do all we can to deliver on an urgent basis the supplies
most needed within India, and that includes oxygen assistance and related materials, but it also
includes supplies of therapeutics, rapid diagnostic test kits, ventilators, personal protective equipment
or PPE - all supplies to protect India’s frontline health care workers. It includes raw material urgently
required for the manufacture of the Covishield vaccine, and we’ve also — deploying an expert team of
public health advisors from the CDC to work in close collaboration with our embassy on the ground,
India’s health ministries, and India’s epidemic intelligence staff.

Now, of course, these details that we've released in recent days follow regular consultation and
discussions with our partners in the Indian Government. Of course, the President had an opportunity
today to speak to Prime Minister Modi. The Secretary has had an opportunity in recent days to speak
to his counterpart, Foreign Minister Jaishankar. Jake Sullivan, the National Security Advisor, spoke to
his counterpart; Wendy Sherman, the deputy secretary of state, spoke to her counterpart. And we've
been doing that to demonstrate our solidarity with the Indian Government, with the Indian people, but
also to hear about the needs of the Indian Government and to assess, based on our own capacity,
what more we could do. We've always said that as we are in a position to do more, we will do more.
And this gets back to the issue of President Biden’s commitment on the part of the United States to be
— to continue to be a leader when it comes to humanitarian relief and a leader when it comes to global
public health. What we are talking about today in the context of India is a natural complement to what
we've been doing over the course of this administration, doing what we can to be a leader in terms of
the global response to this virus, even as we continue to address it here at home with our vaccination
drive.

QUESTION: Does that mean India is a priority, or how are you prioritizing the — those?

MR PRICE: Well, it is — it certainly goes without saying that India is enduring a horrific outbreak. India

Document ID: 0.7.12479.7253 1049-000201



is a global — we have a Global Comprehensive Strategic Partnership with India. But the Secretary has
been clear: This is not about shots in arms in return for political favors, in return for any sort of
transactionalism. This is about America’s humanitarian leadership, the commitment that this
administration has, to help those most in need. And, of course, what India is enduring now is
profoundly concerning on so many levels.

And so that’s why you've seen not only the United States stepping up, but other countries in the region
and well beyond stepping up to attempt to help and do all we can to help India in its time of need.

QUESTION: Yeah. Yeah, why is it taking so long? You say you have these public health advisors and
intelligence people on the ground. We — presumably they saw this coming. Is it China’s criticism? Is it
— what’s causing it? Is it the stories in the press? Is it — it seems like the Quad would be monitoring
this. Isn’t disaster relief one of the founding parts of the Quad?

I’m just wondering why we’re just seeing this surge of attention on India right now when we talk about
this deep and strategic partnership?

MR PRICE: Well, | would take issue with the premise that it has taken us a long time. | would note
that, of course, we have talked about our stepped-up assistance to India in recent hours. And we've
always said as we assess we’re in a position to do more, we will do more, and you have heard us
make good on that pledge.

But from the earliest days of this pandemic, we have provided much-needed assistance to India, just
as India came to our aid when we were enduring the worst of the pandemic here in this country. Since
the beginning of the pandemic, the United States has provided more — nearly $19 million in total
assistance, and that includes nearly 11 million in health assistance to help India slow the spread of
COVID-19. We have — our assistance has helped India provide care for the affected, disseminate
essential public health messages to various communities, strengthen the epidemiological surveillance
capabilities, mobilize innovative financing mechanisms for emergency preparedness in response to the
pandemic.

These funds — this nearly $19 million in support that we’ve provided since the start of the outbreak —
have also supported Indian state-specific COVID-19 challenges and addressed bottlenecks in supply
chains that stemmed from the lockdown on India’s border. Two million dollars in that assistance is also
supporting micro and small and medium enterprises in areas hardest hit by COVID-19. And as |
alluded to before, the CDC has committed $3.6 million to assist the Government of India’s response to
the epidemic. Those resources are trained at prevention, preparedness, and response activities in
India.

So it is certainly not the case that what we have spoken to in recent hours is the start of our
engagement, but we recognize that as the current outbreak has taken incredibly concerning turns in
India, that there was more we could do. And we, in consultation with our Indian partners, have
determined that the steps | referred to earlier are available to us and they would be of great benefit to
our partners in India.

QUESTION: | mean, is there more to come? You talk about 19 million here and 3.6 million there in a
country of — that measures population in terms of a billion. Is that going to be enough to stop or to
address the pandemic there?

MR PRICE: Well, | think the two premises | referred to earlier: As we are able to do more, we will be
doing more — we are making good on that promise now; and also the recognition, again, that as long
as the virus is circulating unfettered anywhere, whether that’s here in the United States, whether that
is around the world, that poses a threat not only to the American people but, in turn, to people well
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beyond our borders with the ability to redound back on us.

So we are doing what is in our national interest, but we're also doing what’s in the collective interest.
And it just so happens when it comes to global health, oftentimes what’s in our national interest is also
in the collective interest, and that's what we're seeing here.

QUESTION: Ned, what does the State Department — does the State Department have any specific
role in getting the vaccines out to the — or is — are you —

MR PRICE: In terms of the logistics of that?
QUESTION: Yes.

MR PRICE: So | would refer you to the White House to discuss logistics. They’ve obviously talked
about AstraZeneca in the context — in today’s context.

Now, of course, we do have Gayle Smith who is playing a key role in all of these efforts, but | would
make the point, | would hasten to add, that her role goes well beyond vaccines. And | know there has
been a lot of attention paid to vaccines, but that’s really just one element. When you talk about Gayle’s
role as coordinator for global COVID response and health security, she has a role that involves
diplomacy; that is to say, leading engagement for the U.S. Government with foreign governments and
partners around the world, multilateral entities, other executive branch agencies, Congress, the private
sector, and the general public. There is a strategic element to all of this as well, providing strategic
guidance, coherence, and prioritization for the formulation and implementation of an effective global
response to COVID-19.

Of course, that requires coordination, which is also a big part of her role, driving that coordination,
driving that prioritization within the department and throughout the interagency, pursuant to what’s
most effective for global response efforts. And she’s also undertaking and participating in the
department’s structural review of the longer-term organization of State’s global health security
portfolio. We know that COVID, unfortunately, will not — it was — is not the first outbreak or epidemic,
and unfortunately, we know it won’t be the last. And so we want to ensure that this institution, both
now and going forward, is best structured to respond effectively. And that’s part of Gayle Smith’s role
here as well.

Yes.
QUESTION: One more on India?
MR PRICE: One more on India? Sure.

QUESTION: Can you speak to reports of a outbreak among U.S. diplomatic staff in India, say how
many are affected, and if perhaps, considering that, the U.S. might be looking at authorized
departure?

MR PRICE: So I'm not in the position to confirm any cases within our staff. Obviously, privacy
considerations limit what we can say. But as | have mentioned during the course of this briefing alone,
India is enduring a deeply concerning outbreak, and the entire country has been affected. We
obviously do have a large diplomatic presence within India. It is tantamount to the deep engagement
and partnership we have with India. But I'm not in a position to speak to any cases within our staff or
embassy community.

Yes.
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QUESTION: Two questions. The President, and by extension this administration, will be marking
hundred days in office on Thursday. What would you say have been the biggest or the top
achievement of this administration in the past hundred days —

MR PRICE: Well —
QUESTION: — in terms of Africa?

MR PRICE: Oh, for Africa. Well, certainly, of course, the Secretary will have much more to say on this
in the course of his virtual trip tomorrow. We're also — and I’'m mindful of the clock, because we are
doing a preview of that trip at 4 o’clock, where you will hear more. But what | will say is that we have
engaged the African continent deeply during the course — during the short course of this
administration. You may recall that President Biden addressed the African Union Summit, his first
direct address to foreign leaders in this administration. And | think that was noteworthy not only
because of its — because of how early it came within this administration, but as a signal to our
commitment to our partners on the continent and to the AU as a multilateral institution in this case.

We'll continue to engage regularly, openly, and candidly as partners in pursuing those shared interests
and shared values. We have much in common that goes well beyond security and includes global
health and includes climate change and includes freedom and democracy and shared prosperity.

We have engaged deeply within the Horn of Africa, of course, and we've spoken already to Senator
Coons’ engagement. We announced last Friday the appointment of Ambassador Jeff Feltman as a
special envoy for the Horn of Africa, which is emblematic of the level of priority this administration is
attaching to issues on the continent and issues that affect the totality of the continent.

We also — and Secretary Blinken will have an opportunity to engage tomorrow — will continue our
people-to-people programs. With a population of 1.3 billion and a median age of some 19 years, we
recognize that Africa’s youth are one of the continent’s most important resources, and that’s why
programs like YALI, that is why the public diplomacy work that takes place within and on the part of
our embassies and posts throughout the continent are so important, and we’ll continue to develop
those going forward as well.

QUESTION: Okay. The second question. On Nigeria, | don't know if you are aware, the Nigerian
Government today suspended Channels TV, one of the most wide TV station in Nigeria. | would like
you to react to that. And also, if the Secretary would discuss human rights abuses in Nigeria with
President Buhari tomorrow.

MR PRICE: Well, human rights are always on the agenda when it comes to this administration’s
foreign policy. Whether that is Africa, whether that is any other region. So | can guarantee you that
issues of democracy and human rights will be on the agenda in both countries.

When it comes to the suspension of the channel you noted, | don’t have a specific response except to
say that it is a hallmark of media freedom, plurality of media venues. Those are hallmarks of any
democracy, and it — those are important. We will continue to advocate for them in our foreign policy
going forward.

Yes.

QUESTION: Yeah, thanks. You've probably seen these leaked remarks by Iran’s foreign minister in
an interview that he evidently did not think would become public for a long time. One of his key points
was that the Iranian military, the IRGC, according to him, is basically calling the shots in Iranian foreign
policy. So does that give this administration any pause about Mr. Zarif as an interlocutor in the nuclear
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negotiations? He also seemed to suggest that Russia had been essentially trying to sabotage the
nuclear talks during the Obama administration. Do you — does that give you guys any concern about
Russia’s intentions? Do you believe that Russia is fully supportive of restoring the JCPOA and the
larger process with Iran?

MR PRICE: Well, | will start by saying — and you won't be surprised to hear — that we don't comment
on purportedly leaked material. Of course, we can’t vouch for the authenticity of it, for the accuracy of
it, and so of course I’'m not going to comment directly on what’s on that tape, on that recording.

The broader point is that with any negotiation, we don't have control of the internal decision-making
process of our counterparts. In this case, through our partners — because these negotiations continue
to be indirect — we're communicating with the officials the Iranian Government has put forward to take
part in these talks in Vienna. You mentioned the talks in the previous iteration. When it comes to both
Iran and Russia, for both of those, | would say there is a proof point here that we point to, and that
gives us some degree of confidence that there is potential here. And it's the JCPOA itself. Whatever
the internal politics that were involved, whatever the geopolitical dynamic in — that culminated with the
July 2015 agreement, we were able to negotiate successfully with Iran in the past, in the context of
the P5+1. It's precisely the context we are in now. Our focus today remains on determining, through
these indirect talks in Vienna, whether we can do so again.

QUESTION: If | could just follow up on that. | understand you can’'t address the comments directly,
but maybe you would find a way to help provide some context. There’s been some criticism of John
Kerry, who, according to Mr. Zarif, when he was secretary of state, had spoken to Mr. Zarif about
200 Israeli operations in Syria. And Foreign Minister Zarif said he was astonished to hear about this.
Can you say anything about whether John Kerry, as secretary of state, was talking about Israeli
operations in Syria that were not supposed to be discussed?

MR PRICE: Again, these are — this is purportedly leaked material. Can’t speak to the authenticity,
can't speak to the accuracy of it, can't speak to any motives that may be behind its dissemination. |
would just make the broad point that if you go back and look at press reporting from the time, this
certainly was not secret, and governments that were involved were speaking to this publicly on the
record.

QUESTION: What’s your understanding of what’s going to happen this week in Vienna?

MR PRICE: So in terms of what’s next, Special Envoy Malley is returning to Vienna early this week, |
expect as soon as tomorrow. He will be on the way back to Vienna. We have completed two rounds
of negotiations, indirect negotiations. Special Envoy Malley will be back on the ground with his team in
Vienna to start a third round this week.

QUESTION: How long will it last? You're not expecting anything to be finalized at this third round?

MR PRICE: Well, | think you heard from State Department officials last week that there remains a
long road ahead of us. We expect it to be a long road, at least. | think what | said last week remains
true today, that we probably have more road ahead of us than we do behind us. We'll just have to see
what Special Envoy Malley and his team find on the ground in Vienna.

Yes, Joel.

QUESTION: Ned, staying on Iran, | kind of want to just reiterate my colleague’s questions, but with
the preface that the Iranian Foreign Ministry appears to have said that the recording “was by no
means an interview” or “supposed to be an interview...it was part of a routine and confidential
dialogue that takes place within the administration.”
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So they appear to be confirming the authenticity of the tape, but saying that some parts are taken out
of context, and | — and so | then kind of wonder, once again, as was asked here, one, do you see the
Russians as a credible partner here in good faith working to advance a common goal? And also, then,
as you engage with the foreign minister, do you see him as — is the organizing dynamic here that this

is somebody who you need to give some — give talking points to go back home to manage pressures

domestically, or is he somebody who is not a decision maker?

MR PRICE: What | would say generally is that it is not for us to comment on any sort of political
pressures that may be on Foreign Minister Zarif. What we are focused on is one thing and one thing
only, and that is achieving and securing an agreement that verifiably and permanently prevents Iran
from ever obtaining a nuclear weapon.

Iran’s possession of a nuclear weapon would not be in the interests of the United States, it would not
be in the interests of our European partners, it would not be in the interest of the Chinese, it would not
be in the interest of the Russians. And so to — as you reiterated the previous question, | would again
point to the fact that we were able to achieve the JCPOA in 2015 and implement it in early 2016 with
this same set of partners, the P5+1. And | think that speaks to some potential possibility of us being
able to do this again if we find that commitment on the Iranian side, and that remains an “if” and we’ve
been able — we've been speaking to that in recent days.

But when you ask about the Russian motivation, I’'m going to let the Russians speak for themselves. |
would just add the point that a nuclear-armed Iran is not in Moscow’s interest.

QUESTION: Sorry, one more on Iran, unrelated to this, though.
MR PRICE: Mm-hmm.

QUESTION: Last week, Iran was elected to the commission — at ECOWAS, to the commission on the
status of women. How did the U.S. vote?

MR PRICE: | will have to get back to you on that.
Yes.

QUESTION: A question from a colleague who couldn’t be here today on China. She says: What is the
Biden administration’s view of — does it agree with the previous administration that the policy of
engaging China to spur liberalization was misguided? And how does the Biden administration look at
engagement now, broadly speaking?

MR PRICE: Right. Well, we have spoken broadly to our approach to Beijing, and what we have
always said is that it is a relationship that is multifaceted. It is a relationship that will have competitive
elements. It is a relationship that will have adversarial elements. And it is a relationship that will have
some cooperative elements.

When you look at the totality of that relationship — and it is quite an expansive bilateral relationship —
on balance, it is a relationship that is predicated on competition. Our goal in not only engaging with
Beijing, but also with our partners and allies and also here at home, harnessing our domestic sources
of strength, is to be able to compete and ultimately to outcompete with China. This is an approach that
in — that, while it has human rights at the center, it is not an approach that requires any rose-colored
glasses about the nature of the PRC, the nature of its leadership.

We are focused first and foremost on competing with and outcompeting the PRC, and that’s what
we’re doing, calling upon those sources of strength, our allies and partners, our values, our domestic
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sources of strength to use them in this relationship that is fundamentally one of competition.
QUESTION: But do you think that the previous policies of engagement were misguided?

MR PRICE: I'm not going to speak to previous administrations. I'm going to speak to this
administration’s approach, and that’s precisely our approach. It is a clear-eyed, principled approach to
the PRC that recognizes competition at the center of that relationship.

We can — have time for a quick final question. | know we're running to another engagement.

QUESTION: Just following up on that. So by stressing this competition is clear-eyed and there’s no
rose-colored glasses, you're basically saying you don't expect China to change; when Special Envoy
Kerry goes there, he’s not going to win change in China’s energy policies; when our trade officials go
there, they're not going to get a reform in China’s economy? Is that —

MR PRICE: No, I'm not saying that at all, and in fact, | said at the outset it’s a relationship that has
competitive aspects, adversarial aspects, and also cooperative elements to it as well. When you think
about the — those areas of shared interest that we have, you named a couple of them. Climate, of
course, is one. Secretary Kerry was just in China several days ago and you saw the joint statement
that emanated from that visit. Nonproliferation is another one. Iran, we've talked about in this context
already, is another one. There may be others as well.

And so we certainly do hope and expect that we'll be able to achieve progress vis-a-vis all of those
priorities, not because it's in the PRC's interest, but because it’s in our interest. It's in our interest to
see the world's largest emitter curb its emissions and it's in our interest to see Beijing play a
productive and constructive role, as it has in the context of the P5+1 with Iran. It's in our interest to
see other cooperative aspects of these — of this relationship be furthered.

But what I'm saying is that at the core, we recognize this to be a relationship predicated on
competition, and our goal throughout is to compete and to call upon our sources of strength to
outcompete with Beijing going forward.

Thank you all very much.

(The briefing was concluded at 3:59 p.m.)
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MR PRICE: Okay. Good afternoon. A couple things at the top before we turn to your questions.

First, reflecting the United States’ solidarity with India as it battles a new wave of COVID-19 cases,
the United States is delivering supplies worth more than $100 million in the coming days to provide
urgent relief to our partners in India.

In addition, U.S. state governments, private companies, nongovernmental organizations, and
thousands of Americans from across the country have mobilized to deliver vital oxygen, related
equipment, and essential supplies for Indian hospitals to support frontline health care workers and the
people of India most affected during this current outbreak.

U.S. government flights will start arriving in India tonight and they will continue into next week.

Just as India sent assistance to the United States when our hospitals were strained early in the
pandemic, the United States is determined to help India in its time of need.

Next, we are deeply concerned by the Ukrainian cabinet of ministers’ recent actions to manipulate
existing resolutions — sorry — regulations to dismiss the supervisory board and replace the
management of Ukraine’s leading energy company.

This calculated move — using a procedural loophole — to oust well-regarded experts from the boards of
several key state-owned enterprises reflects a disregard for fair and transparent corporate
governance practices and complicates longstanding efforts to reform Ukraine’s energy sector and
improve its investment climate.

Unfortunately, these actions are just the latest example of ignoring best practices and putting Ukraine’s
hard-fought economic progress at risk.

We will continue to support Ukraine in strengthening its institutions, including advancing democratic
institutions and corporate governance reforms, but Ukraine’s leaders must do their part as well.

So with that, happy to turn to your questions.

QUESTION: Thanks. Before we turn to India for a second, | just want — did you get an — | asked you
on | think it was Monday about the vote at the UN on the — or Iran’s election to the Commission on the
Status of Women. Did you get answer on how you voted?

MR PRICE: So what | can say, Matt, is that the unopposed candidacies of countries that engage in
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torture, in abuse, violations of human rights and due process — it was a troubling feature of this
election, the election that you referred to. That’s why — that’s precisely why the United States called
for the vote on the Commission of the Status of Women, specifically to allow countries to register their
opposition. The United States supports candidates in the UN system that seek to contribute positively
to its work and mission and reinforce the foundational values of the UN system, including human rights.
And that’s precisely why we have re-engaged with the UN, re-engaged with its human rights body, and
will continue to do that throughout the UN system.

QUESTION: So you voted against them?

MR PRICE: It was a private vote, but we called the vote specifically to allow countries to register their
concern.

QUESTION: Okay. It was a private vote. Well, what do you think? Is it appropriate for them to be on
this commission, this council?

MR PRICE: Well, | would point you to what | just said. It is a troubling feature when countries run
unopposed, countries that have —

QUESTION: Well, I'm talking about Iran specifically.
MR PRICE: Well, and I'm — and in this case —
QUESTION: Do you guys have an issue with them being on this commission?

MR PRICE: In this case, | think that Iran would qualify for much of what | just said: countries that have
very troubling records, deeply disturbing records.

QUESTION: Yeah, but you said it was — but you said it was — you didn’t say that it was troubling for
them to be on it; you said it was a troubling feature for these kinds of countries to run unopposed.

MR PRICE: Well, and it's precisely why we called this vote.
QUESTION: So is it an issue —
MR PRICE: So countries could register their concern.

QUESTION: So is it safe to say — would someone be wrong in writing that the U.S. thinks it's a bad
idea for Iran to be on this commission?

MR PRICE: With a commission like this, we think that members should reflect the values underlying
the commission.

QUESTION: And Iran doesn’t. All right. I'll drop it there.
On India.
MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: The — in addition to this aid, you guys put out this new travel notice, travel alert today,
which mentioned the authorized departure for families of U.S. government personnel at the embassy
and the, what is it, four consulates. I’'m just curious. Is this by popular demand? Were there people —
and | know you don’t want to get into numbers or anything, but were people wanting to leave and have
people left already under this — the authorized departure?
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MR PRICE: Well, thanks for that question. And | think it's important to speak for just a moment about
what this was and importantly what this was not. Out of an abundance of caution, the Department of
State authorized the voluntary departure, so-called authorized departure, of family members of
embassy — at the U.S. Embassy in New Delhi and the consulates throughout the country. Authorized
departure doesn't force anyone to leave; it doesn't require anyone to leave. It gives these family
members the option to depart if they wish. Departure, again, is not required.

There’s also been | think some misreporting, perhaps a misperception, that we provided revised
guidance to private American citizens in India. That is not true. There was a pro forma reissuance of
the travel advisory, the level four travel advisory that had previously been in effect, given COVID not
only in India but also globally as well.

QUESTION: Yeah, but are people taking advantage of it? Were people wanting this, or was it just
decided from here and from the ambassador or whoever the charge is that this would be a good idea?
| mean, is there a rush to the exits?

MR PRICE: | don't have the numbers. I’'m not sure we’d be able to provide them, regardless, given —
QUESTION: | don't want your numbers. | just want to know if people are taking advantage of this.

MR PRICE: Well, | think it speaks to the fact that we put the safety and health of our employees and
their families, in this case — we prioritize that, and so that is why the department thought it prudent to
give them the option to depart the country if they so wished.

(Inaudible.)
QUESTION: Okay, thanks.

QUESTION: Also on India. So I’'m wondering how that’s connected to the outbreak that's been
reported from inside the U.S. embassy or among U.S. embassy staff. Do you have any update on how
many people have been infected among staff there and how many fatalities there are and what the
embassy and the government have been able to do to protect staff at the mission?

MR PRICE: Well, we addressed this the other day, and to Matt’s point, numbers are difficult for us to
offer publicly, given privacy concerns. What we will say is that, of course, our hearts go out to the
people of India as they navigate this surge. It is fair to say that COVID has touched every — just about
every element of Indian society, and of course, we do have a large diplomatic presence in India, as
you might expect, given our global comprehensive partnership with India. So while | can’t offer any
specifics on U.S. embassy employees or family members or locally employed staff, clearly this is a
pandemic; this is an outbreak, a surge of cases in India that has left no part of the country untouched.

QUESTION: And has that outbreak happened sort of despite vaccine? You've obviously been sending
vaccines out to different embassies. Was there a delay getting them to the embassies in India that
perhaps has led to this?

MR PRICE: So as we mentioned | believe as of mid-April, our missions around the world, all of them
have had access to the vaccine. It was an effort that was conducted as expeditiously as possible. The
vaccines have been in India for — to — available to our employees, to embassy staffers in India for
several weeks now. But obviously, with any global distribution effort, it's a complex undertaking, but
it's something we did as quickly as we could and it’s something we’re proud of. As we mentioned the
other day, not a single vaccine dose was lost in that massive undertaking — nearly 200,000 doses
worldwide, including to our mission in India.
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Shaun.

QUESTION: Well, certainly related to — related to this in India, one of the things that’s happened in
India is the number of critics of the Modi government’s performance, let’s say opposition politicians, by
request of the Indian Government, their posts have been removed at least internally in India from
Twitter and other social media outlets. Does this give you pause to the United States? Do you think
that’s within the rights of the Indian Government? Do you have anything to say about this?

MR PRICE: Well, we’ve made the point both when it comes to India and to countries around the world
that freedom of expression, freedom of information is a hallmark of any democracy. Of course, India
is a large democracy with whom we share foundational values, and freedom of information, freedom
of expression is something we support around the world.

Yes.
QUESTION: Can | ask on India?
MR PRICE: Sure, we'll go to Lalit and then Kylie.

QUESTION: Yes. | would like to follow up on the comment that what you say when the tool of
freedom of expression or social media is used as a tool to incite violence against the government or
the — disturb law and order? How do the government handle that?

MR PRICE: How does — how does the government handle — I’'m sorry?

QUESTION: Yeah. When that tool is used as — social media is used as a tool to incite violence —
MR PRICE: Mm-hmm.

QUESTION: — like what some section of the society has been doing there, right.

MR PRICE: Of course. And of course, hate speech, incitement to violence is something that we
oppose everywhere. But clearly, we support freedom of expression, while still calling out and
condemning when we see incitement to violence and hate speech.

QUESTION: Thank you for all the aid that you have been providing to India. But I'd like to ask you
about what is the U.S. assessment of the situation of pandemic in India right now. How serious it is?
This is the worst outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic anywhere in the world?

MR PRICE: Well, | would be hesitant to offer a sweeping judgment like that. | think you can look at
any number of metrics, and of course, if you look at the case count, the daily case count, of course,
you see a case count that is very concerning and you see an epidemic that just about by any metric is
incredibly concerning. And that is why the U.S. Government has been engaged, deeply engaged in
supporting the Indian Government. As | mentioned the other day, even since the start of this outbreak,
prior to the recent assistance that we just announced, the United States had delivered some $19
million in support to India’s public health system.

Of course, we have spoken to a great deal more in recent days, not only from the U.S. Government,
from the State Department, from USAID, from CDC, but also, we have undertaken an effort to
galvanize the private sector. Secretary Blinken, as you know, took part in a call earlier this week and
actually led the call earlier this week with the Chamber of Commerce. Commerce — Gayle Smith took
part in that call. She took part in a subsequent call with the Chamber of Commerce to make the point
that if we are to make progress against this current surge of cases in India, it can't be something that
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the Indian Government tackles alone, it can’'t be something that the United States Government tackles
alone. Everyone has a role to play, including the private sector, including the advocacy community,
including civil society, and that’s what we’re seeking to do. We're seeking to — our assistance, we
hope, will have a catalytic effect on society more broadly here and around the world to come to the
aid of the Indian people.

QUESTION: Is there any differences between the U.S. Government and the Indian Government about
how the aid has to be distributed? I've heard somewhere that U.S. wants to distribute this aid through
NGOs and send directly to the local government. Indian Government wanted to route it through the
federal government itself.

MR PRICE: Our goal is to see to it that this aid — and this is a goal, of course, that we share with the
Indian Government — is to see to it that this aid is put to immediate and effective use. For the details
of that, | would refer you to those that are implementing this on the ground.

QUESTION: And how do you describe the India-U.S. relations in first 100 days of this administration?

MR PRICE: Well, of course, there’s been a concerted focus on India over the past 100 days.
President Biden, of course, did make mention of India in his address last night. And | think you can
look at that deep partnership and commitment to partnership through any number of lenses.

As you know, President Biden himself had an opportunity to speak to Prime Minister Modi in recent
days. Secretary Blinken has engaged with his foreign minister counterpart, Jaishankar, several times
as well. There have been several high-level delegations. Secretary Kerry was in India not all that long
ago to discuss climate. Secretary Austin, the Secretary of Defense, was in India not all that long ago
to discuss elements of our security cooperation.

We have engaged with India in the multilateral context as well, through the Quad, both at the
ministerial level and for the first time ever at the leader level. I've mentioned our climate cooperation,
but also our health cooperation. And this was something that predates the pandemic, but it is
something that intensified with the onset of the pandemic and intensified even further with the uptick in
cases, the very concerning uptick in cases that we’ve seen in India in recent days.

So | think it is engagement that reflects our global comprehensive partnership.
QUESTION: Thank you so much.
MR PRICE: Thank you. Kylie, India.

QUESTION: So | just want to ask about the travel advisory this morning. In addition to what it said

about U.S. diplomats there, it also said to U.S. citizens in India who wish to depart that they should

take advantage of available commercial transportation options and warned against other Americans
traveling there.

So is the administration considering stopping all flights from India to the U.S. in coming days or
weeks?

MR PRICE: So the travel advisory — and you know this; | think we discussed this in a recent briefing —
but as you know, the State Department recently adopted the CDC framework when it comes to our
travel advisories. And so that’s why many countries — | believe 80 percent of countries around the
world — are now at Level 4 Travel Advisories. It is a consequence of the State Department adopting
that uniform approach that the CDC uses.
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So when it comes to our guidance to Americans in India, that did not change. What did change was
the ability of American family members to depart India on a voluntary basis should they choose to do
so. My understanding is that commercial travel continues, commercial flights continue to take off and
land in India. When it comes to any travel restrictions, as you know, that is something that is
determined in close coordination and under the advice of public health professionals at CDC and HHS.

QUESTION: But if those flights were under consideration to shut down, it would obviously be up to the
State Department to give Americans heads up that that was a possibility. So given that you guys
haven't issued any of those warnings, should we assume that no shutdown of those flights is anytime
imminent?

MR PRICE: Again, that’s not for me to speak to. | wouldn't read anything beyond — read anything into
the updated travel advisory that you saw today. Again, my understanding is that those commercial
flights continue to take off and land. Any changes to entry requirements or restrictions would be
dictated by public health and in coordination with medical professionals and CDC.

QUESTION: And the State Department would give Americans heads up well in advance of that?

MR PRICE: The State Department as a regular course communicates with Americans around the
world through our embassies.

QUESTION: When you said you adopted the CDC standard, | just want to make sure, that’s just for
like health and diseases?

MR PRICE: That’s correct. That’s correct.

QUESTION: Because the CDC is good at that, but they don't — maybe not know so much about the
political ramifications.

MR PRICE: Well, and some 80 percent of countries around the world are at this Level 4 precisely
because of public health concerns.

QUESTION: For disease reasons.

MR PRICE: That’s right.

QUESTION: But you're still doing — you're still factoring your own metrics into — for violence, or —
MR PRICE: Of course. Of course. Yes.

QUESTION: A quick follow-up on India. Do you know when the CDC is sending its team of officials to
the U.S. Embassy in Delhi?

MR PRICE: As quickly as possible — as soon as possible, | should say. The CDC team was
mentioned in the White House fact sheet, as you know. | know they will be engaging as quickly as
possible, but I'd have to refer you to the CDC for specific details.

Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you.

QUESTION: Thank you, sir. My name is Nazira Azim Karimi. I'm an Afghan independent journalist. As
you know, sir, nowadays Afghanistan has a sensitive time. Afghan women, they are very worried,
although they have a lot of achievement. This is a few example that | brought with myself. And they
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are really under bad situation psychologically. Can you give me some details, short information that —
what will be their situation in future? They are really worried about their future.

And also, Istanbul conference for peace process — as you know, Taliban postponed it, and it look that
Taliban is more powerful now. Istanbul conference will take place or not?

MR PRICE: Well, when it comes to the Istanbul conference, we’ve heard from the organizers that they
would — it’s unlikely to take place during the month of Ramadan, but would need to refer you to the
organizers for updates when it comes to that.

When it comes to women and girls — and thank you for those illustrations — as you know, Secretary
Blinken traveled to Afghanistan shortly after President Biden — within hours of President Biden’s
speech from the White House. And, of course, while there we met with President Ghani, we met with
Chairman Abdullah, but importantly, we also met with representatives of civil society. And there were
some half dozen or a couple more participants in that meeting, all of — all but one of whom were
women, women who had been at the front lines of the gains that the Afghan people — the hard-won
gains, | should say — that the Afghan people have achieved over the past 20 years.

And Secretary Blinken determined that it was especially important for him to — not only to go to
Afghanistan but to meet with representatives of civil society and with Afghan women, precisely to send
the signal that even as we withdraw militarily from Afghanistan, our partnership with the people of
Afghanistan will endure. We have made clear that any country that seeks international legitimacy, that
wishes not to be a pariah, needs to respect women and girls, and that includes any future government
in Afghanistan. The United States will continue to provide support through the Department of State,
through USAID for the important programs that have supported many of, again, the hard-won gains of
Afghanistan’s women and girls over the past 20 years.

As you know, we are continuing to have a diplomatic presence on the ground in Afghanistan. That’s
especially important as an element of that enduring partnership with the people of Afghanistan going
forward.

QUESTION: Can | follow up on that?

MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you.

QUESTION: Can | follow up?

MR PRICE: Yes. Oh, sorry, | didn't see who it was. Yes.

QUESTION: Yeah, sorry. There’s news today that the U.S. troops are beginning to withdraw. |
wonder if you can describe the situation at the embassy. Has the drawdown there begun?

MR PRICE: So | would need to refer you to the Department of Defense to speak to the drawdown of
troops, but the broad point is that — and President Biden laid this out in his speech — that the only
military presence that will remain in Afghanistan is the very limited presence required to protect our
embassy, and that’s important for the reason | was just discussing. Even as we disengage militarily
from 20 years of military involvement in Afghanistan, our presence on the ground will remain through
our embassy, through our civilian representatives, including our diplomats.

The — as you know, there was an announcement earlier this week that we will be relocating some
personnel from Kabul. These are personnel who can do their jobs elsewhere. It is a repositioning of
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personnel that will allow us to place them elsewhere and also to bring in additional personnel who will
be able to help manage the drawdown and the implications that has for our embassy presence and for
those who will be able to help be the conduits, the diplomatic conduits to the government and the
people of Afghanistan going forward. As we mentioned, this was a drawdown order that affects only a
relatively small number of diplomats who are based at our embassy in Kabul.

Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you. It's a hundred days into this administration, and among ambassadorial
appointments, only a handful has been nominated and none from the larger missions, | guess with the
exception of the UN. Why is the process going so slowly? And does that create a void or a vacuum in
your stated efforts to repair the damage, the diplomatic damage of the last four years?

MR PRICE: Well, I'd make a couple points. As you know, there have been 11 ambassadors put
forward — nine career ambassadors, two political ambassadors; those two political ambassadors
being Ambassador Linda Thomas-Greenfield at our mission to the UN and Chris Lu, who would hold
another position at our mission to the UN. But even as — even for those posts that do not yet have a
nominee, we are incredibly fortunate to have career women and men at the Department of State
serving in the function and the capacity of charge. We have — in the course of our travels already,
Secretary Blinken has had an opportunity to meet with those individuals, all of whom are, again, career
professionals who have years if not, in most cases, decades of experience in the Department of
State. So it’s not that there is a leadership vacuum anywhere in the world here, not here at Main
State, not anywhere around the world. And those charges will continue until they, in some cases, have
a confirmed ambassador in place to serve and to serve exceptionally well.

QUESTION: Any reason, though, for the slowness of the process?

MR PRICE: WEell, it's — as you know, this is a process that is handled by the White House, by the
Presidential Personnel Office. It's an office that not only oversees nominations for ambassadors here
at the Department of State but appointees and nominees throughout the Executive Branch. So they
clearly have a lot of work. As we've said before, we've — the White House has put forward nearly a
dozen nominees for ambassadorial positions. That’s in addition to the nominees that have been put
forward for other positions here at State, including assistant secretary and under secretary positions
as well.

So there has been good progress that we've already seen, and | expect you'll be hearing more from
President Biden and from the White House when it comes to personnel announcements going forward.

Yes.

QUESTION: Ned, can | just make a point that what you've just said in the terms of the career people,
that there’s no dearth of leadership experience or — that when the previous administration had the
same — made the similar argument about lack of ambassadors or lack of people, that people — many
people who are involved in this administration, including, | believe, yourself — were pretty dismissive of
that argument, scoffed at it, saying people are being sidelined and that kind of thing. And so I'd just
like to make the point that the same explanation you just gave or the same reasoning was not well
received by people in the current administration, politicals, when it was made by the previous
administration.

MR PRICE: Well, I'd be interested, perhaps in another venue, in hearing exactly what remarks you're
referring to. But | think you may be referring to efforts to sideline individuals rather than nominate
individuals in the first place, but that may be for another venue.
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Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you. | have a couple of questions, but | would start by Iran. A team of U.S.
officials is traveling to the Middle East this week for talks with U.S. allies there. Can you share any
information on who from State Department would participate in those talks? What are the main stops
of the U.S. delegation? And is that part of paving the ground from now for a potential deal with Iran
that would come within weeks, as predicted by the Israeli ambassador here in Washington?

MR PRICE: Well, we don't have details to share at this point. What | can confirm, however, is that a
senior interagency delegation will be traveling over the coming week to discuss a number of important
matters related to U.S. national security and ongoing efforts to de-escalate tensions in the Middle
East. | suppose | would hasten to add that this delegation is not focused on any one issue, certainly
not focused just on Iran and anything that may emanate from the ongoing discussions in Vienna.

When it comes to those discussions in Vienna, | would use this as an opportunity to make the point
that we are now in the third round of what promises to be a multi-round exercise. It continues to be a
venue that — where we’ve been able to engage indirectly with the Iranian delegation in largely
thoughtful, businesslike, constructive dialogue. But there is still a great distance to travel, and what we
have said before about having more road ahead of us than road behind us remains accurate.

QUESTION: But there are positive signs from everyone. All the parties that participate in those talks
agree that there is sort of breakthrough. So is it fair to say that a deal is within reach?

MR PRICE: It is fair to say that some progress has been made. We have a better understanding of
what we might need to do were Iran to go back into compliance, and it is our assessment that the
Iranians have a better sense of what they would need to do to resume their compliance with the
JCPOA. But that remains a hypothetical; it remains an if. And big challenges remain. | think it is fair to
say that we are not on the cusp of any breakthrough, and again, there is a potentially long road ahead
of us.

| think since you raised it, | would just make the point that there has been a heavy focus on what the
United States might need to do were Iran to resume its compliance with the JCPOA. | think what is
often omitted from that discussion is the other side of that equation, and that is what Iran would need
to do to resume its compliance with its commitments under the 2015 nuclear deal. The fact is that
Iran’s nuclear program has been galloping ahead since the previous administration left the nuclear deal
in 2018. Iran, as of recently, had 10 times the amount of enriched uranium permitted under the deal,
and it has made more ever since that assessment came down. It is spinning cascades of advanced
centrifuges that are prohibited by the deal. Its breakout time, which, as you may recall, was at a full
year when the deal was in effect, is by most accounts now a matter of months. So it is fair to say that
this is a crisis that we inherited. This was a crisis that was precipitated by both sides distancing
themselves from the Iran deal.

If Iran were to resume its compliance with the nuclear deal, it would, of course, require Iran to
significantly roll back its nuclear program and once again block every conceivable pathway to a
nuclear weapon. That is precisely what the JCPOA did. It set forth in verifiable and permanent terms
restrictions that would permanently prevent Iran from acquiring a nuclear weapon. That's what is at
stake here for us. That remains our ultimate objective, to see Iran’s pathways to a nuclear weapon
once again permanently and verifiably blocked.

QUESTION: | believe Iran was the main topic of discussion today, in today’s meeting between
Secretary Blinken and U.S. officials including the chief of Mossad and the Israeli ambassador in
Washington. Can you share any readout of this meeting, please?
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MR PRICE: | don't have any such meeting to confirm or to read out. What | will say, however, is that
we have been in close contact with our Israeli counterparts. As you know, Jake Sullivan met in
Washington with Israeli National Security Advisor Meir Ben-Shabbat earlier this week, where, of
course, Iran was on the agenda. Rob Malley was — briefed the group for part of that. We have, as you
heard from State Department officials, updated our Israeli counterparts before every round of
negotiations, after every round of negotiations, and we’ve been consulting with them during these
negotiations as well.

So we have conducted ourselves with a great deal of transparency, knowing that the United States
and Israel share a common interest here, of course, and that is seeing to it — again, as | said before —
that Iran is verifiably and permanently prevented from acquiring a nuclear weapon.

QUESTION: But Iran also welcomed what it called the change of tone from Saudi Arabia. How would
this conciliatory tone between the two sides affect the so many crises in the region, including Yemen,
with the fourth visit of the Special Envoy Tim Lenderking to the region?

MR PRICE: Well, | wouldn’'t want to characterize the tone that may be heard from Iran, or heard from
Riyadh for that matter. But since you raised it, as you heard from us last night, Special Envoy
Lenderking is, as of today, in Saudi Arabia. He'll also travel to Oman on this trip. He’s meeting with
senior government officials and is always working closely with the UN Special Envoy Martin Griffiths as
part of this. His discussions are focused on ensuring the regular and unimpeded delivery of
commodities and humanitarian assistance throughout Yemen, and of course, promoting that lasting
ceasefire and advancing that political process that we've invested in since the earliest days, earliest
hours even, of this administration.

QUESTION: And lastly, the Iraqi News Agency quoted the Iragi oil minister, lhsan Abdul Jabbar, as
saying that his country intends to import gas from Syria, without giving details. But he was speaking
after a meeting with his Syrian counterpart. I’'m wondering if you are aware of those reports and if
such move would violate the U.S. sanctions on al-Assad regime.

MR PRICE: We'll see if we can get you a response there.
Shaun.

QUESTION: Can we stay in the region? Just in the past few hours, Palestinian Authority President
Abbas saying that Palestinian elections can go ahead if there’s voting in Jerusalem, in East Jerusalem.
Does the U.S. have any position on — first of all, on voting in Jerusalem, whether that should go ahead
again this time and whether the Palestinian elections should be held on schedule?

MR PRICE: We do have an opinion, and it's our opinion, as we have always said, that the exercise of
democratic elections is a matter for the Palestinian people and for the Palestinian leadership to
determine.

QUESTION: But the vote in Jerusalem —
QUESTION: Well, it sounds like you don’t have an opinion at all.

MR PRICE: Well, no. It is actually an affirmative position. We believe in an inclusive political process

QUESTION: And that’s what the Bush administration said when there was an election in Gaza, too.

MR PRICE: Well, so it —
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QUESTION: Look — and look how that — so —

MR PRICE: It continues to be our position that democratic elections are a matter for the people and
the Palestinian leadership to determine. By the way, that happens to be our position on elections
around the world. We never dictate when it comes to elections, when it comes to the outcome of
elections.

QUESTION: So it’s okay if it's not democratic?

MR PRICE: I'm sorry?

QUESTION: So it's okay if the election isn't democratic, too?
MR PRICE: Free and fair is —

QUESTION: When it comes to democratic elections, we think it's up to the people. | mean, don't you
want — shouldn’t they always be democratic?

MR PRICE: | —
QUESTION: So if the Palestinian —
QUESTION: About voting in Jerusalem? Sorry.

QUESTION: If the Palestinian leadership decides it wants to hold elections in Jerusalem, they should
be allowed? It should happen, is what you're saying? Or no?

MR PRICE: It is a matter for the Palestinian leadership and the Palestinian people to decide.
QUESTION: They decide, and if they want it, they should have it.

QUESTION: Not Israel.

QUESTION: Not — it’s not up to the Israelis.

QUESTION: Yeah.

MR PRICE: It is a matter for the Palestinian people and leadership to decide on the exercise of
democratic elections.

QUESTION: And Israel should not interfere? And Israel should not interfere?
MR PRICE: It is a matter for the Palestinian people and leadership.
Yes.

QUESTION: Just one more question about Afghanistan. There is expert talk that Taliban still have
relationship with al-Qaida. If they don’t disconnect their relationship, what will be the U.S. reaction to
the Taliban? And also, based off your opinion, United States win the war in Afghanistan or lost the
war?

MR PRICE: I'm sorry, | didn't catch the last part of your question.

QUESTION: United States winners or they lost war in Afghanistan, or still war continuing —
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MR PRICE: Oh, did we win or did we lose the war in Afghanistan?
QUESTION: Yes.

MR PRICE: So the point that | think is critically important to understanding this administration’s
position, what President Biden laid out, is the very simple fact that we went into Afghanistan together
with our partners in 2001, in October 2001, with one goal in mind, and that was to degrade al-Qaida,
the al-Qaida presence that was there, the al-Qaida leadership that had directed the attack on the
United States on 9/11. Usama bin Ladin was killed more — just about 10 years ago. That is a mission
that due to the heroics of our military and other interagency partners we were able to accomplish. It is
a mission that was not only accomplished successfully and that was in our interests but also in the
interests of all of our partners around the world who had come under threat from al-Qaida that was at
the time based in Afghanistan.

So the President made very clear that having accomplished that military mission, it was time for our
service members to depart. But again, he was equally clear that even as we withdraw militarily we will
remain engaged diplomatically, remain engaged diplomatically with the Afghan leadership and remain
engaged diplomatically with the Afghan people.

When it comes to the Taliban, as you know, we spent quite some time studying the agreement that
the previous administration agreed to, the stipulation that was in the agreement from the previous
administration that American troops needed to be on the way out as of May 1st. We've spoken of the
mixed record when it comes to the Taliban in adhering to the agreement. We’ve spoken to the levels
of violence in Afghanistan that remain unacceptably high. And | think the point remains that if the
Taliban wants any semblance of international legitimacy, if the Taliban does not wish to be a
international, a global pariah, that it must cease any ties with al-Qaida or other terrorist groups.

QUESTION: Thank you.

QUESTION: What makes you guys so convinced that the Taliban fear being a pariah? | mean, they
were pretty much a pariah back in the ‘90s, and they didn't seem to mind. Do you think things have

changed that much that they now are so eager to be a part of the international community that they
will change their ways?

MR PRICE: The consequence of being a pariah, of lacking any international legitimacy, is, | think in our
minds, the inability to have any durability to that sort of movement. If the Taliban wants to be part of
Afghanistan’s future, they’re not going to be able to do so if they do not respect the rights of women
and girls, if they do not sever ties with al-Qaida or other terrorist groups. So it is not only consistent
with our values and with our interests that the Taliban do this, but if the Taliban think they have a future
in Afghanistan, it’s also in their interest.

QUESTION: But the Taliban don't care about what your values are. They care about their values. And
| — why are you guys convinced that their values include not being an international pariah when the
evidence — strong evidence from the previous time they were in power — showed that they didn’t care?

MR PRICE: Because engaging in these sorts of practices or failing to follow through with these sorts
of commitments won't afford the Taliban any degree of legitimacy or durability. And | think durability is
certainly something that the Taliban seeks to achieve. They would not be able to achieve that absent
these steps.

QUESTION: Ned, Russia?
MR PRICE: Russia, sure.
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QUESTION: The — Russian Foreign Minister Lavrov said that he’s going to attend the meeting of
Arctic nations in Iceland. And he said he’s ready to meet Secretary Blinken at that location. Does
Secretary Blinken feel the same way? Is he open to meeting Minister Lavrov?

MR PRICE: Well, | wouldn't want to get ahead of things. | would make the broader point that in the
midst of these very challenging times in the bilateral relationship with Russia, in the context of a
relationship that we would like to be both stable and predictable. We know that an ingredient to seeing
that through is engagement, should be engagement. That is why we hope and we expect that not all
avenues for engagement will be shut off. And that is why you have heard us object to the steps that
we've heard from Moscow to limit our diplomatic presence in Russia. We know that if we are to inject
some degree of stability, some degree of predictability into this relationship, there has to be or there
needs to be some semblance of engagement.

And so that’s why President Biden, in his conversation with President Putin the other day, held out the
prospect of a meeting between the two presidents in the coming weeks. But when it comes to the
upcoming Arctic conference, | just don't have anything to preview at this time.

QUESTION: And the status of the Russian local staff at the missions, is that still in limbo or has that
been clarified by Moscow, the status?

MR PRICE: Well, what | will say — and to go back to what | was referencing a moment ago — is that
Moscow formally notified the State Department of portions of the additional actions it is choosing to
impose on our mission to Russia, but we don’t have the full details of that yet. We're in the process of
reviewing the measures that have been formally relayed to us. We know that they would have a
negative impact on our mission’s ability to operate and, again, consequently on our ability to engage
diplomatically with our Russian counterparts. And we, of course, do reserve the right to respond.

What we have always said is that the measures that the White House, that President Biden announced
the other week — those were not escalatory. Those were a response to the attack on our democracy
that we had seen from the Russians; it was a response to SolarWinds. And so that’s how we look at
it. It is not that we have escalated. And we continue to review the — what the Russians have
communicated to us, knowing that we do reserve the right to respond, depending on what we hear
and what we assess going forward, but also knowing that, again, we need to keep those lines of
communication open if we are to inject some degree of stability and predictability into the relationship.

Yeah.

QUESTION: One other follow-up on Russia. The Secretary yesterday mentioned that he’s raised the
issue of RFE/RL. Can you be any more specific about what the U.S. wants to see there and how you
hope to resolve that?

MR PRICE: Well, media freedom, as we know, is — has come increasingly under threat from Moscow.
The Russian Government’s long-running campaign against independent media and voices has only
intensified in recent months. We've seen, of course, a broad crackdown on human rights and those
seeking to achieve a greater degree of inclusiveness and participation in Russian society, only to see
the Russians attempt to quash that.

For more than 70 years now, RFE/RL has been a vital source of objective news and information for
the people of Russia and an important link between our two countries. As Secretary Blinken said, he
has raised this issue with Foreign Minister Lavrov. He and other officials have called on the Russian
Government to reconsider its actions against RFE/RL and we have heard — we’ve been gratified to
hear statements from some of our international partners joining that call.
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Unfortunately, the Russian Government is increasingly intolerant of outside perspectives. We've made
clear that Russia’s actions against RFE/RL and other media organizations labeled as so-called foreign
agents reflect significant intolerance and oppressive restrictions. We'll continue to raise this case, the
case of RFE/RL, freedom of expression within Russia more broadly, and human rights more broadly
as well with our Russian counterparts. Should the Russian Government continue to move to forcibly
shut down RFE/RL, we will respond.

Yeah, Shaun.

QUESTION: Different topic. Haiti. This week, Chairman Meeks wrote a letter saying — basically quite
critical of policy currently on Haiti. One of the more specific things he was saying is that the U.S.
shouldn’'t support the constitutional referendum that’s coming up. | know that generally you don't want
to respond to everything from the Hill, but in this case does the United States still support the — or
does the United States support the constitutional referendum in Haiti?

MR PRICE: Well, you're right, we don't comment on correspondence from the Hill. But let me just give
you a sense of our view of this, and that is that holding overdue elections are the democratic means to
end Haiti’s irregular and prolonged rule by decree, and to restore the legislature’s role in Haitian
democracy. Presidential elections scheduled for the fall of this year are necessary to transfer power
peacefully and on a timely basis from one democratically elected leader to another. We have
repeatedly stated that constitutional reform is for the Haitian people to decide. We've emphasized —
and this goes back to part of your question — that the U.S. Government — we’ve emphasized to the
Government of Haiti that the U.S. Government will not provide financial support for a constitutional
referendum.

QUESTION: Will not support the constitutional referendum?
MR PRICE: Will not, for a constitutional referendum.

QUESTION: Do you oppose it being held or is it just a matter of U.S. support? It is — again, when it
comes to those moves, these are for the Haitian people to decide. But when it comes to that
referendum, it is not something that we will provide financial support for.

QUESTION: Ned, why is it necessary in Haiti for presidential elections to transfer power peacefully
and not for the Palestinians?

MR PRICE: As we said, this is for the —

QUESTION: You just said — you said you didn't — you said that that’s up to the Palestinian people.
Well, in Haiti, you say that these are necessary. Why aren't elections for the Palestinians necessary?

MR PRICE: We are talking about the timing of the Palestinian elections. That is for —

QUESTION: We're also talking about the timing — have been talking about the timing of the Haitian
elections.

MR PRICE: This is written into — this would be consistent with what is called for in Haiti. | —
QUESTION: Yeah. The Palestinians haven't had an election in 15 years.
MR PRICE: | don't think you can compare two countries. In some cases, we're going to have —

QUESTION: You made a blanket statement.
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MR PRICE: — apples and oranges.
QUESTION: But you made a blanket statement that elections are up to the people.

MR PRICE: But there are also key differences between the contexts in Haiti and with the Palestinian
Authority.

| saw one final question. Yes

QUESTION: Yes. On Syria, what would the U.S. Government do in order to revive the political
process, in order to counter the fact that President Assad may be in the power for another seven
years? And would the U.S. consider nominating special envoy to lead those efforts?

MR PRICE: Well, | don't have any personnel announcements to preview at this time. What | would say
is that per UN Security Council Resolution 2254, steps should be taken towards convening free and
fair elections, very importantly, pursuant to a new constitution administered under the supervision of
the UN, in which all Syrians, including internally displaced Syrians, displaced Syrians, refugees, and
the diaspora might be able to participate. We believe that stability in Syria and the greater region is
best served through a political process that produces peaceful outcomes in Syria. We are committed
to working with allies, partners, and the UN to ensure that a durable political solution remains within
reach.

Even as we do that, we are also doing everything we can, and you heard from Secretary Blinken
himself, to provide humanitarian relief to the people of Syria who have suffered so immensely under
the brutal repression, the brutality of Bashar al-Assad. We've spoken to our commitments to the tune
of hundreds of millions of dollars, not only providing that aid but also seeking to provide humanitarian
access to ensure that that aid can reach those most vulnerable and those in need. We have done that
in the face of resistance, including within the UN Security Council. We continue to work on this issue
just knowing how vitally important it is to the wellbeing of the Syrian people.

Thank you very much, everyone.
QUESTION: Thank you.

(The briefing was concluded at 3:36 p.m.)
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Ned Price, Department Spokesperson
1:57 p.m. EDT

MR PRICE: Good afternoon. | have a few elements at the top before we get started. | know we also
have a bilateral engagement just after this, so we'll conclude before that.

Let me start by saying that the United States condemns in the strongest terms the barrage of rocket
attacks fired into Israel in recent hours. This is an unacceptable escalation. While we urge de-
escalation on all sides, we also recognize Israel’s legitimate right to defend itself and to defend its
people and its territory. It is critical for all sides to ensure calm and de-escalate tensions and avoid
violent confrontations, such as the responsible decision to reroute today’s parade.

More broadly, we're deeply concerned about the situation in Israel, the West Bank, and the Gaza
Strip, including violent confrontations in Jerusalem, particularly in the Haram al-Sharif Temple Mount
that has resulted in at least 180 additional injuries, as well as the rocket fire from Gaza hitting houses
in Jerusalem and the threat of further rocket attacks. The United States will remain fully engaged to
promote calm in Jerusalem, and we welcome the steps the Israeli Government has taken in recent
days aimed at avoiding provocations, including the decision to avoid confrontations during the
Jerusalem Day Commemoration and the delay in the decision regarding the Sheikh Jarrah evictions.

Next, | am pleased to announce that U.S. Ambassador to Libya Richard Norland will now serve in the
capacity of Special Envoy for Libya in addition to the Chief of Mission for Libya. In his role as Special
Envoy, Ambassador Norland will lead U.S. diplomatic efforts to promote international support for a
Libyan-led, inclusive, and negotiated political solution to the conflict, facilitated through the UN.

Ambassador Norland, a Career Minister in the Foreign Service and a three-time ambassador, has
served as Chief of Mission at the Libyan External Affairs Office in Tunis since August of 2019.

The addition of the Special Envoy role to Ambassador Norland’s Chief of Mission

responsibilities signifies the importance we attach to focused, high-level diplomatic outreach in support
of the Libyan political process culminating in elections in December of this year. Ambassador

Norland will work closely with key partners to strengthen efforts to keep the political process on track
and to ensure the removal of foreign forces from Libya.

Ambassador Norland also will work closely with interagency colleagues in Washington, civil society,
and humanitarian partners to further the U.S. role in actively supporting the Libyan people as they seek
lasting peace, security, and prosperity in their country. The Special Envoy will also keep

Congress closely informed of our efforts.

We congratulate Ambassador Norland on his new and expanded role leading U.S. efforts in Libya and
internationally to support a political solution to the Libyan conflict.
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Next, the United States condemns the horrifying attack in Kabul on Saturday targeting an innocent
Afghan girls’ school — innocent Afghan girls at their school — excuse me. The death toll in that attack is
now over 80 individuals, most of them girls in their teens — killed for nothing more than pursuing an
education and a brighter future. We wish a speedy recovery to the many wounded and grieve with the
families of the victims. We are still looking into what or who is responsible, but | would note that ISIS
has been responsible for similar attacks on Shia communities in Kabul in the past. We note the Taliban
has denied involvement in the attack, and we welcome their announcement of a three-day ceasefire
over the upcoming Eid holiday. We call on the Taliban and Afghan leaders to engage seriously in the
ongoing peace process to ensure the Afghan people enjoy a future free of terrorism and of senseless
violence.

Although the United States is withdrawing our troops, we are not disengaging from Afghanistan, and
we will continue to use our diplomatic, economic, and humanitarian toolset to ensure that the gains of
the past 20 years, particularly those made by women, girls, and minorities, are preserved.

So with that, | am happy to take your questions.

QUESTION: Thanks. Can | ask you just a very brief logistical question and then move into more
substance? On the Norland announcement —

MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: I'm having trouble figuring out what exactly he’s going to be doing different today than he
was doing, like, last week.

MR PRICE: Well, so obviously, last week he was not the special envoy. He is —

QUESTION: Yeah, | know. But other than having a new title, it sounds like he’s doing exactly the
same thing as he was before. So why give him — why does he need this new title?

MR PRICE: Because the mandate he is taking on now will require him to engage on behalf of the U.S.
Government with other partner nations —

QUESTION: Yeah, but —

MR PRICE: — serving beyond his role of chief of mission in Libya. As special envoy, he’ll have the
remit to engage other governments, civil society, congress as well.

QUESTION: He didn't before? | mean, he lives in Tunis, which is a different country.
MR PRICE: Right. But this gives him an elevated profile —

QUESTION: So he didn't have the latitude to deal with the Italians or with the Maltese or with the
Tunisians before?

MR PRICE: | think we wanted to make it very clear the priority we attach to this, and naming
Ambassador Norland as a special envoy would give him that added remit.

QUESTION: All right. On Israel and your opening statement.
MR PRICE: Yes.

QUESTION: When you talk about supporting Israel’s right to defend itself, that includes — I'm
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assuming, but correct me if I'm wrong — that includes their retaliatory strikes against Hamas targets in
Gaza, right?

MR PRICE: We're speaking of the principle of self-defense. We certainly —

QUESTION: No, no. I'm asking you if you think that the principle of self-defense applies to the
retaliatory — the air strikes that they’re conducting in response to the —

MR PRICE: Matt, this is a very fluid situation. | would hesitate to comment on operations beyond the
rocket fire that is clearly targeting innocent civilians in Israel. So | would hesitate to speak to specific
operations that have just occurred, but the broader principle of self-defense is something we stand by
on behalf of Israel and every other country.

QUESTION: Yes. But do you think that Israeli military response to the rockets coming in — a military
response to the rockets coming in is covered by this broader rubric of self-defense, right?

MR PRICE: Self-defense often does authorize the use of force.

QUESTION: And secondly on this, there was — there is an attempt, or was an attempt earlier and
maybe I've missed something since we’ve been in here, but at the UN Security Council for there to be
a presidential statement —

MR PRICE: Right.

QUESTION: — about the situation. And it looks like you guys were holding it up. Can you explain what
the issue is?

MR PRICE: Well, as you know, Matt, as we have commented on different contexts we don't discuss
our actions during private consultations. What | will say, however, is that we want to see whatever
comes out of the UN Security Council, we want to see to it that those products, be they statements or
anything else, don't escalate tensions. That’s our overriding priority.

Said.

QUESTION: Thank you, Ned. | want to ask you about East Jerusalem, but let’s talk about what you
said about the principle of self-defense. Does that in any way apply to the Palestinians? Do they have
a right to self-defense? Do Palestinians have a right to self-defense?

MR PRICE: I'm — in — broadly speaking, Said, we believe in the concept of self-defense. We believe it
applies to any state. | don't think that —

QUESTION: All right. | —
MR PRICE: | certainly wouldn't want my words to be construed as —

QUESTION: No, | understand. | want to ask on East Jerusalem. | don't want to harp on this either.
But the Israelis killed 13 people just now, including maybe five or six children. Do you condemn that?
Do you condemn the killing of children?

MR PRICE: Said —
QUESTION: I'm asking: Do you condemn the killing of Palestinian children?

MR PRICE: Obviously — and these reports are just emerging. And | understand — | was just speaking
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to the team. | understand we don't have independent confirmation of facts on the ground yet, so I'm
very hesitant to get into reports that are just emerging.

Obviously, the deaths of civilians, be they Israeli or Palestinians, are something we would take very
seriously.

QUESTION: Okay. Now, you recognize that East Jerusalem is occupied Palestinian territory, and as
such Israel has no legal claim whatever. The Israeli Supreme Court weighing on this is really absurd,
because all the documents are there — the Jordanian document, the Ottoman document, and so on.
But you are really unwilling to hold Israel responsible for what’s going on in Sheikh Jarrah. | mean, you
have to look at where this whole thing started, correct?

MR PRICE: And that’'s why we’ve spoken about what has — what was set to take place in Sheikh
Jarrah. As you know, Said, we issued a statement on Friday.

QUESTION: That'’s correct.

MR PRICE: The White House issued a statement yesterday in conjunction with the readout of National
Security Advisor Sullivan’s call with his counterpart. We have been clear about where we stand in
Sheikh Jarrah. We've been clear in urging the Israelis to act responsibly, to treat Palestinian residents
with compassion and with humanity in this case.

| will — because | just wanted to make sure there is clear understanding about what | said before and
what | didn’t say before.

QUESTION: Okay.

MR PRICE: The question before was in terms of occupation. What | said before was the West Bank
remains occupied.

QUESTION: So is East Jerusalem.

MR PRICE: Jerusalem, of course, is a final status — is a final status issue to be determined by the
parties.

QUESTION: Okay, but one last thing. There seems to be a great deal of — some people are upset,
pro-Israeli, like the Free Beacon and so on. They’re upset with Jalina, what Jalina said, although what
she said really was no different than what you said. What is your reaction to that? They are saying
that you have distanced yourself from what she said.

MR PRICE: | am aware of what you're referring to. | think if you look at the report that you're
mentioning, Jalina is quoted in that report as offering additional context to the statements she made
last week.

Andrea.

QUESTION: | just want to follow up on something that isn’t happening right now, that happened 48
hours ago, which was credible reports from the ground that there were rubber bullets fired into the al-
Agsa Mosque. And what responsibility does the IDF have not to violate the third holiest site in Islam
and where children and elderly people are in prayer?

MR PRICE: Well, and that's something we were extremely concerned about. It's precisely why we
took the pretty rare step of issuing a late-night Friday night statement. | think it came out after 10 p.m.
just —
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QUESTION: | just want to give you the opportunity now that youre on camera to — | mean, because
this didn't just start this morning.

MR PRICE: No, of course. Of course not. And this has been ongoing for days. Unfortunately, we've
seen tensions escalate over the course of days. On Friday, our statement was very clear that we
called on both sides to de-escalate, and we continue now to call on all sides. Obviously, Hamas is now
in the mix with this rocket fire. But yes, peaceful protest is something that — it's a concept that we
support, whether that’s in Israel or anywhere else.

Yes.

QUESTION: So to follow up on those, Ned, you just said that on Sheikh Jarrah you are calling Israelis
to act responsibly, with compassion. So are you basically telling them to not go ahead with the
evictions? |Is that your — is that U.S. Government’s recommendation to Israel?

MR PRICE: What we have said, we are concerned about the potential eviction of these families, many
of whom have lived in Sheikh Jarrah for generations. As | understand it, this is now an issue before the
Israeli Supreme Court. That decision was supposed to come out today. It has now been delayed by
some time. | don't want to get ahead of where the supreme court might come out, but our position has
been clear. We are concerned, very concerned about the potential for those evictions and that’'s why
we spoke out.

QUESTION: Okay. A couple of more. I’'m sure you've seen some of the videos from the city and, like,
protesters and IDF. To follow up on Andrea’s point, do you think Israeli forces — do you think Israeli
authorities have used excessive force? And if yes, have you guys urged them not to do so, and what
was their response?

MR PRICE: There have been a series of engagements not only in recent days, but, of course, prior to
that even. Our statement on Friday night; the White House read out National Security Advisor
Sullivan’s call; our deputy secretary of state over the weekend had a call with her Israeli counterpart;
and, of course, there have been at various levels engagement with Palestinian leaders. Our message
to both Israeli and Palestinian officials has been one of de-escalation, urging de-escalation, knowing
that the conditions on the ground are especially volatile, now that we’re in the month of Ramadan, a
confluence of events, a series of escalations.

Look, | am not — | don't want to be in the business of arbitrating, especially from up here, when it
comes to those issues. What | will say is that we have urged Israelis to de-escalate, we have urged
Palestinians to de-escalate, and we have condemned in the strongest possible terms the Hamas
rocket fire that is — within recent minutes, has been raining down on Israel.

QUESTION: And then one final one on Israel, although | don't think you've clearly answered my
question on whether or not you think Israeli authorities have used excessive force, so if you want to
answer that now, please feel free to. But this flare-up seems to be one of the most tense in many
years, and I'm seeing various commentators, experts talking about saying it might be the beginning of
another intifada. Do you have any reason or intel to believe that might be the case?

MR PRICE: Well, look, our goal in the near-term is to de-escalate. | don't want to speak to
hypotheticals. | don’'t want to speak to what would happen in the absence of de-escalation. But, of
course, the possibility of additional violence, of extended violence is something we’re concerned about.
It is why we have been so ardent and so proactive in our outreach to Israeli leaders and Palestinian
leaders and also in our public statements. We are doing everything we can. The Quartet issued a
statement over the weekend as well. The international community is weighing in. Of course, we've
seen this UN Security Council session. The international community as well as the United States —
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there is a collective interest in seeing a de-escalation here. That's what we're trying to achieve.
Michael.

QUESTION: Ned, more broadly, this administration hasn't placed at least a visibly high priority on
playing some role in trying to restart the peace process. Does the current — the seriousness of these
current tensions and conflicts have the administration reconsidering whether the U.S. might want to
again resume some kind of a more active role in trying to restart a peace process?

MR PRICE: Look, | wouldn't say that it's — | wouldn’t characterize it as us not prioritizing it. We
continue to believe deeply in the principle of a two-state solution to this conflict. It is precisely why we
have urged both sides not to take unilateral steps, because unilateral steps — whether it’s incitement of
violence, whether it's acts of terrorism, whether it's demolition of homes, whether it’s expansion of
settlements, or anything else — it moves — it has the potential to move a two-state solution further out
of reach. And we all know that a two-state solution, it’s in the interest of Israelis, it’s in the interest of
Palestinians, it secures Israel’s identity as a Jewish and democratic state while bestowing upon
Palestinians their legitimate aspirations for statehood and dignity. And so, of course, we are continuing
to do everything we can to support that outcome.

| think right now as we’ve just been talking, our priority is on de-escalation. Our priority is on restoring
calm. Our priority over the longer term may move towards playing some sort of mediating role
between Israelis and Palestinians. But given circumstances on the ground right now, and even before
this current flare-up, we're just not in a position, | think, to see meaningful progress, and our policy has
recognized that.

QUESTION: But either way, they keep saying both sides, when in fact one side has F-35s that are
bombing the Palestinians — in fact, that’s the only place on earth where the F-35 has been used in
combat. And the others have stones — | mean, what is this both sides thing? One side is occupying
and the other side is being occupied. Would you care to explain what is the both side-ism here?

MR PRICE: Well, most recently, we have called on all sides to de-escalate. That includes Hamas. So
that has been our message since late last week; it is our message now. We're calling for de-
escalation.

QUESTION: Just a — it will be extremely brief. One, in your response to Said’s earlier question about
whether the Palestinians have a right to self-defense, your answer, you're going to know as soon as |
read what your answer was that there’s a big problem with it. You said — well, not a problem, it just
doesn't answer the question. We believe that it, meaning the right to self-defense, applies to any
state. Well, you see the problem, right? Yes?

MR PRICE: Do you want to —

QUESTION: Do regard Palestine as a state?

MR PRICE: | wasn'’t referring —

QUESTION: Do you think —

MR PRICE: But it —

QUESTION: You don't in the context of the ICC and the UN.
MR PRICE: | —
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QUESTION: So are you saying that you do not — if it applies to any state, are you saying the
Palestinians don't have a right to self-defense?

MR PRICE: | was making a broader point not attached to Israel or the Palestinians in that case.
QUESTION: So they do have a right to self-defense?

MR PRICE: Matt, I'm not —

QUESTION: No, no, no, it's not that difficult a question.

MR PRICE: I’'m not in a position to debate the legalities from up here.

QUESTION: All right.

MR PRICE: What — our message is one of de-escalation.

QUESTION: All right. And then just — from this administration’s point of view, is the previous
administration’s peace plan, the much vaunted Peace to Prosperity, is that just off the table? Is that —
or is it something that you're willing to look at and extrapolate on if necessary?

MR PRICE: As we have said in any number of contexts, most recently in North Korea, we are always
seeking to learn lessons not only from our immediate predecessors, but predecessors before that. |
think it is safe to say there are elements in that so called peace plan that are not a constructive
starting point.

Yes, Will.

QUESTION: | just want to ask who Secretary Blinken or others work within the Israeli government. Is
it a problem right now that there’s a change in power? Does that make it especially dangerous, and
where are they working to try to figure that out?

MR PRICE: There are — | wouldn't want to weigh in on the government formation process and where
we are. Our officials have appropriate counterparts, both within the Israeli Government at the moment
as well as Palestinian counterparts. We have not had an issue when it comes to any element of
transition.

Andrea.

QUESTION: A follow-up. Isn't it a problem that there is, for all intents and purposes, a power vacuum
in both sides?

MR PRICE: WEell, it is a problem, as | said before, that there are a confluence of factors that are in
many ways converging and have converged over the past 72 hours. It's precisely why we are engaged
so concertedly, both at the moment, over the weekend, late last week, even before that to try to de-
escalate the situation on the ground.

Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you, Ned. Amr Sayed, Al Jazeera Mubasher. Two U.S. legislators have described
the situation in Sheikh Jarrah as ethnic cleansing. This is Congresswomen Ilhan Omar and Rashida
Tlaib. Do you agree with this characterization? And if not, how would you describe it? And also, the
Israeli ambassador to the U.S. have described those comments by Congresswoman Rashida Tlaib as
inciteful, and | quote, “ terror groups such as Hamas to...carry out attacks against Jews.” Do you think
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that such accusation from a foreign diplomat against a U.S. legislator is acceptable? Thank you.

MR PRICE: So in terms of the statement you mentioned, the tweet you mentioned, I'm not going to
comment on that from here. I’'m going to leave it to the ambassador, to the Israeli Government to
make any comment they see fit on that tweet. And when it comes to the terminology used, that’s
nothing that we have used before. That's not something that our analysis supports.

Yes.

QUESTION: Just want to follow up on what you said, and | just want to make sure that | got it
correctly. This so-called peace plan, it might have some points that are not constructive. You said you
mean the Abraham Accords?

MR PRICE: No, no, no, he was asking about the — at least | took it to mean the so-called — right.
QUESTION: (Off-mike.)

QUESTION: Right. Okay. So then let me ask something on the Abraham Accords. Do you think it
might actually be counterproductive in that they make it easier for the Israel Government not to meet
the aspirations of Palestinian people for an independent state?

MR PRICE: The normalization agreements, and — is something that we support. It is something that
we think is not only good for Israel, it is good for the region. Improved ties between Israel and its Arab
neighbors is something that we will continue to support in our diplomacy and engagement, both with
the Israelis and Arab states.

QUESTION: But could it be counterproductive because it doesn’t actually give any leverage or any
benefit to the Palestinians?

MR PRICE: The normalization agreements are one element of our engagement in the region. Of
course, we continue to engage in the context of a two-state solution, and | think if you saw Jake
Sullivan’s readout, if you've seen our recent statements, if you were provided with call transcripts —
most of which we read out — you would see our emphasis on a two-state solution. So we can do both.
We can work to see improved ties between Israel and its neighbors, just as we work to forge some
advance in the prospects of a two-state solution.

Yes.

QUESTION: And we’d be happy to look at any transcript of any call that you would like to provide.
MR PRICE: Noted, noted. Thank you, yes.

QUESTION: Switch topics?

MR PRICE: Anything else before we switch topics? Kylie?

QUESTION: | was going to Russia.

MR PRICE: Okay. We'll start with you and then we’ll go to Kylie, yeah. Please, please.
QUESTION: Iran first.

MR PRICE: Yes.
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QUESTION: Any updates on the talks in Vienna? And | have another question on Lebanon.

MR PRICE: Well, as you know, Rob Malley recently returned to Vienna. This is now the fourth round
of what we fully expect to be multi-round negotiations. You heard not all that long ago about our
assessment of where this is. | think as you heard, it continues to be our analysis that there are
significant challenges that remain, and there remains a wide gap in between where the Iranians are
and where we think they need to be if they are to agree to resume compliance with the JCPOA.

QUESTION: Have you made any progress in the last two days or three days?

MR PRICE: | don’t want to go day by day. | think where we are is what you heard last week, that
significant gaps remain.

QUESTION: And on Lebanon, do you have any comment on the visit that the French foreign minister
has made to Beirut and his failure to push the Lebanese leaders to form a new government?

MR PRICE: Well, | wouldn’'t want to comment on the actions of another government when it comes to
Lebanon. Of course, we do cooperate closely with the French in this context, but our position is that
we have long been concerned by developments in Lebanon, the apparent inaction of the country’s
leadership in the face of multiple ongoing crises. We continue to believe that the Lebanese people
deserve a government that will urgently implement the necessary reforms to rescue their deteriorating
economy, and we note that Lebanon’s political leaders must work to address the country’s crises and
meet the urgent needs. It’s important for them to focus on building a government, not blocking a
government, and that remains our line.

QUESTION: Thank you.
MR PRICE: Kylie.

QUESTION: Just on the Colonial pipeline attack, | know the administration has said they are looking
for any ties to a nation-state actor, but can you just elaborate a little bit more on the State
Department’s role in that and the ongoing investigation, what role — if at all — State is playing at this
point?

MR PRICE: Well, you mentioned the operative phrase right there, “ongoing investigation,” so
unfortunately I’'m not able to weigh in from here.

QUESTION: Okay. And then will Secretary Blinken be speaking about this at all with Foreign Minister
Lavrov? Is this something that would even elevate to the level of his engagement with his Russian
counterpart, or are we not there yet?

MR PRICE: Well, | don’'t — could you expand? When would they do that?
QUESTION: Over the phone or something.

MR PRICE: Oh, okay. | see.

QUESTION: I'm not — not a meeting, I'm just saying engagement.

MR PRICE: Got it, got it. So look, | don't have any calls to preview at the moment, and also | wouldn’t
want to get ahead of any investigative equities there, so I'll probably decline to weigh in.

Yes, in the back. Yeah.
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QUESTION: On Afghanistan.
MR PRICE: Conor, yeah.

QUESTION: Just following up on your topper on Afghanistan, does an attack like this give the
administration pause at all about the plans for a U.S. withdrawal and the possibility that violence like
this will become more and more frequent?

MR PRICE: Well, you called it a withdrawal. | would contextualize that. It's a military withdrawal. As
the President has said, we will be withdrawing our military forces, except those required for the
protection of our embassy in Kabul. And that’s the other important point: We are going to retain an
embassy in Kabul precisely though — so that we can continue to partner and to provide support for not
only the Government of Afghanistan, but the people of Afghanistan. The circumstances of the bombing
over the weekend, they are not yet crystal clear. As | said before, there are some indications that this
may have been attributable to ISIS and not the Taliban. We don't want to get ahead of information as
it comes in.

But the President made very clear why he made the decision he did. We went into Afghanistan 20
years ago — just about 20 years ago — with a singular mission, and that was to go after the group that
was responsible for the 9/11 attacks and to see to it that Afghanistan could not again be leveraged as
a staging ground for attacks on the United States. We were able to achieve those goals. We believe
that — and we will do everything we can to support those who have made the important gains over the
past 20 years, including women and girls and minorities, in Afghanistan. That will not change even as
our troops leave the country, and we will seek to find ways to continue to partner with the Afghan
people going forward.

QUESTION: You say you've been able to achieve those goals, but an attack of this scale by a group
that looks perhaps like ISIS — doesn't that give you any pause about the source of terror — the terror
threat in Afghanistan?

MR PRICE: We have long been concerned about the growth of ISIS in Afghanistan, but these are
separate issues. As you know, we have had a military presence in Afghanistan to see to it that the
country could not be used as a staging ground to attack the United States, to propel force beyond —
well beyond Afghanistan’s borders. We have been able to accomplish that goal. We continue to have
important humanitarian goals when it comes to Afghanistan. We will continue to carry out and to move
forward with those objectives, even as our military withdraws from the country.

QUESTION: And on the — go ahead, Matt.

QUESTION: Well, | was just going to say, by that logic, though, you should never have gotten into
Syria or gone back into Iraq to deal with ISIS, because if you remember, ISIS was responsible for a
whole bunch of attacks outside of Syria, and you're there. So if now they are coming in — constituting
themselves as a force in Afghanistan, | mean, does it really matter if their name isn’t al-Qaida?

MR PRICE: No, but — and again, | don't want to go back to 2011. | don't want to go back to 2014. But
| will make the broader point —

QUESTION: Well, how about going back to — how about going back two days to the bombing at a
school that killed more than 70 people?

MR PRICE: But | will — | — I will make the broader point that when we went into Afghanistan in
October of 2001, we went in to take on the group that was responsible for the deadliest terrorist
attack on U.S. soil at that time, and, of course, to date.
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QUESTION: Right.

MR PRICE: ISIS in the context of Irag and Syria has posed a thread beyond the borders of Iraq and
Syria. Ask the people of Paris, ask the people of Brussels. And so that is why —

QUESTION: Exactly. But that's my point in asking you the question.
MR PRICE: No, but — and that — no, | think it's my point. That's why we have —

QUESTION: So we have to wait until ISIS stages an attack on U.S. soil before you — before you even
have pause, as Conor was asking?

MR PRICE: No, | was answering your question about why it was important to engage militarily in the
use of force in that context, because there was a threat well beyond the region. As we have said,
even as we withdraw militarily from Afghanistan, we will have adequate resources in the region and
over-the-horizon capacity should threats emerge that require us to leverage the use of force.

QUESTION: On the Taliban, then.

QUESTION: Will the U.S. make | guess accommodations for interpreters and people that worked for
the U.S. military and so on? There has been a great deal of anxiety and fear expressed.

MR PRICE: Well, and that is why we have placed such a premium on the special immigrant visa
program. It is something that even as, again, we have withdrawn — beginning the process of
withdrawing militarily, we have actually added resources to help process the special immigrant visa
applicants, knowing that as the United States, we have a special responsibility to those who have
helped us along the way, who have helped the U.S. military, who have helped the U.S. Government,
oftentimes placing themselves in harm’s way. Our commitment to these people, to these individuals
will continue, and we are doing all we can to process them as expeditiously as we can.

Yes, please.

QUESTION: Can | just —

QUESTION: Can we move to Ethiopia?

QUESTION: Can | just ask that one last one on the Taliban?
MR PRICE: Sure.

QUESTION: You said that you welcomed their three-day announcement of — or announcement of a
three-day ceasefire. Has Ambassador Khalilzad been in touch with any of the Taliban leadership? Why
— have you put any more pressure on them to announce a full, permanent ceasefire?

MR PRICE: Well, we do welcome this announcement and any move that allows the Afghan people a
reprieve from violence. We urge the Taliban to extend the ceasefire and order a significant reduction in
violence. We all know that a return to violence would be senseless as well as tragic. We remind the
Taliban that engaging in violence will not afford it legitimacy or durability. That has been our point all
along. Engaging in serious negotiations to determine a political roadmap for Afghanistan’s future that
leads to a just and durable settlement will.

A just and durable settlement has been at the center our — of our efforts. It’s in no one’s interest — we
know this — for Afghanistan to once again devolve into civil war. It's not in the Taliban’s interests, it's
not in the Government of Afghanistan’s interests, it’s not in the interests of Afghanistan’s neighbors,
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and it’s certainly not in the interests of the people of Afghanistan.

In terms of Ambassador Khalilzad, he has returned to the United States, but he had been in the region,
as you know, for some time, engaging with the parties from there.

Yes.

QUESTION: Can | follow up on the question about interpreters and translators? There are tens of
thousands of Afghans who are at risk. You've got a bipartisan group of legislators, veterans’
organizations, and refugees’ organizations saying that there is no sense of urgency about what the
administration is doing, that there should be an evacuation before our troops withdraw, and the troop
withdrawal is already taking place.

Can you address the lack of urgency that is perceived by all of these groups?

MR PRICE: Well, | would absolutely dispute that characterization. We have been acting with the
utmost urgency knowing that, again, we have a special responsibility to the women and men who
have, in many cases, placed themselves in harm’s way to assist the U.S. Government over the years.
We certainly appreciate the interest on the part of Congress. | know that discussions with Congress
on this are ongoing in terms of resources or other matters.

What | will say in the interim is that additional resources, including augmenting domestic staff in
Washington to process applications, has already been put in place. In addition, we approved a
temporary increase in consular staffing at our embassy in Kabul in order to conduct interviews and
process visa applications. And we’'ll continue to do that contingent on the security situation in the
country. We will continue to look for ways to speed up this process, to facilitate the processing of —
for these brave individuals.

QUESTION: Well, could you say that, at the end of the process of speeding up the applications and
the bureaucratic pieces of this, there will be an evacuation?

MR PRICE: Look, | don't want to get ahead of things. Right now, we are focused on processing these
claims knowing that, again, we have a special responsibility to those who have placed themselves in
harm’s way to help the United States.

Yes.

QUESTION: Ned, do you have more detail in Special Envoy Feltman’'s meetings in Ethiopia? Who is
he meeting with? And can we expect any progress in ending the Tigray crisis? Thank you.

MR PRICE: Well, that’s one of the reasons why he’s there. He is there to engage on the crisis in
Tigray. He’s also there to engage in discussions regarding the GERD, the dam. | don’t have any
additional details to read out right now, but as — | expect when he returns, we’'ll be in a position to
offer some more detail on his precise itinerary, on those engagements, and the progress that has
resulted.

QUESTION: Is cutting off all non-humanitarian assistance programs to Ethiopia on the table to
pressure the government to do more to end the crisis?

MR PRICE: Well, as we have said, we — the suffering of the people of Tigray is immense. It's
extraordinary. And so as we consider our aid to Ethiopia, we want to make sure that in the first
instance, we’re not doing anything that would place a further burden on the people of Tigray who are
in such humanitarian plight. So we want to make sure that, as we consider any future steps, that we
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continue to do all we can to support them. As you know, we have — given the current situation in
Ethiopia, we have decided not to lift the assistance pause for other programs, including most
programs in the security sector.

QUESTION: Is the election — I'm sorry, the final question: Is Ethiopia election on the agenda when he
meet with the Ethiopian Government? And does the United States have a position on the June 5 and
June 12th elections?

MR PRICE: Well, we, of course, strongly support democratization in Ethiopia, but free, fair, and
credible elections in June can happen only with a conducive electoral environment. If that is to be
achieved, the Government of Ethiopia must respect the freedom of assembly, the freedom of speech,
political participation, and access to internet and information. Political parties, we know, should
discourage violence, and state security forces must demonstrate restraint in the use of force and
partisan tactics. Ethiopian Government support for political dialogue among key stakeholders on
inclusive electoral processes — we believe that to be critical. We’re also working closely with
international partners to promote community-based dialogue to minimize violence surrounding the
elections.

Humeyra.

QUESTION: Just two quick things on Afghanistan again: Just wondering if United States plans to
continue close air support for Afghan Government forces after the U.S. completes its withdrawal in the
absence of a peace deal, which is looking much more likely?

MR PRICE: Well, what | would say is that we have made it very clear that if there are Taliban attacks
on American forces as they withdraw, we reserve the right to respond and we certainly will. | would
refer you to DOD, though, for operating posture beyond that.

QUESTION: And on the visa thing Andrea asked, you talked about, like, moving expeditiously and all
that. When we speak with some, like, advocacy groups about this, they’re talking about thousands or
sometimes tens of thousands of people. Are you able to give, like, a number, how many interviews
have you set up? Do you guys have, like, a target, “We’re thinking about issuing this many visas until
September 11th*? Or do you think that’s, like, cutoff date?

MR PRICE: Well, | would say a couple things. Number one is that we hope to be in a position to add
even more resources to this. So | think as we take into account what we're — both what we’re doing
now, we are also cognizant that we hope to be in a position to do even more, to move even more
quickly as we go forward. So this is not going to be a static picture, we hope. And certainly, as we've
already added resources to this challenge, we’re looking to find ways to add even more to reduce that
backlog.

QUESTION: And you think you're going to be able to process these visas past September 11th as
well?

MR PRICE: Again, we certainly plan to remain engaged diplomatically with the people of Afghanistan.
We plan to retain an embassy on the ground of Kabul and — on the ground in Kabul, and so that is
certainly our intention.

Yes.

QUESTION: Thank you, Mr. Price. Samira Gharaei for Iran International. My question is, of course,
about Iran. There are so many unanswered questions. What | want to ask is about the Biden
administration’s strategy as to the arms embargo on Iran expired in October. Also, what is the
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strategy for approaching expiration of the ballistic missile restriction based on the UN Resolution
22317 Are you negotiating any of this? Are you modifying any dates or any content of JCPOA?

MR PRICE: Well, | would say a couple things. Number one, what we have talked about in the context
of Vienna is the proposition that President Biden, then a candidate at the time, put on the table, and
that was the proposition of compliance for compliance. So what we are testing right now in Vienna is
the proposition that we can arrive at a compliance-for-compliance deal, meaning that Iran would
resume its full participation in the JCPOA, meaning that Tehran would once again be subject to the
most stringent verification and monitoring regime ever negotiated.

The fact is that Iran’s nuclear program has accelerated in recent years as Iran has distanced itself
from the nuclear deal, installing new centrifuges, new technology, shortening that breakout time. We
want to ensure that Iran is once again permanently and verifiably prevented from obtaining a nuclear
weapon, and we continue to believe that the JCPOA is an appropriate tool for doing that.

But as you've heard us say before, a resumption of so-called compliance for compliance is necessary
but not sufficient. We also believe that the nuclear deal should be strengthened, made longer and
stronger in the parlance, but we also seek to negotiate what we call follow-on agreements,
agreements that would cover precisely the issues that you've talked about: ballistic missiles, support
for terrorism and proxies, other issues of regional concern. So that is a longer-term goal for us as well
as we focus in these first days on restoring that nuclear deal.

QUESTION: Supporting proxies is a very good example nowadays with what is going on in Israel and
Palestine. | want to know, regarding Gaza and all the rest that other people were talking about, how
Biden administration is justifying the Iranian terrorism sanction relief with what we are seeing now. Iran
— Iranian partners have manpower and money in Gaza. That’s undeniable.

MR PRICE: | don't think you're hearing us justifying sanctions relief when it comes to terrorism
sanctions. As we have said, when it comes to what we would need to do — well, let me back up. We
have a clear idea of what Iran would need to do to resume its compliance with the nuclear deal. It
would need to once again subject itself to the most stringent verification and monitoring regime ever
negotiated. We also have a sense of what we would need to do, and put very simply, it is to remove
sanctions that are inconsistent with the JCPOA.

Now, even if we were to get to a point where both sides would resume compliance and Iran would
once again subject itself and permanently and verifiably bar itself from ever obtaining a nuclear
weapon, and if we were to remove sanctions that were inconsistent with the JCPOA, we would still
vigorously hold to account Iran for its behavior in other areas — its terrorism, its support for proxies, its
human rights abuses. And among the policy tools that we would have in doing so are sanctions. There
is nothing in the JCPOA that removes sanctions as a policy tool to address those specific areas, and
we would continue to hold Tehran to account.

QUESTION: Ned, you keep saying — and you said it twice in two answers in response to her question
— that Iran is subject to the most — the, quote, “most stringent monitoring and inspection regime ever
negotiated.” But that — the JCPOA, in fact, does not allow inspections of some of the most
problematic sites that Iran has — military sites. Isn’t that correct?

MR PRICE: Matt — and the IAEA can give you a chapter and verse, but if there is a site —

QUESTION: Precisely. But you're the one who keeps saying that this is the most stringent monitoring
and inspection regime ever negotiated.

MR PRICE: Well, it is. It is. And —
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QUESTION: Yeah, well, it may well be, but it also omits the most problematic areas that are —

MR PRICE: It does not omit anything. That is a myth that unfortunately has persisted from 2015. And

unfortunately, there has been some misreporting that | think has allowed that myth to persist. The
JCPOA —

QUESTION: You're telling me that right now the IAEA can go into any facility in Iran —

MR PRICE: If there are —

QUESTION: — that it thinks might be being used for nuclear reasons, even if it's a military site?
MR PRICE: If there is an area of concern, the IAEA has recourse for that. | would refer you —
QUESTION: Well, has that recourse ever once been used?

MR PRICE: But you're shifting the goal post now.

QUESTION: No, I'm not. Can they get in right now? Do they have free access to do their most
stringent monitoring and inspection at any site that they want to?

MR PRICE: Well, but you raise a good point. Now that Tehran has been allowed to distance itself
from the JCPOA, of course the |IAEA is more limited. And of course, the director general, Mr. Grossi,
has been very engaged with Tehran in seeing to it that they have an accommodation that will last a
shorter period. We want to see to it that Tehran is once again subject to the stringent verification and
monitoring regime that was in place when the nuclear deal was fully in effect.

QUESTION: What would be some of the other things that the U.S. would like to renegotiate with Iran
other than the sunset clause? There was a sunset clause. It talks about 15 years, maybe moving it to
25 years. Now, in reality, are there any other issues that you would like to renegotiate?

MR PRICE: But before we get to how we would want to make the nuclear deal longer and stronger, |
think we're focused on testing the proposition of compliance for compliance. So | wouldn't want to go
beyond that at this point.

Seeing no more hands — seeing one more hand and the fact that we need to quickly go to the — a
bilateral — yes, we'll conclude.

QUESTION: Did you have comment or any information regarding the pipeline cyberattack today?

MR PRICE: We don't. Given that there — it's a matter of ongoing investigation, we'll refer to law
enforcement authorities and the White House.

Thank you all very much. We'll see you tomorrow.

(The briefing was concluded at 2:42 p.m.)

Stay connected with the State Department:

¥ ® H B ®E H

Document ID: 0.7.12479.7458 1049-000239



External links found in this content or on Department of State websites that go to other non-
Department websites should not be construed as an endorsement of the views or privacy policies
contained therein.

Update your subscriptions, modify your password or email address, or stop subscriptions at any time
on your Subscriber Preferences Page. You will need to use your email address to log in. If y